
Wednesday, April 18, 2018
1:30 PM

Napa Valley Transportation Authority
625 Burnell Street

Napa, CA 94559

NVTA Conference Room

NVTA Board of Directors

All materials relating to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the NVTA Board of 

Directors are posted on our website at https://nctpa.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx at least 72 hours prior 

to the meeting and will be available for public inspection, on and after at the time of such distribution, in 

the office of the Secretary of the NVTA Board of Directors, 625 Burnell Street, Napa, California 94559, 

Monday through Friday, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., except for NVTA holidays. 

Materials distributed to the present members of the Board at the meeting will be available for public 

inspection at the public meeting if prepared by the members of the NVTA Board or staff and after the 

public meeting if prepared by some other person.  Availability of materials related to agenda items for 

public inspection does not include materials which are exempt from public disclosure under Government 

Code sections 6253.5, 6254, 6254.3, 6254.7, 6254.15, 6254.16, or 6254.22.

Members of the public may speak to the Board on any item at the time the Board is considering the 

item.  Please complete a Speaker’s Slip, which is located on the table near the entryway, and then 

present the slip to the Board Secretary.  Also, members of the public are invited to address the Board 

on any issue not on today’s agenda under Public Comment.  Speakers are limited to three minutes.

This Agenda shall be made available upon request in alternate formats to persons with a disability .  

Persons requesting a disability-related modification or accommodation should contact Karrie Sanderlin, 

NVTA Board Secretary, at (707) 259-8631 during regular business hours, at least 48 hours prior to the 

time of the meeting.

This Agenda may also be viewed online by visiting the NVTA website at 

https://nctpa.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx

Note: Where times are indicated for agenda items they are approximate and intended as estimates 

only, and may be shorter or longer, as needed.

Agenda - Final



April 18, 2018NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final

1.  Call to Order

2.  Pledge of Allegiance

3.  Roll Call

4.  Adoption of the Agenda

5.  Public Comment

6.  Chairperson’s, Board Members’, Metropolitan Transportation Commissioner's 

(MTC), and Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG) Update

7.  Executive Director's Update

8.  Caltrans' Update

Note: Where times are indicated for the agenda items they are approximate and intended as estimates 

only and may be shorter or longer as needed.

9.  CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS (9.1 - 9.8)

9.1 Meeting Minutes of March 21, 2018 (Karrie Sanderlin) (Pages 9-13)

Board action will approve the NVTA meeting minutes of March 21, 

2018.

Recommendation:

1:30 p.m.Estimated Time:

Draft MinutesAttachments:

9.2 Revised Policies, Practices, and Procedures Manual: Personnel 

(Karrie Sanderlin) (Pages 14-92) 

Board action will approve the revised NVTA Personnel Policies manual.Recommendation:

1:45 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

Page 2 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 4/11/2018

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6a4b6b79-f2d4-4dc6-a55c-6b5657681ab4.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=014c36f0-bedd-4622-8cca-e8db3d36e73f.pdf


April 18, 2018NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final

9.3 Revised Policies, Practices, and Procedures Manual: Contracting 

and Procurement (Rebecca Schenck) (Pages 93-133) 

Board action will approve the revised Contracting and Procurement 

Policy manual.

Recommendation:

1:45 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

9.4 Revised Policies, Practices and Procedures Manual: Transit 

Policies and Bus Stop Optimization and Maintenance Plan 

(Rebecca Schenck) (Pages 134-203) 

Board action will approve the revised NVTA Transit Policy manual and 

the Bus Stop Optimization and Maintenance Plan.

Recommendation:

1:45 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

9.5 Paratransit Coordinating Council Committee Member 

Appointment (Matthew Wilcox) (Pages 204-208)

Board action will approve the appointment of Ruth Clark to the PCC.Recommendation:

1:45 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

9.6 Citizens Advisory Committee (CAC) Member Appointment 

(Danielle Schmitz) (Pages 209-217)

Board action will approve the appointment of Patricia Lynch to the 

Healthcare representative position and the reappointments of Larry 

Kromann, Jean-Vincent Deale and Nicole Cummings. 

Recommendation:

1:45 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

Page 3 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 4/11/2018

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=64fbc026-a016-4abd-a2f8-ffe167a15798.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0d6e0e5e-7fa2-435c-9043-2082b62bfe88.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=909ec113-e50a-4a17-9ddb-bcb883e79c42.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ca8846c5-2139-456d-92b0-ad2b565a01e0.pdf


April 18, 2018NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final

9.7 Approval of Resolution No. 18-10 for the Fiscal Year (FY) 2017-18 

Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) (Justin 

Paniagua) (Pages 218-222)

Board action with approve Resolution No. 18-10 authorizing the 

executive director or her designee to submit the LCTOP application.

Recommendation:

1:45 p.m.

 

Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

9.8 Transportation Development Act Article 3 (TDA-3) Call for 

Projects for Fiscal Years (FY) 2018-19 through FY 2020-21 (Diana 

Meehan) (Pages 223-233)

1:45 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

10.  PUBLIC HEARING (TIME CERTAIN 1:45 P.M.)

10.1 Public Hearing on the Napa Valley Transportation Authority's 

(NVTA's) Biennial Budget for Fiscal Years 2018-19 and 2019-20 

(Justin Paniagua) (Pages 234-255) 

Board action will hold a Public Hearing on the NVTA’s Biennial Budget for 

FY 2018-19 and 2019-20.

 

Recommendation:

1:45 p.m.Time Certain:

Staff ReportAttachments:

11.  REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS

Page 4 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 4/11/2018

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e2dff40b-a5f0-4bc3-aa19-717a4568d882.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e390b243-acfc-413b-b5d3-984ce62000d7.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=bd03e1f6-bd8a-48e0-9c61-5603351eab94.pdf


April 18, 2018NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final

11.1 Comprehensive Operations Analysis (COA) Identified Needs 

(Matthew Wilcox) (Pages 256-262)

The Board will adopt the list of identified needs and their 

corresponding solutions. 

Recommendation:

2:00 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

11.2 (1) Adoption of Resolution No. 18-11 Amending the 

Environmental Impact Report for the Vine Transit Bus 

Maintenance Facility (2) Approve the Modified Project for the Vine 

Transit Maintenance Bus Facility; and (3) Adoption of Resolution 

No. 18-12 Approving the Modified Project for the Vine Transit 

Maintenance Bus Facility (Rebecca Schenck) (Pages 263-356)

Board action will (1) Adopt of Resolution No. 18-11 Amending the 

Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the Vine Transit Bus 

Maintenance Facility; (2) Approve the conceptual plan for the Vine 

Transit Bus Maintenance Facility project; and (3) Adopt Resolution No. 

18-12 approving the Modified Project Vine Transit Bus Maintenance 

Facility.

Recommendation:

2:15 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

11.3 Amendment No. 11 to the Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

(NVTA) Joint Powers Agreement (Antonio Onorato) (Pages 

357-385)

Board action will approve the proposed revisions to the NVTA Joint 

Powers Agreement (JPA) and direct staff to circulate it to its member 

jurisdictions for approval by their respective councils.

Recommendation:

2:30 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

Page 5 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 4/11/2018

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=033f6592-98f3-41e9-919e-a0f32ac6dbe6.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5de67da2-a82f-4630-9382-6e8a799070b9.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6cc497e6-0111-4498-b285-d905a7bf0538.pdf


April 18, 2018NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final

11.4 Amendment #1 to Project Work Order No. 5 to Napa Valley 

Transportation Authority (NVTA) Agreement No. 18-01 with Fehr 

& Peers (Shaveta Sharma) (Pages 386-401)

Board action will approve Amendment #1 to Project Work Order No. 5 

to Agreement 18-01 for additional Scope of Work by $47,060, and 

authorize the Executive Director to execute contract documents for the 

completion of the work.

Recommendation:

2:45 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

11.5 Federal and State Legislative Updates and State Bill Matrix (Kate 

Miller) (Pages 402-416)

The Board will receive the monthly Federal and State Legislative 

updates, and approve board position recommendations for bills on the 

State Bill Matrix. 

Recommendation:

3:00 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

12. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

13  ADJOURNMENT

131 Approval of Next Regular Meeting Date of May 16, 2018 at 1:30 

p.m. and Adjournment

3:30 p.m.Estimated Time:

I hereby certify that the agenda for the above stated meeting was posted at a location freely accessible 

to members of the public at the NVTA Offices, 625 Burnell Street, Napa, CA by 5:00 p.m. on Friday, 

April 13, 2018.

____________________________________

Karalyn E. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary

Page 6 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 4/11/2018

Karalyn E. Sanderlin (e-sign) April 11, 2018

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e90f7977-5847-489a-b83c-fb638e554070.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c84c55bf-a465-44fc-b324-dd6b4fef8b57.pdf


Glossary of Acronyms 

Latest Revision: 11/17 

AB 32 Global Warming Solutions Act 

ABAG Association of Bay Area Governments 

ADA American with Disabilities Act 

ATAC Active Transportation Advisory Committee 

ATP Active Transportation Program 

BAAQMD Bay Area Air Quality Management District 

BART Bay Area Rapid Transit District 

BATA Bay Area Toll Authority 

BRT Bus Rapid Transit 

CAC Citizen Advisory Committee 

CAP Climate Action Plan  

Caltrans California Department of Transportation 

CEQA California Environmental Quality Act 

CIP Capital Investment Program 

CMA Congestion Management Agency 

CMAQ Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality 
Improvement Program 

CMP Congestion Management Program 

CTP Countywide Transportation Plan  

COC Communities of Concern 

CTC California Transportation Commission 

DAA Design Alternative Analyst 

DBB Design-Bid-Build 

DBF Design-Build-Finance 

DBFOM Design-Build-Finance-Operate-Maintain 

DED Draft Environmental Document  

EIR Environmental Impact Report 

EJ Environmental Justice 

FAS Federal Aid Secondary  

FAST Fixing America’s Surface Transportation Act 

FHWA Federal Highway Administration 

FTA Federal Transit Administration 

FY Fiscal Year 

GHG Greenhouse Gas 

GTFS General Transit Feed Specification 

HBP Highway Bridge Program  

HBRR Highway Bridge Replacement and 
Rehabilitation Program  

HIP Housing Incentive Program 

HOT High Occupancy Toll 

HOV High Occupancy Vehicle 

HR3 High Risk Rural Roads  

HSIP Highway Safety Improvement Program 

HTF Highway Trust Fund  

IFB Invitation for Bid 

ITIP State Interregional Transportation 
Improvement Program 

IS/MND Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

JARC Job Access and Reverse Commute  

LIFT Low-Income Flexible Transportation 

LOS Level of Service 

LS&R Local Streets & Roads 

MAP 21 Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century
Act 

MPO Metropolitan Planning Organization 

MTC Metropolitan Transportation Commission 

MTS Metropolitan Transportation System 

ND Negative Declaration   

NEPA National Environmental Policy Act 

NOAH Natural Occurring Affordable Housing  

NOC Notice of Completion 

NOD Notice of Determination 

NOP Notice of Preparation 

NVTA Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

NVTA-TA Napa Valley Transportation Authority-Tax 
Agency 

OBAG One Bay Area Grant  

PA&ED Project Approval Environmental Document 

P3 or PPP Public-Private Partnership 

PCC Paratransit Coordination Council 

PCI Pavement Condition Index 

PCA Priority Conservation Area 

PDA Priority Development Areas 

PID Project Initiation Document  

PMS Pavement Management System  

7



Glossary of Acronyms 

Latest Revision: 11/17 

Prop. 42 Statewide Initiative that requires a portion of 
gasoline sales tax revenues be designated to 
transportation purposes 

PSE Plans, Specifications and Estimates 

PSR Project Study Report 

PTA Public Transportation Account  

RACC Regional Agency Coordinating Committee 

RFP Request for Proposal 

RFQ Request for Qualifications 

RHNA Regional Housing Needs Allocation  

RM2 Regional Measure 2 (Bridge Toll) 

ROW Right of Way  

RTEP Regional Transit Expansion Program 

RTIP Regional Transportation Improvement 
Program 

RTP Regional Transportation Plan 

SAFE Service Authority for Freeways and 
Expressways 

SAFETEA-LU Safe, Accountable, Flexible, and Efficient 
Transportation Equity Act-A Legacy for Users 

SB 375 Sustainable Communities and Climate 
Protection Act 2008 

SB 1 Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 

SCS Sustainable Community Strategy 

SHOPP State Highway Operation and Protection 
Program  

SNCI Solano Napa Commuter Information 

SNTDM Solano Napa Travel Demand Model  

SR State Route 

SRTS Safe Routes to School 

SOV Single-Occupant Vehicle 

STA State Transit Assistance 

STIC Small Transit Intensive Cities 

STIP State Transportation Improvement Program 

STP Surface Transportation Program 

TAC Technical Advisory Committee 

TCM Transportation Control Measure 

TCRP Traffic Congestion Relief Program 

TDA Transportation Development Act 

TDM Transportation Demand Management 

 Transportation Demand Model 

TE Transportation Enhancement  

TEA Transportation Enhancement Activities 

TEA 21 Transportation Equity Act for the 21st Century 

TFCA Transportation Fund for Clean Air 

TIGER Transportation Investments Generation 
Economic Recovery  

TIP Transportation Improvement Program 

TLC Transportation for Livable Communities 

TLU Transportation and Land Use 

TMP Traffic Management Plan 

TMS Transportation Management System 

TNC Transportation Network Companies 

TOAH Transit Oriented Affordable Housing  

TOD Transit-Oriented Development 

TOS Transportation Operations Systems 

TPA Transit Priority Area  

TPI Transit Performance Initiative 

TPP Transit Priority Project Areas 

VHD Vehicle Hours of Delay 

VMT Vehicle Miles Traveled 

                    8



625 Burnell Street

Napa, CA 94559

Napa Valley Transportation 

Authority
Meeting Minutes - Draft

NVTA Board of Directors

1:30 PM NVTA Conference RoomWednesday, March 21, 2018

1. Call to Order

Chair White called the meeting to order at 1:32 p.m.

Chair White introduced and welcomed Fran Rosenberg as a new Board member representing 

the Paratransit Coordinating Council.

2. Pledge of Allegiance

Board member Galbraith led the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. Roll Call

Leon Garcia

Alan Galbraith

James Barnes

Chris Canning

Jill Techel

Alfredo Pedroza

Mark Joseph

John F. Dunbar

Peter White

Doris Gentry

Kerri Dorman

Fran Rosenberg

Belia Ramos

4. Adoption of the Agenda

Motion MOVED by GARCIA, SECONDED by TECHEL to APPROVE Adoption of the Agenda.  Motion 

carried by the following vote:

Aye: Garcia, Galbraith, Barnes, Canning, Techel, Pedroza, Joseph, Dunbar, White, Gentry, and 

Dorman

22 - 

Absent: Ramos2 - 

5. Public Comment

None

Page 1Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 4/5/2018

April 18, 2018
NVTA Agenda Item 9.1

Continued From: New
Action Requested: APPROVE

9



March 21, 2018NVTA Board of Directors Meeting Minutes - Draft

6. Chairperson’s, Board Members’, Metropolitan Transportation Commissioner's and

Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG) Update

MTC Commissioners' Update

Alfredo Pedroza reported on recent MTC activities.

ABAG Update

Leon Garcia reported on recent ABAG activities.

Board Member Update

Chair White reported on the recent Washington D.C. advocacy trip.  Attendees included Chair 

White, Vice Chair Chris Canning, Board member/MTC Commissioner Alfredo Pedroza, and NVTA 

Executive Director Kate Miller.

7. Executive Director's Update

Kate Miller, Executive Director

• Acknowledged board room modifications and noted that modifications to the dais will be

completed in April.

• Announced that the Vine will receive a bump in their Federal Transit Administration

apportionment from the Small Transit Intensive Cities (STIC) program. The STIC funds will result

in an additional $558k.  Acknowledged the transit team for their hard work.

• Provided a summary of MTC Washington D.C. legislative trip with NVTA Chair White, Vice Chair

Canning, and member/Commissioner Pedroza.  During the three day trip, NVTA representatives

met with Congressman Thompson, FTA acting administrator Jane Williams, Senate Banking

Committee majority and minority staff, and senior staff from Senator Feinstein and Harris’

offices.

• Announced that  May 22, 2018 is the WTS Scholarship and Awards event where NVTA will

receive the innovative project of the year award from the WTS San Francisco Chapter for the

RidetheVine App and encouraged Board Member participation for the event .

• Announced that the NVTA Commute Challenge, under the new branding “V-Commute”, kicks

off April 1st and will go through June 30th.

• Announced that Bijan Sartipi, Executive Director of Caltrans District 4 is retiring at the end of

March.

• Announced Derek Moore, NVTA’s public information officer submitted his resignation March 7th

and the agency will be seeking a Marketing and Communications associate to replace him.

8. Caltrans' Update

No oral report provided by Caltrans, however, the March 2018 Caltrans Reporting Memo was 

provided for review.

9. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS (9.1-9.2)

At the request of Board member Dorman, Item 9.2 was pulled from consent for further discussion.

Motion MOVED by JOSEPH, SECONDED by CANNING to APPROVE Consent Item 9.1.  Motion 

carried by the following vote:

Aye: Garcia, Galbraith, Barnes, Canning, Techel, Pedroza, Joseph, Dunbar, White, Gentry, and 

Dorman

22 - 

Absent: Ramos2 - 

Page 2Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 4/5/2018

10



March 21, 2018NVTA Board of Directors Meeting Minutes - Draft

9.1 Meeting Minutes of February 21, 2018 (Karrie Sanderlin) (Pages 7-13)

Draft Minutes.pdfAttachments:

Board action approved the meeting minutes of February 21, 2018.

9.2 Proposed Organizational Restructure of the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) 

(Karrie Sanderlin)  (Pages 14-20)

Staff Report.pdfAttachments:

Staff provided further detail of the organizational restructure and the reclassification of the 

Public Information Officer position to a Marketing and Communications Specialist. 

Motion MOVED by GALBRAITH, SECONDED by GARCIA to APPROVE (1) re-titling the Public 

Information Officer to Marketing and Communications Specialist, (1) the Marketing and 

Communications Specialist job description (as provided in Attachment 1), and (3) the propose 

Organizational Chart (as provided in Attachment 2).  Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Garcia, Galbraith, Barnes, Canning, Techel, Pedroza, Joseph, Dunbar, White, Gentry, and 

Dorman

22 - 

Absent: Ramos2 - 

10. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS

10.1 Approval of the State Route 37 (SR 37) Transportation and Sea Level Rise Corridor 

Improvement Plan (Danielle Schmitz) (Pages 21-72)

Staff Report.pdfAttachments:

Staff provided a review of the needs assessment, transportation improvement strategies, public 

outreach efforts, and public survey results for the State Route 37 (SR 37) Transportation and Sea 

Level Rise Corridor Improvement Plan. 

Motion MOVED by GARCIA, SECONDED by PEDROZA to APPROVE the SR 37 Transportation and 

Sea Level Rise Corridor Improvement Plan.  Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Garcia, Galbraith, Barnes, Canning, Techel, Pedroza, Joseph, Dunbar, White, Gentry, and 

Dorman

22 - 

Absent: Ramos2 - 

Page 3Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 4/5/2018

11

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=13e47664-a12a-4b0b-9bb7-57028adc8476.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=754cb09f-f8fa-4bf5-9ba1-c9fee642e276.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=87052c0d-8a66-4099-b485-3c9869a66c7a.pdf


March 21, 2018NVTA Board of Directors Meeting Minutes - Draft

10.2 Approval of Professional Services Agreements in Response to Request for Qualifications 

(RFQ) 2017-17 for On-Call Engineer/Architect and Project Delivery Services (Herb 

Fredricksen) (Pages 73-134)

Staff Report.pdfAttachments:

In response to RFQ 2017-07, twenty-one (21) proposals were received.  An evaluation selection 

committee chose the top seventeen (17) proposing consultants (as provided in Attachment 2) for 

award of on-call engineering, architectural and project delivery professional services contracts 

covering work disciplines in the following eight (8) project categories: Highways, Roads, and 

Intersection Infrastructure; Bicycle and Pedestrian Infrastructure; Transit Infrastructure; Corridor 

Operational Efficiencies; Transportation Technologies; Land Surveying; Construction 

Management; Project Management and Administration (service in management support role).  

The NVTA Board will approve all amendments costing in excess of the executive director’s 

authority and receive quarterly reporting of other expenditures.

Pubic Comment was provided by the following individual:

Phillip Sales, Napa Valley Vine Trail

Motion MOVED by GALBRAITH, SECONDED by JOSEPH to APPROVE authorizING the Executive 

Director to execute, and make minor modifications to seventeen (17) Professional Services 

agreements for on-call engineer/architect and project delivery services, each for a term not to 

exceed five (5) total years.  Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Garcia, Galbraith, Barnes, Canning, Techel, Pedroza, Joseph, Dunbar, White, Gentry, and 

Dorman

22 - 

Absent: Ramos2 - 

10.3 Federal and State Legislative Updates and State Bill Matrix (Kate Miller) (Pages 

135-155)

Staff Report.pdfAttachments:

The Board received the Monthly Federal and State Legislative updates and took the following 

actions on the recommendations on proposed legislation included in the State Bill Matrix.

Motion MOVED by GARCIA, SECONDED by GALBRAITH to APPROVE a Support Position on AB 

3124 (Bloom D).

Motion MOVED by PEDROZA, SECONDED by JOSEPH to APPROVE a Support Position on 

REgional Measure 3/Senate Bill 595 (Beall).

Motions carried by the following vote:

Aye: Garcia, Galbraith, Barnes, Canning, Techel, Pedroza, Joseph, Dunbar, White, Gentry, and 

Dorman

22 - 

Absent: Ramos2 - 

11. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

None

Page 4Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 4/5/2018

12

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=53aea99d-ad19-4bf6-ac35-314742cdbdb2.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5b6b464f-5890-4f2d-a636-8d2c415e597a.pdf


March 21, 2018NVTA Board of Directors Meeting Minutes - Draft

12. ADJOURNMENT

12.1 Approval of Next Regular Meeting Date of April 18, 2018 at 1:30 p.m. and Adjournment

The next regular meeting will be held on April 18, 2018 at 1:30 p.m.

Chair White adjourned the meeting at 3:05 p.m.

_____________________________________ 
Karalyn E. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary

Page 5Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 4/5/2018

13



April 18, 2108 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.2 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Karrie Sanderlin, Program Manager-Administration and Human 

Resources 
(707) 259-8633 / Email: ksanderlin@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Revised Policies, Practices, and Procedures Manual: Personnel 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve the revised NVTA 
Personnel Policies Manual (Attachment 1). 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

None 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Board last adopted revisions to the Personnel Policy in 2018.  A refinement of NVTA 
Personnel Policy Manual is being proposed to align it with revisions to policies and 
benefits offered by NVTA. 

The revised Personnel Policies and Procedure Manuel contains updated information on 
the following topics: 

• Revision to Section 2.3.2.C Content of Orientation
• Revision to Section 2.10 Performance Evaluation
• Revision to Section 3.1.3 Standard Work Week
• Revision to Section 3.1.4 Flex Time
• Revision to Section 3.5.3 Overtime Pay
• Revision to Section 4.6.2 Reporting Requirements
• Revision to Section 6.4.1 Mobile Device
• Revision to Section 7.2.3.A Accrual Rates (Vacation)

14

mailto:ksanderlin@nvta.ca.gov


NVTA Agenda Letter                  Wednesday, April 18, 2018 
Agenda Item 9.2 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a Fiscal Impact?  No 
 
CEQA REQUIREMENTS 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: The proposed action is not a project as defined 
by 14 California Code of Regulations 15378 (State CEQA Guidelines) and therefore 
CEQA is not applicable.  
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
This proposed changes to the Personnel Policy Manual were developed to   ensure 
consistency with policies and benefits offered by NVTA. 
 
The revised Personnel Policies and Procedure Manuel contains updated information on 
the following topics: 
 
1. Section 2.3.2. Content of Orientation 

The following language was added was added to Section 2.3.2: 
When the employee reports to work, the Department Head will review with the 
employee the general employment conditions, as applicable, including but not limited 
to: 

• Specific job duties, training and performance standards 
• Employee assignments 
 

2. Section 2.10 Performance Evaluation 
The section was updated to include language that a probationary employee failing to 
reach an overall “Fully Exhibits” rating for management employees or “Meets 
Standards” rating for non-management employees at the end of their six-month 
probation review may, at the discretion of the Executive Director, have his/her 
probation extended up to 3 months. 
 

3. Section 3.1.3 Standard Work Week: As NVTA contracts with the County of Napa for 
payroll services this section updates the standard work to a seven-day period 
beginning at 12:00 a.m. on Saturday and ending at 11.59 p.m. on Friday to be 
consistent with that of the County of Napa standard work week.  
 

4. Section 3.1.4 Flex Time 
Language was added to Section 3.1.4 stating flex time employees is subject to prior 
approval by the employee’s supervisor and the Executive Director.  Prior written 
approval from employee’s supervisor and the Executive Director shall be obtained no 
later than the conclusion of the previous work shift.  
  

15



NVTA Agenda Letter                  Wednesday, April 18, 2018 
Agenda Item 9.2 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
5. Section 3.5.3Overtime Pay 

Overtime pay must be approved in advanced by employee’s supervisor and the 
Executive Director prior to performing the work. 

 
6. Section 4.6 Attendance and Punctuality 

Reporting requirement language was updated for absences, tardiness or leaving 
early. 

 
7. Section 6.4.1 Mobile Device 

This section increases the managers and exempt employee mobile device purchase 
reimbursement amount from $599 to $1000. 

 
8. Section 7.2.3A Accrual Rates (Vacation) 

Adjustment to the vacation accrual rate are being proposed as follows so that they are 
consistent with the County of Napa vacation accrual rates policies: adding the Year 
15 through 19 accrual rate of 7.2 hours and Year 30 or more of 9 hours: 

Years of Continuous 
Agency Service 

Hours of Vacation 
Accrued/ Pay Period 

Maximum Accrual for 
Years of Continuous 
Service 

Date of Hire through Year 3 3.8 hours 240 maximum hours 
Year 4 through 9 4.8 hours 300 maximum hours 
Year 10 through 14 6.2 hours 400 maximum hours 
Year 15 through 19 7.2 hours 400 maximum hours 
Year 20 through 29 8 hours 400 maximum hours 
Year 30 or mores 9 hours 400 maximum hours 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachment: (1) NVTA Personnel Policies Manual Revised April 18, 2018 (Redline 
       Version) 

16



Board Approved 11/18/2015 

 
 

 
 
Page 
FIN 9.01 
 
CHAPTER 1 INTRODUCTION ....................................................................................... 7 

Section 1.1. Overview of Personnel Policies ............................................................... 7 
1.1.1 Statement of Policy .................................................................................... 7 
1.1.2 Construction and Limitations ...................................................................... 7 
1.1.3 Implementation of the Policies ................................................................... 7 

CHAPTER 2 EMPLOYMENT STATUS .......................................................................... 8 
Section 2.1. Definitions ................................................................................................ 8 
Section 2.2. Hiring Process ....................................................................................... 10 

2.2.1 Statement of Policy .................................................................................. 10 
2.2.2 Personnel Request .................................................................................. 10 
2.2.3 Employee Selection ................................................................................. 10 
2.2.4 Placing Employee on the Payroll ............................................................. 11 

Section 2.3. New Employee Orientation .................................................................... 12 
2.3.1 Statement of Policy .................................................................................. 12 
2.3.2 Content of Orientation .............................................................................. 12 

Section 2.4. Probationary Period ............................................................................... 13 
2.4.1 Statement of Policy .................................................................................. 13 
2.4.2 Duration of Probationary Period ............................................................... 13 
2.4.3 Termination of Probationary Period ......................................................... 13 
2.4.4 Rejection of Probationer Following Promotion ......................................... 13 
2.4.5 Effect of Leaves of Absence on Probationary Period ............................... 13 

Section 2.5. Job Classification ................................................................................... 14 
Section 2.6. Job Descriptions .................................................................................... 14 
Section 2.7. Assignment and Transfer ....................................................................... 14 

2.7.1 Statement of Policy .................................................................................. 14 
2.7.2 Temporary Assignments .......................................................................... 14 

Section 2.8. Promotion .............................................................................................. 15 
2.8.1 Statement of Policy .................................................................................. 15 
2.8.2 Application Procedure .............................................................................. 15 
2.8.3 Criteria for Selection ................................................................................ 15 
2.8.4 Probationary Period ................................................................................. 15 
2.8.5 Procedure When Employee Does Not Pass Probation ............................ 15 

Section 2.9. Anti-Nepotism Policy and Non-Fraternization Policy .............................. 16 
2.9.1 Statement of Policy .................................................................................. 16 
2.9.2 Relatives, Spouses or Domestic Partners in Same Department, Work Area 

or Facility ................................................................................................. 16 
2.9.3 Application of the Policy ........................................................................... 16 

Section 2.10. Performance Evaluation ....................................................................... 17 
Section 2.11. Resignation .......................................................................................... 18 

PERSONNEL 

NCTPANVTA 
POLICIES, PRACTICES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL 

ATTACHMENT 1 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.2 

April 18, 2018 

17



Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[ii] 

Section 2.12. Layoff ................................................................................................... 19 
2.12.1 Statement of Policy .................................................................................. 19 
2.12.2 Layoff Order ............................................................................................. 19 
2.12.3 Notice ....................................................................................................... 19 
2.12.4 Reinstatement from Layoff ....................................................................... 19 
2.12.5 Benefits .................................................................................................... 19 

Section 2.13. Personnel Files .................................................................................... 19 
2.13.1 Statement of Policy .................................................................................. 19 
2.13.2 Employee Responsibility to Ensure Accuracy of Personnel Records ...... 20 
2.13.3 Duty to Provide Accurate Information ...................................................... 20 
2.13.4 Access to Personnel Files ........................................................................ 20 

CHAPTER 3 HOURS OF WORK AND COMPENSATION ........................................... 21 
Section 3.1. Work Schedules ..................................................................................... 21 

3.1.1 Work Schedules ....................................................................................... 21 
3.1.2 Standard Work Schedule ......................................................................... 21 
3.1.3 Standard Work Week ............................................................................... 21 
3.1.4 Flex Time ................................................................................................. 21 

Section 3.2. Meal and Rest Breaks............................................................................ 21 
3.2.1 Meal Breaks ............................................................................................. 21 
3.2.2 Rest Periods ............................................................................................ 21 
3.2.3 Meal and Rest Breaks May Not Be Combined or Postponed .................. 22 

Section 3.3. Compensation ........................................................................................ 22 
3.3.1 Statement of Policy .................................................................................. 22 
3.3.2 Wage Rates ............................................................................................. 22 
3.3.3 Pay Schedule ........................................................................................... 23 
3.3.4 Payroll Deductions ................................................................................... 23 
3.3.5 Updating Payroll Information .................................................................... 23 

Section 3.4. Timekeeping .......................................................................................... 23 
3.4.1 Employees ............................................................................................... 23 
3.4.2 Consequences of Falsifying Time Records .............................................. 24 

Section 3.5. Overtime ................................................................................................ 24 
3.5.1 Statement of Policy .................................................................................. 24 
3.5.2 Exclusion from Policy ............................................................................... 24 

CHAPTER 4 STANDARDS OF CONDUCTS ............................................................... 26 
Section 4.1. Equal Employment Opportunity ............................................................. 26 

4.1.1 Statement of Policy .................................................................................. 26 
4.1.2 Employee, Supervisor and Management Responsibilities ....................... 26 

Section 4.2. Anti-Harassment/Discrimination Policy .................................................. 26 
4.2.1 Statement of Policy .................................................................................. 26 
4.2.2 Definitions ................................................................................................ 27 
4.2.3 Zero Tolerance ........................................................................................ 28 
4.2.4 Complaint and Investigation Procedure ................................................... 28 
4.2.5 Prohibition on Retaliation ......................................................................... 29 
4.2.6 Prevention ................................................................................................ 30 

Section 4.3. Mutual Respect and Courtesy Rule ....................................................... 30 
Section 4.4. Reasonable Accommodation ................................................................. 30 

18



Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[iii] 

4.4.1 Statement of Policy .................................................................................. 30 
4.4.2 Conditions Covered By This Policy .......................................................... 30 
4.4.3 Examples of Reasonable Accommodation .............................................. 31 
4.4.4 Requests for Reasonable Accommodation .............................................. 31 
4.4.5 Medical Information ................................................................................. 32 
4.4.6 The Interactive Process ........................................................................... 32 
4.4.7 Miscellaneous Guidelines ........................................................................ 33 

Section 4.5. Appearance, Conduct and Hygiene ....................................................... 33 
4.5.1 Statement of Policy .................................................................................. 33 
4.5.2 Guidelines on Appearance, Conduct and Hygiene .................................. 33 

Section 4.6. Attendance and Punctuality ................................................................... 34 
4.6.1 Statement of Policy .................................................................................. 34 
4.6.2 Reporting Requirements .......................................................................... 34 
4.6.3 Discipline ................................................................................................. 35 

Section 4.7. Secondary Employment ......................................................................... 35 
4.7.1 Statement of Policy .................................................................................. 35 
4.7.2 Notification and Approval ......................................................................... 35 

Section 4.8. Causes for Discipline ............................................................................. 36 
4.8.1 Statement of Policy .................................................................................. 36 
4.8.2 Standards of Conduct .............................................................................. 36 

Section 4.9. Discipline ............................................................................................... 37 
4.9.1 Statement of Policy .................................................................................. 37 
4.9.2 Progressive Discipline.............................................................................. 37 
4.9.3 Administrative Leave................................................................................ 38 
4.9.4 Procedures for Disciplinary Action of a Permanent Employee ................. 38 

CHAPTER 5 HEALTH AND SAFETY ON THE JOB .................................................... 40 
Section 5.1. Job Safety .............................................................................................. 40 

5.1.1 Statement of Policy .................................................................................. 40 
5.1.2 Employee Responsibility .......................................................................... 40 
5.1.3 Injury Reporting ....................................................................................... 40 

Section 5.2. Workplace Violence Prevention ............................................................. 40 
5.2.1 Statement of Policy .................................................................................. 40 
5.2.2 Employee Responsibilities ....................................................................... 40 
5.2.3 Conduct Prohibited By This Policy ........................................................... 40 
5.2.4 Reporting Procedure ................................................................................ 41 
5.2.5 Corrective Actions .................................................................................... 41 

Section 5.3. Alcohol and Drug Free Workplace ......................................................... 42 
5.3.1 Statement of Policy .................................................................................. 42 
5.3.2 Definitions ................................................................................................ 42 
5.3.3 Pre-Employment Drug and Alcohol Screening ......................................... 43 
5.3.4 Prohibition on Possession, Use, Sale or Transport of Alcohol or Drugs .. 43 
5.3.5 Reasonable Suspicion Testing ................................................................ 44 
5.3.6 Search or Inspection of Agency Property for Illegal Drugs or Alcohol ...... 44 
5.3.7 Disciplinary Action ................................................................................... 45 
5.3.8 Drug and Alcohol Assistance Programs................................................... 45 

Section 5.4. Fitness for Duty ...................................................................................... 45 

19



Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[iv] 

5.4.1 Statement of Policy .................................................................................. 45 
5.4.2 Employee Responsibility .......................................................................... 45 
5.4.3 Pre-Employment Medical Examinations .................................................. 45 
5.4.4 Post-Employment Fitness for Duty Examinations .................................... 46 
5.4.5 Confidentiality of Examination Records ................................................... 47 

Section 5.5. Driving .................................................................................................... 47 
5.5.1 Statement of Policy .................................................................................. 47 
5.5.2 Driver’s License Requirements ................................................................ 47 
5.5.3 Good Driving Record ............................................................................... 48 
5.5.4 Compliance with Traffic Laws .................................................................. 49 
5.5.5 Use of Seatbelts ...................................................................................... 49 

Section 5.6. Smoking ................................................................................................. 49 
CHAPTER 6 EQUIPMENT AND PROPERTY .............................................................. 50 

Section 6.1. Use and Care of Agency Property ......................................................... 50 
6.1.1 Statement of Policy .................................................................................. 50 
6.1.2 Damage or Loss of Agency Equipment.................................................... 50 
6.1.3 Key/Access Card Distribution .................................................................. 50 
6.1.4 Personal Use of Agency Property ............................................................ 50 
6.1.5 Personal Tools or Property ...................................................................... 50 
6.1.6 Agency Access to Property ...................................................................... 50 
6.1.7 Entry onto Private Property ...................................................................... 51 
6.1.8 Purchasing ............................................................................................... 51 

Section 6.2. Phones, Computers, and Other Electronic Equipment .......................... 51 
6.2.1 Statement of Policy .................................................................................. 51 
6.2.2 Phone Usage for Personal Reasons ........................................................ 51 
6.2.3 Internet Usage ......................................................................................... 52 
6.2.4 Decorum of Communications ................................................................... 52 
6.2.5 Installation or Duplication of Software ...................................................... 52 
6.2.6 Discipline ................................................................................................. 52 

Section 6.3. Agency Vehicles .................................................................................... 52 
Section 6.4. Employee Purchase Program ................................................................ 55 

6.4.1 Mobile Device .......................................................................................... 55 
CHAPTER 7 TIME OFF AND LEAVES OF ABSENCE ................................................ 56 

Section 7.1. Holidays ................................................................................................. 56 
7.1.1 Eligible Employees .................................................................................. 56 
7.1.2 Recognized Holidays ............................................................................... 56 
7.1.3 Personal Leave ........................................................................................ 56 
7.1.4 Board Ordered Holiday ............................................................................ 56 
7.1.5 Holidays Occurring During Unpaid Leave ................................................ 57 
7.1.6 Working on Holidays ................................................................................ 57 

Section 7.2. Vacation ................................................................................................. 57 
7.2.1 Purpose ................................................................................................... 57 
7.2.2 Eligibility ................................................................................................... 57 
7.2.3 Accrual ..................................................................................................... 57 
7.2.4 Scheduling ............................................................................................... 60 
7.2.5 Termination or Retirement from Agency .................................................. 60 

20



Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[v] 

Section 7.3. Sick Leave ............................................................................................. 61 
7.3.1 Purpose ................................................................................................... 61 
7.3.2 Eligibility ................................................................................................... 61 
7.3.3 Accrual ..................................................................................................... 61 
7.3.4 Conversion of Vacation to Sick Leave ..................................................... 61 
7.3.6 Employee Notice and Communication ..................................................... 61 

Section 7.4. Workers’ Compensation Leave .............................................................. 62 
7.4.1 Purpose ................................................................................................... 62 
7.4.2 Sick or Vacation Leave Supplementation ................................................ 62 
7.4.3 Accrual of Benefits during Leave ............................................................. 62 

Section 7.5. Pregnancy Leave ................................................................................... 62 
7.5.1 Purpose ................................................................................................... 62 
7.5.2 Covered Employees ................................................................................ 62 
7.5.3 Leave Rights ............................................................................................ 63 
7.5.4 Pay and Benefits ...................................................................................... 63 
7.5.5 Employee Notice Obligations ................................................................... 63 
7.5.6 Medical Certification................................................................................. 63 
7.5.7 Other Forms of Pregnancy-Related Disability Accommodation ............... 63 

Section 7.6. Family and Medical Care Leave Act ...................................................... 64 
7.6.1 Statement of Policy .................................................................................. 64 
7.6.2 Definitions ................................................................................................ 64 
7.6.3 Family and/or Medical Care Leave .......................................................... 65 
7.6.4 Status of Prior Policies ............................................................................. 69 

Section 7.7. Funeral and Bereavement Leave ........................................................... 69 
7.7.1 Purpose ................................................................................................... 69 
7.7.2 Conditions of Leave ................................................................................. 69 

Section 7.8. Jury Duty and Witness Leave ................................................................ 70 
7.8.1 Purpose ................................................................................................... 70 
7.8.2 Jury Duty Leave ....................................................................................... 70 
7.8.3 Witness Duty ............................................................................................ 70 
7.8.4 Overtime Exempt Employees .................................................................. 71 

Section 7.9. Military Leave ......................................................................................... 71 
7.9.1 Purpose ................................................................................................... 71 
7.9.2 Leave of Absence .................................................................................... 71 
7.9.3 Employee Notice Requirements .............................................................. 71 
7.9.4 Pay and Benefits While On Leave ........................................................... 71 
7.9.5 Reinstatement .......................................................................................... 72 

Section 7.10. Leaves of Absence without Pay–Accrual of Vacation and Sick Leave . 72 
Section 7.11. Outside Employment............................................................................ 72 

CHAPTER 8 BENEFITS ............................................................................................... 74 
Section 8.1. Insurance ............................................................................................... 74 

8.1.1 Purpose ................................................................................................... 74 
8.1.2 Terms of Coverage .................................................................................. 74 
8.1.3 Eligibility ................................................................................................... 74 
8.1.4 Medical, Dental and Vision Coverage ...................................................... 74 
8.1.5 Life Insurance Coverage .......................................................................... 75 

21



Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[vi] 

Section 8.2. Retirement ............................................................................................. 75 
8.2.1 Purpose ................................................................................................... 75 
8.2.2 Plan Overview .......................................................................................... 75 
8.2.3 Contributions ............................................................................................ 75 

22



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[7] 

CHAPTER 1 INTRODUCTION 
 
Section 1.1. Overview of Personnel Policies 

1.1.1 Statement of Policy 
The following employment policies, procedures and rules for the administration of 
employer/employee relations will be referred to as these “Personnel Policies and 
Procedures.”  These Personnel Policies and Procedures are for the guidance of 
the management and supervisory staff and for employees of the Agency and their 
employee organizations. 
1.1.2 Construction and Limitations 
The Personnel Policies and Procedures shall be subject to the following limitations, 
conditions, constructions and interpretations: 
A. The Agency reserves the right to rescind, revise or supplement the 

Personnel Policies and Procedures at any time and from time to time. 
B. The Personnel Policies and Procedures do not constitute a contract with 

with any employee. 
C. Employees who are appointed and serve “At Will” have the right to terminate 

employment with NCTPANVTA at any time, with or without advance notice 
and with or without cause.  NCTPANVTA, as the employer, likewise has the 
right to terminate the employment of an At Will employee at any time, with 
or without advance notice and with or without cause.  No one in the Agency 
other than the appointing authority, e.g. either the NCTPANVTA Board of 
Directors or Executive Director, may alter that At Will arrangement, or enter 
into an agreement for employment for a specified period of time, or make 
any agreement contrary to this provision.  To the extent any Personnel 
Policies and Procedures set forth in this document are contrary to or 
inconsistent with the At Will status of an employee, such policies and/or 
procedures shall not apply to such employee. 

D. These Personnel Policies and Procedures supersede and replace any 
earlier policies, rules, regulations, handbooks, manuals, guidelines and 
practices relating to employment with the Agency.   

E. In the event any section or provision of this manual is declared invalid by a 
court of competent jurisdiction or is contradictory to any federal or state law 
or regulation, the remaining provisions shall not be invalidated and shall 
remain in full force and effect. 

1.1.3 Implementation of the Policies  
The Executive Director is responsible for developing and amending the 
administrative procedures that provide the steps and guidelines for carrying out 
the policies contained in this document.  Administrative procedures, which could 
significantly affect employees or financially impact the NCTPANVTA, will be 
referred to the NCTPANVTA Board for approval.   

23



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[8] 

CHAPTER 2 EMPLOYMENT STATUS 
 
Section 2.1. Definitions 
For the purposes of these rules the following definitions shall apply: 
Agency:  Napa County Valley Transportation and Planning AgencyAuthority 
Applicant:  A person who has made a formal request on a prescribed form in order to 
qualify for Agency employment. 
Appointment:  The offer to a person, and his/her acceptance of a position in accordance 
with the provision of these rules. 
At Will:  An employment relationship which either party (employer or employee) has the 
right to terminate at any time, with or without prior notice and with or without cause.  This 
arrangement is called “employment At Will”.  An At Will employee serves at the pleasure 
of the appointing authority (in the case of the Executive Director, the appointing authority 
is the NCTPANVTA Board of Directors; in the case of all other At Will employees, the 
appointing authority is the Executive Director, unless otherwise appointed by the 
NCTPANVTA Board of Directors).  An At Will employee is not afforded probationary or 
permanent employee status.  At Will employment status is defined as follows: 

a. At Will employees include the Executive Director.   
b. Part time limited term, temporary, and special status hires separate from a 

regular, full-time, or part-time permanent staff member and dependent on specific 
hiring conditions. 

Board:  The NCTPANVTA Board of Directors Members. 
Candidate:  Any applicant who has been admitted to an examination. 
Compensation:  Any salary, wage or other emolument paid to an employee for 
performing the duties of a position. 
Continuous Employment:  Employment uninterrupted from the date of appointment, 
except for authorized absence. 
Demotion:  A change from a position in one class to a position in a lower class. 
Discharge:  The termination of employment of an employee for disciplinary purposes. 
ED:  Executive Director 
Eligibility List: A list of names of candidates who have been qualified for a specific job. 
Employee: Any person who occupies a position in the Agency service and receives 
compensation for services performed for the Agency. 
Employee Representative:  An individual who appears on behalf of the employee. 
Examination:  A test or group of tests to determine the fitness and relative ability of 
persons seeking employment or promotion. 
Exempt Employee:  An employee who is not subject to the overtime provisions of the 
federal Fair Labor Standards Act. 

24



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[9] 

Grievance:  A complaint of an alleged violation of a rule or regulation upon which he/she 
desires official action to be taken. 
Layoff:  An actual separation from Agency service, an involuntary permanent reduction 
in work hours, or a demotion in lieu of layoff.   
Leave-of-Absence:  Permitted absence from duty for a specified period of time. 
Minimum Qualifications:  Standards of education and experience, knowledge, skills and 
abilities, and personal and physical characteristics as are prescribed in the class 
specifications. 
Position:  A group of current duties and responsibilities assigned or delegated by 
competent authority requiring the full-time or part-time employment of one person. 
Permanent:  The status of an employee who is lawfully retained in his/her position after 
the completion of the probationary period as provided in these rules. 
Probationary:  The status of an employee who has been certified and appointed as a 
probationary employee in accordance to these rules.  Probationary status constitutes a 
trial period of six (6) months full employment and is to be considered part of the selection 
process.  Employees receiving a promotion are also subject to a probationary period of 
six months.  A probationary employee may be separated by the Agency from employment 
service at any time during the probationary period without right of appeal or hearing.  
Employees may also be subject to a performance related probationary period if an 
employee performance is not meeting the job requirements of a position regardless of 
how long that person has been employed by the agency. The length of the probationary 
period is at the discretion of the supervisor and/or the executive director. 
Promotion:  Changing from a position in one class to a vacant position in a higher class 
with a higher salary range without a break in service. 
Re-employment Eligibility Lists:  Lists established as a result of laying off probationary 
or permanent employees. 
Regular Position:  A budgeted position. 
Resignation:  Separation of an employee made at the request of the employee. 
Salary Merit Increase:  An increase in salary within the salary range prescribed for the 
class, based upon performance during the first six months of employment, unless initially 
appointed above the minimum step, and annual adjustments thereafter (based on the 
Performance Evaluation) until attainment of the top step of the salary range. 
Separation:  Any termination of employment. 
State:  The State of California. 
Status:  The condition of an employee's appointment, such as part-time, At Will, or 
probationary, permanent, or temporary. 
Suspension:  An enforced leave of absence without pay for disciplinary purposes. 
Temporary:  "Temporary" is the status of those persons employed for a temporary period 
(limited term) to perform a specific task, job or assignment.  Such employees are not 
entitled to holiday pay and shall not earn vacation, personal or sick leave.  In addition 

25



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[10] 

temporary employees shall not be eligible for salary merit increases nor entitled to 
participate in the Agency’s retirement program.  Temporary employees serve At Will. 
Termination:  Ending the employment of an employee by the agency. 
Transfer:  A change from one position to another in the same or similar class without any 
break in service.  Such change in classes must have the same salary range and similar 
qualifications. 
Vacancy or Vacant Position:  Any unfilled allocated position in the Agency.  A position 
shall be deemed vacant when it is not filled by an employee in the class to which the 
position has been allocated. 
Year:  A twelve (12) month period unless otherwise designated. 
Section 2.2. Hiring Process  

2.2.1 Statement of Policy 
This process sets forth procedures to follow when filling position vacancies other 
than the Executive Director.  A vacancy occurs when a job opening will be filled by 
adding staff or by replacing an employee by either hiring an employee from outside 
the Agency or by transfer of an existing employee.   
2.2.2 Personnel Request 

A. Initiation 
A request for personnel will be initiated by the Executive Director when a vacancy 
is to be filled.   
2.2.3 Employee Selection 

A. Job Vacancy Posted 
Job vacancies will be posted on appropriate Agency bulletin board for the purpose 
of informing existing employees who may wish to submit an application.   

B. Advertising 
The Executive Director may advertise the job vacancy and, if necessary, list the 
vacancy with the California Employment Development Department.  Temporary 
and/or part-time openings may be listed with the local colleges, or other 
appropriate educational institutions.  

C. Employment Application 
All applicants, internal and external, will be required to complete an employment 
application for each vacancy applied.  Employment applications are available in 
the Agency’s Human Resources office and on the NCTPANVTA web page.  

D. Screening Applicants 
The Human Resources department shall submit appropriate screening criteria and 
interview questions to the ED for approval.  The ED will screen the applications to 
identify those that meet the criteria.  

26



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[11] 

E. Interviewing 
The ED, or his/her designee, and an additional panel of interviewers if appropriate, 
will interview employees and applicants that have been selected from the 
screening process.   Interviewers not able to fairly assess the applicant due to a 
personal relationship or other reason will be disqualified from participating on the 
panel. 

F. Documenting the Interview 
During or immediately after each interview, each interviewer shall complete the 
Interview Rating Sheet which is provided to assist in arriving at a final decision.  
Appropriate numerical values representing the degree of each evaluation factor, 
based on the interview, job-related experiences or skills, or other pertinent criteria 
depicting the candidate’s qualifications, shall be entered on the Interview Rating 
Sheet form.  The order of qualified candidates shall be from the highest to the 
lowest total point value. 

G. Selection 
The decision concerning which candidate to select rests with the ED.   

H. Notification. 
Once the decision to hire or promote has been approved, it will be the responsibility 
of the Human Resources department to notify the prospective employee of his/her 
acceptance (pending any required background check)  and the unsuccessful 
applicants of their rejection. 
2.2.4 Placing Employee on the Payroll 

A. Duties of the Executive Director or Designee: 
1. The prospective employee will be given a conditional offer of 

employment conditioned upon the successful completion of a 
background check.    

2. A background check may be conducted.  If the prospective employee 
passes this part of the screening process, he or she may be required 
to take a a medical exam   

3. Upon successful completion of the background check and medical 
exam, the following steps will be taken: 
(a) The ED will send an offer letter to the prospective employee, 
which must be signed and returned. 
(b) A start date is coordinated with the Human Resources 
department. 
(c) The prospective employee will be given an orientation interview 
covering the information identified in Section 2.3.2 of these Policies 
and Procedures.   

27



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[12] 

Section 2.3. New Employee Orientation  
2.3.1 Statement of Policy 
All new employees will participate in a new employee orientation meeting with 
representatives from Agency administration and the employee’s Supervisor.   
2.3.2 Content of Orientation 
The subjects that should be covered during such orientation, as applicable, include 
the following: 

A. Information to Be Covered By Administration 
• Job description 
• Workplace harassment policies/training 
• Personnel Policies and Procedures 
• Personnel records and files 
• The probationary period and extension (applicable to rehires, 

promotions, and transfers, as well as for new hires (other than At 
Will hires). 

• Wages and salaries 
• Performance evaluation 
• Safety 
• Employee communications and office decorum 
• General working conditions 
• Organizational chart 

B. Information to Be Covered Regarding Benefits: 
• Group insurance programs 
• Employee’s retirement and deferred compensation plans 
• Workers’ Compensation medical and disability coverage 
• Payroll forms such as W-4, automatic deposits, etc. 

C. Information to Be Covered By Human Resources 
When the employee reports to work, the Human Resources department will review 
with the employee the general employment conditions, as applicable, including but 
not limited to:   

• Introduction to fellow workers  
• Organization and purpose of the Agency 
• Specific job duties, training and performance standards 
• Attendance 
• Safety 
• Other related policies and procedures applicable to the employee 
• Employee assignments 

When the employee reports to work, the Department Head will review with the 
employee the general employment conditions, as applicable, including but not 
limited to: 

• Specific job duties, training and performance standards 

28



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[13] 

• Employee assignments 
 

 
Section 2.4. Probationary Period 

2.4.1 Statement of Policy 
The probationary period is the final and most important phase of the selection 
process and is used for assessing the performance, ability, conduct and fit of the 
employee in the position to which appointed.  During the probationary period the 
employee may be separated by the Agency at any time and for any reason, with 
or without cause.   
All appointments to full-time and part-time positions, other than At Will 
appointments, are subject to the provisions of Section 2.4 and serving a 
probationary period.   
2.4.2 Duration of Probationary Period  
A probationary period shall be for six (6) months for all employees, and shall begin 
on the first date of employment or promotion.  An employee shall not attain regular 
full-time status in the new position until he or she has completed a probationary 
period of six (6) months continuous service in that position.  
The term “continuous service” as used in this section means a period of six (6) 
months of work uninterrupted by a leave of absence.  Where such interruptions 
occur, the Agency may extend the probationary period. 
2.4.3 Termination of Probationary Period 
Permanent status of the probationary employee shall begin after receipt of a 
positive evaluation no sooner than the end of the probationary period. 
A probationary employee may be separated by the Agency from service at any 
time during the probationary period without right of appeal or hearing. 
2.4.4 Rejection of Probationer Following Promotion 
For any employee who fails to satisfactorily complete the probationary period 
following a promotion, the provisions of Section 2.8.5, Procedure When Employee 
Does Not Pass Probation, shall apply. 
2.4.5 Effect of Leaves of Absence on Probationary Period 
An employee who is on leave of absence without pay during his/her probationary 
period may have the probationary period extended by his/her supervisor.  The 
extension may be up to the amount of time of the leave without pay.  The Agency 
shall notify the employee of the extension in writing prior to the end of the 
probationary period as provided in Section 2.4.2. 

29



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[14] 

Section 2.5. Job Classification 
It is recognized that the creation and/or redesign of job classifications for all 
Employees, including the establishment of duties and the qualifications required 
therefore, are exclusive functions of Agency management. 
All positions are evaluated according to necessity, relative skills required to do the 
work, and in some case, the market.  Positions that are similar in type of work, 
level of difficulty and level of responsibility are grouped together in the same class.  
All positions in the same class are treated alike in such matters as salary and 
minimum qualifications. 
The Executive Director and Human Resources will periodically review the work 
performed by employees to determine whether they are appropriately classified.  If 
the duties of a position are found to have changed substantially, or the need for 
maintaining the position is at issue, the supervisor may recommend that the 
position be re-evaluated, reclassified, or abolished.  Similarly, job descriptions will 
be prepared for any new positions which will be evaluated and classified according 
to their relative worth. 

Section 2.6. Job Descriptions 
Job descriptions define essential and other duties that an employee is required to 
perform in each classification as a condition of continued employment.  They are 
not intended to limit the work which may be performed since other tasks may be 
assigned that are similar in nature or as needed. 
Full job descriptions and salary ranges are available for review on the Agency H 
drive in the following location; H:\NCTPA\1300_Human Resources\Job 
Description & Org Chart\00_Current 

Section 2.7. Assignment and Transfer 
2.7.1 Statement of Policy 
While it is management’s intent to schedule work and assign personnel in such a 
manner as to achieve maximum utilization of the respective employee’s abilities, 
and while it is management’s intent to encourage an employee’s progression 
upward in the same line of work, it is recognized that conditions which affect 
Agency’s operations will require flexibility in work assignments to permit cross-
training and to stabilize the workload among departments. It is therefore also 
recognized that as conditions require, management will assign, and Management 
Employees and Non-Management Employees will perform, duties which may not 
be within the usual scope of classification responsibilities. 
2.7.2 Temporary Assignments 
If an employee is temporarily assigned to the full duties and responsibilities of a 
higher classification, he /she will be paid a higher rate for the entire period when 
working in the higher wage classification.  If assigned to a lower wage 
classification, the employee will not earn less than he or /she would normally earn 
in a pay period in his/her regular classification. 

30

file://data2/NCTPA/NCTPA/1300_Human%20Resources/Job%20Description%20&%20Org%20Chart
file://data2/NCTPA/NCTPA/1300_Human%20Resources/Job%20Description%20&%20Org%20Chart


 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[15] 

A temporary job classification assessment form must be submitted to and 
approved by the Executive Director in advance. 

Section 2.8. Promotion 
2.8.1 Statement of Policy 
It is the intent of the Agency that vacancies shall be filled by internal promotion of 
qualified Agency employees when feasible. 
2.8.2 Application Procedure 
When the Agency intends to fill a job opening, a notice of such opening listing 
essential qualifications and functions of the job shall be placed on appropriate 
Agency bulletin board.  Employees shall have five (5) working days to apply for the 
position from the date of posting.  All interested employees must file an application 
to be considered for the open position.  In the event that no employees apply or 
are qualified for the position, the Agency may seek other applicants.  The five (5) 
day in-house posting period may be reduced or waived when management is faced 
with emergency circumstances. 
2.8.3 Criteria for Selection 

A. Minimum Qualifications 
To be considered a qualified applicant for any opening, an applicant must possess 
the minimum qualifications established for the position and, if applicable, pass any 
physical examination or drug and alcohol test that may be required as a conditional 
offer of employment. 

B. Other Qualifications 
The employee’s qualifications will also be assessed in accordance with the 
priorities listed below: 

• Test score, if test is given 
• Related experience 
• Ability to progress in position 
• Documented performance 
• Oral interview 
• Experience and performance in previous Agency employment; and 
• If all else is equal, upon length of employment with the Agency. 

2.8.4 Probationary Period 
Employees promoted to another position within the Agency shall serve a 
probationary period in the new position for the purpose of allowing the Agency to 
assess the employee’s performance, ability, conduct and fit in the new position as 
provided in Section 2.4.2. 
2.8.5 Procedure When Employee Does Not Pass Probation 
If the employee is unsuccessful in the new position, the following procedure will 
apply: 

31



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[16] 

A. If a Vacancy Exists 
The employee will be returned to his or her former position provided a vacancy still 
exists. 

B. If a Vacancy Does Not Exist in the Former Position 
1. The employee will be afforded the opportunity to compete in a 

vacancy for another position for which the Agency determines he or 
she is qualified. 

2. If no other vacancy exists, or if the employee is unsuccessful in the 
bidding process for a vacant position, the employee may be laid off.  Layoff; 
however, for a period of one year following layoff, the employee will be 
eligible to be rehired in the first available opening for which he or she is 
determined to be qualified. 

Section 2.9. Anti-Nepotism Policy and Non-Fraternization Policy 
2.9.1 Statement of Policy 
The Agency’s policy is to hire, promote and transfer employees on the basis of 
individual merit and to avoid any hint of favoritism, conflict of interest or 
discrimination in making such decisions.  The employment of relatives, spouses or 
domestic partners is regarded as a potential violation of this policy.  Even if 
favoritism, an actual conflict of interest, or discrimination is not shown, the 
existence of the situation may precipitate an appearance of unfairness or conflict 
of interest. 
2.9.2 Relatives, Spouses or Domestic Partners in Same Department, Work 
Area or Facility 
An employee’s relatives, spouses or registered domestic partners (as defined 
under state law) may only be employed within the same work area, department or 
Agency facility when the following criteria are met: 

1. Such employment does not adversely affect safety, morale, security, 
internal financial control, or supervision and the individuals involved 
do not work in direct supervision of each other. 

2. An employee neither initiates nor participates in making institutional 
recommendations or decisions which would directly affect 
employment status of his/her spouse, registered domestic partner or 
relative(s).  These recommendations/ decisions include, but are not 
limited to, selection, appointment, retention, tenure, work 
assignments, promotion, demotion or salary. 

The Agency may prohibit assignment or reassign employees if, in its sole 
discretion, it finds that any of the above criteria are not met. 
2.9.3 Application of the Policy 

1. "Relatives” refer to persons related by blood or marriage, or any 
relative residing in the immediate household of the employee 

32



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[17] 

(including, but not limited to: wife, husband, parent, child, 
grandparent, brother, sister, in-laws, aunt, uncle, step relatives). 

2. This policy also applies to persons who are registered domestic 
partners as defined under state law. 

2.9.4 Marriage or Registered Domestic Partnership Arising Between 
Employees While Employed. 
1. Should two employees marry or form a registered domestic 

partnership while both are employed by the Agency, they may 
continue their employment in the same jobs provided that the criteria 
set forth in Section 2.9.2 are met. 

2. If the criteria are not met, one of the employees in the marriage, or 
registered domestic partnership, must change jobs, work locations 
or leave the Agency.  The couple will make a decision within thirty 
(30) days of the marriage  or partnership, as to which of the two of 
them will change positions.  If this decision is not made within 30 
days, based upon its business needs, the Agency reserves the right 
to determine which employee will be transferred or whose 
employment will be terminated based upon the operational interests 
and needs of the Agency. 

2.9.5 Non-Fraternization 
In order to promote the efficient operation of the Agency and its business and to 
avoid misunderstandings, complaints of favoritism, other problems of supervision, 
security and morale, and possible claims of sexual harassment – managers and 
supervisors are forbidden from dating or pursuing romantic or sexual relationships 
with employees whom they supervise, directly or indirectly.  Employees who violate 
this provision will be subject to discipline, up to and including discharge. 

Section 2.10. Performance Evaluation 
An employee serving a six (6) month probationary period shall receive evaluations 
from their immediate supervisor at the end of three (3)  months and also prior to 
the completion of the employee's probationary period.  If the employee’s 
performance review at the end of the three month period is at “Does Not Exhibit”, 
then that employee shall not pass probation.  If an employee has more than two 
areas of “Building Competencies” in specific categories, such employee will have 
an interim review at four months from hire.  Failure to reach an overall “Fully 
Exhibits” rating for management employees or “Meets Standards” rating for non-
management employees, by the six month review will be considered as failing 
probation.  An employee may be released from employment upon failing probation 
or at the discretion of the Executive Director an employee failing to reach an overall 
“Fully Exhibits” rating for management employees or “Meets Standards” rating for 
non-management employees at the end of their six-month probation review may 
have their probation period extended to up to three (3) months.  .  
Evaluations for permanent employees shall be completed annually. 

33



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[18] 

Such evaluations shall be on forms and under procedures prescribed by the 
Executive Director. 
Salary movement through a pay grade will be based on performance which is 
reviewed on an annual basis on the employee’s anniversary date. 
Pay grade ranges are approximately 20% from beginning step to the top of the pay 
grade.  An employee may receive an increase within their pay grade based upon 
their performance and NCTPANVTA Board allocation of a salary pool.  Once an 
employee reaches the top of their pay grade they will still be subject to annual 
performance reviews. 
The pay grades will be adjusted annually and indexed to the average of County of 
Napa, Sonoma County Transportation Authority, and Solano County 
Transportation Authority increases for a given year or  Bay Area Consumer Price 
Index (CPI) for all labor within Napa County, whichever is greater. 
The results of the performance evaluation shall be taken into account in the 
following ways: 

1. A discretionary leave of absence will be granted only to an employee 
whose last evaluation was at least satisfactory. 

2. The general record of service as well as   specific and immediate 
disciplinary charges will be taken into account when disciplinary 
action against an employee is proposed and the discipline, if any, is 
assessed. 

3. Merit salary increases will be determined by the Executive Director 
and can be awarded only to those employees whose current overall 
evaluation is at least “Fully Exhibits” or above for management 
positions, and at least a “Meets Standards” or above for non-
management positions. 

4. If a non-probationary employee is at “Does Not Exhibit or Building 
Competencies” in two or more specific areas, or receives an overall 
rating of “Does Not Exhibit” that employee will be evaluated again 
within three months.  Continued failure to meet performance 
expectations will lead to further disciplinary action up to and including 
discharge. 

Section 2.11. Resignation 
Any employee, other than the Executive Director or At Will employees, wishing to 
leave service in good standing shall file with the Agency a signed written 
resignation giving at least two weeks’ notice of his/her intention to leave the 
service, unless the Agency consents to an earlier separation.   
The written resignation shall be forwarded to the Executive Director.  The 
Executive Director may request an exit interview with the separating employee. 

34



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[19] 

Any employee who leaves service without so filing a written resignation shall have 
such fact entered in his/her service record and may, by action of the Executive 
Director, be denied employment opportunities with the Agency   in the future. 

Section 2.12. Layoff 
2.12.1 Statement of Policy 
When it is necessary to reduce the working staff of the Agency for lack of work or 
lack of funds or for other causes outside of the worker’s control, the Agency shall 
determine the classes of positions in which the reduction is to be made and the 
number of positions to be affected, except that this Section 2.12 shall not apply to 
At Will employees.  Reduction in staff within the designated classes of positions 
shall occur in the following order: 

1. Employees who have temporary status. 
2. Employees who are probationary. 
3. Part-time regular employees. 
4. Full-time regular employees. 

2.12.2 Layoff Order 
The Agency shall determine the employees to be laid off within a class of positions 
on the basis of an employee’s performance and/or special qualifications needed 
by the Agency. 
2.12.3 Notice 
The Agency will give employees notice of any reduction in staff at least two weeks 
prior to the effective date. 
2.12.4 Reinstatement from Layoff  
Full-time employees who are laid off will be given the right of first refusal in filling 
future vacancies in the position from which he/she was laid off for a period of one 
year. 
2.12.5 Benefits 
During periods of lay off, health care coverage remains available if premiums are 
paid by the employee in accordance with carrier regulations and limitations and 
COBRA/Cal-COBRA laws as applicable. Such benefit will be available for a period 
of time consistent with COBRA/Cal-COBRA. 

Section 2.13. Personnel Files 
2.13.1 Statement of Policy 
The Agency maintains personnel files on all employees.  The files contain 
confidential information such as job applications, resumes, documentation of 
performance, salary changes, benefit elections and other employment records. 

35



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[20] 

2.13.2 Employee Responsibility to Ensure Accuracy of Personnel Records 
The accuracy of personnel records is essential for the proper handling of many 
items of great importance to employees, including the emergency notification of 
family, income tax deductions, insurance coverage, and other fringe benefits from 
the Agency.  It is the employee’s responsibility to keep the Agency updated on 
personal information so that the Agency may effectively handle those programs 
and tasks which are for the employee’s benefit.  
In order that the Agency may keep complete and current records, it is mandatory 
that the employee notify the Agency office immediately whenever there is a change 
in the employee’s following information: 

1. Address 
2. Telephone Number (Note: As a condition of employment, it is 

necessary that the employee present a telephone number where 
he/she can be reached by his/her Supervisor directly without having 
to go through other parties.) 

3. Person to notify in the event of an emergency. 
4. Name, through marriage or otherwise. 
5. Marital status 
6. Number of dependents 
7. Insurance beneficiary 
8. Military Status 
9. Driver’s license number and date of expiration when a condition of 

employment. 
2.13.3 Duty to Provide Accurate Information 
Any misrepresentations, falsifications, or material omissions by an employee on 
his or employment documents may result in disciplinary action up to and including 
termination of employment.   
2.13.4 Access to Personnel Files 
An employee may request to review his or her personnel file by submitting a written 
request twenty-four hours in advance to the Executive Director or designee.  If an 
employee disagrees with any item contained in his or her personnel file, the 
employee may add a document containing his or her version of the disputed item. 
 

36



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[21] 

CHAPTER 3 HOURS OF WORK AND COMPENSATION 
 
Section 3.1. Work Schedules 

3.1.1 Work Schedules 
New employees will be advised of their work schedules when they commence 
employment with the Agency.  From time to time, it may be necessary for the 
Agency to change employee work schedules.  Employees are expected to 
cooperate with these changes and are expected to arrange their personal 
schedules to comply with their assigned work hours.  
3.1.2 Standard Work Schedule 
The standard work schedule is forty (40) hours.  The core work hours are 10:00 
a.m. to 4:00 p.m. with at least 30 minutes for lunch.  The standard hours and/or 
days of a standard work schedule may be altered upon request by the supervisor 
and with approval of the Executive Director.  ALTERNATE WORK SCHEDULES 
(9-80’s AND 4-10’s) may be authorized by the Executive Director and approval of 
such will be placed in the employees personnel file. 
3.1.3 Standard Work Week 
The Standard workweek is a seven-day period beginning at 12:00 a.m. on 
Wednesday Saturday and ending at 11:59 p.m. on TuesdayFriday.   
3.1.4 Flex Time 
“Flex time” occurs where an employee varies his or her regularly scheduled start 
or end time.  It is confined to a normal work week as defined above.   
Flex time for employees is subject to prior approval by the employeesemployee’s 
supervisor and the Executive Director.  Prior written approval from 
employeesemployee’s supervisor and the Executive Director shall be obtained no 
later than the conclusion of the previous work shift.  
Management and Supervisory employees are expected to be on duty at the times 
they can most efficiently discharge those tasks relative to supervising their 
employees and interacting with other Agency personnel and members of the 
public.  If this is at a time other than normal business hours they can notify the 
Executive Director and have their normal duty hours changed to so reflect. 

Section 3.2. Meal and Rest Breaks  
3.2.1 Meal Breaks 
Employees shall take an unpaid 30 or 60 minute meal break.  Such meal break 
shall be scheduled at approximately mid-way through the workday. 
3.2.2 Rest Periods 
Employees are permitted one 15-minute rest period for each four (4) hour work 
period.  These breaks shall be scheduled about midway through each four (4) hour 
period. 

37



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[22] 

3.2.3 Meal and Rest Breaks May Not Be Combined or Postponed 
Rest and meal periods are provided so the employees may rest, obtain 
nourishment and rejuvenate during the workday.  Employees may not combine 
rest periods or add them to meal breaks.  Nor may employees postpone their rest 
or meal periods to the end of the workday in order to leave earlier.    

Section 3.3. Compensation 
3.3.1 Statement of Policy 
As a public entity, the Agency is committed to rendering the highest level of service 
possible at a fair and reasonable cost.  The Agency’s ability to achieve this 
objective is affected by a number of factors, one of which is the quality performance 
of Agency employees.  In order to attract and retain highly competent employees, 
promote continuous superior performance, and give full recognition to Agency 
financial constraints, the following criteria will be considered in establishing 
employee compensation: 

1. The impact of compensation on the cost of services, financial 
position of the Agency, and overall operational cost. 

2. Compensation paid for similar work in other public and private 
organizations. 

3. The relative value of individual employee’s services to the success 
of the Agency. 

4. The general and specific performance of employees. 
5. Status of the labor force, economic conditions, recruitment and 

retention experience, and other factors influencing the maintenance 
of a stable and efficient work force. 

The Executive Director or his/her designee shall develop an annual Salary and 
Benefits package for submission to the Board each year.  The schedule shall set 
forth the positions approved by the Board, together with proposed salary ranges 
and employee benefits, for the upcoming fiscal year beginning July 1.  Salary 
ranges and employee benefits are to be reviewed and considered by the Board for 
adjustment for each fiscal year as part of the budget adoption. 
3.3.2 Wage Rates 
Employees will be paid within the salary range established for their job 
classification.  A list of job classifications and applicable salary rates is maintained 
in the Agency’s business office. 
From time to time, salary rates may be adjusted to reflect inflation, deflation or 
other cost of living changes.  The Bay Area Consumer Price Index, and/or the 
average of salary adjustments for Napa County, Sonoma County Transportation 
Authority, and Solano County Transportation Authority as published at the time of 
the Executive Director’s development of the recommended annual Salary and 
Benefits package shall be referred to in considering the possible adjustment of 
salary rates.  Nothing herein shall constitute an implied or specific agreement by 

38



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[23] 

Agency to grant cost of living increases or as to the amount of any such increase.  
The purpose of this provision is to provide a framework for the development of the 
annual Salary and Benefits package that is subject to review and approval by the 
Board. 
3.3.3 Pay Schedule 
Wages will be paid on a bi-weekly basis.  Wages will be paid within fourteen (14) 
calendar days following the end of the pay period.  If paid by check in lieu of direct 
deposit, such paychecks not picked up by 4:00 p.m. on payday will be mailed. 
3.3.4 Payroll Deductions 
An employee’s earnings and payroll deductions are shown on a check stub with 
the employee’s paycheck.  The check stub should be examined and retained for 
personal records. 
The Agency will make the following deductions from an employee’s earnings: 

A. Mandatory Deductions 
1. Federal Income Tax (Withhold Tax) 
2. State Income Tax 
3. State Disability Insurance (S.D.I.) 
4. Garnishments/Wage Attachments  
B. Employee Authorized Deductions 
1. Employee deferred compensation contributions 
2. Medical and dental insurance contributions 
3. Jury duty payments to an employee who was provided paid time off 

for jury service 
4. Other Deductions Agreed Upon in Writing by the Employee and 

permitted by law. 
3.3.5 Updating Payroll Information 
During the course of employment, changes affecting payroll status will probably 
occur from time to time.  Examples are changes in marital status, name change 
due to marriage, changes in number of dependents and changes required to adjust 
an excessive or insufficient tax withholding situation.  Questions concerning these 
changes should be directed to the Human Resources department.  

Section 3.4. Timekeeping 
3.4.1 Employees  

A. Time Sheet 
Each employee is responsible for preparing an individual time sheet weekly.  The 
employee should accurately record regular and authorized overtime hours worked 

39



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[24] 

and leave usages.  Time sheets must also show all of the following for each job 
performed during the week: 

1. Work locations such as lateral name or improvement Agency 
number. 

2. Job or task number. 
B. Submission of Time Sheets 

Each employee must electronically submit his or her time card, verifying its 
accuracy, and have the time sheet reviewed and approved by his/her supervisor.  
Employees are expected to submit their time sheets promptly as directed by the 
Executive Director, or ED’s his/her Designee.  
3.4.2 Consequences of Falsifying Time Records 
Falsification of time sheets, recording time for another or signing the timesheet of 
another will result in disciplinary action up to and including discharge.  

Section 3.5. Overtime 
3.5.1 Statement of Policy 
From time to time, overtime work may be necessary to complete a work 
assignment or tend to the public’s needs.  Overtime must be required by and 
authorized by the Executive Director.  All employees will be expected to work 
overtime under specific circumstances which shall be defined by the Executive 
Director.  Refusal to work, after requested to do so under those circumstances, will 
be grounds for disciplinary action. 
3.5.2 Exclusion from Policy 
For purposes of determining entitlement to overtime pay under the federal Fair 
Labor Standards Act (FLSA), employees will be either classified as exempt or non-
exempt based upon the nature of their duties.  Exempt employees, such as 
management positions, are not entitled to overtime pay.   
3.5.3 Overtime Pay 
An employee who works overtime shall be compensated at a rate of one and one 
half (1 ½) time the employee’s standard hourly rate in cash or compensatory time 
off.  Employees may elect to be compensated in cash or compensatory time off for 
any overtime worked and must make the election on the time card for the pay 
period in which it was worked. 
Unless otherwise provided below, overtime is defined as any time actually worked 
in excess of forty (40) hours in an employee’s standard workweek.  For employees 
on an alternate work schedule (including four (4)-tem (10) and nine (9)-eighty (80) 
schedules), overtime is defined as any time actually worked in excess of an 
employee’s standard work day in a consecutive twenty-four (24) hour period or 
forty (40) hours in an employee’s standard workweek.   
An employee who works more than the normal number of workdays during a 
normal workweek based on their assigned work schedule shall receive overtime 

40



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[25] 

compensation provided that the employee was not absent from work for more than 
one normal work day in that workweek due to vacation, compensatory time, 
holiday, sick leave, any other paid leave or a combination thereof. 

 
Overtime pay must be approved in advanced by employee’s supervisor and the 
Executive Director prior to performing the work. 

 

41



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[26] 

CHAPTER 4 STANDARDS OF CONDUCTS 
 
Section 4.1. Equal Employment Opportunity 

4.1.1 Statement of Policy 
The Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority is an equal 
opportunity employer.  The Agency does not discriminate against qualified 
applicants or employees with respect to any terms or conditions of employment 
based on an applicant’s or employee’s race, color, national origin, ancestry, 
religion, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, marital status, 
domestic partner status, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth and related medical 
conditions), gender (including gender identity), age (over 40), sexual orientation, 
political affiliation, veteran’s status, or any other characteristic protected by federal, 
state or local law.   
The Agency subscribes to all federal and state laws that are intended to protect 
the right and opportunity of all persons to seek, obtain and hold employment 
without discrimination or abridgment because of the foregoing characteristics.   
4.1.2 Employee, Supervisor and Management Responsibilities 
All employees are charged with the responsibility of furthering equal employment 
opportunity by identifying and reporting incidents of discrimination.  Agency 
managers and supervisors are further required to ensure that principles of equal 
employment opportunity and non-discrimination are followed with regard to 
recruitment, hiring, placement, promotion, transfer, demotion, layoff, termination, 
pay and other forms of compensation, training and general treatment of employees 
during employment.    
In any instance where an employee believes that this policy has been violated, that 
employee is encouraged to consult with the Agency's Executive Director, or if the 
alleged violator is the Executive Director, the Chair of the Board with the assurance 
that no reprisals (retaliation) or otherwise adverse action will be taken against the 
employee.  

Section 4.2. Anti-Harassment/Discrimination Policy 
4.2.1 Statement of Policy 
The Agency is committed to providing a work environment free from harassment 
and discrimination as defined by this policy.  Agency policy prohibits discrimination, 
sexual harassment and harassment because of race, color, national origin, 
ancestry, religion, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, marital 
status, domestic partner status, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth and related 
medical conditions), gender (including gender identity), age (over 40), sexual 
orientation, political affiliation, veteran’s status, or any other characteristic 
protected by federal and state law.  All such harassment and discrimination is 
prohibited.  Persons protected from harassment and discrimination under this 
policy includes job applicants, employees and independent contractors.  
Applicants, employees or independent contractors are protected from harassment 

42



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[27] 

that is perpetrated by Agency officials, managers, supervisors, employees, and by 
non-employees when the harassment occurs in the course of Agency work.  
Employees who violate this policy will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and 
including termination.   
4.2.2 Definitions 

A. “Discrimination” 
For purposes of this policy, discrimination may occur by either: 
1. Treating members of a protected class less favorably because of 

their membership in that class.  The protected groups are based 
upon race, age, religion, color, national origin, ancestry, physical or 
mental disability, medical condition, marital status, sex, sexual 
orientation, gender or self-identified gender. 
a) “Sex” is defined as including, but not limited to pregnancy, 

childbirth, or medical conditions related to such pregnancy, as 
well as one’s gender (see California Government Code, 
section 12926(p)). 

b) “Gender” is defined as including a person’s sex, gender 
identity and gender related appearance and behavior whether 
or not stereotypically associated with the person’s assigned 
sex at birth (see California Penal Code, section 422.56). 

2. Having a policy or practice that has a disproportionately adverse 
impact on protect class members. 

B. “Harassment” 
Conduct which constitutes harassment in violation of this policy includes, 
but is not limited to: 
1. Making or using derogatory comments, slurs, jokes or epithets which 

are related to an individual’s race, religion, gender, self-identified 
gender, sex, or is of a sexual nature, or are based on any other 
identified protected category, as set forth in section 4.2.2.A.1. above, 
or are otherwise deemed inappropriate. 

2, Assaulting, touching, impeding or blocking movement, making 
derogatory gestures, or any physical interference with normal work 
movement which is motivated or related to an individual’s protected 
status as set forth in section 4.2.2.A.1, above. 

3. Displaying derogatory posters, letters, poems, graffiti, cartoons or 
drawings that involve or relate to an individual’s protected status as 
set forth in section 4.2.2.A.1, above. 

4. Sexual harassment as defined in section 4.2.2.C, below. 
5. Retaliation against an employee, or person who provides services to 

NCTPANVTA pursuant to a contract or other covered individual who: 

43



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[28] 

a) Files or responds to a bona fide complaint of harassment or 
discrimination; or 

b) Acts as a witness or otherwise cooperates in the investigation 
of a harassment or discrimination complaint; or 

c) Serves as an investigator in processing complaints of 
harassment or discrimination. 

C. Sexual Harassment” 
1. For purpose of this policy, sexual harassment is any behavior that 

includes unwelcome sexual advances and other verbal or physical 
conduct of a sexual nature when: 
a) Submission to, or rejection of, such conduct is used as the 

basis for employment decisions that influence or affect an 
individual’s career (such as promotions, salary, employment 
conditions or other aspects of a career development); or 

b) Such conduct unreasonably interferes with an individual’s job 
performance; 

c) Creates an intimidating, hostile or offensive work 
environment. 

2. All of the conduct described in 4.2.2.B. (1)-(3), above, when it is of a 
sexual nature; or 

3. Deliberate, repeated or unwelcome sexual advances, offering 
employment benefits in exchange for sexual favors or making or 
threatening reprisals after a negative response to sexual advances. 

Sexual harassment can occur between employees of the opposite or same sex.  It 
is prohibited for males to sexually harass females or other males, and for females 
to sexually harass males or other females.  
4.2.3 Zero Tolerance 
The Agency maintains a zero tolerance stance regarding violations of this policy.  
This means that serious cases of employee harassment, discrimination or 
retaliation related to a complaint made pursuant to this policy will lead to 
recommendations for immediate dismissal by the Executive Director. 
Conduct of the nature prohibited by this policy will be considered misconduct and 
will subject an offending employee to disciplinary action even if the conduct does 
not rise to the level of legally actionable harassment, discrimination or retaliation.   
4.2.4 Complaint and Investigation Procedure 
Employees and contractors should not wait until a situation becomes severe or 
pervasive or impairs their work performance before reporting harassment or 
discrimination.  The Agency’s goal is to prevent harassment and, if it does occur, 
to stop it at the earliest opportunity. 

44



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[29] 

If the employee believes that he/she has been harassed or discriminated under 
this policy, or if the employee believes he/she has witnessed harassment or 
discrimination, the employee should inform his/her supervisor, Human Resources, 
or the Executive Director of the Agency as soon as possible after the incident.  The 
complaint should include details of the incident or incidents, names of the 
individuals involved and names of any witnesses.  Supervisors or management 
employees who are aware or have been notified of any alleged incident of 
harassment or discrimination must immediately refer all such complaints or reports 
to Human Resources and to the Executive Director.   
If the Executive Director is the harasser, the employee can report the 
harassment/discrimination to the chairman of the Board of Directors. 
  If the employee does not feel comfortable reporting the incident to his/her 
supervisor, Human Resources or the Executive Director, he/she may report the 
incident to any other supervisory or management employee, or the chair of the 
Board of Directors. 
Whenever the Agency is made aware of a complaint or report of 
harassment/discrimination under this policy, the Agency will conduct an 
immediate, thorough and objective investigation of the situation.  Cooperation with 
such investigations is required of all employees.  
If the Agency determines that harassment/discrimination prohibited by this policy 
has occurred, effective remedial action will be taken in accordance with the 
circumstances involved.  Any employee determined by the Agency to have 
engaged in prohibited harassment/discrimination will be subject to appropriate 
disciplinary action, up to and including termination. 
In addition to the foregoing methods of complaint, an applicant, employee or 
contractor may choose to file a harassment/discrimination complaint with the 
California Department of Fair Employment and Housing at http://www.dfeh.ca.gov 
or the federal Equal Employment Opportunity Commission at 
http://www.eeoc.gov/.   
4.2.5 Prohibition on Retaliation 
The Agency strictly prohibits retaliation against any applicant, employee or 
contractor who complains of harassment or discrimination or participates in any 
manner in an investigation into workplace harassment/discrimination.  Examples 
of retaliation prohibited by this policy include the following: 

• Disciplining a complainant or rejecting a complainant for employment 
because it is believed the allegation of harassment is untrue or the 
allegation of harassment/discrimination is not supported by 
subsequent findings of an investigation; 

• Subjecting complainants or witnesses to materially adverse 
employment decisions because of their participation in a workplace 
harassment/discrimination complaint or investigation; 

45

http://www.dfeh.ca.gov/
http://www.eeoc.gov/


 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[30] 

• Ostracizing or demonstrating hostility to a complainant or witnesses 
because of their participation in a workplace 
harassment/discrimination complaint or investigation. 

If the Agency finds that any employee, including a supervisor or manager, has 
engaged in retaliation, he or she shall be subject to disciplinary action, up to and 
including discharge.   
4.2.6 Prevention 
Prevention is the best method for avoiding harassment, discrimination and 
retaliation.  Supervisory and managerial employees are charged with the 
responsibility of taking steps to prevent harassment/discrimination and retaliation 
from occurring in the workplace.  Failure to take appropriate action to prevent 
and/or correct harassment/discrimination or retaliation shall be deemed a violation 
of this policy and shall subject the offender to disciplinary action up to and including 
discharge.  If the Executive Director is the harasser, the employee can report the 
harassment/discrimination to the Chair of the Board of Directors who will 
investigate the complaint in the same manner that the Executive Director would 
investigate complaints filed by other employees.  If the employee does not feel 
comfortable reporting the incident to his/her supervisor, or the Executive Director, 
he/she may report the incident to any other supervisory, or management employee 
or Human Resources.  

Section 4.3. Mutual Respect and Courtesy Rule  
It is the Agency’s philosophy and practice to treat one another with respect and courtesy.   
Employees who violate this policy will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including 
termination.   
Section 4.4. Reasonable Accommodation 

4.4.1 Statement of Policy 
In furtherance of the Agency’s policy to provide equal employment opportunity, the 
Agency will provide reasonable accommodation to allow people with physical or 
mental disabilities to apply for employment and perform their jobs.   
4.4.2 Conditions Covered By This Policy 

A. Disability 
The term “disability” means: 

1. A physical or mental disorder or condition that limits one or more of 
the major life activities of such individual; or 

2. A record of disorder or condition; or 
3. Being regarded as having such a disorder or condition. 
B. Conditions Excluded 

Individuals who currently use drugs illegally are not protected by the disability laws 
and do not have rights to reasonable accommodation.  This includes people who 

46



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[31] 

use prescription drugs illegally.  However, persons who no longer use drugs 
illegally and have either successfully completed a supervised drug rehabilitation 
program, or are currently participating in a supervised rehabilitation program, or 
desire to voluntarily enter and participate in such a program do have protection as 
provided under applicable disability laws. 
4.4.3 Examples of Reasonable Accommodation 
Each request for an accommodation will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis.  
Reasonable accommodation may include: 

• Making existing facilities used by employees readily accessible to 
and usable by individuals with disabilities; 

• Job restructuring or modified work schedules;  

• Acquisition or modification of equipment or devices; 

• The provision of qualified readers or interpreters;  

• Appropriate adjustment or modifications of examinations, training 
materials or policies; and/or 

• Reassignment to a vacant position.  
4.4.4 Requests for Reasonable Accommodation 
To request reasonable accommodation under this policy, an applicant or employee 
must submit a written statement to the Human Resource Department which 
indicates the general nature of the physical or mental disability and identifies his 
or her abilities and functional limitations with respect to the job limitations of the c 
disability.  The statement should also request reasonable accommodation 
because of the limitation(s) caused by the disability.  The applicant or employee 
shall assist the Agency in determining if and what reasonable accommodation 
might be provided by identifying: 

1. Any special methods, skills or procedures which would enable him 
or her to perform tasks or functions that he or she otherwise might 
not be able to perform because of his or her disability; 

2. The potential accommodations the Agency might make that would 
enable him or her to perform the essential functions of the job, 
properly and safely, including special equipment, changes in the 
physical layout of the job or other accommodation; and  

3. Any equipment aids or services that the applicant or employee is 
willing to provide and utilize that the Agency is not required to 
provide.   

If the applicant or employee requires secretarial or other assistance in preparing 
the request due to his or her disability, such assistance will be provided upon 
request. 

47



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[32] 

4.4.5 Medical Information 
An applicant or employee who identifies himself or herself as having a disability 
and who requests reasonable accommodation will be required to provide 
documentation, including medical documentation, sufficient to establish the 
existence of the   physical or mental disorder or condition, the limitations caused 
by the condition, and the need for accommodation. 
Any information obtained regarding the medical condition of the applicant or 
employee will be collected and maintained on separate forms, in separate medical 
files, and treated as a confidential record.  Such confidential information may be 
released as follows: 

1. To inform the supervisors and managers of the disabled employee 
regarding any restrictions on the work or duties of the employee or 
accommodations necessary; 

2. To inform first aid and safety personnel, when appropriate, if the 
disability may require emergency treatment; 

3. To respond to requests from governmental officials investigating 
compliance with the disability laws; and 

4. To workers’ compensation offices and second injury funds as 
required by law or for insurance purposes under certain conditions 
for those who establish, sponsor or administer health or life 
insurance benefit plans. 

4.4.6 The Interactive Process 
The Interactive Process can begin in a number of ways.  However, unless the 
disability or the need for accommodation is obvious, it is the responsibility of the 
employee to inform the supervisor or the Human Resource Department that an 
accommodation is needed in order to perform the essential job functions.  
However, the duty to provide a reasonable accommodation may arise even when 
no request is made, e.g., when the supervisor, Executive Director, or Human 
Resources becomes aware of the disability, whether or not there is a request by 
the employee for a reasonable accommodation.   Once the need for reasonable 
accommodation is known, the Agency, by and through the employee’s supervisor, 
or Executive Director, and Human Resources department, will engage in the 
Interactive Process, which includes, but is not limited to: 

1. Review of the essential functions of the position; 
2. Engagement in an interactive dialogue with the employee to 

ascertain the precise job related limitations imposed by the 
employee’s disability and how those limitation would be overcome 
with reasonable accommodation; 

3. In consultation with the employee, identification of the potential 
reasonable accommodations and assess the effectiveness each 
would have in enabling the employee to perform the essential 
functions of the position; 

48



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[33] 

4. Consideration of the preference of the employee to be 
accommodated regarding an alternative employment reassignment; 
and 

5. Selection and implementation of the reasonable accommodation 
most appropriate for the Agency in collaboration with the employee’s 
input. 

4.4.7 Miscellaneous Guidelines  
1. Reasonable accommodation does not negate requirements for good 

job performance, successful completion of assigned training, 
adherence to generally accepted standards of behavior and 
adherence to supervisory instructions. 

2. An employee with a disability who is reassigned to a vacant, lower 
classified position as an accommodation will receive the lower salary 
of that position. 

3. If the essential job functions and/or duties of a position occupied by 
an employee with a disability are expanded, revised or modified, the 
conditions and procedures stated shall apply to any evaluation of the 
employee’s ability to perform the essential functions of the changed, 
revised or modified position and the Agency’s determination whether 
reasonable accommodation can be provided. 

4. An employee who has a question regarding the application of the 
policy and procedure should contact the Executive Director. 

Section 4.5. Appearance, Conduct and Hygiene  
4.5.1 Statement of Policy 
Agency employees often come into contact with the public, which judges the 
quality of the Agency service by the appearance and behavior of its employees 
and has the right to expect appropriate clothing, neat appearance, good manners, 
and service.  Therefore, Agency employees will be expected to adhere to the 
following guidelines.  
4.5.2 Guidelines on Appearance, Conduct and Hygiene 

1. All employees are expected to exercise good hygiene and be well 
groomed. 

2. All employees having long hair or wearing a moustache or beard 
must keep them clean, trimmed, combed, and otherwise groomed so 
as not to interfere with worker safety.  Those employees who 
normally do not wear a beard or moustache and who normally shave 
must keep themselves clean shaven. 

3. Employees must dress in a manner that is professional, functional, 
and affords them safety from unnecessary risk of injury.  Office 
employees should not wear shorts, sweat pants, tank tops, shabby 
denims, or suggestive or inappropriate clothing. 

49



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[34] 

4. When, on occasion, employees have to deal with discourteous 
persons, it is especially important for them to maintain their friendly 
attitude.  Continuing courtesy on the part of employees will do much 
to promote an excellent relationship between the Agency and the 
community. 

Section 4.6. Attendance and Punctuality  
4.6.1 Statement of Policy 
In order to offer high quality service, the Agency’s operations must be appropriately 
staffed.  Absenteeism and tardiness cause undue burdens on co-workers and 
impede the service the Agency provides to the community.  Therefore, regular 
attendance and punctuality are job requirements for all employees of the Agency. 
4.6.2 Reporting Requirements 

1. Employees are expected to report to work  on time  and ready for 
duty  at the time prescribed.   

2. Employees may not leave work without prior supervisory approval 
during working hours or prior to the end of a scheduled work time.   

3. Employees who foresee the need to be absent, tardy or leave early 
from work should notify their supervisor/Department Head, Human 
Resources, the Administrative Assistant or Human Resources 
Managerand the Executive Director of the anticipated absence as far 
in advance as practicable and obtain approval for such absence.   

4. An employee who will be absent or late to work must notify their 
supervisor/Department Head, Human Resources, the Administrative 
Assistant or Human Resources Managerand Executive Director prior 
to the start of the employee’s shift.  This process must be repeated 
daily unless the employee is on an approved leave of absence.  An 
employee must keep their supervisor/Department Head, Human 
Resources, the Administrative Assistant or Human Resources 
Managerand Executive Director informed of when he or she plans to 
return to work.  An employee who does not return to work from a 
leave of absence on the approved date shall be deemed absent 
without leave (AWOL) and shall be subject to automatic resignation. 

5. An employee who is physically unable to provide notice of an 
absence prior to the start of the employee’s work day must provide 
notice as soon as practicably possible. 

6. Absences, including tardiness, must be accurately reported on time 
sheets in 15 minute increments.  Employees who are tardy will not 
be paid for the time they are absent. 

50



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[35] 

4.6.3 Discipline 
Failure to provide a supervisor with advance notice of an absence or late arrival 
for work, frequent or prolonged absenteeism or tardiness, or falsification of time 
records may result in disciplinary action up to and including discharge. 
Employee absences which are protected by law (e.g., military leave, workers 
compensation leave, family medical leave, “kin care” leave, pregnancy disability 
and other approved disability leaves, witness or jury duty leave, voting leave, court 
appearances for crime victims, and leave for certain school activities) will not be 
counted in determining whether the employee is meeting job requirements for 
attendance. 

Section 4.7. Secondary Employment  
4.7.1 Statement of Policy 
The Agency expects its employees to devote full attention to their Agency 
responsibilities during regularly scheduled work hours.  The Agency will not 
tolerate any secondary employment, which interferes in any way with the 
performance of duties for the Agency including, but not limited to, the following: 

1. Actual conflict in hours of employment; 
2. Being tired or unfit for duty because of outside employment;  
3. Where the secondary employment creates an actual or apparent 

conflict of interest in regard to Agency employment. 
4.7.2 Notification and Approval 
Employees must notify the Agency of all secondary employment.  Any employee 
who engages in after or before hours work at a secondary job must accomplish the 
following: 

1. Receive the written permission of the Executive Director prior to 
accepting secondary employment.  In the case of the Executive 
Director, he/she must receive authorization from the Board of 
Directors; 

2. When requested by the Executive Director, obtain from the 
secondary employer a waiver of liability for the Agency; 

3. It is incumbent on the employee to make it clear to the secondary 
employer that he, the employee, is not performing any duties as a 
representative of NCTPANVTA; 

4. Once approval is granted by the Executive Director, immediately 
notify the ED if the secondary employment poses an actual or 
potential conflict with regards to the employee’s Agency 
employment. 

51



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[36] 

Section 4.8. Causes for Discipline 
4.8.1 Statement of Policy 
The purpose of this policy is to establish standards of conduct and work 
performance for employees that are consistent with the efficient and effective 
delivery of public services.  When conduct or job performance does not meet these 
standards, the Agency will endeavor to provide employees with a reasonable 
opportunity to correct the deficiency in the Agency’s sole judgment.   
4.8.2 Standards of Conduct 
The standards set forth below are intended to provide employees with notice of 
what is expected of them and provide examples that may lead to disciplinary 
action, up to and including discharge.  This list is not meant to be exhaustive or all 
inclusive, but rather it is a set of examples of unacceptable behavior for which 
disciplinary action could result 

1. Poor performance; unsatisfactory work quality or quantity; 
2. Neglect of duty, including sleeping on the job; 
3. Insubordination;   
4. Excessive absenteeism or tardiness; 
5. Unexcused absences, failing to properly report absences, or leaving 

work early without permission; 
6. Failure to keep supervisor aware of employee’s whereabouts during 

duty time when availability may be required;  
7. Misuse of or damage to Agency tools, vehicles, equipment or other 

property;  
8. Moving violations or accidents in an Agency vehicle;  
9. Violation of safety rules or practices;  
10. Falsifying, altering or making a material omission on employment, 

medical, financial, payroll, timekeeping, or other Agency records;  
11. Performing non-Agency work during work hours;  
12. Dishonesty; 
13. Special treatment or favoritism of one customer over another; 
14. Use, possession, sale or being under the influence of alcoholic 

beverages or illegal drugs during work hours or on Agency premises 
(including vehicles) or other violation of the drug and alcohol policy; 

15. Violation of the anti-harassment or discrimination policies; 
16. Fighting, engaging in violent or threatening behavior or other conduct 

in violation of the Agency’s workplace violence policy; 

52



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[37] 

17. Discourteous treatment of the public or other employees, as defined 
by the Mutual Respect and Courtesy Rule (Section 4.3); 

18. Conviction of a crime that reflects unfitness for the employee’s 
position or unfitness to work around the Agency’s employees, 
property or the public;  

19. Other failure of good behavior during or outside of duty hours which 
is of such a nature that it causes discredit to the Agency and his or 
her employment; and  

20. Other violation of Agency policies or rules. 
Section 4.9. Discipline 

4.9.1 Statement of Policy 
The purpose of this policy is to establish procedures for the discipline of 
employees; except Section 4.8 shall not apply to At Will or temporary employees.  
When the job performance or the conduct of a probationary or permanent 
employee falls below standards set by the Agency, including the Standards of 
Conduct set forth in Section 4.7, then depending on the severity of the misconduct 
or performance problem, the Agency may take disciplinary action, up to and 
including discharge. 
4.9.2 Progressive Discipline 
The Agency will endeavor to afford the employee with an opportunity to improve 
when dealing with performance or conduct problems.  Different types of discipline 
may be utilized as determined appropriate in the sole discretion of the Agency and 
discipline need not adhere to a sequential order of progressive discipline.  Types 
of discipline may include: verbal or written warnings, written reprimands, 
suspension without pay, demotion and discharge. 

A. Suspension without Pay 
For more severe violations or continued, uncorrected performance or misconduct 
problems, an employee may be suspended without pay.  Where suspension 
without pay is recommended for a permanent employee, the employee will have 
the right to a Skelly meeting and a post-disciplinary appeal. 

B. Demotion 
The Agency may impose a demotion to a position having a lower salary range for 
disciplinary purposes.  A disciplinary demotion may be utilized for continued, 
uncorrected performance deficiencies.  Where demotion is recommended for a 
permanent employee, the employee will have the right to a Skelly meeting and a 
post-disciplinary appeal. 

C. Discharge 
Discharge will be considered for severe violations, failure to respond appropriately 
to prior performance improvement plans, and/or multiple disciplinary infractions in 
a short period of time.  Where misconduct is   severe and egregious, immediate 

53



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[38] 

discharge may be imposed.    Where discharge has been recommended for a 
permanent employee, the employee will have the right to a Skelly meeting and a 
post-disciplinary appeal.  The discharge will be documented in the personnel file. 
4.9.3 Administrative Leave 
In cases involving alleged severe employee misconduct, or where the presence of 
the employee may interfere with the investigation into the employee’s alleged 
misconduct, or where the interests of public or workplace health and safety or the 
Agency’s business operations may be jeopardized by the employee’s presence, 
the Executive Director may place the employee on paid administrative leave 
pending an investigation into the circumstances.  During such administrative leave, 
the employee will be required to be available by telephone to the Agency during 
regular business hours and to promptly respond to requests for information by the 
Agency.  The employee should not enter Agency premises during administrative 
leave without permission by the Executive Director. 
4.9.4 Procedures for Disciplinary Action of a Permanent Employee 
Where discipline of a permanent employee involves disciplinary actions that result 
in loss of salary or change in employment status (such as suspension without pay 
or demotion or discharge), the following provisions shall apply: 

A. Notice of Proposed Discipline 
The employee’s supervisor shall inform the employee in writing of the proposed 
disciplinary action, which shall not be effective until at least five days from the date 
the notice of proposed action is served on the employee.  This notice shall include 
a copy of the charges and the reasons for the proposed disciplinary action.  This 
notice shall also include a copy of all relevant documents upon which the proposed 
disciplinary action is based. The notice shall advise the employee of his/her right 
to respond to the proposed action either in writing or to hold a meeting to respond 
(Skelly meeting).  Notice may be served on the employee by either U.S. mail or 
personal delivery.  Notice by U.S. mail shall be deemed served five days after 
deposit with the U.S. postal service.    

B. Skelly Meeting 
The employee may request a meeting to respond to the proposed disciplinary 
action.  The meeting shall be held with the appropriate manager.  Following the 
meeting or employee’s written response, the ED or manager shall determine 
whether to proceed, modify, or set aside the proposed disciplinary action. 

C. Notice of Discipline 
The employee shall be informed in writing of the final disciplinary action.  A copy 
of the Notice of Discipline shall be placed in the employee’s personnel file.  This 
notice shall include a copy of the charges, the reasons for disciplinary action, and 
provide the effective date of the action.  This notice shall also include a copy of all 
relevant documents upon which the disciplinary action is based.  The notice shall 
advise the employee of his/her right to appeal the disciplinary action.  Notice may 
be served on the employee by either U.S. mail or personal delivery.  Notice by U.S. 

54



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[39] 

mail shall be deemed served five days after the date of deposit with the U.S. postal 
service.   

D. Right to Appeal 
Within five days of service of the Notice of Disciplinary Action, a permanent 
employee may request to appeal the disciplinary action in writing to the ED.  An 
employee may only appeal a disciplinary action that results in loss of salary or 
change in employment status.  The ED, or ED’s designee, shall serve as the 
hearing officer for the disciplinary appeal.  The hearing officer shall make findings 
based upon the written statement of the charges and upon information presented 
at the hearing, both oral and in writing.  The hearing officer shall determine whether 
there is just cause for the discipline and whether the discipline is appropriate.  The 
hearing officer may approve, modify, or withdraw the disciplinary action.  The 
hearing officer shall notify the manager of his/her determination in writing.  The 
hearing officer’s decision is final and binding. 

 

55



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[40] 

CHAPTER 5 HEALTH AND SAFETY ON THE JOB 
 
Section 5.1. Job Safety 

5.1.1 Statement of Policy 
The Board of Directors desires to maintain a safe place of employment for Agency 
employees, and to that end Agency management will make all reasonable 
provisions necessary for the safety of employees in the performance of their work. 
5.1.2 Employee Responsibility 
It is the obligation of employees to become familiar with the provisions of the 
Agency Safety Manual and the Illness and Injury Prevention Program and to work 
accordingly.  Further, employees are required to report to their supervisor all 
unsafe conditions encountered during the course of their work.   
5.1.3 Injury Reporting 

Prompt Reporting 
All employees of the Agency are covered by Workers Compensation Insurance 
and any injury or disability arising out of and in the course and scope of 
employment, however slight, shall be reported by the injured employee to the 
Executive Director and Human Resources as promptly as possible following its 
occurrence. 

Section 5.2. Workplace Violence Prevention 
5.2.1 Statement of Policy 
The Napa County Valley Transportation and Planning AgencyAuthority is 
committed to the safety and security of its employees, customers, and visitors to 
its workplace.  The Agency has a policy of zero tolerance for violence in the 
workplace.  To prevent workplace violence, the Agency will address behavior that 
suggests a propensity for violence even prior to any violent behavior occurring. 
5.2.2 Employee Responsibilities 
The Agency expects its employees to employ civility and mutual respect for all 
persons encountered in the course of Agency business including co-workers, 
customers, and visitors.  Any employees who engage in violent or threatening 
behavior in the workplace will be subject to disciplinary action, including discharge.   
5.2.3 Conduct Prohibited By This Policy 
“Violence,” “violent behavior” and “threatening behavior” includes, but is not limited 
to the following conduct: 

• Fighting, shoving, pushing, choking, inflicting physical harm on 
another person, or other battery or assault.      

• Intimidating, menacing, harassing or stalking another person. 

56



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[41] 

• Making verbal threats to physically harm another person or persons, 
whether joking or not. 

• Possession of any weapon or firearm on Agency premises, during 
work hours, or while conducting Agency business. 

• Intentionally damaging the property of another.  

• Other behavior that suggests a propensity towards violence including 
belligerent speech, yelling, excessive arguing or swearing, offensive 
or threatening gestures, or a demonstrated pattern of refusal to follow 
policies and procedures. 

The Agency will not tolerate these behaviors by its own employees or by third 
persons when such behavior is directed at Agency employees in the course of their 
work.  
5.2.4 Reporting Procedure 
Everyone has the responsibility to prevent violence in the workplace.  Employees 
are encouraged to report any incident that may be a violation of this policy to an 
Agency manager or supervisor as follows:   

A. Emergencies 
Where an injury has occurred or it appears to an employee that there is an 
immediate danger of injury, the employee should call 911 immediately for help.  
Personal safety is the first priority.  The employee should inform his or her 
supervisor, Human Resources or the Executive Director as soon as possible.   

B. Non-Emergencies 
In all other cases where an employee is aware of any conduct that violates this 
policy, the employee should immediately report it to his or her supervisor, Human 
ResurcesResources or the Executive Director. 
5.2.5 Corrective Actions 
All reports of workplace violence will be taken seriously and dealt with promptly.  
Any person who engages in violent or threatening behavior shall be subject to 
removal from the premises as quickly as safety permits, pending the outcome of 
an investigation.  Employees who violate this policy will be subject to firm 
disciplinary action, up to and including discharge.  In appropriate cases, the 
Agency may also seek temporary protective or restraining orders to keep offending 
individuals away from Agency facilities or employees. 
The Agency will not tolerate retaliation or intimidation against any employee who 
makes a report of workplace violence or participates in an investigation of such a 
complaint.  

57



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[42] 

Section 5.3. Alcohol and Drug Free Workplace 
5.3.1 Statement of Policy 
The Agency has a vital interest and obligation in maintaining safe, healthful and 
efficient working conditions for its employees and in supplying products and 
services safely to customers.  Employee possession of and/or being under the 
influence of drugs or alcohol on the job are inconsistent with these interests and 
obligations.  This policy and procedure establishes the rules, rights and obligations 
of all employees and Agency contractors regarding the use, possession, sale, or 
transport of alcohol and drugs on Agency property or while conducting Agency 
business.   
5.3.2 Definitions 

A. Legal Drug 
A legal drug includes prescribed drugs and over the counter drugs, which have 
been, under US law, legally obtained and are being used for the purpose for which 
they have been prescribed or manufactured. 

B. Illegal Drug 
An illegal drug includes any drugs and drug synthetics  which have not been legally 
prescribed or obtained, such as:  stimulants, depressants, hallucinogens, 
narcotics, volatile substances, and any substance by which its nature alters normal 
physical or mental functions. 

C. Under the Influence 
For purposes of this policy and procedure, “under the influence” means that the 
employee is affected by a drug or alcohol or combination of both in any detectable 
manner.  The symptoms of influence are not confined to those consistent with 
misbehavior, or to obvious impairment of physical or mental ability such as slurred 
speech or difficulty in maintaining balance.  A determination of influence can be 
established by a professional medical opinion, a scientifically valid test, and in 
some cases such as alcohol, by management opinion. 

D. Agency Property 
Agency Property includes lands owned, leased or upon which the Agency has a 
right-of-way, buildings, facilities, vehicles, equipment, parking lots, and company 
owned property used by employees such as lockers, desks, cabinets, etc. 

E. Reasonable Suspicion 
Reasonable suspicion is a belief based on objective and documented facts or 
evidence sufficient to lead a reasonable, prudent person to suspect that an 
employee is under the influence of alcohol or drugs so that the employee’s ability 
to perform the duties of the job is impaired, or so that the employee’s ability to 
perform his/her job safely is reduced. 

58



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[43] 

5.3.3 Pre-Employment Drug and Alcohol Screening 
The Agency may maintain a pre-employment drug and alcohol screening practice 
designed to prevent the hiring of persons who use illegal drugs, or who use legal 
drugs or alcohol to the extent that safe job performance would be impaired on 
safety sensitive positions. 

A. Notification to Prospective Employees 
Prospective employees will be notified of the Agency’s drug and alcohol policy and 
pre-employment alcohol and drug screening test prior to an offer of employment 
and, usually, at the time they are interviewed for a position.   

B. Time of Test 
Finalists for Agency employment will receive a conditional offer of employment that 
may be contingent upon passing an alcohol and drug screening test and any 
physical examination requirement for the position being sought.  The drug and 
alcohol screening test will be administered by a medical laboratory qualified to 
administer such test. 

C. Consent to Test 
Upon receipt of a conditional offer, the prospective employee must consent to the 
drug and alcohol screening test and must sign an Authorization for Release of 
Physical Examination Results, permitting the test results to be released to the 
Agency.   

D. Disqualification from Employment 
A candidate for Agency employment shall be disqualified from further 
consideration for employment upon any of the following occurrences: 

1. Refusal to consent to a drug and alcohol screening test or refusal to 
authorize the release of the results to the Agency.   

2. A positive test for illegal drugs or alcohol.   
3. A positive test for legal drugs which, after medical consultation, the 

Agency determines will impair the candidate’s ability to safely 
perform the job in question or will jeopardize the well-being of others.   

5.3.4 Prohibition on Possession, Use, Sale or Transport of Alcohol or Drugs 
A. Illegal Drugs and Alcohol 

Having possession of, manufacturing, distributing, using, being under the influence 
of, selling, or transporting illegal drugs or alcohol by any employee while on the 
job, on Agency property, or while conducting Agency business is prohibited.  
Reporting to work under the influence of illegal drugs or alcohol is also prohibited. 

B. Notification of Criminal Drug Conviction 
Any employee who is convicted of or pleads guilty or no contest to a drug-related 
crime occurring in the workplace must immediately report such conviction or plea 
to the Executive Director. 

59



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[44] 

C. Legal Drugs 
The use of or being under the influence of any legally obtained drug by any 
employee while on the job, on Agency property, or while conducting Agency 
business is prohibited to the extent that such use or influence may affect the safety 
of the employee, co-workers, the public, the employee’s job performance, or the 
safe and efficient operation of the Agency.  An employee may continue to work 
even though under the influence of a legal drug if the employee’s supervisor has 
determined, after consulting with the Executive Director and the employee’s doctor 
that the employee can work safely.  Otherwise, the employee may be required to 
take a leave of absence or comply with other appropriate action determined by 
management. 

D. Notification 
An employee must notify his/her supervisor before commencing work when taking 
any medication or drug, prescription or nonprescription, which may interfere with 
safe and effective performance of duties and/or the operation of Agency 
equipment. 
5.3.5 Reasonable Suspicion Testing 
When a supervisor/manager has a reasonable suspicion that an employee is under 
the influence of drugs or alcohol, the employee may be directed to take a drug and 
alcohol test.  The facts and circumstances of the supervisor’s/managers 
reasonable suspicion shall be documented in writing and provided to the 
employee.  The Executive Director must approve the employee’s referral for a drug 
and alcohol test. 

A. Conduct of Test 
All drug or alcohol tests shall be conducted by a reputable laboratory of the 
Agency’s choice.    

B. Valid Prescriptions 
An employee shall have the right to provide, within 24 hours of the drug or alcohol 
test, a valid prescription for any medication or drug which may be identified during 
the test.  The prescription must be in the employee’s name and be prescribed by 
a licensed physician prior to the drug or alcohol test. 

C. Refusal to Take Test 
An employee who refuses to submit to a drug and alcohol test that has been 
approved by the Executive Director, shall be relieved from duty without pay, and if 
intoxicated or physically or mentally impaired, be taken to his/her place of 
residence.  Refusal to take a test under this policy will subject the employee 
disciplinary action, up to and including discharge. 
5.3.6 Search or Inspection of Agency Property for Illegal Drugs or Alcohol 
Employees have no expectation of privacy in Agency-owned equipment, including 
desks and cabinets.  The Executive Director may search or authorize the search 
of desks and cabinets. The Executive Director may authorize the search or 

60



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[45] 

inspection of Agency-owned lockers for illegal drugs or alcohol whenever there is 
reasonable suspicion.    
5.3.7 Disciplinary Action 
Violations of the provisions of this policy and procedure will result in disciplinary 
action, up to and including discharge. 
5.3.8 Drug and Alcohol Assistance Programs 

A. Voluntary Assistance 
The Agency encourages employees to voluntarily seek outside assistance for drug 
or alcohol abuse problems prior to the need for Agency action. Employees are 
invited to use the Employee Assistance Program (EAP) contracted by the Agency.  
Administration also maintains a list of approved drug and alcohol abuse agencies 
and facilities, and a request may be made to the Executive Director for assistance.  
Such requests will be held in strict confidence to protect the rights, privileges, 
benefits, and family of the employee.  An employee’s decision to seek assistance 
from an outside rehabilitation agency or facility will not be used as the basis for 
disciplinary action. 

B. Seeking Assistance After Alcohol or Drug Related Misconduct 
It is the responsibility of an employee to seek assistance before drug and alcohol 
problems lead to disciplinary action.  Once a violation of this policy occurs, 
subsequently entering into a rehabilitation program will not necessarily lessen 
disciplinary action and may, in fact, have no bearing on the determination of 
appropriate disciplinary action. 

Section 5.4. Fitness for Duty 
5.4.1 Statement of Policy 
In furtherance of the Agency’s goal to maintain a safe, healthful and productive 
environment, all employees reporting for work and during times when they are paid 
subject to call shall be fit for duty.  “Fit for duty” means the ability to perform all 
required physical and mental tasks associated with the employee’s job duties to a 
satisfactory level and without endangering self, others, or property. 
5.4.2 Employee Responsibility 
No employee shall report to work while unfit or remain on the job after becoming 
unfit (for any reason) to perform his/her job duties.  Failure of an employee to 
comply with this requirement may result in disciplinary action, up to and including 
discharge. 
5.4.3 Pre-Employment Medical Examinations 
The Executive Director may identify job classifications within the Agency that will 
require a pre-employment medical examination.  Finalists for these positions will 
receive a conditional offer of employment that is contingent upon the candidate 
successfully passing a pre-employment medical examination and drug and alcohol 
test.  The purpose of the pre-employment medical examination is to determine if 

61



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[46] 

the candidate is fit to perform the duties of the job for which he or she is being 
considered.   

A. Notice 
All employment applicants for these positions will be informed of the medical and 
drug/alcohol testing requirements prior to receiving the conditional job offer.  
Usually, notice will be given in the job announcement and during the interview 
process. 

B. Consent 
Finalists who receive a conditional offer of employment will be asked to sign a 
consent form confirming their voluntary participation in these tests as a prerequisite 
to consideration for employment.  A candidate who refuses to submit to any or all 
of these tests will not be considered for employment for the position for which 
he/she has applied. 

C. Examination 
All examinations will be performed by or at the direction of a physician designated 
by the Agency. The attending physician will determine if the candidate for 
employment is capable of performing all duties of the job as required by the job 
description and physical requirements checklist. 

D. Examination Results 
A candidate who is deemed unfit or unable to perform the duties of the job as a 
result of the medical examination will be informed of the results of the examination. 
The candidate may provide medical evidence that he/she is physically fit and able 
to perform the duties of the job, which will be considered before a final 
determination is made. 
5.4.4 Post-Employment Fitness for Duty Examinations 
If a supervisor/manager has a reasonable cause to believe that an employee is 
physically or mentally unfit to perform the duties of his/her job, the 
supervisor/manager may recommend that the employee to submit to a fitness-for-
duty examination.  The Executive Director shall have the authority to approve the 
recommendation. 

A. Reasonable Cause 
Reasonable cause means that the supervisor/manager believes that the 
employee’s ability to perform the functions of the job is impaired or that the 
employee’s ability to perform his or her job duties safely is reduced, and that the 
supervisor’s belief is based upon observations or evidence that has been 
documented. 

B. Examination 
Any such examination will be performed by or at the direction of a physician 
designated by the Agency.  The attending physician will determine if the employee 

62



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[47] 

is capable of performing all duties of the job as required by the job description and 
physical requirements checklist. 

C. Examination Results 
If the examining physician determines that the employee is fit for duty, the 
employee shall be released to return to work.  If the examining physician 
determines that the employee is not fit for duty, the physician shall notify both the 
employee and the Executive Director.  The employee will not be permitted to return 
to work until he/she is released by the physician.  One or more subsequent fitness-
for-duty examinations may be required in order to determine that the employee is 
fit to return to work. 
5.4.5 Confidentiality of Examination Records 
All documentation of pre-employment and fitness for duty medical examinations 
will be maintained in confidential and secure medical files, separate from applicant 
hiring files and separate from employee personnel files.   

Section 5.5. Driving 
5.5.1 Statement of Policy 
Observation of the law and safe driving practices shall be the top priority of all 
employees assigned to drive an Agency vehicle or who operate a personal vehicle 
in the performance of Agency business.   
5.5.2 Driver’s License Requirements 
All employees who operate an Agency vehicle, or who operate a personal vehicle 
in the performance of Agency business, must possess and carry a valid, current 
California Driver’s License of the proper class (and endorsements) for the vehicle 
operated.   

A. Employee Responsibilities 
1. Employees are responsible for maintaining a valid, current California 

driver’s license of the proper class and endorsements before 
operating an Agency vehicle or driving a personal vehicle on Agency 
business.  Any employee who operates an Agency vehicle or a 
personal vehicle in the performance of Agency business without a 
valid, current California Driver’s License will be subject to disciplinary 
action up to and including discharge. 

2. Employees who drive Agency vehicles or drive a personal vehicle on 
Agency business must notify their supervisor immediately in writing 
when their driver’s license has expired or been suspended or 
revoked.   

B.  Agency Responsibilities 
1. Managers shall notify the Executive Director when they have 

notification that an employee’s driver’s license has expired or been 
suspended or revoked. 

63



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[48] 

2. The Executive Director shall not allow an employee with an expired, 
suspended or revoked driver’s license to operate an Agency vehicle 
or a personal vehicle on Agency business. 

3. It is the responsibility of Human Resources Manager to see that all 
employees are properly licensed for any vehicles they are to drive on 
Agency business. 

C. Effect of Failure to Maintain Valid, Current Driver’s License 
Where the employee’s applicable written job description requires 
driving an Agency vehicle or a personal vehicle on Agency business, 
and an employee fails to maintain a valid, current California Driver’s 
License, the employee will be disqualified from such employment 
and terminated. 

D. Reasonable Accommodation of Disabled Employees and 
Applicants 
Where driving is a requirement for a particular position, an applicant 
or employee who does not possess a valid, current California Driver’s 
License because of a disability may be eligible for reasonable 
accommodation.  For example, if driving is a non-essential function 
of a particular position, the driving function may be reassigned as a 
reasonable accommodation for the disabled worker or applicant.  If 
driving is an essential function of the employee’s position, other 
accommodation such as reassignment to a different position may be 
feasible.  Each situation will be addressed on a case by case basis.  
Requests for reasonable accommodation should be addressed to 
the Executive Director. 

E. DMV Automatic Pull Notice 
For employees who drive an Agency vehicle or who drive a personal 
vehicle on Agency business, the Agency may obtain periodic reports 
from the Department of Motor Vehicles that reflect actions and 
activities on an employee’s driver’s license record.  These reports 
will be forwarded to the employee and his or her manager for review 
and “initialing off” that it is true and accurate by both the manager 
and the employee.  Afterwards, the Pull Notice is placed in the 
employee’s personnel file. 

5.5.3 Good Driving Record 
Every employee authorized to drive an Agency vehicle or drive a personal vehicle 
while on Agency business must maintain an overall driving record that does not 
have an adverse influence on the Agency’s insurance rates or otherwise create an 
unacceptable liability risk to the Agency.  .The Agency may at the time of 
employment, or from time to time thereafter, obtain a copy of an employee’s driving 
record to assess the employee’s suitability to drive.    

64



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[49] 

5.5.4 Compliance with Traffic Laws 
Employees driving Agency vehicles or driving personal vehicles while on Agency 
business must be familiar with and obey the State Vehicle Code.  Such drivers 
must also obey local traffic rules, traffic control signs, posted speed limits and 
parking restrictions.  Failure to do so will subject the employee to disciplinary 
action, up to and including discharge.   
5.5.5 Use of Seatbelts 
Seatbelts shall be worn by all occupants of Agency vehicles and by employees 
operating personal vehicles while on Agency business.  The use of seatbelts is the 
law. 

Section 5.6. Smoking 
In keeping with the Agency’s intent to provide a safe and healthful work 
environment and in compliance with state and local law, smoking in enclosed 
Agency facilities or vehicles is strictly prohibited.  Smoking is allowed only on 
authorized breaks and lunch breaks, and only outside of work facilities so as not 
to disrupt Agency operations. 
 

65



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[50] 

CHAPTER 6 EQUIPMENT AND PROPERTY 
 
Section 6.1. Use and Care of Agency Property 

6.1.1 Statement of Policy 
The Agency provides its employees with the use of tools, equipment, property and 
facilities that are necessary for the performance of their work.  Employees are 
expected to exercise care in the use of Agency property and to use such property 
only for authorized Agency business.  Misuse or negligence in the care of Agency 
property may result in disciplinary action.  Agency property issued to an employee 
must be returned at the time an employee terminates employment or when the 
employee’s supervisor requests its return.   
6.1.2 Damage or Loss of Agency Equipment 
Employees must promptly report to their supervisor all damage to or loss of Agency 
equipment.  Lost or broken tools, equipment and other gear will be replaced by the 
Agency, but excessive loss or breakage will result in the employee being subject 
to disciplinary action. 
6.1.3 Key/Access Card Distribution 
Keys/Access Cards to Agency locks are issued only to employees and other 
authorized individuals.  Each key/Access Card is numbered and issued by the 
Agency office to a specific individual.  Exchanging keys/Access Card, giving 
keys/Access Cards out, or copying keys/Access Cards is expressly prohibited and 
may lead to disciplinary action. 
6.1.4 Personal Use of Agency Property 
Agency tools, vehicles, equipment and facilities are provided for use on Agency 
business only.  Personal use of Agency property is prohibited.  Employees are 
prohibited from displaying personal property for sale on Agency premises or 
property.   
6.1.5 Personal Tools or Property 
The Agency will provide all tools and equipment reasonably required to perform 
the assigned work.  The use of an employee’s personal tools, vehicle or other 
equipment is not required and will be permitted only in unusual circumstances.   
To deter theft or damage to personal property, employees are discouraged from 
bringing any personal property into the workplace and should not leave any 
personal belongings of value in the workplace.  The Agency assumes no 
responsibility for loss or damage to the personal property of an employee. 
6.1.6 Agency Access to Property 
The Agency retains full title and control, including the right of inspection, over 
equipment, property and facilities provided for employee use.  Employee privacy 
rights do not extend to work-related conduct or the use of Agency facilities, Agency 
owned equipment or property.  All offices, work areas, desks, file cabinets, files, 

66



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[51] 

computers, data storage devices remain the property of the Agency.  Therefore, 
any agent or representative of the Agency can inspect these items or areas at any 
time, with or without prior notice.  
6.1.7 Entry onto Private Property 
All employees shall make a diligent attempt to contact property owners prior to 
entry upon private property when performing maintenance and repair tasks.  Each 
employee is responsible for immediately reporting to the Agency office any 
damage to private property, buildings, trees, crops, fences, pipelines or other 
damage caused as a result of Agency work or operations or the use of Agency 
equipment. 
6.1.8 Purchasing 
All purchasing of materials and services must adhere to the Agency’s standard 
practice. 

Section 6.2. Phones, Computers, and Other Electronic Equipment 
6.2.1 Statement of Policy 
The phone, voicemail and computer systems are Agency property.  Agency 
phones, radios, computers and other electronic equipment (copiers, fax machines, 
PDAs (e.g. Blackberry or other Personal Data Assistant device), etc.) should be 
used for Agency business purposes only.  The Agency reserves the right, in its 
sole discretion, to access these systems, including employee voicemail, e-mail and 
data stored on computers, at any time.  Any personal or personally confidential 
activities should be conducted at home on personal equipment, not at work.  
This Policy is also intended to notify employees that all Agency Information 
Systems and their contents  are not confidential or private.  That is, all data, 
including any that is stored electronically or printed as a document, is subject to 
audit, review, disclosure, and discovery.  Such data may be subject to 
disclosure pursuant to the Public Records Act (California Government Code 
Section 6250 et. seq.).  Therefore, there is no expectation of privacy in the 
use of the Agency’s Information Systems.  
The Agency reserves the right to access and monitor employee use of the 
Agency’s Information Systems as well as any stored information created or 
received by employees  with the Agency’s Information Systems.  The reservation 
of this right is to ensure that the Agency’s Information Systems are used securely 
and appropriately in an ethical and lawful manner.    
6.2.2 Phone Usage for Personal Reasons 
While it is understood that the use of the Agency’s telephones for personal reasons 
is occasionally necessary, this privilege must not be abused.  Such conversations 
should be limited to exigent situations and must be kept brief.  Personal toll calls 
are not to be charged to the Agency.   

67



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[52] 

6.2.3 Internet Usage 
Access to the Internet is provided for the benefit of the Agency and its employees 
in the performance of their work.  It allows employees to connect to information 
resources around the world.  Employees are responsible for seeing that the 
Internet is used in a productive, work-related manner. 
The Internet shall not be used for personal gain, solicitation of non-Agency 
business, or advancement of individual views.  Employees may not use Agency-
provided Internet service to access sexually explicit or other material that would 
run afoul of the Agency’s anti-harassment policy, nor to access gambling or 
gaming sites, or similarly inappropriate information. 
Personal usage of the Internet must be kept to a minimum and during employee 
break or lunch time. 
6.2.4 Decorum of Communications 
Employees must conduct themselves professionally and in a businesslike manner 
when using Agency telephones, radios, voicemail, or e-mail systems.  Employees 
are prohibited from using Agency telephones, radios, voicemail or e-mail systems 
in any way that is disruptive or offensive to others including, but not limited to, 
transmitting information derogatory of other employees, sexually explicit 
information, racial or ethnic slurs, or anything else that may be construed as 
harassment or disparaging of others.  No messages shall be transmitted under an 
assumed name.  Users may not attempt to obscure the origin of any message. 
6.2.5 Installation or Duplication of Software 
Employees may not add or install personal software programs on Agency 
computers.  Further, the Agency prohibits illegal duplication of software and its 
related documentation.  Employees may only use software contained on Agency 
computers according to the Agency’s software licensing agreement.  
6.2.6 Discipline 
Violations of any aspect of this policy may result in disciplinary action up to and 
including discharge.   

Section 6.3. Agency Vehicles 
6.3.1 Statement of Policy 
The Agency may provide employees with use of Agency-owned vehicles for 
performance of their duties.  Observation of safe driving practices shall be the top 
priority of all persons assigned an Agency vehicle, as well as proper care of Agency 
equipment. 
6.3.2 Operator Qualifications 
Every driver of an Agency vehicle must have a valid and current California driver's 
license for the type of Agency vehicle driven and must be authorized by the 
applicable Agency management employee to drive an Agency vehicle.  

68



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[53] 

Every authorized Agency driver must maintain an overall driving record that does not 
have an adverse influence on the Agency's insurance rates or otherwise create an 
unacceptable liability risk to the Agency.  Conviction for driving under the influence, 
careless or reckless driving, or any similar moving offense of parallel gravity, whether 
or not in an Agency vehicle and whether or not on duty, may be the basis of 
termination of status as authorized driver. 
6.3.3 Compliance with Law 
All drivers must comply with all applicable motor vehicle laws when driving an Agency 
vehicle.  Failure to do so will subject the employee to disciplinary action, up to and 
including discharge. 
6.3.4 Vehicle Categories 
For purposes of this policy, each Agency vehicle shall be placed in one of the 
following categories: 
6.3.5 Limitations on Use of Vehicles 
The following rules shall apply to the use of all Agency vehicles: 

A. Agency vehicles shall only be used for official Agency business. When 
an employee uses an Agency vehicle in any other manner, that 
employee shall be deemed to be not on official Agency business. 

B. Agency vehicles shall only be driven by employees or officers of the 
Agency.  With the approval of the Executive Director, Agency vehicles 
may be used by non-employees, such as consultants or independent 
contractors, when it is determined to be in the best interest of the 
Agency. 

C. Agency vehicles shall not be used to transport large personal items, 
such as sports equipment or animals, or for private towing or hauling 
of personal belongings or property of others. 

D. Seat belts shall be worn by all occupants while riding in or operating 
Agency vehicles.  The use of seat belts is the law.  

E. The use of cellular phones and PDA's electronic devices is are 
prohibited while driving Agency owned vehicle(s). 

F. No Agency vehicle shall be used to push-start another vehicle. 
G. Pets, waterfowl, poultry, fish, reptiles, etc. are not permitted in Agency 

vehicles, nor are firearms of any type. 
H. All Agency personnel are required to keep their assigned Agency 

vehicles in a clean and safe operating condition at all times.  No 
modifications, changes, additions, addition of any accessory, custom 
part or the removal of any factory or Agency item on any Agency 
vehicle shall be permitted without the express approval of the 
Executive Director.  

69



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[54] 

I. Each driver of an Agency vehicle will be responsible for calling any 
needed repairs or adjustments on his or her vehicle to the attention of 
the Executive Director.  Each driver will be responsible for verifying that 
his or her vehicle has proper and functioning brakes, lights, windshield 
wipers, etc. 

J. All Agency personnel are required to report damage and defective 
Agency equipment as soon as possible after detection to ensure that 
damaged items or potentially damaged items are repaired and that 
service schedules are not exceeded. 

K. Each employee will be responsible for immediately reporting to their 
supervisor/Department Head or appropriate to the Executive Director 
any accident in which he or she is involved as a driver of an Agency 
vehicle.  The employee will further prepare a detailed report of the 
accident, which report is to be submitted directly to the Executive 
Director or designee. This includes any accidents will on company duty 
in a private vehicle. 

L. Excessive acceleration and other showings of vehicular power 
occurring on Agency premises or on private or public property when in 
an Agency vehicle and the same occurring on Agency premises, 
whether in a personal vehicle or in an Agency vehicle, is not permitted. 

M. All Agency personnel shall "lock" and "secure" Agency vehicles when 
left unattended. 

N. Agency personnel involved in auto accidents should not volunteer 
information or admit liability, but merely respond as necessary to 
uniformed officers. They should request that their Supervisor, or the 
Human Resources Manager to notify police or call for medical 
assistance at the scene when necessary. 

O. Authorized Passengers: 
1. Adults on Agency business are permitted to ride in Agency 

vehicles, but only to the extent that seat belts are available. 
2. Any individual who is not participating in agency business, 

including family members, friends and all children are not 
permitted in Agency Pool Vehicles. 

3. All Agency personnel are prohibited from picking up hitchhikers 
in Agency Vehicles or while on Agency business. 

P. When driving an Agency vehicle, stopping and entering any bar or 
liquor store is prohibited. Transporting alcoholic beverages at any time 
in an Agency vehicle is prohibited. 

70



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[55] 

Section 6.4. Employee Purchase Program 
6.4.1 Mobile Device 

A. Purpose & Reimbursement 
NCTPANVTA will reimburse managers and exempt employees for up to $599 
1,000 plus tax for the purchase of a mobile device or tablet to encourage the 
proficiency of its management and exempt employees and for interfacing with 
Granicus or like software to access and maintain Board and advisory committee 
packets.   If the employee chooses a device under $5991,000, NCTPANVTA will 
only reimburse employee up to the purchase amount.  If over the device exceeds 
a $599 1,000 cost, employees are responsible for the difference. 
NCTPANVTA will not reimburse employees for costs of data plans, additional 
software, extra equipment, extra warranties or other peripheral equipment.  
Purchases other than the mobile device are the responsibility of the employee.  It 
is up to the employee to pay for repairs should the device be damaged or replaced 
should the device be stolen or lost within a three year period. 
Mobile devices are eligible to be replaced on a three-year cycle from the date of 
purchase.  This is done to ensure that systems used for daily business are up-to-
date and under warranty.  

B. Device Ownership/Program Limitations 
Mobile devices are the personal property of the employees.  Employees can 
choose any device that accommodates the interface of Board Packets.  . 
IRS rules may consider the reimbursement as income and subject to income taxes.  
Any additional taxes are the responsibility of the employee. 
Business conducted on private devices is subject to the Public Records Act. To 
separate personal and business items, you should have an NCTPANVTA folder 
so that a search of the entire device would not be necessary to isolate personal 
documents from public documents or correspondence. 
  

71



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[56] 

CHAPTER 7 TIME OFF AND LEAVES OF ABSENCE 
 
Section 7.1. Holidays 

7.1.1 Eligible Employees 
Full-time Agency employees are eligible for paid holidays as described herein,  
7.1.2 Recognized Holidays 
Eligible employees are entitled to the following seven (7) holidays off with pay 
when they fall on a work day in the basic workweek: 
January 1 (New Year’s Day) 
The last Monday in May (Memorial Day) 
July 4 (Independence Day) 
The first Monday in September (Labor Day) 
The fourth Thursday in November (Thanksgiving Day) 
The day following Thanksgiving Day 
December 25 (Christmas Day) 
(1) When a recognized holiday falls on a Saturday, the day immediately 

preceding shall be deemed to be the paid holiday.  When a recognized 
holiday falls on a Sunday, the next day shall be deemed to be the paid 
holiday. 

(2) Permanent part-time employees shall receive the same number of holidays 
as regular, full time employees and on a pro-rata basis, proportional to full-
time employment 

Holidays will be paid at eight (8) hour increments. 
7.1.3 Personal Leave 
Eligible employees shall also receive fifty-six (56) hours of personal leave each 
fiscal calendar year which may be used for personal reasons.  Personal leave has 
no cash value and must be used during the fiscal calendar year in which it is 
received or it is deemed forfeited.  Those hired after the fiscal calendar year begins 
will receive a pro rata share of personal leave time based on the number of pay 
periods remaining in the fiscal calendar year. 
Permanent part-time employees shall receive personal leave on a pro-rata basis, 
proportional to full-time employment. 
7.1.4 Board Ordered Holiday 
The Board of Directors may from time to time declare additional paid holidays or 
half-day holidays at their sole discretion, and the granting of any such holiday shall 
not constitute a precedent for continued granting of such holiday or holidays. 

72



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[57] 

7.1.5 Holidays Occurring During Unpaid Leave 
Employees will not receive holiday pay for holidays that occur during an unpaid 
leave of absence from the Agency, or when the employee is on unpaid leave either 
the work day before the recognized holiday or the work day after the recognized 
holiday.   
7.1.6 Working on Holidays  
Eligible employees may be scheduled to work on holidays, in which event, an 
FLSA non-exempt employee will be compensated at the overtime rate of pay for 
all time worked on such days, in addition to receiving eight hours of holiday pay.  
Standby shall not be construed as time worked.    
FLSA exempt management employees who are scheduled to work on a holiday 
first must obtain prior written approval from the Executive Director in order to be 
eligible for flex-time or compensatory time-off for hours worked.  Any approved 
flex-time must be taken in full-day increments.  Standby shall not be construed as 
time worked. 

Section 7.2. Vacation 
7.2.1 Purpose 
NCTPANVTA provides vacation to eligible employees for the purpose of rest, 
relaxation and reinvigoration.   
7.2.2 Eligibility 
Full-time employees are eligible to receive vacation benefits.  Vacation begins to 
accrue from the date of hire.  A probationary employee may begin to take vacation 
after the first six (6) months of an employee’s probationary period.  
7.2.3 Accrual 

A. Accrual Rates 
Every permanent, full-time employee shall accrue vacation leave, in accordance 
with the permitted maximums as provided in the schedule below.  An employee 
shall not accrue vacation in excess of the permitted maximums.  The Executive 
Director shall give employees a reasonable opportunity to utilize such vacation 
within the year so as not to exceed the maximum accrual vacation leave accruals.   

Years of Continuous 
Agency Service 

Hours of Vacation 
Accrued/ Pay Period 

Maximum Accrual for 
Years of Continuous 
Service 

Date of Hire through Year 3 3.8 hours 240 maximum hours 
Year 4 through 109 4.8 hours 300 maximum hours 
Year 11 10 through 2014 6.2 hours 400 maximum hours 
Year 15 through 19 7.2 hours 400 maximum hours 
Year 20 through 29 8 hours 400 maximum hours 

73



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[58] 

21 or more yearYear 30 or 
mores 8 9 hours 400 maximum hours 

 
1. An employee’s new vacation accrual rate will be effective on the first 

day of the pay period following the anniversary date of the year 
referenced in the above schedule. 

2. Each employee may, with approval of the Executive Director, take 
vacation privileges as earned and in accordance with the provisions 
of Section 7.2 

3. No person shall be permitted to work for compensation for the 
Agency in any capacity during the time of his/her paid vacation from 
Agency service. 

4. Vacation leave does not accrue during periods of unpaid leave from 
the Agency or when an employee is on short or long-term disability, 
unless an employee is on worker’s compensation leave, in which 
case, vacation continues to accrue. 

5. Each employee has right to receive compensation at the Employee’s 
current hourly rate for up to eighty (80) hours per year of unused 
vacation so long as forty (40) hours of vacation were actually used 
during the past calendar year. 

Permanent part-time employees shall accrue vacation leave on a pro-rata basis, 
proportional to full-time employment. 

B. Management Employees 
Management Employees of the Agency shall receive the following: 

1. Eighty (80) hours of management leave credited at the beginning of 
each fiscal year.  Part-time employees shall receive this benefit on a 
pro-rata basis (in the same ratio that their part-time employment 
relates to full-time employment[SK1]).  The[SK2] right to surrender up to 
sixty (60) hours of management leave each year and be paid for 
same in cash at their current hourly rate; provided, however, that a 
minimum of forty (40) hours of vacation leave must be used during 
the fiscal year in which the surrender of management leave occurs 
before the finance department is authorized to process the surrender 
request. 

2. Accrual of vacation leave at the rate of 4.8 hours per pay period, or 
accrual of vacation leave at the rate determined in accordance with 
Section 7.2.3.A, or accrual of vacation leave at the Employee’s 
current vacation leave accrual rate, whichever is higher.  This 
vacation leave accrual rate will be effective on the date of the 
appointment, reclassification, or promotion. 

3. In the case of Management Employees who were not employed by 
the Agency at the time of their appointment, but were previously 

74



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[59] 

employed by a city, county, special district, state or federal 
government agency, the vacation accrual rate shall be the rate of 
vacation leave approved by the Executive Director; providing, 
however, this rate shall not exceed the rate of vacation leave accrual 
the Employee enjoyed at the Employee’s last place of public 
employment, or the rate of vacation leave accrual the Employee 
would be entitled to had all prior public agency service of the 
Employee been with the Agency, whichever is higher; and further 
provided that in no event shall this rate of accrual exceed the 
maximum rate the Agency provides to Management Employees.  
Work performed for a public agency as a consultant or independent 
contractor rather that as an employee, shall not be taken into account 
by the Executive Director in approving a vacation leave accrual rate 
exceeding the .06 hours per each full hour worked up to the 
maximum of eighty (80) hours per pay period. 

4. The right to accumulate a maximum of 600 hours of vacation leave; 
the Employee may not earn any further vacation time while accrued, 
unused vacation remains at this maximum. 

  

75



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[60] 

7.2.4 Scheduling 
A. Notice 

Vacation shall be scheduled with the employees supervisor and the Executive 
Director, with due regard for the wishes of the employee and with particular regard 
for the needs of the Agency.   
Vacations of four (4) consecutive days or more, must be scheduled a minimum of 
two weeks before the date of departure.  Vacations of three (3) consecutive days 
or less must be scheduled at least two (2) working days before departure.  Under 
special circumstances, the Executive Director may waive these notice 
requirements.  
All vacation requests shall be submitted in writing on the designated Agency form. 

B. Intervening Holidays 
A holiday falling within a vacation shall not be counted as a day of vacation.  

C. Intervening Illness or Injury 
Employees becoming sick or injured while on vacation leave shall be entitled to 
change their vacation status to sick leave with a doctor’s verification that the 
employee would have been unable to work due to the illness or injury.  Employees 
must follow the sick leave procedures described in these Policies and Procedures. 
7.2.5 Termination or Retirement from Agency 
Accrued but unused vacation at the time of an employee’s termination or 
retirement shall be administered as follows: 

A. Termination 
If an employee terminates employment with the Agency, voluntarily or involuntarily, 
and has accrued and unused vacation, he or she shall be paid for each day 
recorded in Agency records. 

B. Retirement 
An employee who retires and has accrued and unused vacation may elect either 
of the following options: 

1. Continue to work until the date of retirement and be paid for accrued 
and unused vacation; or 

2. Discontinue working and take accrued and unused vacation time that 
would extend from last day worked up to the date of retirement. 

If option (2) is selected, deductions from vacation pay will be the same as if the 
employee is actually on the job and health care coverage will continue to be 
provided under various group programs through the exhaustion of vacation time. 

76



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[61] 

Section 7.3. Sick Leave 
7.3.1 Purpose 
The Agency provides paid sick leave in order to prevent a loss of earnings that 
may be caused by illness or injury.  Paid sick leave is not intended to provide 
additional paid time off for reasons unrelated to injury or illness.   
7.3.2 Eligibility 
Employees are eligible for paid sick leave.  Sick leave begins to accrue from the 
first day of employment.  Employees who have worked for six (6) months in 
continuous employment are eligible to use accrued sick leave. 
7.3.3 Accrual 
Each employee shall accrue 3.8 hours of sick leave for each full eighty (80) hour 
pay period.  There is no limit to the amount of sick leave an employee can accrue.  
Sick leave does not accrue during periods of unpaid leave from the Agency or 
when an employee is on short or long-term disability status, unless an employee 
is on worker’s compensation leave, in which case, sick leave continues to accrue. 
No sick leave shall be paid prior to it being accrued. 
Sick leave accrued and unused is forfeited upon termination of employment.  For 
vested employees, accrued and unused sick leave balances can be use to credit 
retirement health benefits per the agency contract with CalPERS. 
Permanent part-time employees shall accrue sick leave on a pro-rata basis, 
proportional to full-time employment. 
7.3.4 Conversion of Vacation to Sick Leave 
Employees becoming sick or injured while on vacation leave shall be entitled to 
change their vacation status to sick leave with a doctor’s verification that the 
employee would have been unable to work due to the illness or injury.  Employees 
must follow the sick leave procedures described in these Policies. 
7.3.6 Employee Notice and Communication 
An employee shall contact his or her supervisor by telephone prior to the 
employee’s starting time each day when absent due to illness or injury.  Employees 
must follow this procedure every day of illness or injury, except in the case of a 
pre-approved leave of absence.  
Where an employee is absent for more than three (3) consecutive days, the 
employee will be required to submit a doctor’s statement (1) verifying that an illness 
or injury prevented the employee from working, and (2) certifying that the employee 
is fit and able to return to work.  Employees are required to submit a doctor’s 
statement consistent with (1) and (2) above if an employee has a regularly 
scheduled absence for medical reasons.  Management may also require a doctor’s 
slip verifying the absence for a shorter period of time where a question of abuse of 
sick leave arises. 

77



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[62] 

Employees on an approved leave of absence who do not return on their scheduled 
return date and who have failed, in advance of the return date, to obtain an agreed 
extension of leave from their supervisor or the Executive Director, will be 
considered to have voluntarily abandoned employment and subject to separation 
from Agency employment. 

Section 7.4. Workers’ Compensation Leave 
7.4.1 Purpose 
Agency employees are eligible for benefits under the Worker’s Compensation 
Laws of the State of California for injury or illness arising out of or in the course 
and scope of employment.  Where such injury or illness necessitates an 
employee’s absence from work, an employee shall remain on paid status as 
provided herein. 
7.4.2 Sick or Vacation Leave Supplementation 
When an employee is off work due to an industrial injury, accrued sick leave or 
vacation pay may be paid for the first three (3) days.  Thereafter payments made 
by Worker’s Compensation may be supplemented up to base wage entitlement of 
that employee to the extent that accumulated sick leave is available and, when 
authorized by the employee, vacation days. 
7.4.3 Accrual of Benefits during Leave 
During the time an employee is on “paid status” while absent from work by reason 
of injury or illness covered by Worker’s Compensation, he or she shall continue to 
accrue all benefits.  For the purposes of this section, “paid status” shall include that 
period of time during which the Agency coordinates benefits; i.e., that period of 
time during which sick leave and vacation days are used to supplement employee 
earnings.  
If worker’s compensation leave is converted to long term disability leave, once 
vacation and sick leave balances are depleted, health, dental, vision, and life 
insurance premiums will be paid entirely by the employee.  In addition, while the 
employee is on long term disability status, vacation, holidays, and sick leave 
accruals will no longer accrue. 

Section 7.5. Pregnancy Leave 
7.5.1 Purpose 
In an effort to further equal employment opportunity for women, employees who 
become disabled by pregnancy, childbirth or related medical conditions may be 
entitled to job-protected leave or other reasonable accommodation as provided by 
California’s Pregnancy Leave Law. 
7.5.2 Covered Employees 
An employee is disabled from working due to pregnancy, childbirth or a related 
medical condition in the following circumstances: 

• Inability to work at all because of pregnancy or childbirth 

78



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[63] 

• Inability to perform one or more essential functions of the employee’s 
job without undue risk to the female, the successful completion of the 
pregnancy, or other persons 

• Suffering from severe morning sickness 

• Needing to attend pre-natal care appointments 
7.5.3 Leave Rights 
A covered employee is entitled to up to four months of leave during any period in 
which the employee is actually disabled.  Such leave may be taken in a single 
block of time or on an intermittent basis or reduced leave schedule.  This leave is 
in addition to, and does not run concurrent with, any leave the employee may be 
eligible for under the California Family Rights Act. 
At the conclusion of an approved pregnancy disability leave, the employee will be 
restored to her original position or a comparable position in accordance with law.   
7.5.4 Pay and Benefits 
Pregnancy disability leave under this policy is unpaid.  However, a covered 
employee may use accrued sick or vacation leave or other accrued time off to 
cover absences caused by a pregnancy-related disability.   
Leave taken under this policy does not constitute a break in service for the 
employee.  
7.5.5 Employee Notice Obligations 
Whenever the need for leave is foreseeable, a covered employee must give the 
Agency thirty (30) days advance notice of the need for leave.  Covered employees 
should make reasonable efforts to schedule any necessary medical treatment so 
as not to disrupt the operations of the Agency.  The Agency may deny leave where 
such notice is not provided.   
When the need for leave is not foreseeable, covered employees must provide 
notice of the need for leave as soon as practicable.   
7.5.6 Medical Certification 
An employee requesting such leave will be required to provide a medical 
certification from her health care provider verifying the disability, the date it 
commenced, and its probable duration. 
Upon return to work, the employee will be required to provide a return-to-work 
certificate from her health care provider stating that she is able to resume the duties 
of her position.    
7.5.7 Other Forms of Pregnancy-Related Disability Accommodation 
An employee disabled by a pregnancy-related condition may also be eligible for a 
temporary transfer to a less strenuous or hazardous position or other form of 
accommodation.  Requests for accommodation should be directed to the 
employee’s Supervisor or the Executive Director. 

79



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[64] 

Section 7.6. Family and Medical Care Leave Act 
7.6.1 Statement of Policy 
This policy describes the circumstances and conditions under which an employee 
may take family care and medical leave as provided under the Federal Family and 
Medical Leave Act ("FMLA") and the California Family Rights Act ("CFRA").  This 
policy is meant to be read together with the FMLA (29 U.S.C. 2601 et seq.) and 
the CFRA (Government Code Section 12945.2) and the regulations adopted to 
implement them, all as they are now written or may hereafter be amended.  This 
policy is separate and distinct from any other leave policies or procedures.  The 
benefits accorded by these separate policies shall not be combined or otherwise 
construed as one policy. 
7.6.2 Definitions 

A. "Family and Medical Care Leave" means leave, whether paid or 
unpaid, taken by an employee on account of: 

1. The birth of a child of the employee. 
2. The adoption or foster care placement of a child by the employee. 
3. The serious health condition of a child, parent or spouse of the 

employee. 
4. The serious health condition of the employee which makes the 

employee unable to perform the duties of the employee's position. 
B. "Child" means a biological, adopted or foster child, a stepchild, a 

legal ward or child of a person in loco parentis who is either under 18 
years of age or a dependent adult.  A dependent adult is a person 
who is over 18 years of age and is incapable of self-care because of 
a mental or physical disability. 

C. "Health Care Provider" means a person holding a physician's 
and/or surgeon's certificate or an osteopathic physician's and/or 
surgeon's certificate who directly treats or supervises the treatment 
of the serious health condition, or any other person determined to be 
capable of providing health care services under the FMLA/CFRA. 

D. "Parent" means a biological, foster or adoptive parent, a stepparent 
or legal guardian, or other person who stood in loco parentis to the 
employee when the employee was a child.  Parent does not include 
a parent-in-law.  

E. "Serious Health Condition" means an illness, injury, impairment or 
physical or mental condition which involves either: 

1.  Inpatient care in a hospital, hospice or residential health care facility; 
or 

2.  Continuing treatment or supervision by a health care provider of 
more than three consecutive days; or 

80



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[65] 

3.  Continuing treatment or supervision by a health care provider for a 
chronic or long-term health condition that is incurable or so serious 
that if not treated would likely result in an incapacity for more than 
three consecutive days. 

F. "Spouse" means a partner in marriage as defined in Family Code 
Section 300. It does not include unmarried persons living together, 
but does include persons who are legally married who do not live 
together. For the purposes of this policy, spouse is further defined as 
a registered domestic partner as specified in California Family Code 
Section 297. 

G.  "Employment in the Same or Equivalent Position" means 
employment in a position that has the same or equivalent duties and 
pay that can be performed at the same or similar geographic location 
as the position held prior to the leave. 

7.6.3 Family and/or Medical Care Leave 
Except as hereafter provided, any employee with at least 12 months of service with 
the Agency, who has at least 1250 hours of service during the previous 12-month 
period, may take up to 12 weeks of family care and medical leave during a 12-
month period with a guarantee made at the time leave is granted that the employee 
will be able to return to the same or equivalent position. 

A. For this purpose, "12 month period" means the 12 months 
immediately preceding the date an employee takes family care and 
medical leave. 

B. Pregnancy disability leave taken by an employee will not be 
considered when counting the amount of leave an employee may 
take pursuant to this policy. 

C. While on leave under this policy, an employee will continue to be 
covered by the Agency’s group health insurance to the same extent 
that coverage is provided while the employee is working. 

D. If an employee fails to return to work after the designated period of 
leave or when the leave entitlement has been exhausted or expires, 
the Agency shall have the right to recover its share of health plan 
premiums for the entire leave period, unless the employee does not 
return because of the continuation, recurrence, or onset of a serious 
health condition of the employee or his/her family member which 
would entitle the employee to leave under this policy, or because of 
circumstances beyond the employee's control.  

E. Leave under this policy may be granted on an intermittent basis (i.e., 
leaves taken in separate blocks of time due to a single qualifying 
reason) or a reduced work schedule to accommodate an employee 
qualifying for leave under this policy. An employee may take leave 
under this policy on an intermittent basis for his/her own serious 

81



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[66] 

health condition or for the serious health condition of a qualifying 
family member when it is shown to be medically necessary.  

F. Conditions for use of Family/Medical Care Leave: 
1. Notice of Leave. If the need for leave is foreseeable, an employee 

must provide the Agency with reasonable advance notice.  For this 
purpose, "reasonable advance notice" means thirty (30) days' written 
notice, if practicable. 

2. Scheduling Leave.  If the need for leave is foreseeable due to a 
planned medical treatment or supervision, the employee must make 
a reasonable effort to schedule it to avoid disruption of Agency 
operations. 

3. Medical Certification for Family Care Leave.  A request for leave to 
care for a child, spouse or parent who has a serious health condition 
must be supported by a certificate of a health care provider which 
includes all of the following: 
a) The date on which the health condition commenced; 
b) A statement as to whether a serious health condition of a 

family member exists: 
i. However, the employee need not (but may, at the 

employee's option) identify the serious health condition 
involved (i.e., diagnosis). 

ii. Failure to disclose the nature of the serious health 
condition may give the Agency reason to doubt the 
validity of the certification. 

c) The probable duration of the condition; 
d) An estimate of the time the employee needs to care for the 

individual; 
e) A statement that the condition requires family participation to 

provide care during the period of treatment or supervision of 
the individual requiring care. 

4. Medical Certification for Employee's Own Serious Health 
Condition.  A request for leave for an employee's own serious 
health condition must be supported by a certificate of a health 
care provider which includes all of the following: 

a) The date on which the serious health condition commenced; 
b) A statement as to whether the employee is unable to perform 

the essential functions of his or her normal position: 
i. However, the employee need not (but may, at the 

employee's option) identify the serious health condition 
involved (i.e., diagnosis). 

82



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[67] 

ii. Failure to disclose the nature of the serious health 
condition, may give the Agency reason to doubt the 
validity of the certification. 

c) The probable duration of the condition. 
5. Use of Accrued Leave: 
a) Vacation/Comp Time: An employee who takes family/medical 

care leave must use all of their accrued compensatory time 
off, if any, and then and all of their accrued vacation in excess 
of 80 hours. 

b) Sick Leave:  An employee who takes family/medical care 
leave may only use accrued sick leave as provided in the 
applicable under California law. 

G. Limits on Family and Medical Care Leave 
The Agency may refuse to allow family and medical care leave if: 
1.  The employee fails to furnish the Agency adequate medical 

documentation which satisfies the requirements under this policy or 
the FMLA or CFRA. 

2. If both parents of a child are employed by the Agency, the Agency 
may limit the family care leave for the birth, adoption or foster care 
placement of their child to a combined total leave of twelve (12) 
weeks in a 12-month period. 

H. Challenge to Medical Certification 
1. When the Agency doubts the validity of a medical certification 

submitted by an employee, it may require the employee to obtain at 
Agency expense the opinion of a second health care provider 
designated and approved by the Agency regarding any of the 
information in the original certification.  Such second health care 
provider may not be one employed by the Agency on a regular basis. 

2. If the opinion of the second health care provider differs from the first, 
the Agency may require the employee to obtain  at Agency expense,  
the opinion of a third health care provider, designated or approved 
jointly by the Agency and the employee, concerning the information 
in the original certification. The opinion of the third health care 
provider will be final and binding on the Agency and the employee.  

I. Employee's Obligation to Periodically Report on His/Her 
Condition 
An employee on family or medical care leave may be required to 
periodically report on his or her status and intent to return to work.  
This will avoid any delay to reinstatement when the employee is 
ready to return to work. 

83



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[68] 

J. Status of Employee Benefits While On Leave 
1.  Status of Employee.  An employee on family/medical care leave 

retains employee status, and the leave does not constitute a break 
in service for purposes of longevity, seniority, or any employee 
benefit plan.  For purposes of layoff, recall, promotion, job 
assignment, and seniority related benefits, an employee who returns 
from leave will have no less seniority than the employee had when 
the leave commenced. 

2.  Health Insurance.  Except as hereafter provided, during 
family/medical care leave, the Agency will continue to offer the 
employee, and pay its share of the premium for, health insurance for 
up to twelve (12) weeks at the same level and under the same terms 
and conditions as coverage was provided while the employee was 
actually working for the Agency; provided that, if an employee fails 
to return from leave for reasons other than the continuation, 
recurrence, or onset of the employee's own serious health condition 
or other circumstances beyond the employee's control, the Agency 
may recover the premiums paid by the Agency on behalf of the 
employee. 

3.  Other Benefits. During family/medical care leave, an employee will 
continue to be entitled to participate in employee health plans for any 
period during which coverage is not provided as required in Section 
7.6.3.J.2 above, employee benefit plans, including life, short-term or 
long-term disability or accident insurance, pension and retirement 
plans, and supplemental unemployment benefit plans to the same 
extent and under the same conditions as apply to an unpaid leave 
taken for any other purpose. 

K. Return from Family and/or Medical Care Leave 
1. The Agency may deny reinstatement of an employee from family and 

medical leave to the same or equivalent position where: 
a) The employee refuses to return on the date agreed upon; or 
b)  As a condition of reinstatement of an employee whose leave 

was due to the employee's own serious health condition which 
made the employee unable to perform his/her job, the 
employee must obtain and present a fitness-for-duty 
certification from the health care provider that the employee is 
able to resume work.  Failure to provide such certification will 
result in denial of reinstatement; or 

c) The same or equivalent position has been eliminated for 
legitimate business reasons unrelated to the employee's 
family/medical care leave, in which case  the employee will 
have the rights accorded in the layoff provision of the 
applicable   Agency policy. 

84



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[69] 

2. Reinstatement of Key Employees:  The Agency may deny 
reinstatement of an employee from family and/or medical care leave 
to the same or equivalent position where: 
a) The employee is among the highest paid 10% of the Agency's 

salaried employees; and, 
b) Reinstatement would cause the Agency serious and grievous 

economic harm; and, 
c) The employee was notified at the outset of leave that 

reinstatement could be denied. 
7.6.4 Status of Prior Policies 
This policy supersedes and replaces all other policies on the same subject.  The 
Agency reserves the right to amend this policy whenever it is appropriate to 
conform to state and federal laws, rules and regulations. 

Section 7.7. Funeral and Bereavement Leave 
7.7.1 Purpose  
The Agency provides bereavement leave for its employees in the event of a death 
in the employee’s family in order to handle family affairs and attend the funeral.  
7.7.2 Conditions of Leave 

A. Amount 
An employee may take up to five days of sick leave (one of which shall be the date 
of the funeral) for the purpose of making necessary arrangements and attending 
the funeral. 
An additional limited amount of time off to attend funeral services outside the State 
of California may be authorized with pay under special circumstances.  The 
Executive Director is vested with full discretion to evaluate the circumstances and 
make the determination. 
Attendance at funerals requiring absences of more than five days may be charged 
to accrued vacation or personal leave accounts. 

B. Covered Family Members 
Leave shall be afforded under this policy for the death of the employee’s spouse, 
registered domestic partner, child, parent, parents-in-law, step-parents, sibling, 
step-siblings, and grandparents. 

C. Deceased Employees 
In deference to the memory of a deceased colleague, a limited amount of time off 
to attend funeral services may be authorized with pay under special 
circumstances.  The Executive Director is vested with full discretion to evaluate the 
circumstances and make the determination. 

85



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[70] 

Section 7.8. Jury Duty and Witness Leave 
7.8.1 Purpose 
The Agency encourages its employees to perform their civic duty to serve on a jury 
panel or as a subpoenaed witness and provides leave for such purposes as 
described herein.   
7.8.2 Jury Duty Leave 

A. Full-time and Seasonal Employees 
Time off without loss of pay of up to four (4) weeks shall be granted to full-time 
employees called for jury duty.  Such employees who are required to serve on jury 
duty shall be paid the difference between their regular pay and the amount of the 
jury fee received for such duty.  For the purpose of this calculation, the jury fee 
does not include any mileage allowance.  Should jury duty extend beyond four (4) 
weeks, the employee will receive unpaid leave for the duration of the jury service.  
The employee may elect to use accrued vacation, compensatory time off, personal 
leave, or floating holiday leave to cover the remainder of the jury service. 

B. Part-Time and Temporary Employees 
Part-time and temporary employees will be granted time off without pay for jury 
duty service.  These employees may elect to use accrued vacation, compensatory 
time off, personal leave, or floating holiday leave to cover the jury service. 

C. Notice Requirements 
All employees are required to provide their supervisor with reasonable advance 
notice of jury duty.  Employees must provide their supervisor with a copy of their 
jury summons prior to the commencement of jury duty leave.   

D. Return to Work 
All employees released from jury duty prior to the end of a scheduled work day 
must report back to work within one (1) hour after being released from jury duty, 
unless there is less than two (2) hours remaining in the employee’s work day at 
the time of release. 
7.8.3 Witness Duty 
All employees will be allowed time off without pay to appear in court as a witness 
pursuant to a valid subpoena or other court order.  The employee must provide his 
or her supervisor with reasonable advance notice of the witness duty.  Further, the 
employee is required to provide his or her supervisor with a copy of the subpoena 
or court order requiring the employee’s attendance.  The employee may elect to 
use accrued vacation or floating holiday time to cover the time away from work.  
All employees who are subpoenaed by court to appear in their capacity and scope 
as a representative of the Agency shall be allowed time off with pay for such 
witness duty. 

86



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[71] 

7.8.4 Overtime Exempt Employees 
Overtime exempt employees who work any portion of the week in which they also 
serve on jury duty or as a witness will receive their full salary for that week. 

Section 7.9. Military Leave 
7.9.1 Purpose 
The Agency provides appropriate military leaves of absence, benefits and 
reinstatement rights to members of the military consistent with the provisions of 
the California Military and Veterans Code and the federal Uniformed Services 
Employment and Reemployment Rights Act.   
7.9.2 Leave of Absence 
Any Agency employee who is a member of the United States armed forces, the 
National Guard, the Naval Militia or the reserve corps is entitled to an unpaid 
leave(s) of absence for ordered military duty including active military training, 
inactive duty training, encampment or exercises. 
7.9.3 Employee Notice Requirements 
Employees must provide advance written or verbal notice of the need for military 
leave unless to do so is impossible or unreasonable.  Generally, an employee 
should present their service papers to their supervisor as soon as they receive 
them.  Employees should use their best efforts to arrange inactive duty or annual 
trainings at a time that is mutually convenient to the employee and the Agency. 
7.9.4 Pay and Benefits While On Leave 

A. Pay 
Where the employee has been employed by the Agency for at least one year prior 
to the start of the leave, the first 30 calendar days of military leave will be paid.  No 
minimum length of service is required to receive 60 calendar days of pay for a 
member of the National Guard who is called to active duty during a declared 
emergency.  Paid military leave shall not exceed 30 calendar days in any fiscal 
year. 
After the first 30 calendar days, military leave will be unpaid.  Any employee may, 
at his or her option, elect to use accrued vacation or floating holiday time to cover 
periods of unpaid military leave.   

B. Health Care Coverage 
For leaves with duration of 30 days or less, the Agency will continue the 
employee’s health care coverage on the same terms as if the employee was 
working.   
For leaves longer than 30 days, the employee may be eligible to continue health 
care coverage for self and dependents at the employee’s own expense for up to 
24 months.  Employees returning from leave longer than 30 days will be restored 
to health care coverage upon their return to work without a waiting period.    

87



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[72] 

C. Seniority 
Any employee who takes military leave retains his or her original seniority date and 
all other seniority-based benefits as if continuously employed.  
Employees on military leaves will not accrue any vacation or sick leave during 
periods of unpaid military leave. 
Time spent on military leave will be counted as time worked for purposes of 
determining eligibility for family and medical leave. 
7.9.5 Reinstatement  
The Agency will adhere to the applicable federal or state law that is most beneficial 
to the employee in determining reinstatement rights. 
Generally, employees must provide timely notice of their intent to return to work 
after military service.  An employee returning from military leave will be reinstated 
to employment in the position he or she would have held had there been no 
interruption for military service, if qualified.  If reasonable efforts to so qualify the 
employee fail, he or she will be returned to the position held at the beginning of the 
leave, if qualified. 
Reinstatement may be denied if the employee receives a dishonorable or other 
disqualifying discharge, fails to timely request reemployment, or the Agency’s 
circumstances have so changed to make reemployment impossible or 
unreasonable. 

Section 7.10. Leaves of Absence without Pay–Accrual of Vacation and Sick Leave 
An employee taking leave without pay shall earn vacation leave and sick leave during the 
week in which the leave of absence occurs according to the following weekly schedule.  
Such vacation leave and sick leave shall be calculated to the nearest tenths as shown in 
the chart below: 
 

HOURS OF LWOP PERCENTAGE OF ACCRUAL 
2 – 3.9 90 
4 – 7.9 80 
8 – 11.9 70 

12 – 15.9 60 
16 – 19.9 50 
20 – 23.9 40 
24 – 27.9 30 
28 – 31.9 20 
32 – 35.9 10 
36 – 40.0 0 

 
Section 7.11. Outside Employment 

The Agency forbids employees on a leave of absence, other than military leave, 
from holding outside employment during such leave.  Employees who violate this 

88



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[73] 

policy will forfeit any leave of absence and will be deemed to have voluntarily 
terminated their employment and separated from the Agency. 
 

89



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[74] 

CHAPTER 8 BENEFITS 
 
Section 8.1. Insurance 

8.1.1 Purpose 
The Agency will provide all eligible employees and their dependents access to 
group health insurance programs including medical, dental and vision and life 
insurance. 
8.1.2 Terms of Coverage 
The amount and type of coverage, as well as the percentage of Agency 
contribution, is subject to change from time to time depending on changes in 
applicable premiums.  
Information describing coverage is available from the Agency Human Resourced 
department upon request.  If there is a conflict between the language used here 
and the language contained in the group plan documents, the plan documents will 
prevail. 
8.1.3 Eligibility 
Full time, permanent employees are eligible for medical, dental, vision and life 
insurance coverages.  The effective date for these coverage’s is the first of any 
month following thirty (30) days of continuous service, except for medical which is 
effective the first of the month following the employee’s hire date.  Employees 
returning from layoff shall have full benefits made available to them on the first of 
the month following their return to work, without waiting the otherwise mandatory 
“waiting period.” 
8.1.4 Medical, Dental and Vision Coverage 

A. Payment of Premiums 
Presently the Agency pays 96% of the premium for Medical and 100% of the 
premium Dental for eligible employees during periods of regular pay status 
(including paid time off and paid leave).  The agency pays 100% of benefits for 
employees with no dependents.  The Vision premium is paid for by the Employee.  
The Agency does not pay insurance premiums for employees on an unpaid leave 
of absence or whose hours fall below the required minimum for eligibility of at least 
sixty (60) paid hours per pay period, unless specifically provided in another Agency 
policy such as the family and medical leave policy.  Employees can elect to waive 
coverage providing that they can show they are covered by health insurance 
elsewhere. 

B. Long Term Disability 
As used herein, “long-term disability” means the status reached when an eligible 
employee has, during any consecutive 12 month period, been unable to work or 
perform the duties for which employed for 90 calendar days during that period, 
because of his or her own ill health or physical or mental disability. 

90



 

Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[75] 

Upon entering long-term disability status, an employee may petition the Board of 
Directors for use of accrued vacation or sick leave sufficient to pay premiums as 
set by the Agency for continuation of health, dental and vision coverage.  Granting 
or denial of such petition shall be at the sole discretion of the Board based on their 
evaluation of the circumstances in each case.  A granting in one case shall not be 
construed to have set a precedent when reviewing other cases. 

C. Continuation of Health Benefits - COBRA 
As stated above, the Agency’s health care plans are maintained for employees in 
regular pay status and their covered dependents.  The federal Consolidated 
Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA) and a related state law allow 
employees and their dependents to continue health care coverage at their own 
expense for up to 36 months if they lose coverage due to termination or other 
qualifying events. 

D. Temporary Employees 
Temporary employees are eligible for group health benefits for themselves and 
their dependents at their own expense provided the temporary employee qualifies 
as provided above and provided further, the employee pays the monthly premium 
for the group health care coverage a minimum of 10 days in advance of the first of 
each month. 
8.1.5 Life Insurance Coverage 
The Agency provides life insurance coverage for eligible employees in accordance 
with carrier requirements and at benefit levels determined through negotiations 
with the applicable employee representative.  Presently the Agency pays 100% of 
the premium for this insurance. 

Section 8.2. Retirement 
8.2.1 Purpose 
The Agency provides retirement benefits to full time, permanent employees 
through its plan with CalPERS.  The terms of the plan shall govern retirement 
benefits. 
8.2.2 Plan Overview 
CalPERS provides a defined benefit plan.  Benefits are based on the employee’s 
age, years of credited service and final compensation at retirement.  Employees 
become fully vested with 5 years of service.  For employees hired prior to May 21, 
2011 the minimum retirement age is 55 with a benefit formula of 2.5% at 55 (Tier 
1); for employees hired between May 21, 2011 and December 31, 2012 the 
minimum retirement age is 60 with a benefit formula of 2.0% at 60 (Tier 2); and for 
employees hired on or after January 1, 2013 the minimum retirement age is 62 
with a benefit formula of 2% at 62 (PEPRA New Members). 
8.2.3 Contributions 
The Agency pays the employer’s contribution share at the current rate of 14.083% 
for Tier 1 members, 8.049% for Tier 2 members and 6.25% for PEPRA members 
of reportable earnings.  The Employee pays the employee’s contribution share at 

91

mailto:2.5%25@55
mailto:2.0%25@60


Napa County Valley Transportation & Planning AgencyAuthority 
[76] 

the current rate of 8% for Tier 1 members, 7% for Tier 2 members and 6.25% for 
PEPRA members of reportable earnings. 
NCTPANVTA reserves the right to amend these Personnel Policies and 
Procedures at any time. 

92



April 18, 2018 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.3 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Rebecca Schenck, Transportation Program Planner 

(707) 259-8636 / Email: rschenck@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Revised Policies, Practices, and Procedures Manual: Contracting and 
Procurement 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve the revisions to the 
Contracting and Procurement chapter of the NVTA Policies, Practices, and Procedures 
Manual (Attachment 1).  

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

None 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Board last adopted an update to the Contracting and Procurement section of the 
NVTA Policies, Practices, and Procedures Manual on June 15, 2014.  Since that time, 
there is a need for additional Code of Conduct and Conflict of Interest Policy language to 
align with Federal and State law.  This is timely because NVTA is moving forward with 
the joint procurement with Member Agencies for on call Architect and Engineering 
services, and NVTA staff has a current solicitation for a Project Management 
Administration (service in management support role) consultant to manage large 
infrastructure projects. These applicable Federal and State updates, along with changes 
in NVTA’s procurement needs warrants changes to the Contracting and Procurement 
Policies.   

PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 

1. Staff Report
2. Public Comments
3. Motion, Second, Discussion and Vote

93

mailto:rschenck@nvta.ca.gov


NVTA Agenda Letter                   Wednesday, April 18, 2018 
Agenda Item 9.3 

Page 2 of 2 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a Fiscal Impact? No  
 
CEQA REQUIREMENTS  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: The proposed action is not a project as defined by 
14 California Code of Regulations 15378 (California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines) and therefore CEQA is not applicable 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
Below is a brief summary of each of the changes to the Contracting and Procurement 
Polices. Redline changes can be found in Attachment 1.  
 
Standards of Conduct and Conflict of Interest Policies 
The proposed changes follow the applicable State or Federal laws including but not 
limited to the requirements of 23 CFR 172.7.  Specifically, the additions say that no Board 
Member, officer, employee or agent of NVTA shall participate in the selection, award or 
administration of a contract (including purchase orders) if a conflict of interest, real or 
apparent, exists.  The regulation outlines disciplinary actions for employees in the event 
of a violation of the standards of conduct and conflict of interest policies. These changes 
will also allow NVTA to procure a Project Management Administration (service in 
management support role) consultant to manage large infrastructure projects. 
 
Member Agencies Procurement 
Changes to the Piggybacking Section as well as the addition of a Shared Services Section 
and Pre-qualified Contract Lists Section to the policies is necessary to allow Member 
Agencies to utilize NVTA contracts for supplies or services.  "Piggybacking" is an 
assignment of existing contract rights to purchase supplies, equipment, or services.  
These changes will allow Member Agencies to utilize NVTA’s on-call list of Architecture 
and Engineering firms when issuing Requests for Proposals for their specific projects. 
 
Other 
Some minor changes were also made to the Contracting and Procurement Policies 
document to correct oversights and to provide clarification.  
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachment:  (1) Revised NVTA Policies, Practices, and Procedures Manual: Section 
    5:  Contracting and Procurement 
      

94



 

 

 

 

 

CHAPTER 1   INTRODUCTION ......................................................................................... 1 

A. STEP-BY-STEP GUIDE ............................................................................................................ 2 

B. METHODS OF PROCUREMENT AND DELEGATION ................................................................... 3 

1. Goods and Services ........................................................................................................ 3 

2. Professional and Architectural/Engineering Services (A/E) ...................................... 4 

CHAPTER 3   POLICIES AND PROCEDURES ................................................................ 4 

C. PROCUREMENT POLICIES ....................................................................................................... 4 

1. Procurement Responsibility ............................................................................................ 4 

2. Standards of Conduct and Conflict of Interest Policies .............................................. 6 

3. Purchasing Policies .......................................................................................................... 9 

4. Public Records Act ......................................................................................................... 10 

D. PROCEDURES ........................................................................................................................ 10 

1. Independent Cost Estimate .......................................................................................... 10 

The ICE will be included in the procurement records.  All construction bids will require 
an engineering estimate as part of the plans, specifications and engineering phase of 
the project. ............................................................................................................................... 11 

2. Excluded Parties List ..................................................................................................... 11 

3. Business References ..................................................................................................... 11 

4. Reasonableness of Price – Price Analysis or Cost Analysis .................................. 12 

5. Best Value ....................................................................................................................... 14 

6. Tag-ons ............................................................................................................................ 15 

7. Piggybacking ................................................................................................................... 15 

9. Use of Brand Name ....................................................................................................... 16 

NCTPANVTA 
POLICIES, PRACTICES AND PROCEDURES MANUAL 

SECTION 5: CONTRACTING AND PROCUREMENT 

ATTACHMENT 1 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.3 

April 18, 2018 

95



ii 

10. Options ......................................................................................................................... 16 

11. Advance Payments .................................................................................................... 17 

12. Progress Payments .................................................................................................... 17 

13. Procurement by Micro-Purchases ........................................................................... 17 

14. Small Purchases......................................................................................................... 17 

15. Construction and Major Capital Purchases exceeding $4,000 ........................... 18 

E. COMPETITIVE PROCUREMENT PROCESS ............................................................................. 18 

1. Invitation for Bids (IFB) .................................................................................................. 18 

2. Recording of Bids ........................................................................................................... 19 

3. Tabulation of Bids .......................................................................................................... 19 

4. Analysis of Limited Bid Response ............................................................................... 19 

5. Determination of Responsiveness ............................................................................... 19 

6. Responsible Bidder Evaluation .................................................................................... 19 

7. Rejection of Individual Bids .......................................................................................... 21 

8. Award of the Contract .................................................................................................... 21 

9. Project Completion ......................................................................................................... 21 

10. Request for Qualifications (RFQ) / Request for Proposals (RFP) ...................... 21 

11. Architectural / Engineering Services Request for Qualifications ........................ 24 

12. Sole Source Procurements ....................................................................................... 26 

13. Emergency Procurements ........................................................................................ 27 

14. Vendor Protest Procedures ...................................................................................... 27 

F. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION GUIDELINES ........................................................................... 30 

G. FEDERAL PROCUREMENT REQUIREMENTS .......................................................................... 30 

APPENDIX LIST ............................................................................................................... 31 

96



iii 

A. FTA REQUIRED MODEL CLAUSES ........................................................................................ 31 

B. DETERMINATION OF PRICE REASONABLENESS .................................................................... 31 

C. PROCUREMENT FILE CHECKLIST .......................................................................................... 31 

D. PROCUREMENT DOCUMENTATION CHECKLIST .................................................................... 31 

APPENDIX A:  FTA & FHWA REQUIRED CLAUSES ................................................... 32 

APPENDIX B:  DETERMINATION OF PRICE REASONABLENESS ........................... 33 

APPENDIX C:  PROCUREMENT FILE CHECKLIST ..................................................... 34 

APPENDIX D:  PROCUREMENT DOCUMENTATION CHECKLIST ............................ 35 

 

 

 

97



 

1 

CHAPTER 1   INTRODUCTION 

These procurement procedures apply to purchases of goods and services that utilize 
federal, state and local funds.  Where there is a conflict between federal and local 
requirements, federal requirements will prevail. 

The Napa ValleyCounty Transportation Authority and Planning Agency (NCTPANVTA) 
receives transit funding from the federal government and the State of California, as well 
as other regional and local agencies. NCTPANVTA will follow standard public agency 
contract law as set forth in California Government and Public Contract Codes  for 
procurements that are funded with state or local revenues and do not have any federal 
funding.  NCTPANVTA is further committed to meeting all requirements in FTA Circular 
4220.1(F) and its successors for procurements that involve federal funds. These 
procurement policies and procedures are consistent with federal regulations and the laws 
of the State of California. These procedures also apply to any revenue contract whose 
primary purpose is to either generate revenues in connection with a transit-related activity, 
or to create business opportunities utilizing a Federal Transit Administration (FTA) funded 
asset.  For FHWA funded projects, NVTA will follow the guidance of Caltrans’ Local 
Assistance Procedures Manual. 
 
The purpose of these policies and procedures is to set forth the procurement methods 
and establish standards for obtaining goods and services, including construction, 
professional, and architectural/engineering (A/E) services necessary for the operation of 
NCTPANVTA's transportation and planning services. These procedures include 
guidelines for the solicitation, award and administration of formally advertised contracts, 
as well as the consultant selection, negotiation, award and administration of competitively 
negotiated and A/E contracts. 

The procurement procedures are designed to: 

• Instill public confidence in the transit procurement process of NCTPANVTA; 
• Ensure fair and equitable treatment of all vendors who seek to do business with 

NCTPANVTA; 
• Ensure maximum open and free competition in the expenditure of public funds; 

and 
• Provide the safeguards to maintain a procurement system of quality and 

integrity. 

Methods to implement the foregoing are described in the remainder of this document and 
the attachments hereto.   

 

98



 

2 

CHAPTER 2   QUICK REFERENCE GUIDE 

A. Step-by-Step Guide 

Step 1: The Project Manager (PM) must determine the following: 

1. Project scope; 

2. Expected cost of the procurement; 

3. Funding source(s) and whether the procurement is already  
budgeted; and  

4. Whether the procurement will be informal or formal. 

Step 2: For procurement type, PM should refer to the policies described 
herein.  Any questions regarding the procurement process should be 
immediately discussed with the Executive Director (ED)/general 
counsel to ensure that the policies are being followed and adhered 
to. 

Step 3: The Administrative Technician (AT) is responsible for the 
administration of the procurement, which includes attaching the 
proper boiler plate agreements and clauses and obtaining the 
required review and approval(s), before initiating the procurement 
process.   

Step 4: Over a certain threshold, approval of the procurement by the Board. 

Step 5:   Upon completion of the procurement process, execution of the 
contract prior to a notice to proceed, or initiation of work. 

  

99



 

3 

B. Methods of Procurement and Delegation 

1. Goods and Services 

Definition:  Procurements of services, supplies, or other property, with the 
exception of professional and A/E services or labor and/or materials for 
public works/construction projects. 

 
Contract Threshold 

Method of 
Procurement 

Required 
Approval Level 

 
Notes 

Less than $3,000 (FTA) 
or $5,000 (state & local 
funds) 

Micro Purchase Management / 
Senior Staff 

With signed 
authorization form 

>$3,000 – $50,000 Small Purchase / 
RFP / IFB 

Executive 
Director 

With signed 
authorization form 

Greater than $50,000  
Small 

Purchase/RFP/ 
IFB 

Board of 
Directors 

 

Less than $25,000 
(FTA)  Sole Source  Management / 

Senior Staff 
With signed 

authorization form 
Less than or equal to 

$50,000 Sole Source  Executive 
Director 

With signed 
authorization form 

Greater than $ 50,000 Sole Source 
 

Board of 
Directors 

 

Less than or equal to 
$175,000 Construction Executive 

Director 

Including 
UPCCAA*; with 

signed 
authorization form 

Greater than $175,000 Construction Board of 
Directors 

 

*California Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act (UPCCAA), 
dated July 2011. 

Modifications to contracts or purchase orders which represent no change in 
the scope of the character of material or services provided in the original 
contract or purchase order may be approved by the ED or PM if the 
cumulative dollar value of the modification and the original contract amount 
are within the ED award authority.  

NCTPANVTA may acquire property and services valued at $3,000 or less 
without obtaining competitive quotations.  These purchases are exempt 
from FTA’s Buy America requirements  Davis-Bacon prevailing wage 
requirements, however, will apply to construction contracts exceeding 
$2,000, even though the recipient uses micro-purchase procurement 
procedures. 

100



 

4 

2. Professional and Architectural/Engineering Services (A/E) 

Professional services means services such as, but not limited to, the 
services of attorneys, physicians, architects, engineers, and other 
consultants or individuals or organizations possessing a high degree of 
technical skill. 

A/E means program management, construction management, feasibility 
studies, preliminary engineering, design, architectural, engineering, 
surveying, mapping, or related services.  A/E services require the use of an 
A/E method of procurement.  

CHAPTER 3   POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

C. Procurement Policies 

The NCTPANVTA Board of Directors (Board) is responsible for governing the 
operation of the agency including all procurement policies that serve as a basis 
upon which procurement procedures can be developed. 

1. Procurement Responsibility 

a. Administrative Technician (AT) and Procurement 

The AT is responsible for maintaining all official contract files. 
The AT will be responsible for managing procurements and coordinating 
with the PM to ensure procurement files meet local, state, and federal 
requirements.   
The AT is responsible for updating these procurement procedures on an as-
needed basis. 

i. The AT shall ensure that a clear and accurate specification / scope 
of work is developed for each procurement. 

ii. The AT shall not recommend that NCTPANVTA enter into a contract 
unless the AT has ensured that all applicable requirements of federal 
law, federal regulations and circulars, California law, and all other 
applicable procedures have been met. 

iii. The AT shall ensure that contractors receive impartial, fair, and 
equitable treatment in accordance with the policies specified in this 
manual. 

iv. The AT is also responsible for such tasks as writing, preparing and 
assembling contract documents; obtaining necessary pre-solicitation 
approvals; advertising RFP's and IFB's, issuing amendments, 
obtaining post-bid opening approvals for award, conducting 
investigations of proposed Contractor's past performance, conducting 

101



 

5 

consultant selection meetings for negotiated contracts and conducting 
negotiations, consulting with Project Managers to monitor Contractor's 
performance, and managing termination for default or convenience 
procedures whenever the need arises. 

b. Project Manager (PM) and Procurement 

A Project Manager (PM) will be a duly appointed staff member directly 
responsible for the daily technical administration of a contract including 
monitoring the contractor in its performance of the contract and performing 
those functions as specified.  The PM should be a responsible individual 
assigned to and familiar with the procedures and requirements of 
NCTPANVTA, general project management principles and state and 
federal procurement requirements.  As such, the PM is the ED’s technical 
expert to assist in ensuring contractor compliance with technical 
requirements of the contract.  Normally, the PM approves or disapproves 
the technical acceptability and timeliness of the work completed and the 
invoices submitted by the contractor for payment.   

i. The PM or his/her designee shall be the primary agency employee   
to determine that contract prices are fair and reasonable. 

ii. The PM is responsible for soliciting bids and proposals directly or 
working with the AT on such solicitation; for serving as the 
chairperson of pre-bid and pre-proposal conferences, qualification 
hearings and proposal evaluation meetings; for conducting contract 
negotiation sessions; for managing the non-technical aspects of post 
award contract administration including negotiation of modifications, 
claims, and supplemental agreements; and for maintaining 
procurement files. 

i. The PM shall ensure that sufficient unencumbered funds are 
available for obligation for each contract. 

a. The PM shall develop a clear and accurate specification / 
scope of work for each procurement. 

b. The PM is also the person to whom reports of warranted 
equipment malfunctions or failures, or any problems with the 
contractor's performance are submitted.  The PM makes the 
initial request for contractor remedial action.  The ED/counsel 
becomes involved when and if the lapse constitutes a serious, 
i.e., repetitive, or unresolved, breach of contractor's civil or 
contractual responsibility. 

c. Should the contractor fail to respond in a timely or adequate 
manner to rectify any problem, the PM notifies the AT and 
ED/counsel that an apparent breach of the contract exists.  After 

102



 

6 

investigating the situation, the ED/counsel and PM take any 
steps necessary and available to enforce NCTPANVTA's rights 
under the contract.  This may include withholding payment, 
imposing liquidated damages, negotiation and recommending a 
settlement, terminating the contractor for default, or referring the 
matter for legal action. 

d. The PM also has the following duties in relation to the contract: 

i. Attends pre-bid and pre-proposal conferences as the 
technical expert; 

ii. Conducts investigations of proposed contractor's technical 
past performance; 

iii. Questions prospective contractors during clarifications and 
discussions as to their technical capability to perform the 
contract;  

iv. Assists the ED with contract negotiations;  

v. Ascertains the availability of funds prior to asking the ED to 
initiate the negotiation and approval process for change 
orders; 

vi. Contract modifications and supplemental agreements; and  

vii. Issues directions to correct or replace defective items of work. 

viii. Coordinates and communicates with AT and includes AT in 
necessary meetings, conferences, and written 
communications.  

2. Standards of Conduct and Conflict of Interest Policies 

All NCTPANVTA personnel involved in procurements will comply with NCTPANVTA’s 
procurement code of conduct as follows and any Code of Conduct or Conflict of Interest 
requirements set forth in applicable State or Federal law including but not limited to the 
requirements of 23 CFR 172.7 related to the award and administration of consultants 
acting in a management support role service contracts. described in the contract and 
procurement manual, available on NCTPANVTA’s website at nctpaNVTA.net. 

1. Award and Administration of Contracts: No Board Member, officer, employee 
or agent of NVTA shall participate in the selection, award or administration of a contract 
(including purchase orders) if a conflict of interest, real or apparent, would be involved.  
Such a conflict would arise if any prospective vendor or contractor (or any subcontractor) 
considered for an award is: 

 

103



 

7 

a. Board Member, officer, employee or agent; 
b. Any member of his/her immediate family; 
c. His/her domestic or business partner; 
d. An organization that employs any of the above, or with which any of them 

has an arrangement concerning prospective employment. 
 

No Board Member, officer, employee or agent of NVTA who participates in the 
procurement, management, or administration of contracts shall have, directly or 
indirectly, a financial or other personal interest in any contract made or influenced by 
him/her in his/her official capacity. 

No Board Member, officer, employee or agent of NVTA shall solicit or accept 
gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value from consultants, vendors, contractors, 
or potential consultants, or parties to sub-agreements in excess of the applicable gift limit 
established by the Fair Political Practices Commission (“FPPC”).  Gifts shall be reported 
consistent with FPPC requirements. 

 

No person or entity performing services on behalf of NVTA shall have, directly or 
indirectly, any financial or other personal interest, other than employment or retention by 
NVTA, in any contract or subcontract.  

 

Violations of these standards may result in sanctions, or other forms of discipline 
up to and including termination. 

 

2. Disciplinary Action: The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines 
consistent with the NVTA Personnel Policies that will insure uniform application of 
progressive discipline for NVTA employees subject to disciplinary action “for cause.”  The 
capitalized term “Employee” as used in Personnel Policies Chapter 2 Employment Status 
includes “Any person who occupies a position in the Agency service and receives 
compensation for services performed for the Agency.” 

 

Disciplinary Action for Cause:  Disciplinary action against a NVTA Employee shall 
be for cause, as it may affect work performance and effectiveness within the 
organization. 

 

Procedures: 

a. Oral Reprimand:  The Employee shall be counseled concerning the 

104



 

8 

unsatisfactory areas of conduct and shall be informed about methods of 
improvement, or the Executive Director may issue an oral reprimand.  The 
seriousness of the Employee’s conduct or offense will dictate whether oral or 
written reprimands or other corrective action is taken prior to initiating action to 
suspend or dismiss the Employee. 
 

b. Written Reprimand:  In cases where an oral reprimand has not been 
successful or where the infraction of rules and regulations or conduct has been of 
a more serious nature as determined by the Executive Director, the Executive 
Director may employ the written reprimand.  The purpose of the written reprimand 
is to call the attention of the Employee to serious defects in his/her conduct.  The 
written reprimand should include a detailed statement of the problem and a 
notation to the effect that the problem was discussed with the Employee.  Only 
the Executive Director may issue a written reprimand. 
 

c. Suspension with Pay:  For more severe violations or continued, uncorrected 
performance or misconduct problems, an employee may be suspended without 
pay. Where suspension without pay is recommended for a permanent employee, 
the employee will have the right to a Skelly meeting and a post-disciplinary appeal. 
 

d. Demotion:  The Agency may impose a demotion to a position having a lower 
salary range for disciplinary purposes. A disciplinary demotion may be utilized for 
continued, uncorrected performance deficiencies. Where demotion is 
recommended for a permanent employee, the employee will have the right to a 
Skelly meeting and a post-disciplinary appeal. 

 

e. Discharge:   Discharge will be considered for severe violations, failure to 
respond appropriately to prior performance improvement plans, and/or multiple 
disciplinary infractions in a short period of time. Where misconduct is severe and 
egregious, immediate discharge may be imposed. Where discharge has been 
recommended for a permanent employee, the employee will have the right to a 
Skelly meeting and a post-disciplinary appeal. The discharge will be documented 
in the personnel file. 

 

 Finally, NVTA employees, officers, and agents who are not subject to disciplinary 
action “for cause,” are covered by written “at-will” employment agreements or other 
contracts which allow for termination by NVTA for no reason or for any reason, including, 
but not limited to, violations of the standards set forth in this Section.  This policy is in 
addition to any discipline statutorily available for those participating in the selection, 
award or administration of a contract if a conflict of interest exists.  (Cal. Gov. Code, §§ 
81000-91014.) 

105



 

9 

 

3. Purchasing Policies 

a. Equal Employment Opportunity/Affirmative Action 

All procurement documents issued by NCTPANVTA require all interested 
vendors to certify:  

i. That the vendor does not discriminate against any employee or   
applicant for employment, because of race, religion, sex, age, creed, 
color, disability or national origin;  

ii. That the vendor is in compliance with all Executive Orders and          
federal, state and local laws regarding fair employment practices 
and non-discrimination in employment; and  

iii. That the vendor agrees to demonstrate positively and aggressively 
the principle of equal opportunity in employment. 

b. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 

Disadvantaged business enterprises (DBEs) as defined in 49 C.F.R. Part 
26 shall have the opportunity to compete fairly for contracts financed in 
whole or in part with Federal funds.  Accordingly, all NCTPANVTA 
procurements funded with Federal funds may include, as appropriate, the 
use of goals for the procurement of all classes of goods and services, as 
set forth in NCTPANVTA’s DBE program. 

At the time the procurement takes place, the PM will coordinate with 
NCTPANVTA’s DBE Liaison Officer for the effective tracking of DBE 
information as it relates to NCTPANVTA’s DBE program, goals and 
reporting. 

c. Cooperative Procurement  

When circumstances warrant, NCTPANVTA may attempt to fill 
requirements through a cooperative purchasing agreement (without 
independent bids or quotations) with the State of California, or with other 
appropriate public agencies.  In such cases, NCTPANVTA will ensure all 
state and federal requirements are met. 

d. Open Competition Required.   

All procurement transactions will be conducted in a manner providing full 
and open competition.  Some of the situations considered to be restrictive 
of competition include, but are not limited to: 

106



 

10 

i. Unreasonable requirements placed on firms in order for them to  
qualify to do business; 

ii.   Unnecessary experience and excessive bonding requirements; 

iii. Noncompetitive pricing practices between firms or between  
affiliated companies; 

iv. Noncompetitive award to any person or firm on retainer contracts; 

v. Organizational conflicts of interest.  An organizational conflict of 
interest means that because of other activities, relationships, or 
contracts, a contractor is unable or potentially unable, to render 
impartial assistance or advice to NCTPANVTA; a contractor’s 
objectivity in performing the contract work is or might be otherwise 
impaired; or a contractor has an unfair competitive advantage. 

vi. The specification of only a brand name product without listing its 
salient characteristics and not allowing an equal product to be offered; 

vii. Exclusionary or discriminatory specifications; and  

viii. Any arbitrary action in the procurement process. 

4. Public Records Act 

All bids and proposals received become the exclusive property of 
NCTPANVTA.  At such time as a contract award is recommended to the 
NCTPANVTA Board of Directors, all bids and proposals become a matter 
of public record and shall be regarded as public records, with the exception 
of those elements in each proposal which are trade secrets as that term is 
defined in California Government Code 6254.7 and which are so marked as 
“TRADE SECRET,” “CONFIDENTIAL” OR “PROPRIETARY.”  
NCTPANVTA shall not in any way be liable or responsible for the disclosure 
of any such records or portions thereof, including, with limitation, those so 
marked if disclosure is deemed required by law or by an order of a court.  
Bids or proposals that indiscriminately identify all or most of the bid or 
proposal as exempt from disclosure without justification may be found 
technically unacceptable. 

D. Procedures 

1. Independent Cost Estimate 

An independent cost estimate (ICE) shall be performed on all FTA, state, 
local and general funded procurements prior to receiving bids or proposals. 
The process for obtaining a cost estimate will depend on the type of 
procurement being pursued. For example, a cost estimate for a micro 

107



 

11 

purchase (see explanation below) may only involve phone calls to obtain 
price quotes; while a cost estimate for the procurement of a commuter bus 
would require a more involved process to assess the market and to develop 
a reasonably accurate estimate.  The cost required to research and prepare 
the estimate should not outweigh the potential benefits of the estimate.  An 
ICE can be obtained from different sources including the following: 

• Published competitive prices 

• Results of competitive procurements 

• Estimates by in-house estimators 

• Outside estimators 

The ICE will be included in the procurement records.  All construction bids 
will require an engineering estimate as part of the plans, specifications and 
engineering phase of the project. 

2. Excluded Parties List 

Any procurement, contract or vendor contract exceeding $25,000 is subject 
to the federal Excluded Parties List (EPLS/SAM). 

After all qualified bids or quotes have been opened the EPLS/SAM 
database must be referenced, which contains all businesses that have been 
barred or suspended from receiving federal funds or participating in federal 
contracts.  The AT will perform an EPLS/SAM business name search on 
each of the businesses for specific procurements.  The AT will perform the 
EPLS/SAM search for procurements in which federal transit funding will be 
utilized. 

i. If a business reference returns a positive listing on the EPLS/SAM, a 
printout of the web page will be included in the procurement file, while a 
second copy will be forwarded to the bidding business with a notice that 
they have been removed from consideration in the procurement. 

ii. If the EPSL/SAM search returns no listing on a specific business, a copy 
of the web page, showing the negative return, will be made and included 
in the procurement file. 

3. Business References 

a. CA Secretary of State Business Entity Search 

Prior to final award or completion of a draft contract (pre-counsel 
review), the AT will perform a Business Entity search on the California 
Secretary of State’s website (http://kepler.sos.ca.gov/ in 2013), to 

108

http://kepler.sos.ca.gov/


 

12 

confirm the business is registered to do business in the State of 
California. 

i. If the business is not listed on the Secretary of State’s website, a 
business representative will be notified of their status and be 
provided 30 calendar days to either correct the listing, or provide 
documentation that they have submitted an application to the 
Secretary of State and are pending approval. 

ii. If the business is registered in the State of California as a legal 
business, a copy of the web page listing will be included in the 
procurement file.  If the procurement requires any kind of contract 
with NCTPANVTA, a second copy will be included with the contract 
documents prior to them being forwarded to NCTPANVTA Attorney 
for final review prior to award. 

b. Business License Reference 

Prior to final award or completion of a draft contract (counsel review), 
the AT will contact NCTPANVTA’s Finance Department (FD) to confirm 
that the business has a valid business license. 

i. If the business has a valid license, a license number will be recorded 
in the procurement file and, if a contract, will be forwarded to counsel 
with the draft contract. 

ii. If the business does not have a valid business license, they will be 
referred to the FD to discuss their services and the process for 
obtaining a license. 

4. Reasonableness of Price – Price Analysis or Cost Analysis 

In all FTA, state, local, and general funded procurements, a price analysis 
or cost analysis shall be used to determine the reasonableness of the bid 
price.  A price analysis will normally be used to evaluate reasonableness.  
However, if a valid price analysis cannot be completed, a cost analysis of a 
bid price may be conducted. 

a. Price Analysis  

“Price analysis” is the process of examining and evaluating a 
prospective price without evaluation of the separate cost elements or 
proposed profit of the prospective supplier. 

Normally, price analysis may be accomplished through one or more of 
the following activities: 

i. Comparison of prices received in a bidding situation; 

109



 

13 

ii. The comparison of prior quotations and contract prices with current 
quotations for the same or similar end items (to provide a suitable 
basis for comparison, appropriate allowances must be made for 
differences in such factors as specifications, quantities ordered, time 
for delivery, etc.); 

iii. The use of "yardsticks" (such as dollars per pound, per horsepower, 
or other units) to point out apparent gross inconsistencies which 
should be subjected to greater pricing inquiry; 

iv. The comparison of prices set forth in published price lists issued on 
a competitive basis, published market prices of commodities, and 
similar indicators, with discount or rebate arrangements; 

v. The comparison of proposed prices with estimates of cost 
independently developed by personnel within NCTPANVTA; or, 

vi. The comparison of prices paid by other users (government or 
commercial) of the same or similar items to the proposed prices. 

b. Cost Analysis  

“Cost analysis” is the review and analysis of a contractor's cost or pricing 
data and of the factors applied in projection from the data to the 
estimated costs in order to form an opinion on the degree to which the 
contractor's proposed costs represent the cost of performance of the 
contract, assuming reasonable economy and efficiency. 

As compared to price analysis, cost analysis involves a more detailed 
review of the contractor’s/offeror's proposal. 

Normally, cost analysis may be accomplished through the following: 

i.  Verify contractor's cost data. 

ii. Evaluate specific elements of costs and project these elements to  
determine the effect on prices of such factors as: 

(i)   The necessity for certain costs; 

(ii) The reasonableness of amounts estimated for the necessary   
costs; 

(iii) Allowances for contingencies; and 

(iv) The basis used for allocations of particular overhead costs to the 
proposed contract. 

110



 

14 

iii. When the necessary data is available, compare the contractor's  
estimated cost with: 

(i)   Actual costs previously incurred by the contractor; 

(ii) The contractor's last prior cost estimate for the same or similar 
estimates; 

(iii) Current cost estimates from other possible sources; and 

(iv) Prior estimates or historical costs of other contractors 
manufacturing the same or similar items. 

iv. Forecasting future trends in costs from historical experience: 

(i) In periods of either rising or declining costs, an adequate cost 
analysis must include some evaluation of the trends. 

(ii) In cases involving recently developed, complex equipment, even 
in periods of relative price stability, trend analysis of basic labor 
and materials costs should be undertaken. 

In performing a cost analysis, there are three questions that should be 
asked in the examination of costs, particularly those in the overhead area:   

i. Is the cost allowable in accordance with guidelines in Section 31 of the 
Federal Acquisition Regulations (FAR)(2)? 

ii. Is the cost allocable to the particular project? 

iii. Is the cost reasonable? 

If only one bid is received, the sole bidder must cooperate with 
NCTPANVTA as necessary in order for its bid to be considered for award.  
A new solicitation of bids may be made if the single bid price appears 
unreasonable or if no determination is made as to the reasonableness of 
the single bid. 

5. Best Value 

"Best Value" is a selection process in which proposals contain both price 
and qualitative components, and award is based upon a combination of 
price and qualitative considerations. Qualitative considerations may include 
technical design, technical approach, quality of proposed personnel, and/or 
management plan. The award selection is based upon consideration of a 
combination of technical and price factors to determine (or derive) the offer 
deemed most advantageous and of the greatest value to the agency. 

111



 

15 

6. Tag-ons 

 “Tag-on” is defined as the addition of work (supplies, equipment or 
services) that is beyond the scope of the original contract that amounts to a 
cardinal change.  “In scope” changes are not tag-ons. 

The use of tag-ons is prohibited and applies to the original buyer as well as 
to others. 

7. Piggybacking 

"Piggybacking" is an assignment of existing contract rights to purchase 
supplies, equipment, or services. 

Piggybacking is permissible when the solicitation document and resultant 
contract contain an assignability clause that provides for the assignment of 
all or a portion of the specified deliverables as originally advertised, 
competed, evaluated, and awarded. If the supplies were solicited, 
competed and awarded through the use of an Indefinite Delivery Indefinite 
Quantity (IDIQ) contract, then both the solicitation and contract award must 
contain both a minimum and maximum quantity that represent the 
reasonably foreseeable needs of the party(s) to the solicitation and contract. 
If two or more parties jointly solicit and award an IDIQ contract, then there 
must be a total minimum and maximum.  Piggy-backing requires pre 
approval of an assignment by NVTA and approval of the contractor or 
consultatconsultant.  

8. # Shared Services 

Any Member Agency may utilize an NVTA contract for supplies or services 
subject to the following requirements.   

a. The Master Contract between NVTA and the contractor or 
consultant must be final and effective for the term required. 

b. The Master Contract must provide that Member Agencies may 
individually contract for the supplies or services covered by the 
agreement directly with the Contractor or Consultant.  

c. NVTA shall enter into an agreement with the Member Agency for 
shared services. 

1. Member Agencies utilizing shared services must agree to 
indemnify and defend NVTA for all liability resulting from the  
use of a Master Agreement or as a result of any supplies or 
services contracted for by the Member Agency.  NVTA will not 
be a party to the Sub-Agreement. 

112



 

16 

d. The Member Agency must complete the Member Agency Sub-
Agreement with the Contractor or Consultant.  

1. Sub-Agreements may allow for Member Agencies to include 
additional insurance requirements or require a scope of work 
be attached to the MemberParticipating Agency Sub-
Agreement.  

2. The Sub-Agreement must be signed by the Member Agency 
authorized signatory and by the Contractor or Consultant.  
Member Agencies shall work directly with the Contractor or 
Consultant to negotiate and finalize scope, pricing, and billing 
and terms of service.  

 

8.9. Use of Brand Name 

When it is impractical or uneconomical to make a clear and accurate 
description of the technical requirements, a “brand name or equal” 
description may be used as a means to define the performance or other 
salient characteristics of procurement. The specific features of the named 
brand which must be met by offerors shall be clearly stated. 

9.10. Options  

NCTPANVTA may include options in contracts. An option is a unilateral right 
in a contract by which, for a specified time, a grantee may elect to purchase 
additional equipment, supplies, or services called for by the contract, or may 
elect to extend the term of the contract. If NCTPANVTA chooses to use 
options, the requirements below apply: 

a. Evaluation of Options  

The option quantities or periods contained in the contractor's bid or offer 
must be evaluated in order to determine contract award. When options 
have not been evaluated as part of the award, the exercise of such 
options will be considered sole source procurement. 

b. Exercise of Options 

i. NCTPANVTA must ensure that the exercise of an option is in 
accordance with the terms and conditions of the option stated in the 
initial contract awarded. 

ii. An option may not be exercised unless NCTPANVTA has 
determined that the option price is better than prices available in the 

113



 

17 

market or that the option is the more advantageous offer at the time 
the option is exercised. 

iii. Options must be evaluated at the time of the original bid, and the cost 
basis for exercising the option must be established at the time of the 
bid. 

iv. Option prices and/or conditions cannot be negotiated at the time of  
the exercise of an option. 

10.11. Advance Payments 

NCTPANVTA does not authorize and will not participate in funding 
payments to a contractor prior to the incurrence of costs except as allowed 
by FTA requirements.  There is no prohibition on NCTPANVTA’s use of 
local match funds for advance payments. However, advance payments 
made with local funds before a grant has been awarded, or before the 
issuance of a letter of no prejudice or other pre-award authority, are 
ineligible for reimbursement. 

11.12. Progress Payments 

NCTPANVTA may use progress payments provided the following 
requirements are followed: 

a. Progress payments are only made to the contractor for costs incurred 
in the performance of the contract. 

b. NCTPANVTA must obtain adequate security for progress payments. 
Adequate security may include taking title, letter of credit or equivalent 
means to protect NCTPANVTA’s interest in the progress payment. 

12.13. Procurement by Micro-Purchases  

Purchases below $3,000 may be made without obtaining competitive 
quotations if it is determined by the PM that the price is fair and reasonable.  
The PM will document how this determination was derived.  The Davis-
Bacon Act applies to public works/construction contracts exceeding $2,000. 

13.14. Small Purchases 

For goods and other professional services procurements between $3,000 
and $100,000, insofar as is practical, no less than three bids shall be 
solicited.  Oral quotes will be accepted with written confirmation received in 
24 hours.  The responsibility for soliciting quotations rests with the PM.  
Appropriate documentation, including but not limited to a list of the vendors 
contacted, a fair and reasonable price determination and the quotes 
received, shall be filed with the project documentation. 

114



 

18 

14.15. Construction and Major Capital Purchases exceeding $4,000 

a. Major FTA-funded capital projects must further follow FTA’s 
Construction and Project Management Guidelines:  
http://www.fta.dot.gov/FTA_Project_and_CM_Guidelines_-
_July_2011_Update_12-01-26.pdf 

https://www.transit.dot.gov/funding/procurement/fta-project-and-
construction-management-guidelines-2016 

a.b. Major FHWA/State-funded projects must further follow Caltrans’ 
Local Assistance Guidelines: 
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LocalPrograms/lam/prog_g/complete-2013-
13-02.pdf 

http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LocalPrograms/lam/lapm.htm 

b.c. Additional references and procedures can also be found at:   

Caltrans Construction Manual (July 2017Oct 2013) 

http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/construc/constmanual/construction_manual.pdf 

http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/construc/constmanual/ 

 

Construction Contract Standards 

http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/esc/oe/construction_standards.html 

Caltrans Engineering Guidelines, Manuals and Training 

http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/esc/oe/guidance.html 

E. Competitive Procurement Process  

The procurement files will contain an explanation for the choice of the  
procurement process being used. 

1. Invitation for Bids (IFB) 

The AT will work through the ED/PM and counsel for the release of all  

a. RFPs for goods and service;   
b. releaseRelease of professional service contracts; and 
c. capitalCapital projects. 

 

115

http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LocalPrograms/lam/lapm.htm
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/construc/constmanual/
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/esc/oe/construction_standards.html
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/esc/oe/guidance.html


 

19 

NCTPANVTA procurement procedures and FTA guidance will be followed 
for IFB procurements.  

2. Recording of Bids 

To assist in having a complete record of the procurement history, for all IFBs 
records of the bid number, bid opening date and time, general description 
of the procurement item, names of bidders, prices bid, and any other 
information required for bid evaluation, shall be kept in the official 
procurement file and be available for public inspection.  When the items are 
too numerous to warrant the recording of all bids completely, an entry shall 
be made of the invitation number, opening date and time, general 
description of the procurement items, and the total price bid where definite 
quantities are involved. 

The official record shall be completed as soon as practical after bids have 
been opened and read aloud. AT shall be responsible for maintaining files 
of these records and abstracts for goods and service, professional services, 
and capital projects.    

3. Tabulation of Bids 

Bids shall be evaluated on the basis of responsiveness and responsibility 
indicated in the IFB. Award shall be made to the bidder submitting the 
lowest bid, unless NCTPANVTA determines that the bid is not responsive 
and/or the bidder is found to be not responsible. 

4. Analysis of Limited Bid Response 

If one (1) bid has been received, the PM or AT will contact vendors to 
determine reasons for the single bids.  The purpose of this examination is 
to ascertain and document the reason for the single bid. If the determination 
is that the IFB restricted competition, the procurement may be rebid.  A price 
or cost analysis shall be performed to establish the reasonableness of the 
bid price before an award is made. 

5. Determination of Responsiveness 

a. Any bid which fails to conform to the essential requirements of the 
invitation for bids, such as specifications, delivery schedule, warranty, 
or the required bid documents, shall be rejected as non-responsive.  

b. The originals of all rejected bids, and any written findings with respect to 
such rejections, shall be preserved in the file relating to the procurement.  

6. Responsible Bidder Evaluation 

Before awarding the contract, NCTPANVTA shall determine that a 
prospective contractor is responsible and that prices are reasonable.  

116



 

20 

Bidders may be asked to provide any information required to determine the 
responsibility of the bidder.  A responsible bidder is one who meets the 
standards set forth below: 

a. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such 
resources as required during performance of the contract. 

b. Is able to comply with the required or proposed delivery or performance 
schedule, taking into consideration all existing business commitments. 

c. Has a satisfactory record of performance.  Contractors who are, or have 
been seriously deficient in current or recent contract performance, when 
the number of contracts and the extent of deficiency of each are 
considered, may be considered to be non-responsible bidders. 
Documented past unsatisfactory performance will ordinarily be sufficient 
to justify a finding of non-responsibility. 

d. Is otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award under applicable 
laws and regulations. 

e. Has the necessary organization, experience, operational controls, and 
technical skills, or the ability to obtain them. 

f. Has the necessary production, construction, and technical equipment 
and facilities, or the ability to obtain them. 

Evaluation of the responsibility of prospective contractors may be made 
based upon the following sources: 

i. A list of debarred, suspended or ineligible firms or individuals. 

ii. From the prospective contractor's bids and proposals, replies to 
questionnaires, financial data such as balance sheets, profits and 
loss statements, cash forecasts, and financial histories of the 
contractor and affiliated concerns; current and past production 
records, list of tools, equipment, and facilities, written statements or 
commitments concerning financial assistance and subcontracting 
arrangements. 

iii. Publications, including credit ratings, trade and financial journals, 
and business directories and registers may also be used. 

iv. References such as suppliers, subcontractors, customers of the 
prospective contractor, banks and financial institutions, commercial 
credit agencies, other government agencies, purchasing and trade 
associations, and better business bureaus and chamber of 
commerce. 

117



 

21 

v. Documented past performance on contracts with NCTPANVTA. 

The procurement files will document the determination of responsive and 
responsible bidders. 

7. Rejection of Individual Bids 

Any bid that fails to conform to the essential requirements of the invitation 
for bids, such as specifications, delivery schedule, warranty, or the required 
bid documents, shall be rejected as non-responsive.  

8. Award of the Contract 

Unless all bids are rejected, award shall be by written or electronic notice, 
within the time for acceptance specified in the bid or extension thereof, to 
the responsible and responsive bidder whose bid, conforming to all the 
material terms and conditions of the IFB, is the lowest in price. 

When award is made to other than the lowest bidder, NCTPANVTA will 
document in the procurement files the reason for not choosing the lowest 
bid. 

9. Project Completion 

All original documentation related to each procurement such as the IFB, bid, 
control record, board report, ICE, background data, evaluation criteria and 
scores, meeting reports/notes, as well as the logs documenting bid opening 
dates and bid receipt dates will be submitted to the AT for storage when the 
file becomes inactive.  For audit purposes, complete procurement files will 
be maintained for a minimum of five (5) years after the project is closed out 
and completed unless a different time period is mandated by a funding 
entity. 

10. Request for QualificationsProposals (RFQP) / Request for 
ProposalsQualifications (RFPQ) 

The Request for Proposals (RFP)/Request for Qualifications (RFQ) 
competitive procurement process is used when conditions are not 
appropriate for the use of an IFB.  The latter is generally the case in the 
purchase of services such as lease agreements, maintenance and service 
contracts, rental contracts, and professional service contracts. The 
RFP/RFQRFQ/RFP process for goods and services is coordinated by the 
AT and managed by the PM.  The RFP/RFQRFQ/RFP process for 
professional services is managed by the PM and the PM shall consult the 
latest federal and state procedures for the procurement process. 

The RFP/RFQRFQ/RFP process is a competitive negotiated procurement 
process that requires evaluation of offeror’s proposed costs and 

118



 

22 

understanding of the contract performance requirements in accordance with 
established evaluation criteria.  The competitive negotiated procurement 
process does not require award to the lowest offeror.   

a. Pre-qualified Contractor Lists 

 

NVTA may issue a RFQ or RFP in order to create a pool of qualified consultants that will 
be placed on a “pre-qualified list” for future services or consulting contracts with NVTA.  
Pre-qualified consultant lists shall not be utilized for any contract subject to award to the 
lowest responsible bidder pursuant to State law.  Pre-qualified consultants will remain 
eligible for consideration and contract negotiation on an as-needed basis for three years 
from the pre-qualification notification date.  This date may be extended by NVTA in its 
sole and absolute discretion for an additional two years for a total of five years.  Pre-
qualified consultants are not guaranteed a contract.  NVTA reserves the right, in its sole 
discretion, to utilize other authorized procurement methods for services or consulting 
contracts and to not use the pre-qualified list process. 
 

NVTA may make lists of prequalified consultants available for use by it’sits 
Member Agencies.  Member Agencies should check with  thewith the 
NVTA Contract Manager to determine if pre-qualified lists are available.   
Each Member Agency must enter into an agreement with NVTA prior to 
utilizing a prequalified list that indemnifies NVTA for any liability resulting 
from the use of the prequalified list or as a result of any contract between 
a Member Agency and a pre-qualified consultant.  

 
Each Member Agency may issue a Request for Proposals to consultants 
on the pre-qualified list, reflecting the Member Agency’s individual 
contracting requirements and Scope of Work.  Member Agencies are 
responsible for ensuring that the competitive process and any resulting 
contract meets all applicable state, local and federal requirements.  
Member Agencies will be responsible for processing and negotiating their 
RFP and any resulting contract award.  NVTA will not be a party to any 
contract between a Member Agency and a pre-qualified consultant.   

 

 

a.b. Issuance of RFQP and RFPQ Packet 

The RFP/RFQRFQ/RFP packet will include the following: 

119



 

23 

i. Instructions To Proposers - General instructions concerning the 
proposal format, pre-contractual expenses, contract conditions, pre-
proposal conferences, and other information. 

ii. Attachments - Required forms to be completed by the proposer and 
submitted with the proposal. 

iii. Exhibits - These can be documents which display key facts, 
specifications, maps, report formats, and other important information 
to clearly define the goods or services needed in order for the 
proposers to properly respond to the RFP/RFQRFQ/RFP. 

iv. Scope of Work - Each RFP/RFQRFQ/RFP will contain a statement 
or scope of work prepared by the PM which provides a clear and 
accurate description of the technical requirements for the materials, 
products, or services being produced.  A statement or scope of work 
should only state the actual minimum needs of NCTPANVTA, and 
be developed in a manner designed to promote full and open 
competition.  At a minimum, the statement or scope of work should 
address the following areas: 

(i)  A detailed description of the work to be performed outlining 
various tasks or phases to be performed, and defining the limits 
of the proposed project; 

(ii) A requirement for periodic reporting or progress on the project  if 
the procurement involves consultant or professional services; 

(iii) A proposed delivery schedule; and, 

(iv) A proposed contract period. 

v. Evaluation Criteria – Each RFP/RFQRFQ/RFP will contain the 
criteria and method that will be used to select the successful 
proposer.  If the selection is to be made by lowest price, that will be 
stated in the solicitation documentation.  If the selection process will 
be a “best value” determination, the solicitation will state so and the 
relative significance of each criteria will also be included in the 
solicitation document.  

  (i) Evaluation criteria will be developed and fully modeled prior to 
the release of the RFP, along with the development of any 
scoring methodology/forms to be used by the evaluation panel.  
Any consideration of price in the criteria will include separate 
evaluation for operations and maintenance (O&M) costs, and 
capital/procurement costs, placing emphasis on the impact of 
O&M costs to NCTPANVTA. 

120



 

24 

b.c. Control Record 

A control record will be maintained by the AT in the procurement file as 
RFP packets are distributed to prospective bidders.  The control record 
profiles the following information: 

i. Date and time RFP/RFQRFQ/RFP packets are distributed. 

ii. Names and addresses of vendors receiving the RFP/RFQRFQ/RFP 
and if applicable vendors attending a pre-proposal conference. 

The control record serves as a mailing list for the issuance of addenda 
and provides a record for verification in cases of vendor protests and 
other issues. 

c.d. Pre-Proposal Conference 

A pre-proposal conference may be used as a means of briefing 
prospective proposers and explaining complicated specifications and 
requirements to them as early as possible after the RFP/RFQRFQ/RFP 
has been issued and before the proposals are received.  Any information 
distributed at the pre-proposal conference will be made available to all 
other prospective proposers in a reasonable time prior to the closing of 
the bid period, and a copy will be maintained in the procurement file.  A 
roster of attendees at the pre-proposal conference will also be 
maintained in the procurement file as part of the control record.  
NCTPANVTA will never require vendor attendance at a pre-proposal 
conference as eligibility for submitting a qualified proposal. 

d.e. Evaluation and Selection Process 

Proposals submitted in response to the RFP/RFQRFQ/RFP will be 
evaluated by an Evaluation Committee established by NCTPANVTA, in 
accordance with the criteria set forth in the RFP/RFQRFQ/RFP.  The 
Evaluation Committee shall score the proposals and make a 
recommendation for award of the contract.  Original scoring forms, or 
summary records of the Evaluation Committee scoring, will be 
maintained in the procurement file. 

11. Architectural / Engineering Services Request for Qualifications 

The Architectural/Engineering RFQ/RFP process or the RFQ qualifications-
based process will be used for the procurement of architectural and 
engineering (A/E) services and related services such as program 
management, construction management, feasibility studies, preliminary 
engineering, design, surveying, mapping, or related services.  

121



 

25 

Following this method, competitors' qualifications are evaluated and the 
most qualified competitor is selected subject to negotiation of fair and 
reasonable compensation.  Under this method, NCTPANVTA may not 
consider price as an evaluation factor in determining the most qualified 
offeror.  Negotiation is conducted with only the most qualified offeror.  This 
method, where price cannot be used as an evaluation factor and 
negotiations are conducted with only the most qualified offeror, can only be 
used in procurement of the above services.  This method of procurement 
cannot be used to obtain other types of services even through a firm that 
provides the above types of services are also potential sources to perform 
other services. 

a. Issuance of an “A/E” RFQ  

A notice of an RFQ will be prepared by the AT and will be advertised as 
a public notice in a newspaper of general circulation and/or in an 
electronic format on a website that is accessible by the public and 
vendor community.  Additional sources for posting the A/E RFP may 
include national and state print or online transit community publications. 

b. Pre-proposal Conference 

A pre-proposal conference may be used as a means of briefing 
prospective proposers and explaining complicated specifications and 
requirements to them as early as possible after the RFQ has been 
issued and before the proposals are received. Any information 
distributed at the pre-proposal conference will be made available to all 
other prospective proposers in a reasonable time prior to the closing of 
the bid period, and a copy will be maintained in the procurement file.  A 
roster of attendees at the pre-proposal conference will also be 
maintained in the procurement file.  NCTPANVTA will require vendor 
attendance at a pre-proposal conference. 

c. Evaluation and Contract Negotiation 

The steps to be used for proposal evaluation and contract negotiation 
for A/E and related services solicitations are as follows: 

i. A qualified evaluation committee shall be established by the PM to 
review eligible firms and all responses to a RFQ.  The evaluation 
committee is briefed by the PM on NCTPANVTA procedures and   
instructed to maintain confidentiality about the proposal evaluation 
process. 

ii. Evaluation Committee evaluates the firms based on: 

(A) Professional qualifications for performance of the required 
services; 

122



 

26 

(B) Specialized experience and technical competence in the type 
work required; 

(C) Capacity to accomplish the work in the required time; and, 

(D) Past performance in terms of cost control, quality of work and  
compliance with performance schedules. 

iii. Evaluation team ranks the proposers and if necessary holds 
discussions with the most highly qualified firms ("short list"). 

iv. Evaluation team prepares a selection report listing in order of 
preference, those firms that are considered to be the most highly 
qualified to perform the required services.  The report should include 
a description of the discussions and evaluations by the team to allow 
the review of the basis upon which the recommendations were made.   
A copy of the selection report will be maintained in the procurement 
file. 

v. The final selection shall be made by the PM or ED. 

12. Sole Source Procurements 

Sole source procurement is a purchase accomplished through solicitation 
or acceptance of a proposal from only one source; or, if after solicitation of 
a number of sources competition is determined inadequate.  A sole source 
purchase must be documented as to the reasons why only one supplier is 
acceptable.   

Sole source procurement may be used only when the award of a contract 
is infeasible under small purchase procedures, sealed bids, or competitive 
proposals and at least one of the following circumstances applies: 

a. The item is available only from a single source; 

b. The public exigency or emergency (i.e., a threat to public health, welfare, 
safety, property or other substantial loss to NCTPANVTA, or a situation 
requiring immediate action by NCTPANVTA, as determined by 
NCTPANVTA) for the requirement will not permit a delay resulting from 
competitive solicitation; 

c. FTA authorizes noncompetitive negotiations; 

d. After solicitation of a number of sources, competition is determined 
inadequate; or 

e. The item is an associated capital maintenance item as defined in 49 
U.S.C. § 5307(a)(1) that is procured directly from the original 

123



 

27 

manufacturer or supplier of the item to be replaced.  The grantee must 
first certify in writing to FTA:  

i. That such manufacturer or supplier is the only source for such item; 
and  

ii. that the price of such item is not higher than the price for such item 
by like customers. 

A cost analysis must be conducted before an award of sole source contract. 

The reasons for the sole source procurement and the cost analysis will be 
documented in the Procurement File. 

13. Emergency Procurements 

Emergency procurements (defined as purchases immediately necessary for 
the preservation of life or property, or to prevent an immediate termination 
of a critical NCTPANVTA function or activity) will be handled immediately 
and expedited as required.  The ED has the authority to approve the 
purchase of all goods and services in emergency conditions.  If the ED is 
unavailable to authorize an emergency procurement, the ED  may provide 
the PM with the necessary authorization.  Upon completion of the 
emergency procurement, the PM will document the actions taken and 
execute a proper requisition. 

14. Vendor Protest Procedures 

Protest procedures will be included directly or by reference in all  
procurements.  For procurements under $100,000 vendors need to be 
directed to NCTPANVTA’s website where a copy of the protest procedures 
can be obtained.  For procurements over $100,000 the protest procedures 
will be included in the procurement solicitation.  

a. NCTPANVTA Protest Procedures 

A protest must be submitted by an Interested Party no later than 7 
business days prior to the date and time designated for submittal of bids 
or proposals or within 5 business days after the allegedly aggrieved 
person or party is notified of the intent to award or recommend award of 
the contract. If the fifth day falls on a Saturday, Sunday or holiday it shall 
be submitted by 5:00 p.m. the following business day.  All protests must 
be in writing and shall contain the following: 
 
• the procurement title and/or number under which the protest is made; 
• the name and address of the allegedly aggrieved party; 
• a detailed description of the specific grounds for the protest and all 

supporting documentation; 

124



 

28 

• the specific ruling or relief requested; and 
• the written protest shall be addressed to Executive Director, 

NCTPANVTA,   625 Burnell Street, Napa, CA  94559 with copies 
sent to all other bidders. 

 
1) Response to Protest. 

 
i.  Upon receipt of a timely written protest, the ED will consider the 

protest in accordance with established procedures and promptly 
issue a written decision stating the reasons for the action taken 
and informing the allegedly aggrieved person of his/her right to 
appeal the decision to the Chairman of the Board. 

 
ii.  The decision made by the ED shall be final and conclusive unless 

appealed in writing to the Board Chair within 5 business days of 
receipt by the protestor. The Board Chair will consider the appeal 
and promptly issue a written decision, which shall be final and 
conclusive. 

 
iii.  A Protestor may not commence litigation prior to exhausting all 

administrative remedies. Failure to exhaust all administrative 
remedies shall constitute an absolute waiver of the protestor's 
right, if any, to commence litigation. 

 
iv. Failure to comply with these protests and appeal requirements 

will render a protest or an appeal untimely or inadequate and may 
result in its rejection by NCTPANVTA. 

 
v. After the exhaustion of all administrative remedies, the protestor 

shall have 10 calendar days to commence litigation. Failure to 
commence litigation within this limitation shall constitute an 
absolute waiver of the protestor's right. State laws permit 
NCTPANVTA to award and execute the Contract during this 10-
day period. 

 
vi. Public Work/Construction Contracts.  For construction contracts 

awarded by the NCTPANVTA Board, the protesting party may 
appear and be heard at the meeting during which the contract is 
scheduled for award.  In the event a protesting party has been 
declared non-responsible, the protesting party is entitled to a 
public hearing before the Board. 

 
b. FTA Appeals 

(Only if Federal funds are used in the procurement) 

125



 

29 

i. A protestor adversely affected by a decision of NCTPANVTA may 
submit a protest to the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) in 
accordance with the provisions of FTA Circular 4220.1(F) or its 
successors,  

ii. Under the provision of the FTA Circular, FTA will only review protests 
regarding:  

(i)  The alleged failure of NCTPANVTA to have written protest 
procedures or the alleged failure to have followed such protest 
procedures;  

(ii) The alleged failure to review a complaint or protest; or,  

(iii)  Alleged violations of federal law or regulation.  

iii. In accordance with the FTA Circular, such protest must be filed no 
later than five (5) days after the protestor knew or should have known 
of NCTPANVTA’s alleged failure listed above. 

iv. NCTPANVTA may proceed with procurement in spite of a pending 
protest to the FTA under the following conditions: 

(i)   The items to be procured are urgently required; 

(ii) Delivery or performance will be unduly delayed by failure to  
make the award promptly; or, 

Failure to make prompt award will otherwise cause undue harm to NCTPANVTA or the 
Federal Government. 

  

126



 

30 

CHAPTER 4   CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION 

F. Contract Administration Guidelines 

1. NCTPANVTA will originate the agreement. 

2. Once a contract has been fully executed, a Notice to Proceed will be issued 
to initiate contract work. 

3. All agreements will be assigned a contract number, which must be referred 
to on all orders and the contractor’s invoices. 
 

4. PM, ED and FD will approve all invoices before payment is issued. 
 

5. For each contract over $100,000 a contracting administrator will be 
assigned to monitor contract terms and conditions.  The contract 
administrator and the project manager should not be the same individual. 
 

6. A contract amendment is necessary for a change in scope of work, term or 
compensation and must be completed before additional work or payment is 
authorized. 
 

7. A copy of the procurement document must be included with the contract 
files, including an explanation of the process used in procuring the goods or 
services. 
 

8. The ED/PM will prepare a letter of completion for the NCTPANVTA Board 
of Director’s approval and recorded with the Napa County Recorder’s 
office. 

G. FTA Federal Procurement Requirements 

FTA procurement requirements are set forth in FTA Circular 4220.1(F) and it 
successors.  NCTPANVTA will comply with all requirements and used the 
Circular as a supplement to these procedures.  

When FTA issues new requirements, they will be incorporated into 
NCTPANVTA’s procurement procedures.  Additionally, each year when 
NCTPANVTA signs its Annual Certification and Assurances, it will review the 
FTA website to determine if changes need to be made to any of the procurement 
policies or procedures.  Also, NCTPANVTA will review FTA’s list of required 
clauses, which should be in the triennial review handbook on the web site, to 
update the clauses used by NCTPANVTA.  A list of the clauses as of October 
1, 2012 is included in Appendix A. 

127



 

31 

  

APPENDIX LIST 

A. FTA Required Model Clauses 

B. Determination of Price Reasonableness 

C. Procurement File Checklist 

D. Procurement Documentation Checklist 

  

128



 

32 

APPENDIX A:  FTA & FHWA Required Clauses 

The FTA requires certain contract provisions for each procurement depending on the 
nature, type and value of the procurement.  As the federal government makes regular 
updates to procurement guidelines and the clauses required in such, the ASO AT will 
reference the required clauses tables provided by the FTA either through the Best 
Practices Procurement Manual (BPPM) or the Triennial Review Program latest workshop 
workbook available through the FTA website. 

Updated: April 2014 

• Triennial Review Program FY2014 Workshop Workbook: 

http://www.fta.dot.gov/documents/FY_2014_Triennial_Review_Workshop_Workb
ook_Rev_2.pdf 

• Best Practices Procurement Manual: 

http://www.fta.dot.gov/grants/13054_6037.html  

• Third Party Contract Requirements – FTA Circular 4220.1F 

http://www.fta.dot.gov/documents/FTA_Circular_4220.1F.pdf 

• FTA Frequently Asked Questions Procurement and Contracting  

http://www.fta.dot.gov/grants/14032.html 

 

The FHWA requires certain contract provisions for each procurement depending 
on the nature, type and value of the procurement.  As the federal government 
makes regular updates to procurement guidelines the PM shall reference the 
applicable provisions as outlined in the current edition of the Local Assistance 
Procedures Manual issued by Caltrans. 

http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LocalPrograms/lam/lapm.htm 

 

 

 

  

129

http://www.fta.dot.gov/documents/FY_2014_Triennial_Review_Workshop_Workbook_Rev_2.pdf
http://www.fta.dot.gov/documents/FY_2014_Triennial_Review_Workshop_Workbook_Rev_2.pdf
http://www.fta.dot.gov/grants/13054_6037.html
http://www.fta.dot.gov/grants/14032.html
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LocalPrograms/lam/lapm.htm


33 

APPENDIX B:  DETERMINATION OF PRICE REASONABLENESS 

PO/Contract Number:     (If applicable) 

Vendor: 

Items Purchased:  

The price(s) paid for item(s) received under this purchase are determined to be fair and 
reasonable, based on the following (as checked): 

Ο Adequate competition 

Ο Current price lists 

Ο Catalog price 

Ο Prices found reasonable on recent previous purchases 

Ο Advertisements 

Ο Similar items in a related industry 

Ο Independent price estimate (based on a good understanding of what the item 
should cost) 

Ο Other basis.  Explain Below: 

Prepared By: _______________________________ 

 Date: ______________________________ 

130



 

34 

APPENDIX C:  PROCUREMENT FILE CHECKLIST 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

Procurement Summary Memo (utilize template) 

• General Description of the Procurement Item 
• Explanation of the choice of procurement being used 
• Federal Clauses and Certifications Checklist 
• Bid Number 
• Procurement Control Record 

o Date/Time RFP is distributed 
o Names/Addresses of Vendors receiving such 

• Independent Cost Estimate 
• Price/Cost Analysis 
• Bid Opening Date/Time 
• Names of Bidders 
• Bid prices 
• Determination of Responsive and Responsible Bidders 
• Bid Evaluation Information 
• Original scoring forms, or summary records of the Evaluation Committee scoring 
• Reason for not choosing the lowest bid, if such is not chosen 
• California Secretary of State Business Entity Web Page Printout 
• Santa Rosa Business License Number 
• Selection Report 

IF APPLICABLE 

• Buy America Certifications 
• Lobbying Certifications 
• EPLS Web Page Printouts 
• Pre-Proposal Conferences 

o List of information made available 
o List of vendors attending  

 

 

 

131



 

35 

APPENDIX D:  PROCUREMENT DOCUMENTATION CHECKLIST 

Contract #:_____________________________                                  Date: ___/___/___ 

Project: _______________________________________________________________ 

Contract Term: _________________________________________________________ 

TAB 1 - Project Identification: 

� Project planning and identification 
� Rationale for method of procurement 
� Selection of Contract Type 
� Written narrative of Procurement (over $100,000)  
TAB 2 - Solicitation Development: 

� Independent Cost Estimate 
� If only quotes required, check here 
� State or local government purchasing schedule 
� No geographic preferences 
� Solicitation and specification development 
� Appropriate supporting documentation 
� Attachment of required federal clauses and certifications 
� Bus Contract (less than five years) 
� Progress payments-Provisions for title to property (materials, work in progress, 

and finished 
�  goods)  
� Other provisions (e.g. performance bond)  
TAB 3 - Solicitation and Bid Opening: 

� Advertisement of the solicitation (no geographic preference) 
� Approved Equals/Request for Clarifications process 
� Documentation of Pre-Bid Meeting 
� Proposal(s) opening and recording (if Sole Source, include justification) 
� Review of all proposals in accordance with selection criteria 
� Evaluation of all Proposals for responsiveness 
� Tabulation of Proposal documents including selection criteria 
� Cost or Price Analysis 
� Award Selection and Justification 
� Basis for contract price 
� No advanced payments 

o        Advanced payment justification 
o       FTA approval, if required 

� Progress Payments 
� Written notice of activity approval given to proceed 

132



36 

TAB 4 - Award and Contract Administration: 

� Progress Payments 
� Contract w/appropriate clauses and certifications. 
� Document “Change Orders” and associated “Cost or Price Analysis” 
� Modify and report to oversight agency the changes to milestones and anticipated 

closeout. 
TAB 5 - Project Closeout and Reimbursement: 

� Request documentation to advance to reimbursement process 
� Finalize milestones 
� Begin physical and administrative closeout proceedings 
� Review final project file for completeness and file away 
� Request approval for project closeout 

Procurement Complete : ________________________________________ (Reviewer) 

Date: ___/___/___ 

133



April 18, 2018 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.4 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: APPROVE 

 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY:  Rebecca Schenck, Transportation Program Planner 

(707) 259-8636 / Email: rschenck@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT: Revised Policies, Practices, and Procedures Manual: Transit Policies 
and Bus Stop Optimization and Maintenance Plan 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve the revised Transit 
Policies (Attachment 1) chapter of the NVTA Policies, Practices, and Procedures Manual 
and the Bus Stop Optimization and Maintenance Plan (Attachment 2). 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The Board last adopted an update to the Transit Policies section of the NVTA Policies, 
Practices, and Procedures Manual on October 19, 2016.  Since that time, the Board has 
adopted the FY 2016-2026 Short Range Transit Plan, eliminated the Route 25 and 
changed the eligibility determination process for ADA Paratransit so an update to the 
Transit Policies is warranted.  In addition, research by staff indicates a need for NVTA to 
establish policies related to bus stop optimization and maintenance.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a Fiscal Impact? No  
 
CEQA REQUIREMENTS  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: The proposed action is not a project as defined 
by 14 California Code of Regulations 15378 (California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines) and therefore CEQA is not applicable 

134

mailto:rschenck@nvta.ca.gov


NVTA Agenda Letter                   Wednesday, April 18, 2018 
Agenda Item 9.4 

Page 2 of 2 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
Below is a brief summary of each of the changes to the Transit Policies and Procedures. 
Redline changes can be found in Attachment 1.  
 
Short Range Transit Plan Consistency 
The Board adopted the 2016-2026 Short Range Transit Plan (SRTP) in July 2017.  The 
development of a short range transit plan provides a 10-year planning horizon for financial 
and operational planning and capital purchases.  The document also provides goals, 
objectives, and standards by which performance of the Vine transit system are measured.  
The 2016-2026 Short Range Transit Plan changed the NVTA Service and Performance 
Standards.  The tracked changes made to Transit Policies in Attachment 1 create 
consistency between the service and performance standards in the NVTA Policies 
Practices and Procedures Manual and the most recent SRTP. 
 
Route 25 Elimination 
All references to the Route 25 in the NVTA Policies Practices and Procedures Manual 
have been eliminated.  
 
Eligibility Determination Process ADA Paratransit 
The Board authorized the award of an Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 
Administration Contract with C.A.R.E Evaluators Inc. in March 2017.  Individuals wishing 
to apply for ADA paratransit service now must schedule an appointment directly with 
NVTA’s designated eligibility contractor.  Applicants complete an in-person evaluation 
performed by NVTA’s contractor before a determination of eligibility is made.  All 
decisions regarding an applicant’s eligibility shall be rendered in written form within 
twenty-one (21) days of receiving the applicant’s determination form regardless of any 
follow up.  Modifications to this process are shown in Attachment 1.  
 
Bus Stop Placement 
Attachment 2 is the Bus Stop Optimization and Maintenance Plan that contains the 
research that influenced the Bus Stop Placement section of the Transit Policies.  The Bus 
Stop Placement section sets the parameters for the creation of new bus stops, the 
consolidation of existing bus stops, and the thresholds for allocating amenities throughout 
the Vine system.  The policy also ensures that American’s with Disabilities Act (ADA) 
specifications are met in all instances where a stop is enhanced or added.  
 
Other 
Some minor changes were also made to the Transit Policies document to correct 
oversights and to provide clarification.  
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachment:  (1) Revised NVTA Policies, Practices, and Procedures Manual: Transit 

 Policies 
      (2) Bus Stop Optimization and Maintenance Plan 

135



N. 
 
  
 
 
 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 
CHAPTER 1 INTRODUCTION ....................................................................................... 3 

Section 1.1. Overview .................................................................................................. 3 
1.1.1 Service Standards ....................................................................................... 3 
1.1.2 Performance Measures and Performance Standards .................................. 4 

CHAPTER 2 MAJOR SERVICE CHANGES ................................................................ 14 
Section 2.1. Overview ................................................................................................ 14 

2.1.1 Major Service Change ............................................................................... 14 
CHAPTER 3 PASSENGER FARES, PASSES & TRANSFERS .................................. 16 

Section 3.1. Definitions .............................................................................................. 16 
Section 3.2. Fare Policies .......................................................................................... 17 

3.2.1 Revenue Collection Principles ................................................................... 17 
CHAPTER 4 PASSENGER COMPLAINT & COMMENT POLICIES & PROCEDURES
 ...................................................................................................................................... 24 

Section 4.1. Overview ................................................................................................ 24 
4.1.1 Complaints & Comments ........................................................................... 24 
4.1.2 Requests for Reasonable Modification ...................................................... 25 

CHAPTER 5 ADA PARATRANSIT POLICIES ............................................................. 26 
Section 5.1. Service Overview ................................................................................... 26 
Section 5.2. NVTA Eligibility Standards   ................................................................... 26 
Section 5.3. Eligibility Determination Process ............................................................ 26 
Section 5.4. Eligibility Categories .............................................................................. 27 
Section 5.5. Appeals Process .................................................................................... 27 
Section 5.6. Visitors ................................................................................................... 28 
Section 5.7. Reservation and Scheduling .................................................................. 28 
Section 5.8. Hours of Operation and Service Area .................................................... 28 
Section 5.9. Fares...................................................................................................... 28 
Section 5.10. Mobility Devices ................................................................................... 29 
Section 5.11. Passenger Accompaniment ................................................................. 29 
Section 5.12. Passenger Assistance ......................................................................... 30 
Section 5.13. No-Shows ............................................................................................ 30 
Section 5.14. Pick-Ups .............................................................................................. 31 
Section 5.15. Denials and Missed Trips ..................................................................... 31 
Section 5.16. Trip Length ........................................................................................... 31 
Section 5.17. Equivalent Service ............................................................................... 31 

CHAPTER 6 CHARTER & SCHOOL BUS ................................................................... 33 
Section 6.1. Statement of Policy ................................................................................ 33 

CHAPTER 7 SHARED VEHICLE PROGRAM .............................................................. 34 

NVTA 
POLICIES, PARACTICES, AND PROCEDURES MANUAL 

TRANSIT POLICIES 

ATTACHMENT 1 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.4 

April 18, 2018 

136



Section 7.1. Statement of Policy ................................................................................ 34 
7.1.1 Participation ............................................................................................... 34 
7.1.2 NVTA Responsibilities ............................................................................... 34 

CHAPTER 8 TAXI SCRIP ............................................................................................. 35 
Section 8.1. Statement of Policy ................................................................................ 35 

8.1.1 Participation & Compliance ........................................................................ 35 
8.1.1.1 Users ...................................................................................................... 35 
8.1.1.2 Agencies ................................................................................................ 35 

CHAPTER 9 PASSENGER POLICIES ......................................................................... 37 
Section 9.1. Statement of Policy ................................................................................ 37 
Section 9.2. Passenger Code of Conduct .................................................................. 37 

CHAPTER 10 VEHICLE ACCIDENT POLICIES & PROCEDURES............................. 39 
Section 10.1. Statement of Policy .............................................................................. 39 

CHAPTER 11 STATE OF GOOD REPAIR ................................................................... 40 
Section 11.1. Statement of Policy .............................................................................. 40 

CHAPTER 12 SAFETY & SECURITY .......................................................................... 41 
Section 12.1. Statement of Policy .............................................................................. 41 

CHAPTER 13 BUS STOP PLACEMENT ..................................................................... 42 
Section 13.1. Statement of Policy .............................................................................. 42 

CHAPTER 14 CONTRACTOR RELATIONS & OVERSIGHT ...................................... 47 
Section 14.1. Overview .............................................................................................. 47 

CHAPTER 15 TITLE VI ................................................................................................. 48 
Section 15.1. Statement of Policy .............................................................................. 48 

 
  

137



CHAPTER 1  INTRODUCTION 
 

Section 1.1. Overview 
The Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) is responsible for the provision 
of all public transit service in the Napa Valley.  It is the agency’s commitment to 
operate safe, effective, and efficient services, maintain the highest standards of 
quality, integrity and customer service, and comply with all applicable local, State 
and Federal laws.  The polices and standards identified are designed to uphold 
these ideals. 

1.1.1 Service Standards 
 

 

Service Type Density
Peak and 
Base Fre- 
quencies*

Service 
Span*

Scheduling Route 
Structure

Load Fac- 
tor*

Vehi- 
cles

Stop Spac- 
ing

Stop Amenities*
Farebox 
Recov- 

ery

Passen- 
gers per 

hour

On-time 
Perform- 

ance*
Local and 
Regional
(Routes 1 
through 11)

4,000 to 
5,000 
(Medium 
Den- 
sity) 
[such as 
urban 
areas of 
Napa]

Not to 
exceed 30 
minutes in 
the peak and 
60 minutes 
midday 
Frequency of 
service 
should never 
be more than 
one bus per 
hour 

7 AM to   
7 PM 
(Monday 
to Satur- 
day) 9 PM 
for valley-
wide 
commuter 
routes. 

Clock Head- 
ways pre- 
ferred

Modified 
Grid: uses 
the layout 
of the 
urban area

1.25 Less 
than 1.5 in 
peak, less 
than or 
equal to 
1.0 in off 
peak

Standard 
40' or 
smaller 
vehicle to 
meet 
load

1/4 to 1/2 
mile 
depending 
on density 
Depends 
upon 
whether stop 
is urban or 
suburban in 
nature.  See 
Chapter 13

Shelters based 
on high ridership 
routes in areas 
with lower 
frequency

Meet or 
exceed 
17%

Twelve 
passenger 
per hour

90% of 
service will 
operate on 
time 
(between 0 
minutes 
early and 5 
minutes late)

Regional 
(Urban) 
Express
(Routes 201 
& 29)

3,000 to 
4,000 
(Low 
Density)

Not to 
exceed 2 
hours in the 
peak. 
No midday 
standard.  
Frequency of 
service 
should never 
be more than 
one bus per 
one and a 
half hours

6 AM to   
7 PM 
(Monday 
to Friday) 
9 PM for 
valley-
wide 
commuter 
routes. 

Scheduled to 
meet regional 
connections

Focal 
Point: 
provides 
access 
between 
two focal 
areas to 
provide 
regional 
and 
intercity 
connectivit
y

1.00 Equal 
to or less 
than 1.0 

Standard 
40' or 
smaller 
vehicle to 
meet 
load

1/2 to 1 mile
depending 
on density or 
trip 
generators 
and 
attractors 
(such as 
school, 
shopping, 
medical) 
Average 
25,000ft 
apart 
centered 
upon major 
employment 
centers

Shelters based 
on high ridership 
routes in areas 
with lower 
frequency

Meet or 
exceed 
17%

Seven 
passengers 
per hour

90% of 
service will 
operate on 
time 
(between 0 
minutes 
early and 5 
minutes late)

Regional 
(Rural)
(Routes 25)

3,000 to 
4,000 
(Low 
Density)

Not to 
exceed 2 
hours in the 
peak. 
No midday 
standard.

6 AM to 7 
PM 
(Monday 
to Friday)

Scheduled to 
meet regional 
connections

Focal 
Point: 
provides to 
connect 
rural focal 
area and 
regional 
hubs. 

1.00 Standard 
40' or 
smaller 
vehicle to 
meet 
load

1 to 2 mile
depending 
on density or 
trip 
generators 
and 
attractors 
(such as 
school, 

 

Shelters based 
on high ridership 
routes in areas 
with lower 
frequency

Meet or 
exceed 
15%

Five 
passengers 
per hour

90% of 
service will 
operate on 
time 
(between 0 
minutes 
early and 5 
minutes late)

Community 
(American 
Canyon and 
St. Helena)

3,000 to 
4,000 
(Low 
Density)

Not to 
exceed 45 
minutes in 
the peak and 
90 minutes 
midday. 
Upon call in, 
service will 
arrive within 
15 - 30 
minutes. 

7 AM to   
5 PM 
(Monday 
to Friday) 
or based 
upon 
available 
funds

As required to 
meet demand

Focal 
Point: 
provides 
access 
between 
focal areas 
within a 
small 
community

1.25 Less 
than 1.5 in 
peak for 
local 
service, 
less than 
or equal to 
1.0 in off 
peak

30' 
vehicle or 
smaller 

1/2 to 2/3 
mile 
depending 
on density or 
trip 
generators 
and 
attractors 
(such as 
school, 
shopping, 
medical) No 
standard

Shelters based 
on high ridership 
routes in areas 
with lower 
frequency

Meet or 
exceed 
10%

Five 
passenger 
per hour

90% of 
service will 
operate on 
time 
(between 0 
minutes 
early and 5 
minutes late) 
90% of 
service will 
arrive within 
30 minutes 
of call in

City Demand 
Response
(Calistoga 
and 
Yountville) 

3,000 
and 
below

Upon call in, 
service will 
arrive within 
15 - 30 
minutes. 

Service 
based 
upon 
available 
funds

As requested No 
standard

No 
standard 
Less than 
1.5 in peak 
for local 
service, 
less than 
or equal to 
1.0 in off 
peak

30' 
vehicle or 
smaller 

No standard Shelter 
locations are 
responsibility of 
city partners

Meet or 
Exceed 
10% 
(includes 
City or 
other 
sponsor 
funding)

Two 
passengers 
per hour

90% of 
service will 
arrive within 
30 minutes 
of call in

*Required by Title VI for Fixed Route Service Only

EFFECTIVENESS PERFORMANCE/EFICIENCY

138



 
 

 
1.1.2 Performance Measures and Performance Standards 
Operate Safe and Efficient Service 

Measure Performance Standard 

Percentage of Fleet that passes CHP 
inspections 100% of fleet shall pass CHP Inspections 

Average age of fleet by vehicle type Fleet age should not exceed FTA recommended replacement 
schedule 

Average mileage of fleet by vehicle type Fleet mileage should not exceed FTA recommended 
replacement schedule 

Percentage of trips operating on time 
(between 0 minutes early and 5 minutes 
late) 

Greater than 90% for local and regional fixed route service 

Percentage of paratransit trips operating 
on time 

Greater than 90% for paratransit trips operating within promised 
pick up time (5 minutes early to 15 minutes late) 

Cost per Total and Revenue Vehicle Hour Growth in cost should not increase by greater than 5% above 
C.P.I. 

Percentage change in maintenance cost 
per vehicle hour 

Growth in cost should not increase by greater than 5% above 
C.P.I. 

Load Factor Load factor should not exceed 1.0 for fixed route or paratransit 
service 

Percentage of weekly bus stop cleanings 
performed on time Not to exceed 3 days from scheduled time 

Total number of miles between 
preventable accidents Not to exceed 100,000 miles between preventable accidents 

Percentage of Preventive Maintenance 
Inspections (PMI) performed on time Not to exceed 500 miles from scheduled time 

Total miles between mechanical road calls Not to exceed one road call per 10,000 miles 

Passenger Injuries per  100,000 miles Not to exceed X injuries per 100,000 miles 
Total number of Late-Pulls and 
Cancellations Not to exceed 5 Late Pulls per month 

Percentage  of fixed route trips missed Not to exceed X% per month 
Percentage change in maintenance cost 
per vehicle hour 

Should not exceed greater than two major repairs per year 
(those that cost over $5000) 

Wheelchair use on Fixed Route Service Should not exceed capacity; Pass ups should not exceed 1 per 
1,000 miles 

Total numbers of missed trips TBD 

Wait times between local buses and 
regional buses 

Wait times between regional and local routes should be 30 
minutes or less in peak direction.  Wait times between local 
routes should be 15 minutes or less 

Percentage of stops that are wheelchair 
accessible 

Existing fixed route bus stops should be wheelchair accessible 
to the greatest extent feasible; 100% of new stops shall be 
wheelchair accessible 

Percentage of bus stops with real time 
passenger information 

100% of major transfer points shall be equipped with real time 
passenger information 

Percentage of residents within 1/4 mile of 
fixed route service 

85% of dwelling units in the urbanized Napa County area; 90% 
of major activity centers shall be within 1/8 mile of bus route 

139



Percentage of trips operating on time 
(between 0 minutes early and 5 minutes 
late)  

Greater than 90% for local and regional fixed route service 

Percentage of paratransit trips operating 
on time 

Greater than 90% for paratransit trips operating within promised 
pick up time (5 minutes early to 15 minutes late) 

Cleanliness of Buses Interiors shall be cleaned daily; exteriors shall be washed daily 

Miles between Preventable Accidents No greater than one per 100,000 miles 

Paratransit Denials and cancellations by 
passengers served No greater than zero denials; no greater than 4% cancellations 

Customer Satisfaction Rating Not to exceed worse than “average” rating 

Total Complaints per vehicle trip Shall not exceed 5 in 20,000 trips 

Percentage of  stops that are wheelchair 
accessible 

Existing fixed route bus stops should be accessible to the 
greatest extent feasible;  100% of new bus stops shall be 
wheelchair accessible 

Provide accessible buses and vans 100% of the fixed route fleet shall be Wheelchair Lift equipped; 
100% of paratransit vans shall be lift equipped 

140



In order to meet the mobility needs of the residents of Napa County, NVTA strives to 
implement the highest quality transit services possible. The measures and performance 
standards ensure that NVTA can monitor and responded to any deficiencies that may be 
the outcome of poor quality of service. 
 
Measure Standard 

Total Ridership  

Fixed Route: Increase over prior fiscal year 
Paratransit: Growth should not lead to denials 
Community Shuttles: Growth should not lead to 
excessive wait times 

Passengers per Revenue 
Vehicle Hour 

Fixed Route: Greater than 80% of system average 
Paratransit: Greater than 2.0 
Community Shuttles: Greater than 4.0 

Load factor 

Fixed Route: Less than 1.5 in peak for local service, 
less than or equal to 1.0 in off peak for local service. All 
commuter services should be equal to or less than 1.0 
during all times of day.  
Paratransit: Never exceed 1.0 
Community Shuttles: Less than 1.5 in peak for local 
service, less than or equal to 1.0 in off peak. 

Percent Missed Trips per 
Trip Miles 

Fixed Route: Less than .01% 
Paratransit: 0% 
Community Shuttles: Less than .01% 

Scheduled On-Time Arrivals 

Fixed Route: Equal or greater than 90% on-time  
Paratransit: Equal or greater than 97% on-time 
Community Shuttles: 90% of service will arrive within 
30 minutes of request for service. 

Passenger Injuries  All Modes: Less than 1 per 100,000 passenger trips 
Preventable Accidents  All Modes: Less than 1 per 100,000 revenue miles 

Complaints 

Fixed Route: Less than 1 per 100,000 revenue miles 
Paratransit: No more than 1 complaint for every 600 
passenger trips. 
Community Shuttles: Less than 1 per 5,000 revenue 
miles 

Percent of Trips Denied Paratransit: 0% 
Cleanliness of Buses Interiors and exteriors cleaned daily 

Proximity to Service 

Fixed Route: 95% of dwelling units in areas having six 
or more units per acre to be located with 1-4 mile of a 
stop, all major destinations to be within 1-8 of a mile of a 
stop.                                                                                                  
Paratransit: Service will be available to all qualifying 
residents of Napa County with residences, destinations, 
or the ability to find alternate means to come within 3-4 
of a mile from Vine fixed route service. 

Frequency of Service Fixed Route: Frequency of service should never be 
more than one bus per hour for local and intercity 

141



Measure Standard 
buses.  Commuter service frequency should never be 
more than one bus per one and half hours. System 
average should be 45 minutes or less. 

Percentage of ADA 
Accessible Stops 

100% of all new stops shall be ADA accessible, existing 
stops should be made accessible to the greatest extent 
possible. 

Bus Stop Amenities Stops which average 50 or more riders a day should 
have a shelter installed if feasible.  

Trip length Paratransit: Trips should not exceed 1.25 times that of 
an equivalent trip on fixed route transit. 

 
  

142



1.1.3 Operate Safe, Reliable, and Comfortable Service 
Safe, reliable, and comfortable service are NVTA’s top priorities. Promoting safe habits 
for drivers and delivering service people want to use benefits the agency as well as the 
community. 
 
 
Measure Standard 

Average Age of Fleet by 
Vehicle Type 

Fixed Route: Average age should not exceed 12 
years. 
Paratransit: Average age should not exceed 4 years. 
Community Shuttles: Average age should not exceed 
4 years. 

Average Mileage of Fleet by 
Vehicle Type 

Fixed Route: Average should not exceed 500,000 
miles. 
Paratransit: Average should not exceed 100,000 
miles. 
Community Shuttles: Average should not exceed 
100,000 miles. 

Scheduled On-Time Arrivals 

Fixed Route: Equal or greater than 90% on-time  
Paratransit: Equal or greater than 97% on-time 
Community Shuttles: 90% of service will arrive within 
30 minutes of request for service. 

Passenger Injuries  All Modes: Less than 1 per 100,000 passenger trips 
Preventable Accidents  All Modes: Less than 1 per 100,000 revenue miles 

Complaints 

Fixed Route: Less than 1 per 100,000 revenue miles 
Paratransit: No more than 1 complaint for every 600 
passenger trips. 
Community Shuttles: Less than 1 per 5,000 revenue 
miles 

Percent of Trips Denied Paratransit: 0% 
Cleanliness of Buses All Modes: Interiors and exteriors cleaned daily 

Percent Missed Trips per Trip 
Miles 

Fixed Route: Less than .01% 
Paratransit: 0% 
Community Shuttles: Less than .01% 

Preventative Maintenance 
Work Completed On-Time Greater than 99% 

Vehicle Service Miles 
Between Road Calls Greater than 25,000 miles 

Load factor 

Fixed Route: Less than 1.5 in peak for local service, 
less than or equal to 1.0 in off peak for local service. All 
commuter services should be equal to or less than 1.0 
during all times of day.  
Paratransit: Never exceed 1.0 
Community Shuttles: Less than 1.5 in peak for local 
service, less than or equal to 1.0 in off peak. 

143



Measure Standard 

Frequency of Service 

Fixed Route: Frequency of service should never be 
more than one bus per hour for local and intercity 
buses.  Commuter service frequency should never be 
more than one bus per one and half hours. System 
average should be 45 minutes or less. 

Percentage of ADA 
Accessible Stops 

100% of all new stops shall be ADA accessible, 
existing stops should be made accessible to the 
greatest extend possible 

Bus Stop Amenities Stops which average 50 or more riders a day should 
have a shelter installed if feasible.  

Trip length Paratransit: Trips should not exceed 1.25 times that of 
an equivalent trip on fixed route transit. 

 
  

144



1.1.4 Efficiently Use of Resources 
NVTA strives to use its resources in an efficient and responsible manner. Ensuring needs 
are met and budgets are not overrun are two of NVTA’s top financial goals. 
 
Measure Standard 

Total Ridership  

Fixed Route: Increase over prior fiscal year 
Paratransit: Growth should not lead to denials 
Community Shuttles: Growth should not lead to 
excessive wait times 

Passengers per Revenue 
Vehicle Hour 

Fixed Route: Greater than 80% of system average 
Paratransit: Greater than 2.0 
Community Shuttles: Greater than 4.0 

Subsidy per Passenger 
Fixed Route: At or less than $6.50 
Paratransit: At or less than $40 
Community Shuttles: At or less than $15 

Operating Cost per Service 
Hour Fixed Route: At or less than $60 

Operating Cost per Revenue 
Hour 

Paratransit: At or less than $90 
Community Shuttles:  

Operating Cost per 
Passenger 

Fixed Route:  At or less than $4.50 
Paratransit: At or less than $24 
Community Shuttles: At or less than $75 

Farebox Recovery Ratio 
Fixed Route: Meet or exceed 15%. 
Paratransit: Meet or exceed 10%. 
Community Shuttles: Meet or exceed 10%.  

Load factor 

Fixed Route: Less than 1.5 in peak for local service, 
less than or equal to 1.0 in off peak for local service. 
All commuter services should be equal to or less than 
1.0 during all times of day.  
Paratransit: Never exceed 1.0 
Community Shuttles: Less than 1.5 in peak for local 
service, less than or equal to 1.0 in off peak. 

Percent Missed Trips per Trip 
Miles 

Fixed Route: Less than .01% 
Paratransit: 0% 
Community Shuttles: Less than .01% 

Scheduled On-Time Arrivals 

Fixed Route: Equal or greater than 90% on-time  
Paratransit: Equal or greater than 97% on-time 
Community Shuttles: 90% of service will arrive within 
30 minutes of request for service. 

Complaints 

Fixed Route: Less than 1 per 100,000 revenue miles 
Paratransit: No more than 1 complaint for every 600 
passenger trips. 
Community Shuttles: Less than 1 per 5,000 revenue 
miles 

Percent of Trips Denied Paratransit: 0% 

145



Measure Standard 

Proximity to Service 

Fixed Route: 95% of dwelling units in areas having six 
or more units per acre to be located with 1-4 mile of a 
stop, all major destinations to be within 1-8 of a mile of 
a stop.                                                                                                  
Paratransit: Service will be available to all qualifying 
residents of Napa County with residences, 
destinations, or the ability to find alternate means to 
come within 3-4 of a mile from Vine fixed route service. 

Frequency of Service 

Fixed Route: Frequency of service should never be 
more than one bus per hour for local and intercity 
buses.  Commuter service frequency should never be 
more than one bus per one and half hours. System 
average should be 45 minutes or less. 

 
  

146



1.1.5 Be a Forward Think Organization Meeting the Needs of an 
Evolving and Diverse Community 

NVTA is always looking for new and useful technology that will make operating the system 
more efficient as well as attract new riders. By listening to the needs and wants of the 
community as well as introducing useful tools to the system NVTA will be able to create 
a strong and vibrant transit system.  
 
Measure Standard 

Stop Spacing 

Stops should be spaced no closer than 1-4 of a 
mile and no further than 1-3 of a mile in urban 
areas. Stops located in rural areas will be 
evaluated on a case by case basis to ensure that 
ADA accessibility requirements are met and there 
is a clear and present demand.  

Proximity to Service 

Fixed Route: 95% of dwelling units in areas 
having six or more units per acre to be located 
with 1-4 mile of a stop, all major destinations to be 
within 1-8 of a mile of a stop.                                                                                                  
Paratransit: Service will be available to all 
qualifying residents of Napa County with 
residences, destinations, or the ability to find 
alternate means to come within 3-4 of a mile from 
Vine fixed route service. 

Frequency of Service 

Fixed Route: Frequency of service should never 
be more than one bus per hour for local and 
intercity buses.  Commuter service frequency 
should never be more than one bus per one and 
half hours. System average should be 45 minutes 
or less. 

Percentage of ADA Accessible 
Stops 

100% of all new stops shall be ADA accessible, 
existing stops should be made accessible to the 
greatest extend possible 

Bus Stop Amenities Stops which average 50 or more riders a day 
should have a shelter installed if feasible.  

Average Age of Fleet by Vehicle 
Type 

Fixed Route: Average age should not exceed 12 
years. 
Paratransit: Average age should not exceed 4 
years. 
Community Shuttles: Average age should not 
exceed 4 years. 

Average Mileage of Fleet by 
Vehicle Type 

Fixed Route: Average should not exceed 500,000 
miles. 
Paratransit: Average should not exceed 100,000 
miles. 

147



Measure Standard 
Community Shuttles: Average should not 
exceed 100,000 miles. 

Total Ridership  

Fixed Route: Increase over prior fiscal year 
Paratransit: Growth should not lead to denials 
Community Shuttles: Growth should not lead to 
excessive wait times 

Passengers per Revenue Vehicle 
Hour 

Fixed Route: Greater than 80% of system 
average 
Paratransit: Greater than 2.0 
Community Shuttles: Greater than 4.0 

Maintain an up-to-date list of 
stakeholders 

Contact individuals and organizations yearly to 
ensure information is up-to-date on contact list. 

Implement Public Outreach  in 
Accordance with the Title VI 
Public Participation Plan 

Complete check-list of required processes in 
accordance with Title VI Public Participation Plan 
prior to an outreach event. 

Land Use Coordination 
Comment on all design referrals with obvious 
transit nexus. Ensure participation on any TAC for 
major local land use projects 

148



 

Board Approved: 10/19/2016 

 
CHAPTER 2 MAJOR SERVICE CHANGES 

 
Section 2.1. Overview 
Prior to Board approval all major service changes will be subject to an equity 
analysis, which includes an analysis of adverse effects. 

2.1.1 Major Service Change 
A “Major Service Change” is defined as the following, unless otherwise noted 
under E. EXCEPTIONS: 

A. A new transit route.  (The reassignment of existing route numbers, 
including reassignment of numbers resulting from splitting or 
combining two or more existing routes, which creates a new route 
“number” will not constitute a new transit route.  Should the 
adjustment impact miles or hours, criteria (c) and (d) shall be 
considered); or 

B. New service on streets not previously used by any route (excluding 
major arterial streets and streets designated as a truck route); or 

C. Any aggregate change of 30 percent or more of the number of transit 
revenue hours of a route computed on a daily basis for the day of the 
week for which the change is proposed; or 

D. Routing changes that alter 40 percent or more of a route’s path.  
Minor changes to an existing route shall not constitute a “major 
change in route.” 

E. EXCEPTIONS: Exceptions to the major adjustments of transit 
service include: 
1. Changes to a service on a route with productivity levels at 50 

percent or below of NVTA’s Transit standards in a typical 
service day are not considered “major” unless service on that 
route is eliminated completely on any such day.  Productivity 
standards are based on NVTA’s Transit’s route typology as 
adopted in the Short Range Transit Plan. 

2. Headway adjustments from existing headways of up to 20 
minutes not made in conjunction with a change in revenue 
vehicle miles or hours provided in (c) and (d) above. 

3. Standard seasonal variations, unless the variation, as 
compared to operations during the previous season, fall within 
the definition of major adjustments listed above. 

4. The introduction or discontinuation of short- or limited-term 
service (e.g., promotional, demonstration, seasonal or 
emergency service, or service provided as mitigation or 

149



 

Napa County Valley Transportation Authority& Planning Agency 
[15] 

diversions for construction or other similar activities), as long 
as the service will be or has been operated for no more than 
twelve months.  Emergency service changes include changes 
in routes of service frequencies that may be necessitated due 
to a disaster that severely impairs public health or safety; 
changes in access to public streets (such as street closures); 
or the ability of Agency equipment to travel on public streets. 

5. The restoration of service previously eliminated due to budget 
constraints, provided the service runs on the same route as it 
had prior to its elimination, subject to minor deviations that do 
not exceed the requirements of (a), (b), (c), or (d) above. 

6. Changes to infrequent, seasonal, or supplemental routes, 
including supplemental school routes that meet the 
requirements of (a) or (b). 

  

150



 

Napa County Valley Transportation Authority& Planning Agency 
[16] 

CHAPTER 3 PASSENGER FARES, PASSES & TRANSFERS 
 

Section 3.1. Definitions 
For the purposes of these policies, the following definitions shall apply: 
Fare:  The fee charged and received by NVTA in exchange for transit services 
provided.  The fare can be in the form of cash payment at the time of service, 
prepayment through other means or Clipper.  Many transit fares are typically 
collected and recorded via an electronic recording device, known as a farebox; 
however, this is not the only method of collecting and recording fees.  This policy 
may use the term fare and farebox interchangeably, and shall be interpreted as 
the totality of the fees. 
Base Fare: For purposes of the fare policy, the base fare will be defined as the 
single unlinked trip, full cash fare. 
Youth Fare: Fare for any rider 18 years of age and under (photo ID with proof of 
age required). 
Child Fare: Fare for any cChild 5 years of age and younger. 
Express Bus Route:  A deluxe bus route characterized by one or more segments 
of high-speed, non-stop operation, and with a limited number of stops which are 
generally provided for commuter service. 
Fare Media: Fare media shall be defined as all passes, tickets, cards or ID’s sold 
or otherwise distributed for use on various NVTA services. 
Half-Fare:  Fares, as defined above, for eligible persons with disabilities, senior 
riders or Medicare cardholders.  The cash half fare is the maximum of one-half of 
the full cash fare or the current  FTA guidelines (Code of Federal Regulations, Title 
49, Subtitle B, Chapter Vi, Part 609), rounded down to an increment of $0.05. 
Local Bus Route:  Any fixed route bus service not designated as an express or 
shuttle bus route. 
Shuttle Bus Route: Local distribution services that operate in a small area and 
are used for shorter than average length trips are classified as shuttle services. 
Mode: Defines the different types of services offered by NVTA, which includes 
local bus, express bus, shuttle bus and Para-Transit. 
Senior: Any person age 65 or older (photo ID with proof of age required at 
boarding). 
Person with Disability: People who meet the currently enforced Federal Transit 
Administration’s (FTA) definition of people with disabilities.  At the time of the 
adoption of this policy, the definition is: “any individual who, by reason of illness, 
injury, age, congenital malfunction, or other incapacity or temporary or permanent 
disability (including any individual who is a wheelchair user or has semi-ambulatory  
capabilities),  cannot use effectively, without special  facilities, planning  or design, 
mass transportation  service or a mass transportation facility.” 

151



 

Napa County Valley Transportation Authority& Planning Agency 
[17] 

Medicare Cardholders:  Individuals who have been issued a Medicare card, 
regardless of age or disability. 
Day Pass: A 24 hour period pass valid for unlimited travel on all VINE fixed route 
services (excluding Route 29) for one calendar day from the time of activation 
through the end of the service day. 
Monthly Pass: A thirty (31) day period pass valid for unlimited travel on all VINE 
fixed route services (excluding the Route 29) for 31 calendar days from the day of 
activation through the end of the 31st consecutive service day. 
Section 3.2. Fare Policies 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority’s (NVTA) Fare Policy establishes principles 
and polices that govern recovery of passenger revenues in  support of NVTA’s 
vision of the Vine being a customer-driven and efficient public transportation 
system serving the County of Napa. 
 

3.2.1 Revenue Collection Principles 
Generally, fares are required to generate revenue to offset a component part of 
NVTA’s expenses as defined by the Transportation Development Act (TDA) as 
part of a sustainable long-term Financial Plan.  The following principles guide 
establishment and management of NVTA’s fare revenue collections: 

A. Promote ridership on all transit related services:  NVTA seeks to 
encourage and facilitate transit ridership within VINE’s service area.  
Vine’s fares shall; therefore, be devised to be attractive to the widest 
possible range of existing and potential rider groups. 

B. Equitable fares: To be equitable, fares must take into account the 
needs of Vine’s riders as well as the cost and value of the service 
provided by the Vine.  Vine’s fares shall support the travel patterns 
and requirements of transit riders throughout the service area and 
shall also reflect differences in the characteristics and frequency of 
the service provided, while not undervaluing Vine’s service.   

C. Enhance mobility & access: Vine fares shall enhance the ability of 
riders to access the system and move through it with ease.  To do 
so, Vine fares shall be easy to understand and shall promote a 
unified system by simplifying and, where effective and possible, 
unifying fares across services. 

D. Effective & cost efficient: Vine’s fare pricing, fare policy, fare media 
distribution  channels, and fare collection technologies shall be 
developed and operated  to be easily applied by transit operating 
employees, as well as to minimize the costs associated with fare 
collection, fare media distribution and revenue processing. 

E. Management:  Vine’s fares and fare collection system shall be 
designed to facilitate data collection to foster analytical decision 
making by NVTA’s staff. 

152



 

Napa County Valley Transportation Authority& Planning Agency 
[18] 

In keeping with these principles, the policies governing Vine’s fares are set forth 
below: 

A. Farebox Recovery: Vine collects fares from passengers riding its 
transit services as one element of funding these services.  These 
fares are then used to offset the costs of providing the transit service, 
otherwise known as Farebox Recovery.  The Farebox Recovery ratio 
is defined as the ratio of the transit fares to the operating costs.  
NVTA’s farebox recovery ratio target shall be equal to those targets 
set forth by Transit Development Act regulations.  Urban transit 
services, Vine and American Canyon Transit, have a farebox 
recovery target different than that of rural transit (Calistoga Shuttle, 
St. Helena Shuttle and Yountville Trolley) and ADA Paratransit 
services.  See note D at the end of this document for current 
regulatory farebox recovery rates. 

B. Vine Fare Adjustments: Fare adjustments are defined as any 
permanent changes to Vine’s fare structure.  Decisions on fare 
adjustments are made by the NVTA’s Board of Directors.  Prior to 
making a decision on a fare adjustment, the Board shall consider the 
recommendation by NVTA’s staff, including but not limited to an 
analysis of the impacts on minorities and low-income individuals 
consistent with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C.  § 
2000d et seq), the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Title VI 
regulations (49 CFR part 21), and FTA’s Circular 4702.1B, including 
any future amendments thereto, as well as NVTA’s Title VI Policy.  
Prior to raising a fare, NVTA shall solicit and consider public 
comment in compliance with 49 USC Chapter 53 and FTA Circular 
9030.1C, including any future amendments thereto.  Implementation 
of a fare adjustment shall occur no earlier than 30 days and no later 
than 12 months following approval by the Board of Directors.  Any 
change in the fare shall be rounded to the nearest $.05. 
Fare adjustments shall be considered by the NVTA Board under the 
following scenarios: 
1. Following NVTA’s annual report if VINE has failed to meet its 

farebox ratio goal defined in the fare policy. 
2. Every three years the NVTA Board of Directors will consider 

fare adjustments to match the previous three years of CPI-U 
for the San Francisco – Oakland – San Jose Region or to 
match the percent increase in Vine expenditures for the 
previous three years whichever is greater.  Unless the farebox 
ratio for the previous fiscal year is equal to or greater than 
20%.  In which case fare increases shall be paused. 
NVTA staff will annually report to the Board a review of 
farebox revenues and the farebox recovery ratio for the entire 
system and service.  NVTA staff will recommend possible 

153



 

Napa County Valley Transportation Authority& Planning Agency 
[19] 

solutions for meeting the minimum farebox recovery if 
analysis indicates it has not been met.  Solutions may include 
a recommendation for a fare adjustment.  Such 
recommendation will include consideration of economic 
trends, Vine’s current and future operating health and the 
value of services, both qualitative and quantitative, in the 
communities served. 

C. Fare Differentials: Vine’s fares shall balance simplicity and 
uniformity of fares with the equity of pricing services consistent with 
the cost and value of providing that service.  The number of fare 
types, levels, and fare payment instruments shall consider the ease 
of enforcement by vehicle operators, ease of understanding by 
customers and the ease of tracking with both the farebox technology 
and the back-office technology. 
Services that cost more to operate or provide additional value to 
passengers compared with local bus service are considered 
premium services, and may be priced higher (but never lower) than 
local bus service.  Premium services include express buses, 
paratransit, and if implemented in the future, bus rapid transit.  The 
price structure for each premium service will be set separately. 
Local distribution services that operate in a small area and are used 
for shorter than average length trips provide less value to riders and 
are classified as shuttle services.  Shuttle services may be priced 
equal to or lower than local bus service. 

D. Vine-GO Paratransit Fares: Vine Go’s policy, in compliance with 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Section 
12143) and the implementing FTA Regulations (49 CFR Section 
37.121) is that ADA complementary paratransit fares will equal twice 
the regular fixed-route fare for the same trip.  If the Act is changed, 
this policy shall be changed to be consistent with federal law.  If ADA 
complementary paratransit provides service beyond or in addition to 
the federally defined ADA complementary paratransit service, a 
higher fare shall be charged for that service. 

 
E. Vine Local Passes: Prepayment of fares on the fixed-route system 

shall be encouraged.  Monthly local Vine passes shall be discounted 
to provide some savings to commuters compared with the cash fare, 
but not less than 30 (See Attachment A) times the cash fare.  Day 
passes shall be priced at least equivalent to the cost of three 
boardings and no more than the cost of six boardings.  Twenty ride 
passes shall provide the equivalent of 20 rides and shall be 
discounted no more than 10% (See Attachment A) from the actual 
value.  These policies shall be applied equitably across all fare types 
(Adult, Youth and Discount).  Passes shall be priced to expedite the 

154



 

Napa County Valley Transportation Authority& Planning Agency 
[20] 

boarding process. 
Employer, university or schools and other qualifying group pass 
programs shall be priced so that either: 
1. The anticipated average revenue per boarding to VINE from 

such programs is approximately equal to or greater than 
VINE’s average revenue per boarding for the two most recent 
fiscal years excluding these programs, or 

2. The anticipated revenue from the program is at least equal to 
the estimated revenue previously generated by the riders 
switching to the program. 

F. Vine Express Fares and Passes 
1. Vine Route 29:  Vine Route 29 is a partially grant funded 

premium express service from Calistoga to the Vallejo Ferry 
and BART.  As such it is primarily intended to service 
commuters traveling to and from the City of San Francisco 
and the East Bay.  The cash fares shall be split into a two 
tiered system with one fare to the Vallejo Ferry Terminal and 
higher fare to BART.  As a grant funded route the farebox 
requirement for the Route 29 is 20% and the fare structure is 
independent of the local VINE routes.  As a commuter route 
the discounted fare provisions of this policy do not apply to the 
Route 29 therefore all cash and pass fares shall be equal.  
The Route 29 farebox ratio and fares shall be reviewed on the 
same schedule set forth for the local routes but there is no 
provision for automatic increases to the fares.  Passes will 
cost no less than 20 (See Attachment B) times the cash fare.  
Only Route 29 monthly passes shall be valid on the Route 29.  
Punch passes can be used on the Route 29 but a single ride 
will cost multiple punches depending on the destination.  
Transfers are not accepted onto the Route 29 but transfers 
shall be issued for use on other eligible VINE routes upon 
request. 

2. Vine Route 21:  Vine Route 21 is a grant funded premium 
express route servicing a connection between the Soscol 
Gateway Transit Center and the Suisun City Train Depot.  As 
a grant funded route the Route 21 is not required by law to 
meet a specific farebox recovery ratio but by NVTA policy it is 
the goal of the agency to reach a farebox recovery ratio equal 
to that of the regulatory minimum for rural transit services.  
The Route 21 farebox ratio and fares shall be reviewed on the 
same schedule set forth for the local routed but there is no 
provision for automatic increases to the fares.  Cash fares for 
the Route 21 are set independent of the VINE local fares and 
as a commuter route the discounted fare provisions of the 

155



 

Napa County Valley Transportation Authority& Planning Agency 
[21] 

local VINE service do not apply to the Route 21.  The Route 
21 does not have a distinct monthly pass but all other passes 
are valid for use on the Route 21.  In the case of a punch pass 
one ride shall be equal to two punches.  Transfers are 
accepted onto the Route 21 from any other VINE route.   

3. Vine Route 25:  Vine Route 25 is a grant funded premium 
express route servicing the Soscol Gateway Transit Center 
and the Sonoma Plaza.  As a grant funded route the Route 25 
is not required by law to meet a specific farebox recovery ratio 
but by NVTA policy it is the goal of the agency to reach a 
farebox recovery ratio equal to that of the regulatory minimum 
for NVTA’s urban transit services.  Fares for the Route 25 
follow the policy and structure set forth for the VINE Local 
service. 

G. Local Shuttle Services:  Local shuttle service fares (St. Helena, 
Yountville, Calistoga and American Canyon) are defined by the 
individual Memorandum of Understanding (MOUAgreements) 
between the jurisdiction and NVTA.  These shuttle services are not 
subject to any provision stated in the Fare Policy except those 
required by law and defined within the relevant MOUAgreement. 

H. Promotions and Special Events:  Fare promotions, including 
special event fares, may be used to attract riders to Vine services.  
Fare promotions can be a cost-effective method of attracting riders 
to new services (such as new bus routes) and existing services.  For 
the purpose of this policy, Fare Promotions shall be defined as any 
new fare card, fare media, cash fare or other transit fare which is not 
part of the adopted fare structure and may be priced higher or lower 
than Vine’s regular fares.  Fare Promotions are not required to 
include a specific fare for seniors, Medicare cardholders or 
individuals with disabilities, however the rates charged seniors, 
Medicare cardholders or individuals with disabilities during off-peak 
hours must not exceed one-half of the rates generally applicable to 
other persons at peak hours (excluding the Fare Promotion) as 
required by FTA regulations (Code of Federal Regulations, Title 49, 
Subtitle B, Chapter Vi, Part 609).  Fare promotions must be able to 
be implemented within the capabilities of the current fare collection 
technology in use at the time of the implementation.  Fare promotions 
shall not exceed a six (6) month period.  If the promotion is deemed 
to be successful and management desires it to be part of the fare 
structure, then management shall bring the issue and analysis to the 
Board of Directors for adoption into the current fare structure. Should 
the fare promotion result in “free rides”. Pass holders with a 31-day 
pass activated before the beginning of the promotion and valid during 
the period of the promotion shall receive a period pass equal to the 

156



 

Napa County Valley Transportation Authority& Planning Agency 
[22] 

free period. To remain equitable all paratransit service shall be free 
during free ride promotions 

I. New Payment: Options Fare payment options that effectively attract 
a different market segment or encourage increased use of Vine 
services by current riders shall be developed; but must be within the 
realm of current or planned hardware, software and back-office 
technologies.  Initial pricing for such options shall be set such that 
VINE is not expected to lose fare revenue, unless the Board of 
Directors specifically approves an estimated amount of lost revenue. 

J. Design: The design of fare payment instruments shall consider the 
ease of enforcement by bus operators, ease of understanding by 
customers and the ease of tracking with both the farebox technology 
and the back-office technology. 

K. Child and Youth Fares - Vine Local Route Services: Up to two 
children, 5 years of age or less, ride free with each adult over 18 
paying fare.  Additional children must pay $.50 per child. No child 
under the age of seven may ride without an accompanying adult.  
Youth shall be defined as persons ages 6 - 18.  Youth may qualify 
for a reduced fare based on the type of service being provided and 
the publicized fare.  Youth fare is calculated by subtracting $.50 from 
the full adult fare.  In all cases, the youth will no longer qualify for any 
youth discounts on his/her 19th birthday. 

L. Half-Fare Program – Vine Local Fixed Route Services: The 
objective of the Half-Fare Program is to provide reduced fares for 
fixed route services for seniors, persons with disabilities and 
Medicare cardholders in compliance with the Federal Transit 
Administration’s half-fare requirements (Code of Federal 
Regulations, Title 49, Subtitle B, Chapter Vi, Part 609). 
Who is eligible for the half-fare program? 
1. Persons aged 65 and older, unless the FTA regulations 

defining seniors are changed in the future, in which case the 
FTA regulations shall be followed. 

2. Medicare cardholders 
3. People who meet the currently enforced Federal Transit 

Administration’s (FTA) definition of people with disabilities.  At 
the time of the adoption of this policy, the definition is: “any 
individual who, by reason of illness, injury, age, congenital 
malfunction, or other incapacity or temporary  or permanent 
disability (including any individual who is a wheelchair user or 
has semi-ambulatory  capabilities), cannot use effectively, 
without special facilities, planning or design, mass 
transportation service or a mass transportation facility.” 

157



 

Napa County Valley Transportation Authority& Planning Agency 
[23] 

NOTES 
A. The local monthly pass multiplier is based on an analysis of other local transit 

services within the Bay Area and what is currently being used by the Vine.  See 
Attachment A. 

B. The discount for the punch pass is based on an analysis of other local transit 
services within the Bay Area and what the VINE is currently using.  See Attachment 
A. 

C. The Route 29 monthly pass multiplier is based on an analysis of other express 
route services within the Bay Area and what is currently being used by the Vine.  
See Attachment B. 

D. As of June 1, 2014 the regulatory minimum farebox recovery ratio is 16% for urban 
transit services and 10% for rural and ADA paratransit services. 

E. Vine offers reduced fares to senior citizens and disabled persons.  The Vine honors 
the federal Medicare identification card, the California Department of Motor 
Vehicles disability ID card, the Regional Transit Connection Discount Card, or any 
other current identification card issued by another transit operator that is valid for 
the type of transportation service or discount requested; and when offering 
reduced fares to senior citizens, it also offers the same reduced fare to disabled 
patrons. 
F. Children 7 and under must always be accompanied by an adult.  

  

158



 

Napa County Valley Transportation Authority& Planning Agency 
[24] 

CHAPTER 4 PASSENGER COMPLAINT & COMMENT POLICIES & PROCEDURES 
 

Section 4.1. Overview 
NVTA maintains a philosophy of providing exceptional customer service and 
responsiveness to the public.  
  

4.1.1 Complaints & Comments 
A. Complaints and comments from the public may be received 

electronically through email and the VINEVine/NVTA web site, 
prepaid comment cards available in English and Spanish on VINE 
Vine vehicles, standard written correspondence, testimony at public 
meetings, and/or via telephone or in-person communication. 

B. NVTA’s transit operations contractor may also receive complaints or 
comments in one or more of the formats noted above 

C. When complaints are received, NVTA staff and/or contractor will 
acknowledge receipt of the complaint within 24 business hours from 
the time it is received. 

D. All complaints should be investigated and resolved within 5 business 
days. 

E. Complaining party shall be notified of the agency’s resolution of the 
complaint within 5 business days.  NVTA’s contractor shall maintain 
documentation of all complaints received and their resolution and 
provide monthly written summaries to be included in the contractor’s 
monthly invoice to NVTA. 

F. NVTA’s contractor shall maintain documentation of all complaints 
received and their resolution and provide monthly written summaries 
to be included in the contractor’s monthly invoice to NVTA. 

G. NVTA will maintain a log at on the shared office drive available 
(H:\NVTA\3000_Public Transit\03_Complaints & 
Suggestions\Comment log - revised 1-30-15.xlsx )so that all 
NVTA personnel can review and  record complaints 

H. Copies of relevant comment cards received shall be shared with the 
agency’s contract operator with the originals retained in hard copy or 
electronic form. 

 
 

  

159



 

Napa County Valley Transportation Authority& Planning Agency 
[25] 

4.1.2 Requests for Reasonable Modification 
Public Transit passengers with disabilities may request reasonable 
modifications be made to accommodate their use of public transit.  
A. Requests should be made in written form and submitted to the 

Manager of Public Transit. 
B. Individuals requesting modifications shall describe what they need in 

order to use the service. 
C. Individuals requesting modifications are not required to use the term 

‘‘reasonable modification’’ when making a request. 
D. Whenever feasible, requests for modifications shall be made and 

determined in advance, before the transportation provider is 
expected to provide the modified service, for example, during the 
paratransit eligibility process, through customer service inquiries, or 
through NVTA’s complaint process. 

E. Where a request for modification cannot practicably be made and 
determined in advance (e.g., because of a condition or barrier at the 
destination of a paratransit or fixed route trip of which the individual 
with a disability was unaware until arriving), operating personnel 
shall make a determination of whether the modification should be 
provided at the time of the request. Operating personnel may consult 
with NVTA management before making a determination to grant or 
deny the request. 

F. Requests for modification of NVTA’s policies and practices may be 
denied only on one or more of the following grounds: 
(1) Granting the request would fundamentally alter the nature of 
NVTA’s services, programs, or activities; 
(2) Granting the request would create a direct threat to the health or 
safety of others; 
(3) Without the requested modification, the individual with a disability 
is able to fully use NVTA’s services, programs, or activities for their 
intended purpose. 

G. In determining whether to grant a requested modification, NVTA shall 
be guided by the provisions of Department of Transportation 49 CFR 
Part 37, § 37.169 Appendix E. 

  

160



 

Napa County Valley Transportation Authority& Planning Agency 
[26] 

CHAPTER 5 ADA PARATRANSIT POLICIES 
 

Section 5.1. Service Overview 
Section 5.2. NVTA Eligibility Standards In compliance with the American’s 
with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990 the Napa Valley Transportation 
Authority (NVTA) provides complementary paratransit service (Vine Go) to 
the Vine fixed route bus system.  This service is available to all individuals 
deemed eligible that are making a trip with an origin and destination within 
three-quarters (¾) of a mile of a Vine fixed route corridor.  Vine Go 
paratransit operates as a curb-to-curb service.  NVTAEligibility Standards 
Per the ADA regulations individuals falling into one or more of the below categories 
are eligible to receive complementary ADA paratransit service: 
Category 1: Any individual with a disability who is unable, as the result of a physical 
or mental impairment (including a vision impairment), and without the assistance 
of another individual (except the operator of a wheelchair lift or other boarding 
assistance device), to board, ride, or disembark from any vehicle on the fixed route 
system which is readily accessible to and usable individuals with disabilities. 
Category 2: Any individual with a disability who needs the assistance of a 
wheelchair lift or other boarding assistance device and is able, with such 
assistance, to board, ride and disembark from any fixed route vehicle which is 
readily accessible to and usable by individuals with disabilities if the individual 
wants to travel on a route on the system during the hours of operation of the system 
at a time, or within a reasonable period of such time, when such a vehicle is not 
being used to provide designated public transportation on the route. 
Category 3: Any individual with a disability who has a specific impairment-related 
condition which prevents such individual from traveling to a boarding location or 
from a disembarking location on such system.  

• Under this condition an emphasis is placed on prevents.  A condition 
which makes traveling to boarding location or from a disembarking location 
more difficult for a person with a specific impairment-related condition than 
for an individual who does not have the condition, but does not prevent the 
travel, is not a basis for eligibility. 
• Architectural barriers not under the control of the public entity 
providing fixed route service and environmental barriers (e.g., distance, 
terrain, weather) do not, standing alone, form a basis for eligibility under this 
paragraph.  The interaction of such barriers with an individual's specific 
impairment-related condition may form a basis for eligibility under this 
standard, if the effect is to prevent the individual from traveling to a boarding 
location or from a disembarking location 

Section 5.3. Eligibility Determination Process 
Individuals applying for complementary ADA paratransit service shall fully 
complete and submit a Vine Go Eligibility Determination Form to NVTA.  

161



 

Napa County Valley Transportation Authority& Planning Agency 
[27] 

Applications are reviewed and the standards described in Section II of this policy 
are used to make a determination from the information provided by the applicant. 
In cases where a reviewer requires further information to make an accurate 
decision regarding an applicant’s eligibility, the applicant or their designated 
contact will be contacted via phone to ascertain the information.Individuals wishing 
to apply for ADA paratransit service shall schedule an appointment with NVTA’s 
designated eligibility contractor. Applicants will complete an in-person evaluation 
performed by NVTA’s contractor before a determination of eligibility is made.   All 
decisions regarding an applicant’s eligibility shall be rendered in written form within 
twenty-one (21) days of receiving the applicant’s determination form regardless of 
any follow up. 
Section 5.4. Eligibility Categories 
NVTA separates eligible individuals into three distinct categories: unconditional, 
conditional, and temporary. Unconditional eligibility is assigned to individuals who 
are unable to use fixed route transit under any circumstances.  Conditional 
eligibility is assigned to individuals who are able to independently use fixed route 
transit under some circumstances.  Those “circumstances” are determined at the 
time of an applicant’s evaluation and are then adhered to when scheduling rides.  
Temporary eligibility is assigned to individuals who experience a temporary loss of 
functional ability that prevents them from using fixed route service.  Each eligibility 
category shall result in differing terms regarding the span of time in which an 
individual is certified to use ADA paratransit.  Individuals deemed unconditional 
shall remain eligible indefinitely due to the fact most disabilities that would result in 
this type of categorization do not improve with time.  Unconditional individuals will 
receive a letter every three (3) years to ensure the most up to date information is 
on record.  Conditionally eligible individuals shall remain certified for a period of 
three (3) years.  Prior to their expiration conditionally eligible individuals will be sent 
a letter asking to renew as well as a new application.  The determination of 
eligibility may change during their renewal, should their disability either improved 
or deteriorated.  Temporarily eligible individuals will also be sent a letter and 
application at the end of their term giving them the opportunity to renew should 
they feel that their condition still prevents them from riding fixed route transit. 
Section 5.5. Appeals Process 
If a paratransit applicant is deemed ineligible and does not agree with the 
determination they have the right to appeal the decision.  To formally appeal a 
decision a letter must be submitted to NVTA within 60 days of receiving an eligibility 
determination letter.  The letter shall be addressed to NVTA 625 Burnell St. Napa, 
CA 94559 to the attention of the Manger of Public Transit.  Upon receiving the 
letter an appeals panel will be assembled to hear an applicant’s appeal.  The 
applicant or someone they appoint to speak on their behalf shall be contacted and 
an in person meeting with the panel will be scheduled.  The panel shall consist of 
a member of Napa County’s Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC), a member of 
NVTA’s Consumer Advocacy Committee (CAC)Evaluation Contractor’s evaluation 
staff, and the Manager of Public Transit or his/her designated staff member.  The 
appeals panel will render a final written decision within thirty (30) days of hearing 

162



 

Napa County Valley Transportation Authority& Planning Agency 
[28] 

the appeal.  Should the appeals panel not render a decision within the thirty (30) 
days after the completion of the appeals process, NVTA shall provide paratransit 
service to the applicant until a decision is rendered. Free transportation shall be 
provided to the appealing applicant and their personal care attendant (PCA) to the 
appeals hearing. 
Section 5.6. Visitors 
Complementary paratransit service is available to visitors.  A visitor is defined as 
anyone coming from an area outside of the nine (9) Bay Area Counties.  All visitors 
must submit a proof of eligibility as determined by the jurisdiction in which they 
formally reside prior to their use of the Vine Go system. In a case where an 
individual has no formal documentation of ADA eligibility, the individual is to 
provide documentation of residence outside of the Bay Area, and if the individual’s 
disability is no apparent, proof of disability.  Visitors shall be able to use Vine Go 
for a total of twenty-one (21) days within a three hundred and sixty-five (365) day 
period.  Should an individual need service beyond the twenty-one (21) total days 
they shall be required to apply for local certification. 
Section 5.7. Reservation and Scheduling 
Eligible individuals may schedule their trips as early as seven (7) days in advance 
or as late as the day before the intended trip. For clarification, the “day before” is 
not considered to be twenty-four (24) hours prior to the intended trip.  A request 
for a morning trip can be made in the afternoon of the day before.  Trips are 
schedule on a first come, first serve basis. No trips will be given priority over the 
other based on trip purpose or destination. Reservationist may negotiate an eligible 
individual’s requested pickup time up to one hour before or after the desired pickup 
time.  Reservationists shall be available to schedule trips from 8:00AM to 6:00PM, 
Monday through Friday and 8:00AM to 5:00PM Saturday through Sunday. NVTA 
does not provide subscription service. 
Section 5.8. Hours of Operation and Service Area 
NVTA shall operate complementary paratransit service during the same days and 
hours that fixed route service operates.  Thus, if an individual can travel from a 
given origin to a given destination on a particular fixed route at a certain time of 
day, a paratransit eligible person must also be able to travel from the same origin 
to that same destination on paratransit at that time of day.  Because paratransit 
service is required to be available during the same hours and days as the fixed 
route system, and because not all fixed routes will necessarily be operating at a 
given time on a given day, the shape of the paratransit service area can be 
expected to change accordingly.  For example, it is common for certain routes to 
not run late at night or on Sundays.  Those routes, and their associated paratransit 
corridors, are not served with paratransit when the fixed route system is not 
running on them. 
Section 5.9. Fares 
NVTA shall set its fares for paratransit trips at twice that of a comparable fixed 
route trip. Eligible individuals shall pay their fare upon boarding.  Personal care 

163



 

Napa County Valley Transportation Authority& Planning Agency 
[29] 

attendants (PCA) that are specifically identified in an eligible individual’s file ride 
for free. Should an eligible individual have a companion that is not their designated 
PCA, that individual shall be required to pay the same fare amount as the eligible 
individual they are travelling with. 
Section 5.10. Mobility Devices 
Vine and Vine Go transit vehicles are designed to accommodate most wheelchairs 
and mobility aids. NVTA defines a wheelchair as a mobility aid that belongs to any 
class of three or more wheeled devices, is manual or powered, usable indoors and/ 
or outdoors, and designed or modified for the an individual’s mobility impairments. 
The maximum amount that a lift on the fixed route system can safely accommodate 
is 600lbs (rider and mobility device combined). Some ramp equipped fixed route 
vehicles can accommodate 800lbs however there is no guarantee that those 
specific vehicles will be available for one’s trip.  For safety reasons riders and their 
mobility device that have a combined weight of 600lbs or more are encouraged to 
use paratransit.  The maximum the lifts on NVTA’s paratransit fleet can safely 
accommodate is 800lbs. If the combined weight of a rider and their mobility device 
is 800lbs or greater Vine Go cannot accommodate them safely and the rider will 
be directed to make other transportation arrangements. 
Section 5.11. Passenger Accompaniment 
NVTA guarantees any eligible paratransit user one travel companion. Additional 
persons accompanying eligible individuals are to be served on a space-available 
basis to prevent displacement of other ADA paratransit eligible individuals. NVTA 
does not limit who the companion may be; the companion may be a family 
member, friend, or business associate, etc.  NVTA requires that the eligible 
individual reserve a space for the companion when reserving his or her own ride. 
A personal care attendant (PCA), someone designated or employed to assist the 
eligible individual, may always ride with the eligible individual.  If there is a PCA on 
the trip, the eligible individual may still bring a companion, as well as additional 
companions on a space-available basis.  To be considered as “accompanying” the 
eligible individual, a companion must have the same origin and destination points 
as the eligible individual. 
 
NVTA allows service animals to accompany paratransit users on all trips.  A service 
animal is defined by the ADA as “any guide dog, signal dog, or other animal 
individually trained to work or perform tasks for an individual with a disability, 
including, but not limited to, guiding individuals with impaired vision, alerting 
individuals with impaired hearing to intruders or sounds, providing minimal 
protection or rescue work, pulling a wheelchair, or fetching dropped items.”  
Emotional support, therapy, comfort, or companion animals are not considered 
“service animals” as they have not been trained to perform a specific job or task . 
Operational staff may ask if an animal is a service animal or ask what tasks the 
animal has been trained to perform in cases where it is not obvious that an animal 
is a service animal. NVTA shall not require the exclusion of a service animal unless 
the animal is out of control and the animal's owner does not take effective action 
to control it or the animal poses a direct threat to the health or safety of others. 

164



 

Napa County Valley Transportation Authority& Planning Agency 
[30] 

NVTA does not limit the number of service animals accompanying a user as long 
as each animal meets the definition of a service animal and is kept under the 
control of the rider. 
Section 5.12. Passenger Assistance 
As defined in Section I of these policies NVTA’s ADA paratransit shall operate as 
a curb-to-curb service. Drivers will provide assistance beyond the curb on an as-
needed basis.  NVTA shall ask users upon requesting their ride to inform the 
reservationist if this aid is needed for their pickup and/or drop-off.  Should a user 
not inform the reservationist or a barrier becomes present that was unknown 
creating the requirement of assistance from the driver, assistance shall not be 
denied.  Although assistance beyond the curb shall be provided on a case by case 
basis it is NVTA policy that drivers are able to maintain “effective continuing 
control” of the vehicle.  Effective continuing control is defined by the NVTA as the 
driver being able to maintain visual contact with the vehicle at all times in cases 
where a user needs assistance beyond the curb.  Drivers are also prohibited to 
enter private residences or past the first exterior door of any other building even if 
visual contact with the vehicle can be maintained. 
Section 5.13. No-Shows 
A no-show is defined as a situation where a rider does not take a scheduled ride 
or cancels their trip an hour or less before their scheduled pickup time due to 
reasons within their control.  Trips missed due to sudden illness, family emergency, 
or transit agency error or lateness considered outside of the rider’s control are not 
considered a “no-show”.  A no-show often results in a wasted trip that could have 
otherwise been given to someone else. Due to critical nature of paratransit trips 
NVTA takes chronic no-shows very seriously.  ADA regulations allow paratransit 
service to be suspended for a reasonable amount of time when a rider consistently 
does not appear for scheduled trips.  Missing three (3) trips or 10% or more of a 
passenger’s total trips in a calendar month is considered chronic no-show 
behavior.  If a rider presents chronic no-show behavior he or she will be provided 
with written notification of their impending suspension and the degree of their 
penalty.  The penalties are described below: 

• 1st month – Passenger will receive a phone call and a letter to review 
the policy and rider expectations. 
• 2nd month – Seven (7) day suspension 
• 3rd month – Fourteen (14) day suspension 
• 4th month and after – increasing penalties by one (1) week up to one 
(1) month suspension. 
• Penalties will reset after a year period from the first warning letter.  

At any point that an individual receives a written warning or impending suspension 
notice they may appeal the suspension within sixty (60) days of receipt.  The 
appeals panel will render a final written decision within thirty (30) days of receiving 
the appeal. 

165



 

Napa County Valley Transportation Authority& Planning Agency 
[31] 

Section 5.14. Pick-Ups 
NVTA requests that riders be ready for pick-up at their scheduled time. Drivers 
shall wait five (5) minutes past the scheduled pick-up time for a registrant to make 
an indication they are present and planning to make their trip. If a registrant does 
not show themselves or make a good faith effort they to inform the driver they are 
making their way to the vehicle the driver will depart and the registrant will be 
considered a no-show.  This five (5) minute window shall commence from the 
scheduled time of pick-up, not when the vehicle arrives.  If a driver arrives prior to 
the scheduled pick-up they cannot commence the countdown until the scheduled 
pick-up time.  Should a driver arrive early there is no obligation for the registrant to 
board the vehicle.  Although there is no obligation a registrant may elect to depart 
early, and the trip will be considered early.  A trip is considered “on-time” when a 
vehicle arrives within thirty (30) minutes of the scheduled pick-up time. If the 
vehicle arrives outside of the thirty (30) minute window they are considered late.  
To ensure a high quality of service NVTA expects that 90% of pick-ups are either 
on-time (within the 30-minute window) or are early. 
Section 5.15. Denials and Missed Trips 
NVTA shall have no denials of service.  NVTA’s operator shall make it a top priority 
to provide enough capacity on the system to meet demand.  Missed trips are trips 
that are not completed due to agency error.  They shall be defined as follows. 

• The vehicle arrives and leaves before the beginning of the pickup 
window without picking up the rider and without any indication from the rider 
that he or she no longer wants to make the trip. Note that a rider is not 
obligated to board until the beginning of the pickup window or—for transit 
agencies that have a 5-minute wait-time policy—from the start of the pickup 
window until 5 minutes have elapsed. 
• The vehicle does not wait the required time within the pickup window, 
there is no contact with the rider, and the vehicle departs without the rider. 
Note that if during the wait time the rider indicates he or she no longer wants 
to take the trip, this is typically recorded as a “cancel at the door.” 
•  The vehicle arrives after the end of the pickup window and departs 
without picking up the rider (either because the rider is not there or declines 
to take the trip because it is now late). 
• The vehicle does not arrive at the pickup location. 

Section 5.16. Trip Length 
NVTA shall sample twenty (20) random weekday trips, five (5) Saturday trips, and 
three (3) Sunday trips on a monthly basis to ensure that travel times are 
comparable to the travel times an individual would have on a comparable fixed 
route trip. NVTA expects trips to be comparable 95% of the time. 
Section 5.17. Equivalent Service 
NVTA operates four on-demand shuttle services in the communities of Calistoga, 
St. Helena, Yountville, and American Canyon. These on-demand services shall 
operate as complementary ADA paratransit for all trips originating and ending 
within their respective service areas. To ensure equitable service NVTA shall 

166



 

Napa County Valley Transportation Authority& Planning Agency 
[32] 

ensure that response times, fare, geographic service area, hours/days of 
operation, restrictions, availability of information and reservation capability, and 
constraints on capacity or availability are equal between ADA and non-ADA eligible 
riders of each on-demand shuttle service. 

 
NVTANVTA  

167



 

Napa County Valley Transportation Authority& Planning Agency 
[33] 

CHAPTER 6 CHARTER & SCHOOL BUS 
 

Section 6.1. Statement of Policy 
Consistent with federal regulations, NVTA shall not operate charter or school bus 
services except as permitted under CFR 49 - Part 604 and 49 CFR Part 605 
  

168



 

Napa County Valley Transportation Authority& Planning Agency 
[34] 

CHAPTER 7 SHARED VEHICLE PROGRAM 
 

Section 7.1. Statement of Policy 
The Shared Vehicle Program shall be expressly for 501(c)(3) organizations that 
serve the elderly and/or disabled. 

7.1.1 Participation 
Participating organizations must: 

A. Sign a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with NVTA; 
B. Identify a staff member or volunteer from their agency as a 

prospective driver 
C. Add driver on the borrowing agency’s workers’ compensation policy 
D. Have insurance for general Liability 
E. Have insurance for Hired & Non-Owned Auto Liability 
F. Name NVTA as an additional insured on the above listed insurance 

policies 
G. Provide proof that driver candidate is an employee or volunteer 

covered under that agency’s workers compensation insurance 
H. Schedule time to borrow a vehicle on an as available basis 
I. Pick up and return the vehicle 
J. Prepare and submit necessary trip paperwork on the use of the 

vehicle 
K. Replace the gasoline used at their expense 

7.1.2 NVTA Responsibilities  
A. NVTA must perform a Department of Justice background check on 

the driver candidates. 
B. NVTA shall provide driver training to driver candidates. 
C. Driver candidates must secure the appropriate license. 
D. Driver candidates must agree to undergo random drug testing. 
E. NVTA shall add drivers onto its vehicle insurance policy. 

  

169



 

Napa County Valley Transportation Authority& Planning Agency 
[35] 

CHAPTER 8 TAXI SCRIP 
 

Section 8.1. Statement of Policy 
NVTA provides a limited amount of subsidized taxi rides within the City of Napa 
as a lifeline service to supplement regular fixed-route transit. 
The NVTA Taxi Program shall be a lifeline service only for residents over of the 
City of Napa 65 years of age or older or persons with disabilities travelling to 
destinations within the City of Napa.  Napa residents that have been ADA Vine Go 
certified have presumptive eligibility in the Taxi program. 

8.1.1 Participation & Compliance 
8.1.1.1 Users 

A. Tipping with scrip is prohibited. 
B. Three books of scrip per month per client maximum. 
C. All scrip users must be enrolled and follow the rules of NVTA Taxi 

Program. 
D. All users must show Taxi Program ID with photo (or Taxi Program ID 

w/o photo and another Picture ID) every time they wish to pay with 
scrip. 

E. Use of Scrip may not exceed $12 per trip. 
F. Scrip expires 3 years from issuance. 
G. Taxi scrip is non-refundable or exchangeable. 
H. Only residents meeting the established program criteria are eligible 

to enroll. 
I. All program applicants must complete a Taxi Scrip application.  

Applications may take up to 21 days to process. 
8.1.1.2 Agencies 

A. Agencies wishing to have their clients participate in the NVTA taxi 
Program must direct their clients to NVTA to enroll and follow the 
same rules as individual participants.   

B. Agencies distributing scrip must record transactions in on-line data 
base. 

8.1.1.3 Taxi Company’s 
A. Taxis may wait up to 5 minutes for passengers. 
B. Taxi drivers may not provide change for taxi scrip. 
C. Taxi companies are required to show complete street addresses for 

all trips. 
D. NVTA shall only be billed and will only pay the exact meter rate for 

trips. 
E. Drivers may not give change for rides paid by scrip, accept the 

balance of scrip as a tip, or wait for a passenger with the meter 
running in excess of 5 minutes. 

170



 

Napa County Valley Transportation Authority& Planning Agency 
[36] 

F. Any taxi operator with a current, valid City of Napa Taxi operator 
license may participate in the taxi program.  Drivers are required to 
use NVTA trip sheet and check required passenger ID(s). 

G. In order to receive compensation for rides provided, taxi operators 
must submit NVTA required invoicing forms and driver trip sheets, 
remit collected taxi scrip, and otherwise operate within the program 
general policies. 
  

171



 

Napa County Valley Transportation Authority& Planning Agency 
[37] 

CHAPTER 9 PASSENGER POLICIES 
 

Section 9.1. Statement of Policy 
The Agency is committed to providing a safe, enjoyable experience for all passengers. 

Section 9.2. Passenger Code of Conduct 
To keep VINE Transit Services enjoyable for all, the following rules apply: 

A. Smoking, Eating, Drinking, Radios playing sound without earphones, 
Littering, Vandalism, Offensive Language or Behavior or Animals 
(unless a service animal is in a pet carrier) are not permitted. 

B. Food & Drinks:  To keep buses clean, open food and drink containers are 
not permitted on the bus.  Travel mugs and sippy cups with tight-fitting, 
secure lids are OK. 

C. Carry-On Items:  Limit carry-ons to the size and number you can easily 
handle.  No flammable or hazardous items are permitted. 

D. Bus Stops:  Buses stop only at designated bus stops.   
E. Bikes on Buses:   All buses (except VINE Go) shall be equipped with bike 

racks.  Availability of bike racks is on a first-come, first- served basis.  
Bicyclists are responsible for loading, securing and unloading their bicycles.  
Bus drivers will not assist.  Bikes are only permitted inside the bus on buses 
retrofitted with interior bike racks.   

F. Wheelchairs, Scooters and other Mobility Aids:  The Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA) requires that all new fixed route buses (since the 1990 
ADA law was enacted) meet the definition of a “common wheelchair”.  A 
“common wheelchair” is a three or four wheeled mobility device that does 
not exceed 30 inches in width and 48 inches in length as measured two 
inches above the ground, and does not weigh more than 600 pounds when 
occupied.  

G. Securing Mobility Devices:  All Wheelchairs and Scooters must be 
secured.  Passengers may transfer to a seat, or if they remain using the 
wheelchair or scooter, the driver will also recommend that they are secured 
with an over shoulder strap. 

H. Walkers:  The driver will secure walkers inside the bus. 
I. Oxygen Units:  Potable oxygen units are preferred.  Large oxygen cylinders 

must be transported in a holder on wheels or attached firmly to a manual 
wheelchair.   

J. Boarding by the Wheelchair Lift:  Passengers who prefer to board the 
bus using the lift should ask the driver to assist them.  

K. Service Animals:  Service animals are welcome at all times.  The service 
animal may travel on the floor beside its owner, or on the owner’s lap.  
Animals are not permitted to run free inside the bus, nor sit on bus seats.   
  

172



 

Napa County Valley Transportation Authority& Planning Agency 
[38] 

 
NVTA has a passenger code of conduct that shall be posted on all buses: 
 

 
  

To Our Passengers: 
 
At the Vine we are committed to providing you with a clean, safe, courteous and 
comfortable environment.  
 
-Please be respectful to other riders and your bus driver   
-Please use earphones with listening devices  
-Please refrain from using vulgar or abusive language 
-Please be respectful when using your cell phone 
-Please refrain from eating on the bus 
-Please ensure all beverages are in secure containers 
-Please do not bring hazardous materials or weapons of any kind on the bus   
 
For a complete copy of our Code of Conduct Policies go to 
www.Ridethevine.com or call 707-251-2800. 
 
Working together we can all have a great ride! 

173

http://www.ridethevine.com/


 

Napa County Valley Transportation Authority& Planning Agency 
[39] 

CHAPTER 10 VEHICLE ACCUDEBT ACCIDENT POLICIES & PROCEDURES 
 

Section 10.1. Statement of Policy 
NVTA considers passenger safety the highest priority in its public transit services. 
All vehicle incidents and accidents involving injury shall be reported to NVTA staff 
by the agency’s contractor within 24 hours of occurrence.  In the event of serious 
injury, NVTA staff should be notified immediately 
Within 72 hours NVTA’s contractor shall provide the agency complete 
documentation of all accidents/incidents including, but not limited to, accident 
investigation forms, supervisor’s notes, photographs and/or video of vehicle(s) and 
accident scene. 
A summary of all accidents and incidents shall be provided by operations 
contractor in each monthly billing invoice. 
The NVTA Executive Director shall be notified of any accident or incident in which 
medical care was provided at the scene and/or subjects were transported to a 
medical facility.  
  

174



 

Napa County Valley Transportation Authority& Planning Agency 
[40] 

CHAPTER 11 STATE OF GOOD REPAIR 
 

Section 11.1. Statement of Policy 
Maintaining the agency’s transit assets in a state of good repair is essential for 
delivering safe and reliable transit service.  
The agency will maintain an asset management database to log the value and 
condition of capital assets. 
In developing transit budgets and short and long range transit plans, the agency 
shall prioritize the replacement and/or repair and refurbishment of capital assets 
to maintain a state of good repair.  
The agency contractor will schedule maintenance on intervals that support system 
wide state of good repair and maintain records of service and maintenance for 
vehicles and equipment for which they are contractually responsible to maintain. 
The agency will schedule maintenance on intervals that support system wide state 
of good repair and maintain records of service and maintenance for those items 
not operated by contractor. 
  

175



Napa County Valley Transportation Authority& Planning Agency 
[41] 

CHAPTER 12 SAFETY & SECURITY 
Section 12.1. Statement of Policy 
NVTA’s contract transit provider shall maintain, implement and annually update a 
Safety and Security Management Plan.  

176



 

Napa County Valley Transportation Authority& Planning Agency 
[42] 

CHAPTER 13 BUS STOP PLACEMENT 
 

Section 13.1. Statement of Policy 
As indicated in Section 1 Service Standards, stops shall be placed between ¼ mile 
and 2 miles depending upon service type.  Other considerations in stop location, 
improvement or removal are indicated below: 
A. Stops should service pedestrian linkages to and within neighborhoods. 
B. Stops should provide convenient access to schools, shopping centers, medical 

facilities, high density residential, commercial and retail developments. 
C. Stops should be ADA accessible 
D. Before a stop is removed or relocated an analysis of average daily boardings shall 

be performed. 
E. Before a stop may be permanently removed from service a notice in English and 

Spanish shall be placed at the stop for no less than 14 days to provide the public 
an opportunity to comment on the proposed stop closure. 

F. Stops relocated within 600 feet for the purpose of greater access or safety shall 
not be considered removed. 

G. Stop amenities vary by location.  Stops with highest usage should be prioritized for 
investments in stop upgrades. 

H. Bus shelters and stop designs should complement the design aesthetic of the 
surrounding neighborhood.   

 
The recommended stop spacing guidelines are based upon the best practices 
research and staff knowledge of local conditions.  The goal is to balance the 
needs of passengers and the operator.  While a short distance between stops 
means a shorter walk for customers, the result is a longer ride for them in the 
end. The more opportunities for boarding and alighting along a route results in 
longer trips because of the time it takes for the bus to decelerate, come to a 
complete stop, collect fares from passengers, wait for the passengers to sit 
down, and then accelerate and merge into traffic.  
 

A. Local Route  
Local stop spacing is broken down into two categories, urban and 
suburban. Urban is relegated to Downtown defined as First through Fifth 
Street and Main to Franklin Street and Suburban is the rest of the City of 
Napa. For the Urban service type, the average distance between stops is 
1,000ft apart and for Suburban the average is 1,500ft. 
B. Regional Route 
On the Routes 10 and 11 there is a wide range of stop distances due to 
the different land uses and densities along these two routes. The 
recommended average distance is 4,500 ft. The idea is that within 
incorporated areas the stops on average can be 1,500ft, in alignment with 
Suburban standards, and then in rural areas, particularly along the 
Route10, the stops can be further apart, closer to 20,000 ft.   

177



 

Napa County Valley Transportation Authority& Planning Agency 
[43] 

 
  

Type of NVTA Service Range Average 
Local 

- Urban 
- Suburban 

  
500 to 1,500 ft 
1,000 to 2,000 ft 
 

1,000 ft 
1,500 ft 

Regional 
 
1,500 to 20,000 ft 

 
4,500 ft 

  

Express 

 
Major Employment 
Center 

 
25,000 ft 

  
 

The Routes 10 and 11 share an alignment between Napa Valley College 
and the Redwood Park and Ride.  There may be opportunities to eliminate 
some duplicative stops along this shared alignment especially along 
Soscol Ave near the Soscol Gateway Transit Center (SGTC) where there 
are stops less than 1,500 ft from the SGTC that predate the construction 
of the SGTC.   

 
C. Express Routes 

 
The recommendation for stops to be located at a major employment 
center with an average distance of 25,000 ft apart is similar to the current 
spacing along the Routes 21 and 29.  The Express Bus Corridor Study 
completed by NVTA in 2017 recommends the elimination of the Route 21 
stop at Corporate Drive due to low boarding at that stop.  The elimination 
of this stop will result in the modification of the route alignment between 
the Napa Valley College and the Devlin Road/Airport Blvd stop.  These 
changes will decrease the travel time on the Route 21.  

 
Minimal changes are necessary to the stop spacing on the Route 29.  As 
outlined in detail in the Express Bus Corridor Study, in order to speed up 
the Route 29 there is a need to make efficiency improvements to existing 
stops and to move stops closer to the main Highway 29 corridor. If stops 
are added in the future, the stops should only be at major employment 
centers.  

178



 

Napa County Valley Transportation Authority& Planning Agency 
[44] 

Section 13.2. Process for Implementing Bus Stop Spacing 
Recommendations 

A. Evaluate the Current Distance Between Bus Stops Against 
Spacing Guidelines 
The next steps is to evaluate the current distance between bus stops 
against spacing guideline and either leave the stop unchanged,  insert an 
additional stop, consolidate the stop or eliminate a stop as follows: 

 
Unchanged - if the stop meets the spacing interval  

 
Insert Additional Stop – spacing greater than the maximum recommended 
interval 

 
Consolidate Stop  

If spacing is less than interval then evaluate both stops 

One stop is either a hub or has a shelter, evaluate the other 
stop 

 
If the other stop meets the seven requirements of the 
Stop Consolidation Checklist then move forward with 
consolidation. 

Eliminate Stop 
If spacing is less than interval then evaluate both stops 

Neither stop is a hub or has a shelter, evaluate the stop with the 
lower ridership 

 
If the other stop meets the six requirements of the Stop 
Elimination Checklist the move forward with elimination. 

 
 

B. Stop Elimination Checklist 
In order to NVTA to eliminate stop the answer to the following questions 
needs to be Yes.  
 

Criteria to Eliminate Yes/No 
The adjacent stops left unaltered adhere to the prescribed 
spacing requirements for their service area. 

 
 

Adjacent stops are designed accordingly to absorb additional 
ridership. 

 
 

The stops does not provide direct access to connecting 
transit services, or if it does there are stops further along the 
route that will provide the same connections. 

 

 

 

179



 

Napa County Valley Transportation Authority& Planning Agency 
[45] 

Criteria to Eliminate Yes/No 
The stop being removed does not meet ADA guidelines, or 
both adjacent stops meet ADA guidelines. 

 

The stops does not serve existing community resources such 
as schools, hospitals, senior center, recreation centers, and 
locations providing public service.  

 

 

 
C. Stop Consolidation Checklist 
In order to NVTA to eliminate stop the answer to the following questions 
needs to be Yes.  
 

Criteria to Eliminate Yes/No 
The new stops location has adequate pedestrian access, 
such as direct sidewalk connections and safe pedestrian 
crossings 

 

 

The new stop location adheres to the spacing requirements 
with adjacent stops. 

 
 

The new location meets ADA guidelines or can be 
reasonably modified to meet guidelines. 

 
 

If either stop being considered for consolidation is a transfer 
stop, existing transfer opportunities at the new stops location 
are possible within two or fewer street crossings or at another 
sop location along the line.  

 

 

The stops being considered will not impact more than 20% of 
the entire route’s daily ridership  

 
 

The stops being considered for consolidation do not directly 
serve existing community resources such as schools, 
hospitals, senior centers, and locations providing public 
services.   

 

 

The new location will improve or maintain running times.    
 

 

Section 13.3. Adding a Shelter 
In order to be considered as a potential location for a bus shelter, the stop in 
question must obtain a minimum of: 

• 20 boarding’s per average weekday on regional or express Routes 
• 10 boarding’s per average weekday on local routes 

Stops which do not meet these minimum ridership requirements will not be 
considered for further analysis. 

• Further analysis involves the following factors ridership, exposure, 
transfer, transit frequency, high priority community resources, and the 
ability to remain ADA accessible.  

180



 

Napa County Valley Transportation Authority& Planning Agency 
[46] 

Section 13.4. Ongoing Monitoring and Corrective Action 
Existing services should be monitored annually to see if additional shelters are 
necessary.  All stops added to new service must adhere to the recommended Spacing 
Guidelines for local, regional and express bus service outlined in this document.  

 
  

181



 

Napa County Valley Transportation Authority& Planning Agency 
[47] 

CHAPTER 14 CONTRACTOR RELATIONS & OVERSIGHT 
 

Section 14.1. Overview 
The agency engages a variety of contractors for the provision of single, periodic 
and/or on-going services.  Initial Contractor solicitation and selection shall be 
conducted as outlined in section Chapter 5:  Contracts and Procurement. 
During the duration of any contract NVTA personnel shall carry out relations with 
the vendor commensurate with the highest standards of professional and ethical 
conduct.  Oversight and reporting of contract compliance shall be consistent with 
all applicable state and federal laws and consistent with the requirements set forth 
in related to the related proposal and contract documents. 
The agency contracts for the operation of transit services.  Agency staff shall 
monitor contractor performance consistent with all FTA requirements for 3rd Party 
Oversight.  In addition, certain performance standards are established as part of 
the contract award with the selected vendor.  These metrics shall be monitored 
regularly utilizing a mutually agreed methodology. 
  

182



 

Napa County Valley Transportation Authority& Planning Agency 
[48] 

CHAPTER 15 TITLE VI 
 

Section 15.1. Statement of Policy 
To ensure compliance of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the agency is 
committed to providing transit services to individuals of diverse cultural and 
economic backgrounds and, to the maximum extent practicable, removing barriers 
to the use of public transit.  To this end, the agency shall ensure: 
A. All Vine literature provided to the public is produced in English and Spanish 
B. All public postings related to service policies and operations are produced 

in English and Spanish 
C. Bus schedules have adequate information in Spanish to allow successful 

comprehension of the information presented 
D. The Vine website has translation options consistent with industry standards 
E. The Vine website will clearly identify Title VI complaint procedures 
F. All buses maintain up-to-date Title VI notifications 

183



1 
 

Bus Stop Optimization and 
Maintenance Plan  

Introduction and Purpose 
The Vine Transit system is managed by the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) and is 
comprised of roughly 346 bus stops throughout Napa County.  The purpose of the Napa Valley 
Transportation Authority’s (NVTA) Bus Stop Optimization and Maintenance Plan is to officially 
adopt a set of policies for the creation of new bus stops, the consolidation of existing bus stops, 
and to set the thresholds for allocating amenities throughout the Vine system. The plan will also 
ensure that in all cases where a stop is improved or added to the system proper specifications 
are adhered to as they relate to the American’s with Disabilities Act (ADA), jurisdictions’ and 
agency design standards.  

Bus stops have been added incrementally over time leading to inconsistent spacing and 
arbitrarily placed amenities. This plan will review the whole system and optimize the placement 
of stops with the goal of increasing the efficiency of the Vine. 

Why Optimize Bus Stops  
Placing stops too close together can negatively impact the speed of service and placing stops 
too far apart may decrease the appeal of transit as walking distances become too far.  Optimal 
stop spacing balances the need for a quick walk and efficient bus operations.  As shown in 
Figure 1, stops spaced too far apart result in gaps in coverage and increased walking distances. 
Typically the walkshed for a bus stop is a quarter mile, roughly a 5-minute walk.  Not enough 
spacing results in an overlap of coverage. Passengers waiting at stops become more spread out 
and the bus may need to board 
passengers at every stop along a 
heavily used corridor. Ideal stop 
spacing means that passengers 
can easily walk to strategically 
placed stops which consolidate 
boardings allowing the bus to 
travel at an optimal speed.            

Peer Standards 
NVTA staff reviewed several 
existing bus stop policies and 
found that there is no universally 

Figure 1: Bus Stop Spacing Diagram 

ATTACHMENT 2 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.4 

April 18, 2018 

184



2 
 

accepted stop spacing that can be applied to all land use patterns.  Figure 2 shows the 
recommended spacing for specific land use patterns as determined by the Transportation 
Research (TRB) Board’s Transit Cooperative Research Program. The recommendations follow a 
distinct pattern, the denser the land use the closer the stops should be placed. 

 

Additional data compiled by the Maryland Department of Transportation (MTA) is shown in 
Figure 3.  This data is from 2014 when the organization was updating its policy. The MTA data 
indicates that many of the large transit agencies across the country also group their bus stop 
spacing based on the land use pattern being served.   The agencies included in the data are: 
Southeastern Pennsylvania Transportation Authority that operates in Philadelphia (SEPTA), Tri-
County Metropolitan Transportation District of Oregon that operates in Portland (Tri Met), San 
Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency that operates in San Francisco (SFMTA), 
Massachusetts Bay Transportation Authority that operates in Boston (MBTA), and Hampton 
Roads Transit (HRT).  Similar to the recommendations in Figure 2, distance between stops 
increases as density decreases.  There is a wide range of stop spacing in Downtown and Urban 
Areas, but across agencies, the suburban stop distance is consistently around 1,000 feet apart.  
Being large agencies primarily serving urban areas, the study did not provide rural stop spacing 
parameters.  

Figure 2:  Bus Stop Spacing Transportation Research Board 

185



3 
 

 

Stop spacing can also be a product of service typologies   Figure 4 outlines the Alameda-Contra 
Costa Transit District’s (AC Transit) policy for local, rapid, transbay/express and flexible or 
community circulators.   The spacing balances the need to provide geographic coverage versus 
the need for operational efficiencies. 

  

 

Figure 3:  Bus Stop Spacing of Select Transit Agencies 

Figure 4:  AC Transit Stop Spacing Policy 

186



4 
 

Additional key considerations taken from the background research are as follows:  

• Changes should not result in an existing customer being more than ½ mile from the 
new/changes stop 

• Be sure to comply with ADA requirements 
• Transfer locations should be within ½ block 

 

Bus Stop Spacing Guidelines for NVTA 
 
This section compares the current baseline data for the Vine system against the best practices 
data and makes recommendations about the type of bus stop policy that NVTA should institute. 
The current spacing of stops varies greatly throughout the Vine service area.  The Vine operates 
in cities and towns of the Napa Valley as well as the agricultural areas of the unincorporated 
county.  The diverse land use patterns served by the Vine result in a system wide average of 
1.84 miles between stops. Local routes (Routes 1-8) in the City of Napa are spaced on average 
1,583 feet apart (0.28 miles). On regional services (Routes 10, 11, 21 and 29) the distance 
between the stops jumps up to 2.58 miles on average.    
 
Existing Stop Distances 
 
Local Routes 
The local routes in the Vine system include Routes 1 through 8, which operate within the limits 
of the City of Napa.  With the exception of Downtown Napa, these routes operate in a suburban 
environment and adhere to the spacing recommended by the Transportation Research Board 
as well as the bus stop spacing policies of many of the largest agencies across the country.  

• Route 1 – 1,741ft (0.33 miles) 
• Route 2 – 1,398ft (0.26 miles) 
• Route 3 – 1,619ft (0.31 miles) 
• Route 4 – 1,731ft (0.33 miles) 
• Route 5 – 1,607ft (0.30 miles) 
• Route 6 – 1,495ft (0.28 miles) 
• Route 7 – 1,277ft (0.24 miles) 
• Route 8 – 1,335ft (0.25 miles) 

A closer look at the individual stops shows that no stops are more than 0.5 miles apart.  Route 8 
is an excellent example of ideal spacing, stops are nearly perfectly spaced along the route at 
about 0.25 miles or 1,335 feet as shown in Figure 6.  Other routes, however, have stops that are 

 

187



5 
 

too close together.  For example, on the Route 7 along Byway East there are stops to the north 
and south of Reed Circle, about a distance of only 350 feet.  Overall, the need for new stops is 
limited, but there is justification for stop consolidation or elimination. 

Regional Routes 
The regional routes in the Vine system include Routes 10 and 11.  These routes travel up and 
down the Napa Valley and through all the incorporated areas as well as the rural 
unincorporated areas along Highway 29.  It is hard to categorize these routes as either 

Figure 5:  Local Routes with 0.25 Mile Radii around Stops 

Figure 6:  Route 8 with a 0.25 Radii around Stops 

188



6 
 

downtown, suburban, or rural.   The Route 10 and 11 also do not fit the definition of a local or 
rapid service type.  The current bus stop spacing is similar for both routes at about 4,000 ft. 
 

• Route 10 – 4,137 ft (0.78 miles) 
• Route 11 – 3,852 ft (0.73 miles) 

A closer look at the Route 10 indicates that the stops within 0.25 miles (Figure 7) are 
concentrated in the cities and towns with greater distances in the unincorporated areas. This 
makes sense given the densities in these areas. This equates to an average speed of 20.8 mph 
on weekdays along Route 10.  

 

The Route 11 has stops that are slightly closer together on average and with a cluster of stops 
in American Canyon spaced about 1,000 ft apart (Figure 8).  The end result of the stops being 
closer together and the traffic along SR 29 means the bus only travels at 14.1mph on weekdays.  
Even on the weekend, the travel time is still slow at 15.1mph on Saturday and 15.6 mph on 
Sunday. 

 

 

 

Figure 7: Route 10 with 0.25 Mile Radii around Stops 

189



7 
 

 

Express Route 

The express routes in the Vine system are the Route 21 to Fairfield and the Route 29 to the 
Vallejo Ferry and BART.  These are very long routes with the Route 21 covering 44 miles 
roundtrip and the Route 29 topping out at 65 miles roundtrip.  The distances between stops far 
exceed the recommended distance for rural areas and rapid routes. However this is more 
understandable given the locations served between the beginnings and ends of the routes.  

• Route 21 – 20,795 ft (3.94 miles) between stops 
• Route 29 – 34,875 ft (6.61 miles) between stops 

Bus Stop Placement 
The recommended stop spacing guidelines are based upon the best practices research and staff 
knowledge of local conditions.  The goal is to balance the needs of passengers and the 
operator.  While a short distance between stops means a shorter walk for customers, the result 
is a longer ride for them in the end. The more opportunities for boarding and alighting along a 
route results in longer trips because of the time it takes for the bus to decelerate, come to a 
complete stop, collect fares from passengers, wait for the passengers to sit down, and then 
accelerate and merge into traffic.  

 
Local Route  

Local stop spacing is broken down into two categories, urban and suburban. Urban is relegated 
to Downtown defined as First through Fifth Street and Main to Franklin Street and Suburban is 

Figure 8:  Route 11 with 0.25 Mile Radii around Stop 

190



8 
 

the rest of the City of Napa. For the Urban service type, the average distance between stops is 
1,000ft apart and for Suburban the average is 1,500ft. 

Regional Route 

On the Routes 10 and 11 there is a wide range of stop distances due to the different land uses 
and densities along these two routes. The recommended average distance is 4,500 ft. The idea 
is that within incorporated areas the stops on average can be 1,500ft, in alignment with 
Suburban standards, and then in rural areas, particularly along the Route10, the stops can be 
further apart, closer to 20,000 ft.   

 
  

Type of NVTA Service Range Average 

Local 
- Urban 
- Suburban 

  
500 to 1,500 ft 
1,000 to 2,000 ft 
 

1,000 ft 
1,500 ft 

Regional 
 
1,500 to 20,000 ft 

 
4,500 ft 

  

Express 
 
Major Employment Center 

 
25,000 ft 

  
 
The Routes 10 and 11 share an alignment between Napa Valley College and the Redwood Park 
and Ride.  There may be opportunities to eliminate some duplicative stops along this shared 
alignment especially along Soscol Ave near the Soscol Gateway Transit Center (SGTC) where 
there are stops less than 1,500 ft from the SGTC that predate the construction of the SGTC.   
 
Express Routes 

The recommendation for stops to be located at a major employment center with an average 
distance of 25,000 ft apart is similar to the current spacing along the Routes 21 and 29.  The 
Express Bus Corridor Study completed by NVTA in 2017 recommends the elimination of the 
Route 21 stop at Corporate Drive due to low boarding at that stop.  The elimination of this stop 
will result in the modification of the route alignment between the Napa Valley College and the 
Devlin Road/Airport Blvd stop.  These changes will decrease the travel time on the Route 21.  
 
Minimal changes are necessary to the stop spacing on the Route 29.  As outlined in detail in the 
Express Bus Corridor Study, in order to speed up the Route 29 there is a need to make efficiency 
improvements to existing stops and to move stops closer to the main Highway 29 corridor. If 
stops are added in the future, the stops should only be at major employment centers.  

191



9 
 

Process for Implementing Bus Stop Spacing Recommendations 

Evaluate the Current Distance Between Bus Stops Against Spacing Guidelines 

The next steps is to evaluate the current distance between bus stops against spacing 
guideline and either leave the stop unchanged,  insert an additional stop, consolidate 
the stop or eliminate a stop as follows: 
 

Unchanged - if the stop meets the spacing interval  
 

Insert Additional Stop – spacing greater than the maximum recommended 
interval 

 
Consolidate Stop  

If spacing is less than interval then evaluate both stops 
One stop is either a hub or has a shelter, evaluate the other stop 

 
If the other stop meets the seven requirements of the Stop 
Consolidation Checklist then move forward with 
consolidation. 

Eliminate Stop 
If spacing is less than interval then evaluate both stops 

Neither stop is a hub or has a shelter, evaluate the stop with the 
lower ridership 

 
If the other stop meets the six requirements of the Stop 
Elimination Checklist the move forward with elimination. 

 
Stop Elimination Checklist 

In order to NVTA to eliminate stop the answer to the following questions needs 
to be Yes.  

Criteria to Eliminate Yes/No 
The adjacent stops left unaltered adhere to the prescribed spacing 
requirements for their service area. 

 
 

Adjacent stops are designed accordingly to absorb additional 
ridership. 

 
 

The stops does not provide direct access to connecting transit 
services, or if it does there are stops further along the route that 
will provide the same connections. 

 

 

The stop being removed does not meet ADA guidelines, or both 
adjacent stops meet ADA guidelines. 

 
 

The stops does not serve existing community resources such as 
schools, hospitals, senior center, recreation centers, and locations 
providing public service.  

 

 

192



10 
 

 

Stop Consolidation Checklist 

In order to NVTA to eliminate stop the answer to the following questions needs 
to be Yes.  
 

Criteria to Eliminate Yes/No 
The new stops location has adequate pedestrian access, such as 
direct sidewalk connections and safe pedestrian crossings 

 
 

The new stop location adheres to the spacing requirements with 
adjacent stops. 

 
 

The new location meets ADA guidelines or can be reasonably 
modified to meet guidelines. 

 
 

If either stop being considered for consolidation is a transfer stop, 
existing transfer opportunities at the new stops location are 
possible within two or fewer street crossings or at another sop 
location along the line.  

 

 

The stops being considered will not impact more than 20% of the 
entire route’s daily ridership  

 
 

The stops being considered for consolidation do not directly serve 
existing community resources such as schools, hospitals, senior 
centers, and locations providing public services.   

 

 

The new location will improve or maintain running times.    

 

Bus Stop Shelter Placement and Design 
In order to be considered as a potential location for a bus shelter, the stop in question must 
obtain a minimum of: 

• 20 boarding’s per average weekday on regional or express Routes 
• 10 boarding’s per average weekday on local routes 

Stops which do not meet these minimum ridership requirements will not be considered for 
further analysis. 

• Further analysis involves the following factors ridership, exposure, transfer, 
transit frequency, high priority community resources, close to areas where 
there is significant elderly and disabled populations, severe exposure to elements 
and the ability to remain ADA accessible. 

193



11 
 

When NVTA completed 
their rebranding, a 
specific shelter was 
selected for use 
throughout the system.  It 
mirrors the shelter at the 
Soscol Gateway Transit 
Center, but has a solid 
roof for shading 
purposes. A picture of a 
9ft version of that Tolar 
shelter is shown to the 
left. The cost of each 
shelter varies based upon 
the sizes and amenities.   

 

Bus Stop Accessories 
Bus stop accessories include benches, trash cans, ad boxes, simme seats (dual seats that attach 
to a bus stop poles) and real-time information signs.  Appendix 1 contains a list of all of the 
stops in the Vine system and the types of accessories at each stop as of August 2016.  Benches 
or simme seats are a good alterative when there is not space for a shelter, but the stop has 
ridership to warrant a shelter.  Also, the addition of garbage cans at these sites would help 
alleviate trash left around the stops and would keep the site clean for neighboring property 
owners.   

Maintenance Objectives 
•  It is the Authority’s priority to have  clean and  well maintained shelters and bus stops 

in the Vine system.  Currently, one contracted staff member is responsible for shelter 
and bus stop maintenance of the 73 shelters in the Vine system.  This staffing level will 
be consistent for the foreseeable future so before each shelter is added maintenance 
staff will be consulted to make sure there is capacity for the maintenance. The 
maintenance objectives are as follows:garbage cans and litter/trash r at all of the stops 
will be removed daily 

• twice yearly pressure washing of all stops using City-approved water recovery 
procedures, or as required by NVTA to ensure proper cleanliness and safety at each bus 

Figure 9 

194



12 
 

stop location, pressure wash will be done more regularly at high visibility and/or high 
ridership bus stops 

• General cleaning including but not limited to, graffiti removal, glass and bench cleaning, 
removal of foreign substances, and sweeping shelter interior and sidewalk immediately 
outside the shelter 

o NVTA’s twenty high use, high profile shelter locations will be cleaned at least 
three times a week 

o NVTA’s remaining shelters, 30 at present, will receive general cleaning once a 
week at a minimum. These may be cleaned more frequently depending upon the 
need 

• Soscol Gateway Transit Center requires daily general cleaning, and complete detailing as 
required by NVTA for maintaining cleanliness, safety and a respectable image 

• Two satellite sites (Park & Ride @ Redwood Road and Solano in Napa and Park and Ride 
at Solano and California in Yountville) 

o Cleaned daily 
o Bus shelters will be power washed according to cleaning schedule 
o Dangerous or hazardous waste will be removed immediately. 

Finally, the replacement of damaged or destroyed bus shelters will be completed within 60-90 
days of occurrence.  All other shelters will be replaced as needed but not more than 20 years.  
The first shelters to be replaced will be those shelters that are functionally obsolete such as 
those without roofs and those that have been hit by vehicles.  NVTA will replace up to five 
shelters a year depending on resource availability. 

 

  

195



13 
 

Appendix 1:  List of Bus Stop 
Amenities by Route 

 

 

Route 1

Soscol Gateway Transit Center No Yes Yes No Yes Yes
3rd Street & Brown Street No No No No No No
3rd Street & Jefferson Street No No No No No No
1st Street & Monroe Street No No Yes No No Yes
1st Street & Freeway Drive No No No No No No
Browns Valley Road & Robinson Lane (NE) No No Yes No No No
Browns Valley Road & Thornhill Drive No Yes Yes No No Yes
Austin Way & Brown's Valley Road No No Yes No No No
Browns  Valley Road & Westview Drive No No No No No No
Browns Valley Road & Partrick Road No Yes Yes No No Yes
Browns Valley Road & Rowena Lane No No No No No No
Browns Valley Road & Dezarai Court No No Yes No No No
Browns Valley Road & Austin Way Yes Yes Yes No No Yes
Browns Valley Road & Thompson Avenue No Yes Yes No No Yes
Browns Valley Road & Linda Vista Avenue No No No No No No
Browns Valley Road & Hudson Lane No No Yes No No Yes
1st Street & Chelsea Avenue No No No No No No
2nd Street & California Blvd No No Yes No No Yes
2nd Street & Patchett Street No No No No No No
3rd Street & Coombs St No No Yes No No No

Tras
h 

CansLocation 
Ad B

ox

Shelt
er

Bench

Sim
me

I-S
top 

Route 2

Soscol Gateway Transit Center No Yes Yes No Yes Yes

3rd Street & Brown Street No No Yes No No No
3rd Street & Jefferson Street No No No No No No
1st Street & Monroe Street No No Yes No No Yes

Premium Outlets No Yes Yes No No Yes

Kilburn Avenue & Cornwall Avenue No No Yes No No Yes

Kilburn Avenue & Bryan Avenue No No No No No No

Kilburn Avenue & Chelsea Avenue No No No No No No

Laurel Street & Kilburn Avenue Yes Yes Yes No No Yes

Laurel Street & Laurel Lane No No No No No No

Laurel Street & Griggs Lane No No No No No No

Foothill Blvd & Hilltop Drive No No No No No No

Foothill Blvd & Pine Street No No No No No No

Foothill Blvd & Greco Drive No No No No No Yes

Old Sonoma Road & Foster Road No No No No No No

Old Sonoma Road & Underhill Drive (SE) No Yes Yes No No Yes

Old Sonoma Rd at S Seymour St (Health & Human Services (SW)) No Yes Yes No No Yes

Old Sonoma Road & Harston Street No No No Yes No Yes

Jefferson Street & Elm Street No No No Yes No Yes

Pine Street & Jefferson Street No No No No No No

Pine Street & Seminary Street No No No No No No

Pine Street & Adams Street No No Yes No No Yes

Franklin Street & Division Street No No No No No No
3rd Street & Coombs Street No No Yes No No No

Location 
Ad B

ox

Shelt
er

Bench

Sim
me

I-S
top 

Tras
h 

Cans

196



14 
 

 

 

Route 3

Soscol Gateway Transit Center No Yes Yes No Yes Yes
3rd Street & Brown Street No No Yes No No No
Jefferson Street & Laurel Street No No No Yes No No
Jefferson Street & Madrona Street No No No No No No
Old Sonoma Road & Underhill Drive (NE) No No Yes No No Yes
Old Sonoma Road & Cherryview Court No No No No No Yes
Foster Road & Idaho Street  (Old Sonoma Rd) No No No No No No
Foster Road & Indiana Street No No No No No No
Foster Road & Imola Avenue No No Yes No No Yes
Imola Avenue & Kent Street No No No No No No
Imola Park & Ride No No No No No No
Imola Avenue & Minahen Street No No No No No No
Imola Avenue & Jefferson Sreet No Yes Yes No No Yes
Gasser Drive & Hartle Court No No No Yes No Yes
Soscol Avenue & Kansas Avenue No No No No No Yes
Imola Avenue & Gasser Drive No No No Yes No No
Coombs Street & South Franklin Street No No Yes No No Yes
Coombs Street & Elm Street No Yes Yes No No Yes
Coombs Street & Pine Street No No Yes No No No
Coombs Street & 5th Street No No No No No No
Coombs Street & 4th Street No No No No No No
3rd Street & Coombs Street No No No No No No

Location 
Ad B

ox

Shelt
er

Bench

Sim
me

I-S
top 

Tras
h 

Cans

Route 4

Soscol Gateway Transit Center No Yes Yes No Yes Yes
3rd Street & Bailey Street Yes Yes No No No No
3rd Street & Juarez Street (SE) No No Yes No No Yes
Terrace Drive & Coombsville Road No No No No No No
Terrace Drive & Liberty Drive No No No No No No
Shurtleff Avenue & Ullman Court No No No No No No
Shurtleff Avenue & Cayetano Drive No No No No No No
Shelter Avenue & Shurtleff Avenue No No No No No Yes
Laredo Street & Maria Drive No No No No No Yes
Seville Drive & Perkins Street No No No No No No
Chamberlain High School No No No No No No
Imola Ave & Navarre Street No No Yes No No Yes
Imola Avenue & Parrish Road No No No Yes No No
Terrace Drive & Shetler Avenue No No No No No No
Terrace Drive & Kansas Avenue No No Yes No No No
Kansas Avenue & Wilkins Avenue No Yes Yes No No Yes
Kansas Avenue & Kansas Court No No No No No No
Kansas Avenue & Soscol Avenue No No No Yes No Yes
Gasser Drive & Hartle Court No No No Yes No Yes
Soscol Avenue & Kansas Avenue (SE) No No Yes No No Yes
Soscol Avenue & Silverado Trail (NW) No No No No No No
Soscol Avenue & Sousa Lane Yes Yes Yes No No Yes
Soscol and Eighth Ave No No No No No No

Location 
Ad B

ox

Shelt
er

Bench

Sim
me

I-S
top 

Tras
h 

Cans

197



15 
 

 

Soscol Gateway Transit Center No Yes Yes No Yes Yes

3rd Street & Bailey Street Yes Yes No No No No

3rd Street & Juarez Street (SE) No No Yes No No Yes

East Avenue & Silverado Trail No No No Yes No No

East Avenue & Montecito Blvd Yes Yes No No No No

East Avenue & 1st Street No No Yes No No No

East Avenue & Highland Drive (NW) No No No No No No

East Avenue & Clark Street No No Yes No No No

Lincoln Avenue & Silverado Trail (NE) No No Yes No No No

Lincoln Avenue & Soscol Avenue No No No No No No

Lincoln Avenue  (NW) No No No No No No

Main Street & Central Avenue No No No No No Yes

Main Street & Pueblo Avenue No No No No No No

Beard Road & La Homa Drive No No No No No No

Pear Tree Lane & Villa Lane No Yes Yes No No Yes

Villa Lane  At Trancas Street (NW) No No Yes No No No

Trancas Street & Beard Road (SE) Yes Yes No No No Yes

Jefferson Street & Claremont Way No No Yes No No No

Jefferson Street & Sheridan Way (SW) No No Yes No No No

Jefferson Street & Pueblo Avenue (NW) No No No No No No

Napa High Yes Yes No No No No

Lincoln Avenue  (SE) No No No No No No

Lincoln Avenue & Jordan Lane No No No Yes No No

Lincoln Avenue & Silverado Trail (SE) No No Yes No No No

East Avenue & Highland Drive (SE) No No No No No No

East Avenue & Evans Avenue No No No No No No

3rd Street & Juarez Street (NE) No Yes Yes No No Yes

Route 5

Location 
Ad B

ox

Shelt
er

Bench

Sim
me

I-S
top 

Tras
h 

Cans

198



16 
 

 

 

Route 6

Redwood Park & Ride Yes Yes No No No No
Redwood Road & Solano Avenue No No No No No Yes
Oxford Street & Carol Drive No No No No No Yes
Oxford Street & Wales Street No No No Yes No No
Oxford Street & Berks Street No No No No No No
Justin Siena High School No No No Yes No No
Trower Avenue & Lloyd Drive No No Yes No No Yes
Linda Vista Avenue & Trojan Road No No No Yes No No
Linda Vista Avenue & Redwood Road No No No No No No
Linda Vista Avenue & Sutherland Drive No No No No No No
Sutherland Drive & Linda Vista Avenue No No No No No No
Pueblo Avenue & Linda Vista Avenue No No Yes No No No
Pueblo Avenue & Pueblo Place No No No No No No
Pueblo Avenue & Solano Avenue No No Yes No No No
Solano Avenue & Park Avenue No No No Yes No No
Solano Avenue & Waverly Street No No Yes No No No
Solano Avenue & Lone Oak Avenue No No No No No No
Lincoln Avenue & Pacific Street Yes Yes Yes No No No
Lincoln Avenue & York Street No No No No No No
Lincoln Avenue & Jefferson Street No No No No No No
Main Street & Central Avenue No No No No No Yes
Main Street & Pueblo Avenue No No No No No No
Beard Road & La Homa Drive No No No No No No
Pear Tree Lane & Villa Lane No Yes Yes No No Yes
Trancas Street & Beard Road (SE) Yes Yes No No No Yes
Trancas Street & Jefferson Street No Yes No No No No
Claremont Way & Permanente Way No Yes No No No No
Trancas Street & Baxter Avenue No No Yes No No Yes
Redwood Park & Ride Yes Yes No No No No

Location 
Ad B

ox

Shelt
er

Bench

Sim
me

I-S
top 

Tras
h 

Cans

Route 7

Redwood Park & Ride Yes Yes Yes No No Yes
Trancas Street & California Blvd Yes No Yes No No No
Jefferson Street & Trancas Street Yes Yes Yes No No Yes
Jefferson Street & El Capitan Way (SE) No No No No No No
Claremont Way & Permanente Way No Yes No No No No
Jefferson Street & Sierra Avenue (NE) No Yes Yes No No Yes
Trancas Street & Baxter Avenue No No Yes No No Yes
Jefferson & Yellowstone Yes Yes Yes No No Yes
Trower Avenue & Glacier Drive No No No No No No
Trower Avenue & Lassen Street No No Yes No No No
Cask Way & Wise Drive No No No No No No
Byway Street East & El Centro Avenue No No Yes Yes No Yes
Byway Street East & Reed Circle No No Yes No No No
Byway Street East & Monarch Drive No No No No No No
Byway Street East & Salvador Avenue No No No Yes No Yes
Salvador Avenue & Dale Drive No No No Yes No No
Jefferson Street & Salvador Avenue No No No Yes No No
Jefferson Street & Joshua Court No No No Yes No No
Jefferson Street & Maximillian Court No No Yes No No No
Jefferson Street & Trower Avenue No No No No No No
Jefferson Street & Sierra Avenue (NW) No No Yes No No No
Jefferson Street & El Capitan Way (SW) No No No No No No
Jefferson Street & Trancas Street  (SW) No No Yes No No No
Jefferson Street & Claremont Way No No Yes No No No
Claremont Way & Permanente Way No Yes No No No No
Trancas Street & Baxter Avenue No No Yes No No Yes

I-S
top 

Tras
h 

CansLocation 
Ad B

ox

Shelt
er

Bench

Sim
me

199



17 
 

 

Route 8 Northbound and southbound 

Soscol Gateway Transit Center No Yes Yes No Yes Yes
3rd Street & Brown Street No No Yes No No No
3rd Street & Jefferson Street No No No No No No
Jefferson Street & Calistoga Avenue No No Yes No No No
Jefferson Street & Cedar Avenue No Yes Yes No No No
Jefferson Street & D Street Yes Yes Yes No No No
Jefferson Street & H Street (SE) Yes Yes Yes No No Yes
Jefferson Street & George Street No No Yes No No No
Jefferson Street & Pueblo Avenue No No Yes No No No
Jefferson Street & Sheridan Way (NE) No No No No No No
Claremont Way & Jefferson Street No Yes No No No No
Claremont Way & Permanente Way No Yes No No No No
Trancas Street & Baxter Avenue No No Yes No No Yes
Redwood Park & Ride Yes Yes Yes No No Yes

Redwood Park & Ride Yes Yes Yes No No Yes
Claremont Way & Permanente Way (NE) No Yes No No No No
Jefferson Street & Sheridan Way (SW) No No Yes No No No
Jefferson Street & Pueblo Avenue (NW) No No No No No No
Napa High Yes Yes No No No No
Jefferson Street & H Street (NW) No No Yes No No Yes
Jefferson Street & F Street No No Yes No No No
Jefferson Street & B Street No No Yes No No No
3rd Street & Jefferson Street No No No Yes No No
Randolph Street & 3rd Street No No No No No No
3rd Street & Brown Street No No No No No No
Soscol Gateway Transit Center No Yes Yes No Yes Yes

Location 
Ad B

ox

Shelt
er

Bench

Sim
me

I-S
top 

Tras
h C

ans

200



18 
 

 

Route 10 Northbound and Southbound City Stops 

Napa Valley College No Yes Yes No No Yes
Soscol Avenue & Magnolia Drive No Yes Yes No No Yes
Soscol Avenue & Kansas Avenue (SE) No No Yes No No No
Soscol Avenue & Silverado Trail (SE) No No No No No No
Soscol Avenue & Sousa Lane Yes Yes Yes No No Yes
Soscol At Eighth Ave No No No No No No
Soscol Gateway Transit Center No Yes Yes No Yes Yes
Soscol At Third Ave No No No No No No
Soscol Avenue & Imperial Way No No Yes No No Yes
Soscol Avenue & Lincoln Avenue (SE) No Yes Yes No No Yes
Soscol Avenue & Stonehouse Drive No Yes No No No No
Soscol Avenue & Costa Drive No No No No No No
Soscol Avenue & Pueblo Avenue (SE) No No No No No No
Soscol Avenue & La Homa Drive No No No No No No
Soscol Avenue & Pear Tree Lane (NE) No Yes Yes No No Yes
Trancas Street & Valle Verde Drive No No No Yes No Yes
Trancas Street & Villa Lane (NW) No No Yes No No No
Trancas Street & Beard Road (SW) Yes Yes No No No No
Trancas Street & Jefferson Street No Yes Yes No No Yes
Trancas Street & Baxter Avenue No No Yes No No Yes
Redwood Park & Ride Yes Yes Yes No No Yes
Solano Avenue & Denvonshire Drive (SW) No Yes No No No No
Solano Avenue & Wine Country Avenue (SW) No No No No No Yes
Solano Avenue & Mobile Drive No No Yes No No No
Solano Avenue & Newell Circle (SW) No No Yes No No No
Solano Avenue & Hacienda Drive (SW) No Yes No No No No
Solano Avenue & Orchard Avenue (SW) No No No No No No
Yountville Veterans Home No Yes Yes No No Yes
Washington Street & Mission Street No Yes Yes No No Yes
Washington Street & Mulberry Street No No Yes No No No
Washington Street & Madison Street (SE) No No No Yes No No
Oakville No No No No No No
Rutherford No No Yes No No No
Highway 29 & Zinfandel Lane No No No No No No
Main Street At Pope Street No No Yes No No No
St. Helena City Hall No No No No No No
Main Street & Pratt Street No No No No No No
Highway 29 & Lodi Lane No No No No No No
Bothe State Park (NB) No No No No No No
Highway 29 & Peterson Drive (NB) No No No No No No
Highway 29 & Dunaweal Lane (NB) No No No No No No
Highway 29 At Fair Way (NB) No Yes Yes No No No
Highway 29 & Brannan Street No Yes Yes No No No

Highway 29 & Brannan Street No Yes Yes No No No
Highway 29 At Fair Way (SB) No No No No No No
Downtown Calistoga No No No No No No
Highway 29 & Dunaweal Lane (SB) No No No No No No
Highway 29 & Peterson Drive (SB) No No No No No No
Bothe State Park No No No No No No
Highway 29 & Byrd Hill Lane No Yes Yes No No Yes
Highway 29 At Elmhurst Avenue No No No No No No
St. Helena City Hall No No No No No No
Highway 29 & Main Street & Mitchell Drive No No No No No No
Highway 29 & Dowdell Lane No Yes Yes No No No
Highway 29 & Zinfandel Lane No No No No No No
Rutherford No No No No No No
Oakville No No No No No No
Washington Street & Madison Street (SW) No Yes Yes No No Yes
Washington Street & Mulberry Street (NW) No Yes Yes No No Yes
Washington Street & Mission Street (NW) No Yes Yes No No Yes
Yountville Veterans Home No Yes Yes No No Yes
Solano At Orchard (NW) No No No No No No
Solano Avenue & Newell Circle (NW) No No No No No No
Solano Avenue & Salvador Avenue No No Yes No No No
Solano Avenue & Wine Country Avenue (NW) No No No No No No
Solano Avenue & Denvonshire Drive (NW) No Yes No No No No
Redwood Park & Ride Yes Yes No No No No
Trancas Street & California Blvd Yes No Yes No No No
Trancas Street & Jefferson Street (SE) Yes Yes Yes No No No
Trancas Street & Beard Road (SE) Yes Yes No No No No
Trancas Street & Villa Lane (SW) Yes Yes Yes No No No
Soscol Avenue & Pear Tree Lane (NW) No Yes No No No No
Sosocol At La Homa No No No No No No
Soscol Avenue & Pueblo Avenue (NW) Yes Yes No No No No
Soscol Avenue & Central Avenue No No No Yes No No
Soscol Avenue & Lincoln Avenue (SW) No No Yes No No Yes
Soscol Avenue & Tanen Street No No No No No No
Soscol Gateway Transit Center No Yes Yes No Yes Yes
Soscol Avenue & Oil Company Road No No No No No No
Soscol Avenue & Silverado Trail (NW) No No No No No No
Soscol Avenue & Kansas Avenue (SW) Yes Yes Yes No No Yes
Soscol Avenue & College Way No Yes Yes No No Yes
Napa Valley College No Yes Yes No No Yes

Location 
Ad B

ox

Shelt
er

Bench

Sim
me

I-S
top 

Tras
h 

Cans

201



19 
 

 

Route 11 Northbound and Southbound City Stops 

Redwood Park & Ride Yes Yes Yes No No Yes
Trancas Street & California Blvd Yes No Yes No No No
Trancas Street & Jefferson Street No Yes Yes No No Yes
Trancas Street & Jefferson Street (SE) Yes Yes Yes No No No
Trancas Street & Beard Road (SE) Yes Yes No No No No
Trancas Street & Villa Lane (SW) Yes Yes Yes No No No
Soscol Avenue & Pear Tree Lane (NW) No Yes No No No No
Soscol Avenue & La Homa Drive No No No No No No
Soscol Avenue & Pueblo Avenue (SE) No No No No No No
Soscol Avenue & Central Avenue No No No Yes No No
Soscol Avenue & Lincoln Avenue (SW) No No Yes No No Yes
Soscol Avenue & Tanen Street No No No No No No
Soscol Gateway Transit Center No Yes Yes No Yes Yes
Soscol Avenue & Oil Company Road No No No No No No
Soscol Avenue & Silverado Trail (NW) No No No No No No
Soscol Avenue & Kansas Avenue (SW) Yes Yes Yes No No Yes
Soscol Avenue & College Way No Yes Yes No No Yes
Napa Valley College No Yes Yes No No Yes
Kaiser Road & Corporate Way (SB) No No Yes No No No
Napa Valley Corporate Drive At LaTour C No No Yes No No No
Health and Human Services No No No No No No
Devlin Road (SB) No No No No No No
Devlin/Airport Road No No No No No No
Hwy 12 and Hwy 29 No No No No No No
 Rio del Mar at Hwy 29 No No No No No No
Rio del Mar & Carolyn Drive (SW) No No No No No No
Donaldson / Benton Way No Yes Yes No No Yes
Elliott Drive & American Canyon Road (NW) No No No Yes No No
American Canyon Senior Center No Yes Yes No No Yes
Elliott Drive & Marla Drive No No No No No No
Mini Drive & Elliott Drive No No No No No No
Soscol Avenue & Kansas Avenue (SE) No No Yes No No No
Soscol Avenue & Kansas Avenue No No Yes No No No
Soscol Avenue & Sousa Lane Yes Yes Yes No No Yes
Mini Drive & Elliott Drive No No No No No No
Broadway Street & Mini Drive No Yes Yes No No No
Tuolumne Street & Hospital Drive (NW) No No No No No No
Kaiser Hospital (SW) No No No No No No
Vallejo Transit Center No No No No No No
Vallejo Ferry Terminal No No No No No No

Vallejo Ferry Terminal No No No No No No
Sereno Transfer Center No No No No No No
Kaiser Hospital No No No No No No
Tuolumne Street & Hospital Drive (SE) No No No No No No
Mini Drive & Elliott Drive No No No No No No
Elliott Drive & Severus Drive No No No No No No
Elliott Drive & Kimberly Drive (SE) No No No No No No
American Canyon Senior Center No Yes Yes No No Yes
Elliott Drive & American Canyon Road (SE) No No No No No No
Donaldson Way & Benton Way (SE) No No No No No No
Rio del Mar & Carolyn Drive (SE) No Yes Yes No No No
Rio Del Mar / 7- Eleven No No No No No No
Napa Junction & Walmart No No No No No No
Devlin Road & Airport Blvd (NB) No No No No No No
Devlin Road (NB) No No No No No No
Health and Human Services No No No No No No
Napa Valley Corporate Drive At LaTour C  No No Yes No No No
Kaiser Road & Corporate Way (NB) No No Yes No No No
Napa Valley College No Yes Yes No No Yes
Soscol Avenue & Magnolia Drive No Yes Yes No No Yes
Soscol Avenue & Kansas Avenue (SE) No No Yes No No No
Soscol Avenue & Silverado Trail (SE) No No No No No No
Sosal Ave At Sousa Ln No No No No No No
Soscol At  Eighth Ave No No No No No No
Soscol Gateway Transit Center No Yes Yes No Yes Yes
Soscol at Third Ave No No No No No No
Soscol Avenue & Imperial Way No No Yes No No Yes
Soscol Avenue & Lincoln Avenue (SE) No Yes Yes No No Yes
Soscol Avenue & Stonehouse Drive No Yes No No No No
Soscol Avenue & Costa Drive No No No No No No
Soscol Avenue & Pueblo Avenue (SE) Yes Yes No No No No
Soscol Ave At La Homa Dr No No No No No No
Soscol Avenue & Pear Tree Lane (NE) No Yes Yes No No Yes
Trancas Street & Valle Verde Drive No No No Yes No Yes
Trancas Street & Beard Road (SE) Yes Yes No No No No
Trancas Street & Jefferson Street No No Yes No No No
Trancas Street & Baxter Avenue No No Yes No No Yes
Redwood Park & Ride Yes Yes Yes No No Yes

Location 
Ad B

ox

Shelt
er

Bench

Sim
me

I-S
top 

Tras
h 

Cans

202



20 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Route 21 Eastbound and Westbound Stops

Soscol Gateway Transit Center No Yes Yes No Yes Yes
Napa Valley College No Yes Yes No No Yes
Corporate Drive & Corporate Way (SB) No No No No No No
Devlin Road & Airport Blvd (NB) No No No No No No
Devlin/Airport Road No No No No No No
Corporate Drive & Corporate Way (NB) No No No No No No
Suisun City Train Depot No No No No No No
Fairfield Transportation Center No Yes Yes No No Yes
Highway 12 & Highway 29 Gateway Junction (SB) No No No No No No
Highway 12 & Highway 29 No No No No No No

Location 
Ad B

ox

Shelt
er

Bench

Sim
me

I-S
top 

Tras
h 

Cans

Route 29 Northbound and Southbound Stops 

Soscol Gateway Transit Center No Yes Yes No Yes Yes
Napa Valley College No Yes Yes No No Yes
Redwood Park & Ride Yes Yes No No No No
Vallejo Ferry Terminal No No No No No No
St. Helena City Hall (NB) No No No No No No
Highway 29 & Main Street & Mitchell Drive No No No No No No
St. Helena City Hall (SB) No No No No No No
Lincoln Avenue & Cedar Street No Yes Yes No No No
Calistoga Lincoln Bridge No Yes Yes No No No
Yountville California Dr. & Solano Ave No Yes Yes No No Yes
American Canyon Post Office No No No No No No
American Canyon Post Office (NW) No No No No No No
El Cerrito BART Station No No No No No No

Location 
Ad B

ox

Shelt
er

Bench

Sim
me

I-S
top 

Tras
h 

Cans

203



April 18, 2018 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.5 
Continued From: NEW 

Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Matthew Wilcox, Manager of Public Transit 

(707) 259-8635 / Email: mwilcox@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Paratransit Coordinating Council Member Appointment 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve the appointment of 
Ruth Clark to the Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC).  

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

None  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Ruth Clark is a planner with the Area Agency on Aging and will be filling the position of 
“Social Service provider for seniors”.  She brings a long and diverse background that will 
provide a new perspective to the council.  Her application is available for review as 
Attachment 1 which shows a very involved history of work and volunteering with elderly 
and/or disabled individuals. 

PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 

1. Staff Report
2. Public Comments
3. Motion, Second, Discussion and Vote

FISCAL IMPACT 

Is there a Fiscal Impact? No 

204

mailto:mwilcox@nvta.ca.gov


NVTA Agenda Letter                                   Wednesday, April 18, 2018 
Agenda Item 9.5 

Page 2 of 2 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

CEQA REQUIREMENTS 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: The proposed action is not a project as defined 
by 14 California Code of Regulations 15378 (California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines) and therefore CEQA is not applicable. 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

The Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC) advises NVTA staff, the NVTA Board, and 
the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) regarding setting priorities for 
transportation services review and make recommendations regarding the submission of 
claims for certain Transportation Development Act (TDA) and Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA) funds and allocations consistent with its priorities, and address 
coordination of paratransit services within Napa County. 

The PCC is comprised of nine members.  Of the nine positions six are currently filled. 
The addition of Ruth Clark would bring the total member count to seven creating greater 
stability in member attendance as well as adding an additionalperspective on 
transportation issues in the Napa Valley.  

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

Attachment: (1) Ruth Clark Application 

205



ATTACHMENT 1
NVTA Agenda Item 9.5

April 18, 2018

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

206



207



XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX
XXXXXXXX

XXXXXXXXX
XXXXXXXXXX

XXXXXXXXXXXX
XXXXXXXXX

208



April 18, 2018 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.6 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Danielle Schmitz, Director – Programs, Projects and Planning 

(707) 253-5968 / Email: dschmitz@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Citizen Advisory Committee (CAC) Member Appointments 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve the appointment of 
new member, Patricia Lynch, and the re-appointment of members Larry Kromann, Jean-
Vincent Deale and Nicole Cummings to the Citizen Advisory Committee (CAC). 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

None 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

On December 15, 2015 the NVTA Board approved the formation of the Citizen Advisory 
Committee (CAC).  The committee currently has 12 members with on-going recruitment 
for vacancies.  With the appointment of Patricia Lynch the Healthcare positon will be filled 
and the CAC will have 13 members.   Three other members are up for reappointment and 
have confirmed they would like to continue serving on the committee:  Larry Kromann, 
Jean-Vincent Deale and Nicole Cummings. 

The following CAC vacancies still exist: 
• City of St. Helena representative
• City of Calistoga representative
• Chamber of Commerce representative
• Agricultural representative
• Member at-large
• Active Transportation representative

209

mailto:dschmitz@nvta.ca.gov


NVTA Agenda Letter                       Wednesday, April 18, 2018 
Agenda Item 9.6 

Page 2 of 2 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
1. Staff Report 
2. Public Comments 
3. Motion, Second, Discussion and Vote 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a Fiscal Impact?  No  
 
CEQA REQUIREMENTS 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: The proposed action is not a project as defined 
by 14 California Code of Regulations 15378 (California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines) and therefore CEQA is not applicable. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
The CAC was formed by NVTA to replace a number of independent CACs that had been 
convened to advise the NVTA Board and NVTA staff on various projects.  A permanent 
CAC was desired to ensure representation from all aspects of the communities in Napa 
Valley and to garner the expertise that was lost under previous committees that had been 
formed for specific purposes and then disbanded when a project ended. 
 
The NVTA Board has ordained that the committee structure and representation strive to 
represent a diverse cross-section of the community including members of 
underrepresented groups in Napa Valley.  
 
City/Town/County members will be appointed by their respective Councils or Board of 
Supervisors whichever is applicable before being approved by the NVTA Board.  If 
representation of a certain faction or jurisdiction cannot be filled after solicitation for that 
position the vacancy may be filled with a member at-large.  
 
Ideally, members will serve two years.  Terms are staggered to ensure continuity.   
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachments:  (1) Patricia Lynch Application 

(2) CAC Member Appointments  
 

210



XXXXXXXXXXXX

XXXXXXX

ATTACHMENT 1
NVTA Agenda Item 9.6

April 18, 2018

211



XXXXXXX

XXXXXXXXXXX

XXXXXXXXXX

212



XXXXXXXXXXXXX

XXXXXXXXXXXX
XXXXXXXXXXXX

213



XXXXXXXXXXXXX

XXXXXXXXXXXXX
XXXXXXXXXXXXX

214



XXXXXXXXXXXX

XXXXXXXXXXXXX
XXXXXXXXXXXXX

215



XXXXXXXXXXXX

XXXXXXXXXXXXX
XXXXXXXXXXXXXX

216



Name Interest Represented City of Residence Date Approved Renewal Needed Notes 

Nicole Cummings Vintners Napa Apr-18 Apr-20 HR representative at Cakebread 

Jean-Vincent Deale Seniors Napa Apr-18 Apr-20 Transit advocate; former VCAC member

Larry Kromann Low-income Housing Calistoga Apr-18 Apr-20

Calistoga Affordable Housing Board Member; 

Area Agency on Aging; Calistoga Mobile Home 

Committee 

Citizen Advisory Committee 

ATTACHMENT 2
NVTA Agenda Item 9.6

April 18, 2018

217



April 18, 2018 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.7 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Letter 
_______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  

FROM:   

REPORT BY:  

SUBJECT: 

Board of Directors 

Kate Miller, Executive Director 

Justin Paniagua, Senior Finance/Policy Analyst 
(707) 259-8781 / Email: jpaniagua@nvta.ca.gov

Resolution No. 18-10 for the Fiscal Year 2017-18 Low Carbon Transit 
Operations Program (LCTOP) 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution No. 18-
10 (Attachment 1) supporting an allocation request to Caltrans for the Low Carbon Transit 
Operations Program (LCTOP for FY 2017-18). 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

None 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) is eligible to receive formula funds of 
$195,068 for FY 2017-18 under the Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP).  To 
receive the funds, NVTA must submit an application that includes three (3) years of LCTOP 
funding to purchase five (5) Zero Emission Battery Electric Buses (BEBs) for use in 
Yountville, Calistoga, St. Helena, and on Vine’s local routes.  The Resolution is a 
requirement to request allocations for funding from Caltrans. 

PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 

1. Staff Report
2. Public Comment
3. Motion, Second, Discussion and Vote

218

mailto:jpaniagua@nctpa.net


NVTA Agenda Letter                    Wednesday April 18, 2018 
Agenda Item 9.7 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a fiscal impact?  Yes 
 
Is it currently budgeted?  Yes   
 
Where is it budgeted?  Capital Investments for replacement vehicles 
 
Future fiscal impact:  The funds would be drawn down for the buses are delivered. 
 
Consequences if not approved:  NVTA would not be able to receive the $195,068.  Since 
the vehicles are under contract, other funding sources would need to be sought or 
reallocated for the bus procurement. 
 
CEQA REQUIREMENTS 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: The proposed action is not a project as defined 
by 14 California Code of Regulations 15378 (California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines) and therefore CEQA is not applicable.  
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
LCTOP funds are disbursed on a formula basis by both Caltrans and the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission (MTC) and are generated from Assembly Bill 32 Cap & Trade 
auction proceeds.  The program guidelines state that transit agencies receiving funds from 
the LCTOP shall submit expenditure proposals listing projects that meet all of the following 
criteria:  

• Support new or expanded bus or rail services, or expanded intermodal transit 
facilities;  

• Enhance or expand transit service to increase mode share; and 
• Reduce greenhouse gas emissions 

 
Staff proposes to use the LCTOP funds for the Zero Emission Battery Electric Bus project.  
The three (3) year funding program is expected to generate $418,742 of the $3,823,188 
total project costs.  The five (5) BEBs will be deployed for use for transit services in 
Yountville, St. Helena, Calistoga and local routes in Napa.  All fund sources currently set 
aside for the bus procurement are listed in the table below. 
  

219



NVTA Agenda Letter   Wednesday April 18, 2018 
Agenda Item 9.7 

Page 3 of 3 

Financial Plan Amount Percentage 
   LCTOP $418,742 11% 
   FTA $1,092,250 29% 
   FTA formula funds $364,539 9% 
   CARB HVIP $505,000 13% 
   TDA $1,442,657 38% 
Total $3,823,188 100% 

Expenditure Plan 
   Zero Emission Buses $3,141,094 82% 
   Project Planning $400,000 11% 
   Charging Infrastructure $282,094 7% 
Total $3,823,188 100% 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

Attachment: (1) Resolution No. 18-10 

220



ATTACHMENT 1 
NVTA Board Agenda Item 9.7 

April 18, 2018 

RESOLUTION No. 18-18-10 

AUTHORIZATION FOR THE EXECUTION OF THE 
CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES AND AUTHORIZED AGENT FORMS 

FOR THE LOW CARBON TRANSIT OPERATIONS PROGRAM (LCTOP) 
FOR THE FOLLOWING PROJECT(S): 

VINE ZERO EMISSION BUS (ZEB) PROCUREMENT PROGRAM; $195,068 

WHEREAS, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority is an eligible project sponsor 
and may receive state funding from the Low Carbon Transit Operations Program 
(LCTOP) for transit projects; and 

WHEREAS, the statutes related to state-funded transit projects require a local or 
regional implementing agency to abide by various regulations; and 

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 862 (2014) named the Department of Transportation 
(Department) as the administrative agency for the LCTOP; and  

WHEREAS, the Department has developed guidelines for the purpose of 
administering and distributing LCTOP funds to eligible project sponsors (local agencies); 
and 

WHEREAS, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority wishes to implement the 
LCTOP project:  Vine Zero Emission Bus (ZEB) Procurement Program, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Napa 
Valley Transportation Authority that the fund recipient agrees to comply with all conditions 
and requirements set forth in the Certification and Assurances and the Authorized Agent 
documents and applicable statutes, regulations and guidelines for all LCTOP funded 
transit projects. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Executive Director be 
authorized to execute all required documents of the LCTOP program and any 
Amendments thereto with the California Department of Transportation. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Napa 
Valley Transportation Authority that it hereby authorizes the submittal of the following 
project nomination(s) and allocation request(s) to the Department in  

221



Resolution No. 18-10 
Page 2 of 2 

FY 2017-18 LCTOP funds:  
Project Name: Vine Zero Emission Bus (ZEB) Procurement Program 
Amount of LCTOP funds requested: $195,068 
Short description of project: NVTA will purchase five (5) new thirty-foot zero-
emission battery electric transit buses and procure and install related charging 
infrastructure. 
Contributing Sponsors (if applicable): 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) 

Passed and Adopted the 18th day of April, 2018. 

______________________ 
Peter G. White, NVTA Chair Ayes: 

Nays: 

Absent: 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________________ 
Karalyn E. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary 

APPROVED: 

_________________________________ 
Vicki A. Clayton, NVTA General Counsel 

222



April 18, 2018 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.8 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Diana Meehan, Associate Program Planner/Administrator 

(707) 259-8327 / Email: dmeehan@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Transportation Development Act Article 3 (TDA-3) Call for Projects 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve the release of the 
Transportation Development Act Article 3 (TDA-3) Call for Projects for FY 2018-19 
through FY 2020-21 (Three-year cycle). 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

The Technical Advisory Committee was provided an opportunity to comment on the TDA-
3 Call for Project materials and recommended that the NVTA Board release the Call for 
Projects 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The TDA-3 program is funded by approximately 2% of the ¼ cent Statewide Sales Tax. 
This generates approximately $160,000 per year in revenues for Napa jurisdictions.  
Unused funds are accumulated and rolled over for programming in future cycles. The 
purpose of the TDA-3 program is to provide grants for local bicycle and pedestrian 
projects.   

A couple of substantial changes to be considered by the Board for this TDA 3 program 
cycle are the move to a three year call for projects (FY 2018-19 through FY 2020-21) and 
to consider adopting policy that prioritizes TDA-3 funding solely for capital projects.   

PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 

1. Staff Report
2. Public Comment
3. Motion, Second, Discussion and Vote

223

mailto:dmeehan@nvta.ca.gov


NVTA Agenda Letter                           Wednesday, April 18, 2018 
Agenda Item 9.8 

Page 2 of 3 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a Fiscal Impact? No, not for this action, however, once the Call for Projects is 
issued, approximately $621,758 will be available for project allocation for FY 2018-19 to 
FY 2020-21. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
TDA funds may be used for both capital and maintenance purposes but at its May 17, 
2017 meeting, the NVTA Board requested a change to the policy that would prioritize 
TDA-3 program funds solely for capital projects. The TDA program guidelines were 
updated to reflect this requested policy change.   
 
NVTA staff is also proposing a three-year program cycle, similar to the State 
Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) in order to aid local planning processes and 
address multi-year bike and pedestrian priorities. If approved, this TDA-3 call for projects 
would cover FY 2018-19 through FY 2020-21.  A three-year program of projects will be 
brought back to the NVTA Board for approval at its June meeting.   
 
The TDA-3 program funds a wide range of project types including: 
 

• capital construction and design engineering of bicycle and pedestrian projects 
• restriping on-street bicycle lanes  
• development or support of a bicycle safety education program (not more than 5% 

of County allocation)  
• development of a comprehensive bicycle and/or pedestrian facilities plan (once 

every 5 years)  
 
The last TDA-3 call for projects was conducted in FY 2017-18. In this call for projects 
$80,407 in TDA-3 funds were allocated to three projects, two in the City of Calistoga, and 
one project in the County of Napa. The remaining funds were carried over to FY 2018-
19.  
 
As of February 28, 2018 the TDA-3 fund estimate was $136,979 FY 2018-19. This amount 
includes carryover from FY 2017-18 (Attachment 2). The FY 2018-19 projected allocation 
is $184,779 bringing the estimated total funds available for allocation in FY 2018-19 to 
$321,758.  Estimated funds for FY 2019-20 and 2020-21 are an additional $320,000 
bringing the total fund estimate for the three-year program to $641,758. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

224



NVTA Agenda Letter                           Wednesday, April 18, 2018 
Agenda Item 9.8 

Page 3 of 3 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Table 1. Three-Year TDA-3 Fund Estimate 

FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20 FY 2020-21 TOTAL 
REVENUES $321,758* $160,000** $160,000** $641,758 

*FY 2018-19 Fund Estimate includes $136,979 carryover from 2017-18
**FY 2019-20 and FY 2020-21 are estimates for programming purposes only.  When actual
revenues are known, the estimates will be updated.

PROPOSED TIMELINE 

ITEM DATE 

Board Approval April 18, 2018 

Issue Call For Projects April 18, 2018 

Applications - due to NVTA by 5:00 PM May 11, 2018 

Draft Program Review by ATAC May 21, 2018 

Draft Program Review by TAC June 7, 2018 

Board Approval June 20, 2018 

Resolutions of Local Support due to NVTA July 6, 2018 

Submit Countywide Claim to MTC July 20, 2018 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

Attachment(s): (1) Guide and Application for Transportation Development Act – Article 
3 (TDA-3) Funds for Napa County 

(2) FY 2018-19 Fund Estimate Transportation Development Act Funds
Napa County 2/28/2018

225



                                                                                                                                                        3 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Guide and Application for 
 

Transportation Development Act – Article 3 (TDA-3) Funds 
for Napa County  

Three-Year Program 
 
 
 

 
 

FY 2018-19 to FY 2020-21 Applications 
Due to NVTA:  May 11, 2018 

 
NVTA 

625 Burnell Street  
Napa, CA 94559 

Phone: 707-259-8631 
Fax: 707-259-8638  
www.nvta.ca.gov 

 
 

 
ATTACHMENT 1 

NVTA Agenda Item 9.8 
April 18, 2018 

226

http://www.nvta.ca.gov/


MTC Programming and Allocations Section   April 2005 TDA Article 3 Model Resolution    Page 2 

The Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) is pleased to announce a Call for 
Projects for Transportation Development Act, Article 3 (TDA-3) funds available to Napa 
County jurisdictions.   

The TDA-3 program is a grant program, funded by approximately 2% of the ¼ cent 
Statewide Sales Tax. This generates approximately $160,000 per year in revenues for 
Napa jurisdictions.  The purpose of the TDA-3 program is to provide grants for local 
bicycle and pedestrian projects. 

The TDA-3 program can fund a wide range of project types but will be prioritized for capital 
projects identified in the adopted Countywide Bicycle and/or Pedestal Plan(s). 

NVTA is pleased that your agency or organization has chosen the TDA-3  program as 
a potential funding source to complete your eligible project.  This packet has been created 
to help guide you in submitting a successful application for funding.   

The estimated available funding for Napa County TDA-3 projects for FY 2018-19 through 
FY 2020-21 will be approximately $640,000 dollars.  The TDA Applications are due to 
NVTA by 5:00 PM on Friday, May 11, 2018.   

If you have any questions, you may contact Diana Meehan, TDA-3 Program Manager at: 
dmeehan@nvta.ca.gov 

 NVTA 
 625 Burnell Street 

     Napa, CA 94559  
     Phone: 707-259-8631 

Sincerely, 

[MD1]

Kate Miller  
Executive Director  
Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

227



 

 

 
 
The TDA-3 Program 
 
The State Legislature passed the Transportation Development Act (TDA) in 1971.  The 
TDA provides one of the major funding sources for public transportation in California.  
Transportation Development Act (TDA) funds are generated from a statewide ¼ cent 
sales tax. Article 3 of TDA is a set-aside of approximately 2% of those monies. Under 
Article 3 of the TDA, funds are also used by local jurisdictions for bicycle and pedestrian 
projects.  
 
The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) administers TDA-3, which is 
distributed based on population. Each year, an annual fund estimate or “entitlement” is 
developed for each jurisdiction. Unused “entitlement” is accumulated as credit. A 
jurisdiction’s claim in any given year cannot exceed the sum of their accumulated credit 
plus their projected entitlement for the following two years. 
 
Funds are obtained by local jurisdictions via a three-step process: (1) apportionment, (2) 
allocation, and (3) payment (reimbursement). Apportionment in the San Francisco Bay 
Area follows a Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) formula based upon 
population. Allocation is the discretionary action by MTC that designates funds for a 
specific claimant for a specific purpose. NVTA submits TDA allocation requests to MTC 
on a regular basis, and unused TDA funds allocated to any project may be rolled over 
from one fiscal year to the next. No matching funds are required, but the project must 
meet the funding objectives and be developed in cooperation with the community. The 
basic objectives of the grant source are to fund projects that increase the safety, security, 
and efficiency of bicycle and pedestrian travel, and to provide for a coordinated system. 
The MTC requires supporting resolutions from the sponsoring Council. 
 
TDA 3 projects are required to meet Caltrans safety design criteria and CEQA 
requirements; be completed within three years; be maintained; be consistent with adopted 
bicycle or pedestrian plans; and be authorized by a governing council or board. 
 
This “Call for Projects” will be issued on April 18, 2018 upon approval by the NVTA Board 
of Directors. In addition to the application, project sponsors must deliver documentation 
of environmental clearance and maps/documents showing project locations and design 
parameters. Projects must be approved by MTC.  
 
As part of the grant process, MTC also requires the City Council to adopt a resolution 
making certain findings as follows:  

(i) the City is eligible to request grant funding under State law,  
(ii) there is no pending or threatened litigation that adversely affects the project 
(iii) the grant application is accurate,  
(iv) The jurisdiction has committed adequate staffing resources to complete the 

projects 
(v) The jurisdiction will comply with CEQA,  

228



 

 

(vi) the completed projects will be maintained by the jurisdiction for the benefit of 
the public, and 

(vii) the adopted resolution will be sent to NVTA no later than July 6, 2018 
 
Basic Eligibility for TDA-3 Funding 
 
TDA Article 3 funds may be used for the following activities relating to pedestrian and 
bicycle facilities (including sidewalk wheelchair ramps):  

• Engineering expenses leading to construction.  
• Right-of-way acquisition.  
• Construction and reconstruction.  
• Retrofitting existing bicycle and pedestrian facilities, including installation of 

signage, to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).  
• Route improvements such as signal controls for cyclists, bicycle loop detectors, 

rubberized rail crossings and bicycle-friendly drainage grates.  
• Purchase and installation of bicycle facilities such as  

o secure bicycle parking,  
o benches, drinking fountains, changing rooms, rest rooms and showers 

which are adjacent to bicycle trails, employment centers, park-and-ride lots, 
and/or transit terminals and are accessible to the general public.  

• Maintenance of Class I bikeways (unlimited)  
• Maintenance of on-street bikeways. Countywide, the total funds allocated to on-

street  bikeway maintenance cannot exceed 20% of the total countywide TDA 
estimate 

• Bicycle Safety Education Programs (and not more 5% of the countywide TDA 
Article 3 funds)  

• Comprehensive Bicycle & Pedestrian Facilities Plans (not more than once per 
jurisdiction every 5 years)  

• Projects identified in a recent (within 5 years) comprehensive local bicycle or 
pedestrian plan  

• Annual TDA Article 3 Audits (Only in fiscal years funds are disbursed. Can be part 
of annual audit program, but must comply with additional TDA-3 requirements. 
Follow audit instructions here: 
 

All claimants that have received an allocation of TDA funds are required to submit an 
annual certified fiscal and compliance audit to MTC and to the Secretary of Business and 
Transportation Agency within 180 days after the close of the fiscal year, in accordance 
with PUC Section 99245. Article 3 applicants need not file a fiscal audit if TDA funds were 
not expended (that is, costs incurred) during a given fiscal year. However, the applicant 
should submit a statement for MTC’s records certifying that no TDA funds were expended 
during the fiscal year. Failure to submit the required audit for any TDA article will preclude 
MTC from making a new Article 3 allocation. For example, a delinquent Article 4.5 fiscal 
audit will delay any other TDA allocation to the city/county with an outstanding audit. Until 
the audit requirement is met, no new Article 3 allocations will be made. TDA Article 3 
funds may be used to pay for the fiscal audit required for this funding. 
 

229



 

 

 

Submit completed audits to: 

TDA Audits 
375 Beale Street, Suite 800 
San Francisco, CA 94105 
or via email to: sprasad@bayareametro.gov 
Electronic submissions preferred. 
 
TDA Article 3 funds may not be used to fully fund the salary of any one person working 
on these programs. 
 
Bicycle Advisory Committee Requirement 
 
Cities and counties may not receive TDA Article 3 funds for bicycle projects unless the 
jurisdiction has established a Bicycle Advisory Committee (BAC) and the project is 
included in an adopted plan as stipulated in the MTC TDA Article 3 Rules and Procedures. 
This requirement does not apply to pedestrian projects. For Napa County, the NVTA 
Active Transportation Advisory Committee  fulfills this requirement.  However, for those 
jurisdictions with additional local Bicycle Advisory Committees, the approval of that 
committee is also required.  
 
 
Recent Project Examples in Napa County   
 

Project Name Sponsor  TDA-3 
Funds    

Total Project $       

Calistoga Safety 
Education Program 

Calistoga $10,000 $12,000 

Calistoga Logvy Park 
Sidewalk installation and 
lighting 

Calistoga $58,540 $ 58,640 

County of Napa Vine 
Trail Maintenance 1-year 

County of Napa $11,767 $33,534 

 
 
Project Selection Process  
 
The project selection process is as follows.   NVTA staff will run the prospective projects 
through an initial qualification process based on project eligibility, and present their 
findings to the NVTA Active Transportation Advisory Committee (ATAC) which will serve 
as the initial selection and prioritization committee. The ATAC recommendations will be 
forwarded to the NVTA Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) for their review and 
recommendation. The recommendation from both Committees will be forwarded to the 
NVTA Board for their decision.  
 

230

mailto:sprasad@bayareametro.gov


Projects will be evaluated on a cost effective and project readiness basis. 

TDA-3 Project Selection Criteria for Napa County 

Project selection will be prioritized for capital projects identified in the adopted Countywide 
Bicycle Plan and/or Pedestrian Plan(s).   

For Bicycle Projects 
• The project is listed in the jurisdiction’s adopted Bicycle Plan
• The project priority level is “high” as indicated in the jurisdiction’s Bicycle Plan
• Environmental Clearance is secured

For Pedestrian Projects 
• The project is listed in the jurisdiction’s Capital Improvement Plan or Pedestrian

Plan
• Environmental Clearance is secured

Additional credit will be given to projects that 
• are on the Countywide “Primary Bikeway Network”
• provide additional local matching funds (not required)

Application Instructions: 

TDA-3 project applications for FY 2018-19 through FY 2020-21 must be submitted to 
NVTA no later than 5:00 pm on Friday May 11, 2018.  Applications may be emailed to 
Diana Meehan at dmeehan@nvta.ca.gov 

  Applications must include: 
• MTC project application
• Resolution of local support following MTC requirements 

What Happens After Submission of the TDA-3 application? 

After applications are submitted to NVTA the evaluation process will begin.  NVTA plans 
on the following action timeline:  

231

mailto:dmeehan@nvta.ca.gov


 

 

 
ITEM DATE 

Board Approval – Call For Projects April 18, 2018 

Issue Call For Projects April 18, 2018 

TDA-3 Applications - due to NVTA by 5:00 PM May 11, 2018 

Draft Program Review by ATAC May 21, 2018 

Draft Program Review by TAC June 7, 2018 

Board Approval – Program of Projects June 20, 2018 

Local Resolutions of Support Due to NVTA July 6, 2018 

Contact Information 
 
Napa County TDA-3 Program Manager: 
Diana Meehan 
625 Burnell Street  
Napa, CA 94559  
Phone: (707) 259-8327  
dmeehan@nvta.ca.gov  
 
NVTA Main Office 
625 Burnell Street  
Napa, CA 94559  
Phone: (707) 259-8631 
Fax: (707) 259-8638  
www.nvta.ca.gov 
  
Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
TDA & RM2 Operating Program Manager 
Cheryl Chi 
510-817-5939 
cchi@bayareametro.gov 
 
 
 

232

mailto:dmeehan@nvta.ca.gov
http://www.nvta.ca.gov/
mailto:cchi@bayareametro.gov


ATTACHMENT 2
NVTA Agenda Item 9.8

April 18, 2018

233



April 18, 2018 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.1 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Justin Paniagua, Senior Finance/Policy Analyst 

(707) 259-8780 / Email: jpaniagua@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Public Hearing on the First Reading of Napa Valley Transportation 
Authority’s (NVTA’s) Biennial Budget for Fiscal Years (FY) 2018-19 
and 2019-20 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board 

1. Open the public hearing and comment period for the biennial budget; and

2. Review and provide comment on the FY 2018-19 NVTA annual operating budget
of $20,602,690; capital budget of $5,583,188, and depreciation budget of
$2,852,000 for a total amount of $29,037,878; and

3. Review and provide comment on the FY 2019-20 NVTA annual operating of
$15,637,050; capital budget of $0, and a depreciation budget of $2,887,000 for a
total amount of $18,524,050.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

A budget review steering committee review convened on April 13, 2018. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

NVTA is presenting the two-year biennial budget financial program for the fiscal years 
ending June 30, 2019 and 2020 for review and comment.  The final NVTA biennial budget 
will be presented to the Board for adoption at its May 16, 2018 meeting. 

234

mailto:jpaniagua@nvta.ca.gov


NVTA Agenda Letter                   Wednesday, April 18, 2018 
Agenda Item 10.1 

Page 2 of 8 
 

 
PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
1. Open Public Hearing 
2. Staff Report 
3. Public Comments 
4. Motion, Second, and Discussion 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a fiscal impact?  No, this specific item is informational. However, upon adoption 
at the May NVTA Board meeting, the fiscal impact will be $29,037,878 for FY2018-19 and 
$18,524,050 for FY2019-20 for the operating budget, capital investments, and 
depreciation expense. 
 
Final budget amounts may be revised based on feedback from the Board of Directors, 
staff, and public comment. 
 
CEQA REQUIREMENTS 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: The proposed action is not a project as defined 
by 14 California Code of Regulations 15378 (California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines) and therefore CEQA is not applicable.  
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
The overall budget for the Napa Valley Transportation Authority is $29 million in FY 2018-
19 and $18.5 million in FY 2019-20.  The biennial budget outlines NVTA’s plan for how 
resources will be used to achieve the agency’s goals and objectives over the next two 
years.  Adoption of the spending appropriation provides the legal authority to expend 
revenues for the outlined objectives.  Today’s action request the Board to review and 
comment on the two-year financial plan.  
 
NVTA will receive comments and requests for revisions over the next 30 days for possible 
incorporation into the final draft budgets.  Quarterly adjustments will be brought back to 
the Board over the next two years for any new projects, programs, requests for new 
appropriations, or amendments to carry over unused budgets from the previous year. 
 
The two year fiscal plan is a balanced budget achieved by minimizing expenditures and 
funding operations with anticipated operating and grants revenues.  The budget provides 
funding for all NVTA objectives without any service reductions and reflects the efforts 
made to meet the agency’s new and existing responsibilities to the community while 
minimizing costs.  
 
 

235



NVTA Agenda Letter                   Wednesday, April 18, 2018 
Agenda Item 10.1 

Page 3 of 8 
 

 
Staff anticipates these goals and objectives are achievable with existing staffing levels. 
That said, any expanded project delivery role over the next two to three years may require 
additional staff and support.  Reallocation of staff to address new responsibilities such as 
ramping up Measure T administration, maintaining the efficiency of transit services, 
delivering large capital projects, and assisting with Priority Development Area 
improvements may also be necessary.  
 
NVTA’s top five budgetary expenditures are:  

1. Purchased Transportation  
2. Professional Fees  
3. Personnel Costs  
4. Fuel  
5. Marketing  

 
The proposed biennial budget is 7.5 percent (7.5%) less than the first adjusted biennial 
budget for FY2016-18. Table 1 compares the current biennial budget to the previous 
adopted budget.  Table 2 presents the individual fiscal year’s budget. 
 
Table 1:  Biennial Budget FY 2016-18 and FY 2018-20  

Fiscal Year FY2016-18 FY2018-20 % Change 
Operating Budget $42,213,943 $41,978,740 (0.6)% 
Capital Budget  9,160,000 5,583,188 (39%) 
Total Budget $51,373,943 $47,561,928 

 
(7.4%) 

 
 
 
Table 2:  Budget for the Fiscal Years 2018-19 and 2019-20 

Fiscal Year FY2018-19 FY2019-20 
Operating Budget*   
   Revenues $20,602,690 $15,637,050 
   Expenses 20,602,690 15,637,050 
   
Capital Budget*   
   Revenues 5,583,188 0 
   Expenses 5,583,188 0 

* Unused appropriation in FY19 will be carried over to FY20 
 
General Fund (CMA)- Planning and Administration  NVTA’s administrative and planning 
budget is supported by Transportation Development Act (TDA) Funds, One Bay Area 
Grant planning funds distributed by the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC), 
and Federal Highway Funds administered by Caltrans .  The biennial operations budget 
for the CMA is shown in Table 3.  
  

236



NVTA Agenda Letter                   Wednesday, April 18, 2018 
Agenda Item 10.1 

Page 4 of 8 
 

 
 
Table 3:  Congestion Management Agency (General Fund) 
Fiscal Year FY2018-19 FY2019-20 
Operating Budget   
   Revenues $9,251,790 $3,901,400 
   Expenses*  9,251,790   3,901,400 

* Unused appropriation in FY19 will be carried over to FY20 
 
NVTA’s FYs 2019 and 2020 general fund expenditures are expected to increase 22.09% 
over the previous biennial budget period.  Higher healthcare costs, commencement of 
new projects such as the SR 29 Comprehensive Corridor Plan, and the continuation of 
current projects such as the architectural and engineering phase of the new maintenance 
facility are the main drivers for the increase while general overhead costs remain relatively 
flat.  A list of general fund programs and projects is included as Attachment 1.  
 
Public Transit Fund  The transit operating budget represents the cost for deploying the 
Vine, Vine Go, community shuttle services in American Canyon, Yountville, the St. 
Helena, and Calistoga, and administering the taxi scrip program.  Vine Transit provides 
over 1,000,000 passenger trips per year. Table 4 shows the biennial budget for the next 
two years. 
 
Table 4:  Public Transit Fund 
Fiscal Year FY2018-19 FY2019-20 
Operating Budget   
   Revenues        $11,594,400         $11,989,150  
   Expenses      11,594,400         11,989,150  
   
Capital Budget* 5,583,188 0 

* Unused appropriation in FY2018-19 will be carried over to FY 2019-20 
 
Purchased Transportation and New Transdev Services Contract   
Purchase Transportation costs alone have risen significantly in the last four (4) years.  
Since, FY 2013-14, Purchased Transportation costs have increased by 23%.  
 
New Purchase Transportation Contract   
NVTA executed a new five (5) year plus 2-one year option extension purchase 
transportation agreement with Transdev Services on September 1, 2016.  The contract 
increases operating cost by an average of 3.2% per year.  An operating contingency of 
$201,500 has been proposed for FY 2018-19 and $208,000 in FY 2019-20 to allow for 
minor variations in service.  
 
  

237



NVTA Agenda Letter                   Wednesday, April 18, 2018 
Agenda Item 10.1 

Page 5 of 8 
 

 
Passenger Fares  A decease in passengers for the last several quarters has translated 
to lower fare collections.  In the last four (4) years, farebox collection increased only 3%.  
 
NVTA will propose a passenger fare increase for the Vine at a later date if conditions 
continue to meet those established by NVTA’s fare policies.  Specifically the policy states 
that the NVTA board will consider a fare increase if the Vine fails to meet its farebox ratio 
goal (currently 15% for fixed route and 10% for shuttle services) and every three years to 
evaluate fares in light of Bay Area consumer price index or system costs if the fixed route 
farebox is less than 20%.  As part of this effort, staff will perform a study and Title VI 
disparity analysis in the summer and present to the Board the findings in the Fall with a 
public hearing to request an increase passenger fares. 
 
Fuel  After several years of low fuel prices helping offset transit operating costs, fuel cost 
is projected to increase by $165,268 or 20% this fiscal year from the low reached in FY 
2015-16, and is expected to continue to rise in the next budget year, but level off in the 
second year.  Fuel is budgeted at $2.93 per gallon on average in FY 2018-19 and $3.08 
in FY 2017-18. For comparison March 2018, the most recent full month of expenses, had 
an average $2.86 per gallon fuel cost.  If fuel costs rise for a prolonged period of time, the 
agency will need to use revenues set aside for fuel contingency.  The reserve established 
for fuel will allow the agency to absorb costs of up to $3.37 per gallon in FY 2018-19 and 
$3.54 per gallon in FY 2019-20.  
 
The Vine Fixed Route The budget recommends an average increase of 10.3% for the 
period in overall expenses due to an increase in purchased transportation and fuel 
expenses. As previously mentioned, the budget reflects maintaining current service 
levels.  
 
Vine Go (paratransit) The budget recommends a 4% increase per year due to higher fuel 
and depreciation costs.  
 
American Canyon Transit The budget recommends a 3% increase due to higher 
purchased transportation and fuel expenses.  
 
St. Helena Shuttle The budget recommends an average 11.3% increase due to higher 
purchased transportation and fuel expenses.  
 
Yountville Trolley The Yountville Trolley budget proposal recommends a 9.6% increase 
due to higher purchased transportation and fuel expenses.  
 
Calistoga Shuttle The Calistoga Shuttle budget proposal recommends an average 6.4% 
increase due to higher purchased transportation and fuel expenses.  
 
Taxi Scrip Program The Taxi Scrip Program budget proposal a decrease of 8% due to 
less than anticipated payments to taxi providers.  
 

238



NVTA Agenda Letter                   Wednesday, April 18, 2018 
Agenda Item 10.1 

Page 6 of 8 
 

 
Vine Facilities The Vine Facilities budget has been increased by an average of 50% due 
to increased maintenance cost and reclassification of expenses based on new 
capitalization thresholds.  As well as additional expenses for maintenance of ageing 
assets at the Jackson St. Maintenance Facility. 
 
Capital Projects Investments for the two fiscal years include procuring additional vehicles, 
equipment, and facilities.  The Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility will be presented to 
the Board at a later date for a separate, stand-alone budgetary approval. Capital 
investments are detailed in Attachment 1.  
 
Economic Forecasting and Strategies  
NVTA staff continuously monitor long term financial forecasts from several sources to 
maintain sufficient funding levels for service delivery, agency operations, maintenance, 
capital needs, and to ensure that the agency has the adequate cash flow to attain its short 
and long term objectives and goals.  Financial forecasting and fiscal strategies are used 
to optimize the level of reserves that should be maintained, informs staff when reserves 
can be increased during economically robust times and to safeguard operational stability 
during fiscally challenging times.  The proposed budget employs sound strategies and 
fiscal discipline in order to sustain operational objectives, maintain the capital investments 
in a state of good repair, make necessary capital improvements to enhance efficiencies, 
and improve operations.  
 
Revenue Projections  
Financial indicators show that the local economy will continue on its firm growth trajectory 
through FY 2018-19.  After several quarters of healthy economic expansion, we anticipate 
expansion to grow at a more modest rate in FY 2019-20.  California’s growth will level off, 
but economic factors show that progress is not stalling because:  

• US economy driving logistics and transportation  
• Tourists driving leisure and hospitality  
• High rents driving residential construction and the demand for house significantly 

outweighs supply 
• Consumers are driving retail  
• Government is expanding modestly on higher than expected tax revenues  

 
This robust growth pattern is reflected in the increase in quarterly Transportation 
Development Act (TDA) collections of nearly 10% over county original estimates for FY 
2018-19.  TDA revenue composes approximately 59% of NVTA’s combined operating 
revenues.  The balance of NVTA’s revenues come from a number of federal and local 
sources, including 18% from Federal sources (Federal Transit Administration-FTA), 
Federal Highway Administration-FHWA), and other federal funds), 7% from total farebox 
collections (blended rate of 10% when only looking at the Public Transit Fund); 4% from 
Regional/Local Sources, and 2% from pass through funds.  Federal funds are based on 
transportation authorization legislation which is funded by a per gallon tax on fuels.  
 
 

239



NVTA Agenda Letter                   Wednesday, April 18, 2018 
Agenda Item 10.1 

Page 7 of 8 
 

 
Macro-Economic Factors   
 
Federal Transit Administration 
This past March, President Trump signed the $1.3 trillion omnibus appropriations bill to 
keep the federal government open until at least September 20, 2018.  The funding 
provides the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) programs an additional $1.3 billion to 
$13.5 billion, well more than the $12.3 billion authorized.  Although the boost in funding 
is a welcome respite from years dwindling federal assistance, NVTA is only expected to 
receive a small, positive, revenue adjustment.  Some of the highlights of the bill include: 
 

• The bill increases funding for buses and bus facilities over the FY 2017 level from 
$720 million to $1.1 billion,  

• Funding for the rail State of Good Repair program was increased from $2.6 billion 
to $3 billion. 

• Increases funding for other transit formula programs as authorized by the FAST 
Act, including the appropriation of $1.5 billion for the TIGER program  

 
Small Intensive Capital Cities (STIC) Funds STIC is a federal incentive program that 
provides financial incentives to small urbanized areas with a population of 200,000 or less 
for achieving higher than average efficiency standards in six (6) areas.  Of the small seven 
urbanized areas, Napa, Vacaville and Vallejo received STIC allocations for FY 2017-18.  
Napa met three (3) out of six factors (Vacaville met two factors and Vallejo one) and will 
receive a financial boost of $557,750 of additional operating assistance.  The revenues 
will be reflected in the first year of the biennial budget.  Since the funding is based on 
performance measures and are not routine, staff did not budget STIC funds in the second 
year of the biennial budget, although expects to receive a similar allocation.  
 
State Transit Assistance (STA) In recent years, funding has been pressured by the 
complicated gas tax swap created by the former administration.  The gas tax swap 
increased the sales tax on diesel fuel and reduced the excise tax in order to keep it 
revenue neutral.  When gas tax revenues rise, additional revenues are received by transit 
properties.  The opposite occurred when fuel costs decreased.  Senate Bill 1, signed into 
law by Governor Brown last fall, corrected this issue.  In addition to increasing the diesel 
fuel tax from 1.75% to 5.75% it also added an inflation adjustment moving forward.  This 
will ensure that revenues coming from this source are more predictable in the long run.   
 
There will, however, be a delay in receiving some of these revenues because of recent 
actions taken by the Board of Equalization (BOE).  The BOE meets every year to calculate 
a revenue-neutral way to set the excise tax to equal what the state would have collected 
under the sales tax rules in place before things were changed in 2010.  At the February 
27 meeting the BOE staff recommended an increase of 4 cents a gallon which would 
have become effective July 1, 2018.  However, there was not enough support for the 
measure, and it failed on a 2-2 vote with the fifth member absent.  By not passing the 
increase, many transit properties are facing revenue limbo until the issue is resolved.  

240



NVTA Agenda Letter                   Wednesday, April 18, 2018 
Agenda Item 10.1 

Page 8 of 8 
 

 
This puts BOE out of compliance and staff anticipates due to political pressure that the 
BOE will vote on a corrective action. 
 
Also, MTC Resolution 4321 established the STA Population-Based County Block 
program commencing in FY 2018-19.  Similar to the Community Development Block 
Grant program, the STA Block Grants will allow each county’s transportation agency to 
determine how best to invest in its transit operations, including providing lifeline transit 
services.  NVTA is expected to receive 87 percent (87%) more STA revenues than in the 
previous year.  
  
While STA only makes up a small percentage of the agency’s transit budget, the increase 
from the population formula that the agency will receive from the MTC is roughly ten times 
what the agency receives from the revenue formula portion. 
 
Micro Economic Factors 
 
Like many other transit properties, Vine ridership has experienced flat or negative growth 
for the past several quarters.  The rise in popularity of rideshare apps like Uber and Lyft, 
a strong economy, and low fuel prices have all chipped away at ridership.  The biggest 
reason why transit ridership has decreased across the board is due to higher rates of 
automobile ownership and the incentives suburban and rural communities provide for 
owning a car such as free and plentiful parking. 
 
Despite all these challenges, Vine Transit is expected to have a modest increase in 
ridership of 3% in FY 2019 and another 1% thereafter.  Factors contributing to the 
increase include introduction of new technologies such as the RideTheVine mobile app, 
Wi-Fi on all public transit vehicles, and deploying newly rebranded buses.  Staff will also 
redouble its efforts to focus on social media platforms and continuous marketing 
campaigns which should attract new riders to the system.  
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachment: (1) Draft Biennial Budget for the Fiscal Years Ending 2019 & 2020 

241



Budget Inputs - Consolidated CMA and Public Transit
A B C D E F G

(D-A)
Draft - Adjusted   

 FY 2017 - 2018 
Adjusted Budget 

 FY 2017 - 2018 
Projections 

 FY 2018 - 2019 
Draft Budget 

 FY 2019 - 2020 
Draft Budget 

 Total Biennial 
Budget  $ Difference  % Difference 

41400 Transportation Development Act 8,447,492 7,715,644 12,302,898 9,074,495 21,377,393 2,241,205 27%
43790 State Transit Assistance 1,139,000 879,000 1,806,413 1,506,600 3,313,013 367,600 32%
43890 Federal Funds-  FTA/FHWA 2,781,830 2,460,991 4,459,424 2,846,600 7,306,024 64,770 2%
43950 Other-Governmental Agencies 400,000 436,400 629,400 715,400 1,344,800 315,400 79%
45100 Interest 26,300 49,550 46,400 47,000 93,400 20,700 79%
46800 Farebox 1,532,200 1,150,750 1,187,100 1,271,700 2,458,800 (260,500) -17%
46810 Charges for Services-Amcan 33,119 26,969 35,700 37,700 73,400 4,581 14%
46820 Charges for Service-Yountville 34,489 34,167 38,600 40,000 78,600 5,511 16%
46825 Charges for Services-St Helena 24,519 27,692 31,655 32,455 64,110 7,936 32%
46830 Charges for Services-Calistoga 65,093 65,093 65,100 65,100 130,200 7 0%
49900 Intrafund Transfers-In 204,000 220,000 243,500 253,500 497,000 49,500 24%
4* Total Revenues 14,484,042              12,846,256              20,602,690              15,637,050              36,239,740              2,767,210 19%

- - 

51100 Salaries and Wages 1,507,142 1,450,000 1,552,700 1,614,400 3,167,100 107,258 7%
51110 Extra Help - 5,000 5,000 5,000 10,000 5,000 0%
51200 401A Employer Contribution 18,000 20,000 24,500 24,500 49,000 6,500 36%
51205 Cell Phone Allowance 1,800 2,900 3,000 3,000 6,000 1,200 67%
51300 Medicare 17,000 17,050 18,000 18,000 36,000 1,000 6%
51400 Employee Insurance-Premiums 186,000 290,000 300,000 321,600 621,600 135,600 73%
51405 Workers Compensation 14,400 13,000 14,400 14,400 28,800 - 0%
51410 Unemployment Compensation - 3,000 - - - - 0%
51600 Retirement 154,358 125,000 166,000 180,000 346,000 25,642 17%
51605 Other Post Employment Benefits 31,000 31,000 25,000 25,000 50,000 (6,000) -19%
51990 Other Employee Benefits 3,000 2,200 3,000 3,000 6,000 - 0%
51* Total for: Salaries and Benefits 1,932,700 1,959,150 2,111,600 2,208,900 4,320,500 276,200 14%

52100 Administration Services 10,000 4,000 10,000 10,000 20,000 - 0%
52125 Accounting/Auditing Services 103,100 69,500 95,700 95,700 191,400 (7,400) -7%
52130 Information Technology Service 110,542 103,615 97,390 101,300 198,690 (9,242) -8%
52131 ITS-Communication Services 20,000 19,688 20,000 20,600 40,600 600 3%
52140 Legal Services 60,500 60,500 85,700 85,700 171,400 25,200 42%
52150 Temporary/Contract Help 10,000 - 7,500 7,500 15,000 (2,500) -25%
52310 Consulting Services 3,057,863 1,500,000 6,242,000 893,000 7,135,000 509,637 17%
52325 Waste Disposal Services 15,000 17,695 18,500 18,700 37,200 3,700 25%
52335 Security Services 48,000 26,233 42,000 42,000 84,000 (6,000) -13%
52340 Landscaping Services 4,000 8,250 5,000 5,200 10,200 1,200 30%
52360 Construction Services 65,000 65,000 - - - (65,000) -100%
52490 Purchased Transportation 8,901,000 8,983,192 9,286,000 9,592,300 18,878,300 691,300 8%
52500 Maintenance-Equipment 92,000 130,188 130,000 135,000 265,000 43,000 47%
52505 Maintenance-Buildings/Improvem 344,000 292,000 85,000 90,000 175,000 (254,000) -74%
52515 Maintenance-Software 113,000 107,750 115,500 115,500 231,000 2,500 2%
52520 Maintenance-Vehicles 32,000 7,200 62,000 62,000 124,000 30,000 94%
52600 Rents and Leases - Equipment 8,000 7,400 7,000 7,000 14,000 (1,000) -13%
52605 Rents and Leases - Bldg/Land 41,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 12,000 (35,000) -85%
52705 Insurance - Premiums 77,000 58,800 75,000 75,000 150,000 (2,000) -3%
52800 Communications/Telephone 16,000 18,625 21,500 21,500 43,000 5,500 34%
52810 Advertising/Marketing 202,000 102,500 172,500 172,500 345,000 (29,500) -15%
52820 Printing & Binding 65,500 42,500 60,000 60,000 120,000 (5,500) -8%
52825 Bank Charges 16,000 5,200 14,000 14,000 28,000 (2,000) -13%
52830 Publications & Legal Notices 12,000 16,120 17,500 17,500 35,000 5,500 46%
52900 Training/Conference Expenses 50,000 25,000 40,000 40,000 80,000 (10,000) -20%
52905 Business Travel/Mileage 20,000 13,000 15,000 15,000 30,000 (5,000) -25%
53100 Office Supplies 30,200 30,000 35,000 35,000 70,000 4,800 16%
53110 Freight/Postage 4,000 2,000 4,000 4,000 8,000 - 0%
53115 Books/Media/Periodicals/Subscr 7,000 4,000 6,000 6,000 12,000 (1,000) -14%
53120 Memberships/Certifications 36,000 33,000 35,000 35,000 70,000 (1,000) -3%
53205 Utilities - Electric 20,000 27,500 31,000 31,000 62,000 11,000 55%
53220 Utilities - Water 18,000 22,250 25,000 25,000 50,000 7,000 39%
53250 Fuel 1,234,000 1,076,900 1,114,900 1,171,550 2,286,450 (62,450) -5%

Operations Contingency 245,500 - 341,500 241,200 582,700 (4,300) -2%
Fuel Contingency 185,000 - 167,900 176,400 344,300 (8,600) -5%

52*  5Total for: Services and Supplies 15,273,205 12,885,606 18,491,090 13,428,150 31,919,240 829,445 5%

57900 Intrafund Transfers Out (Allocated Labo 204,000 221,000 243,500 253,500 497,000 49,500 24%
>='54 Total for: Other Expenses 204,000 221,000 243,500 253,500 497,000 49,500 24%

5* Total Expenditures 17,205,905              14,844,756              20,602,690              15,637,050              36,239,740              1,105,645 6%

Net Change in Operations (2,721,863) (1,998,500) - - - 

54600 Depreciation Expense 2,750,000 2,750,000 2,852,000 2,887,000 5,739,000 137,000 5%

Budget Inputs - Capital Projects
A B C D E F G

(C-A)
Draft - Adjusted   

 FY 2017 - 2018 
Approved Budget 

 FY 2017 - 2018 
Projections 

 FY 2018 - 2019 
Draft Budget 

 FY 2019 - 2020 
Draft Budget 

 Total Biennial 
Budget  $ Difference  % Difference 

41410 Sales and Use Tax - Captial 4,803,919.00 - 2,695,657.00 - 2,695,657.00 (2,108,262.00) -44%
43890 Federal-Other Funding 300,000.00 - 1,963,789.00 - 1,963,789.00 1,663,789.00 555%
43950 Other-Governmental Agencies - - 923,742 - 923,742                       923,742 0%
4* Total Revenues 5,103,919.00           - 5,583,188.00 - 5,583,188.00 479,269.00              9%

55200 Construction in Progress 425,000.00 - 1,075,000.00 - 1,075,000.00 650,000.00 153%
55400 Equipment 4,678,919.00 - 4,508,188.00 - 4,508,188.00 (170,731.00) -4%
55900 Capital Outlay Offset (5,103,919.00) - (5,583,188.00) - (5,583,188.00) (479,269.00) 9%
57900 Intrafund Transfers Out 5,103,919.00 - 5,583,188.00 - 5,583,188.00 479,269.00 9%
>='54 Total for: Other Expenses 5,103,919.00           - 5,583,188.00 - 5,583,188.00 479,269.00 9%

5* Total Expenditures 5,103,919.00           - 5,583,188.00 - 5,583,188.00 479,269.00              9%

Net Surplus (Deficit) - - - - - - 

Revenues

Expenses

Revenues

Expenses

ATTACHMENT 1
NVTA Agenda Item 10.1

April 18, 2018

242



Budget Inputs - CMA
A B C D E F G

(D-A)
Draft - Adjusted   

 FY 2017 - 2018 
Adjusted Budget 

 FY 2017 - 2018 
Projections 

 FY 2018 - 2019 
Draft Budget 

 FY 2019 - 2020 
Draft Budget 

 Total Biennial 
Budget  $ Difference  % Difference 

41400 Transportation Development Act 2,200,700                    1,906,700               6,342,290               2,479,900               8,822,190                  279,200                     13%
43790 State Transit Assistance 69,000                         69,000                    69,000                    69,000                    138,000                     -                            0%
43890 Federal Funds-  FTA/FHWA 760,000                       700,000                  2,374,000               790,000                  3,164,000                  30,000                       4%
43950 Other-Governmental Agencies 10,000                         10,000                    203,000                  289,000                  492,000                     279,000                     2790%
45100 Interest 5,000                           18,500                    20,000                    20,000                    40,000                       15,000                       300%
46800 Local Contributions (Non-Governmental) 160,000                       3,000                      -                          -                          -                            (160,000)                    -100%
49900 Intrafund Transfers-In 204,000                       220,000                  243,500                  253,500                  497,000                     49,500                       24%

4* Total Revenues 3,408,700                2,927,200            9,251,790            3,901,400            13,153,190            492,700                 14%

51100 Salaries and Wages 1,507,142                    1,450,000               1,552,700               1,614,400               3,167,100                  107,258                     7%
51110 Extra Help -                              5,000                      5,000                      5,000                      10,000                       5,000                         0%
51200 401A Employer Contribution 18,000                         20,000                    24,500                    24,500                    49,000                       6,500                         36%
51205 Cell Phone Allowance 1,800                           2,900                      3,000                      3,000                      6,000                         1,200                         67%
51300 Medicare 17,000                         17,050                    18,000                    18,000                    36,000                       1,000                         6%
51400 Employee Insurance-Premiums 186,000                       290,000                  300,000                  321,600                  621,600                     135,600                     73%
51405 Workers Compensation 14,400                         13,000                    14,400                    14,400                    28,800                       -                            0%
51410 Unemployment Compensation -                              3,000                      -                          -                          -                            -                            0%
51600 Retirement 154,358                       125,000                  166,000                  180,000                  346,000                     25,642                       17%
51605 Other Post Employment Benefits 31,000                         31,000                    25,000                    25,000                    50,000                       (6,000)                        -19%
51990 Other Employee Benefits 3,000                           2,200                      3,000                      3,000                      6,000                         -                            0%

51* Total for: Salaries and Benefits 1,932,700                1,959,150            2,111,600            2,208,900            4,320,500              276,200                 14%

52100 Administration Services 10,000                         4,000                      10,000                    10,000                    20,000                       -                            0%
52125 Accounting/Auditing Services 76,000                         65,000                    76,000                    76,000                    152,000                     -                            0%
52130 Information Technology Service 73,000                         73,000                    68,190                    70,300                    138,490                     (2,700)                        -4%
52131 ITS-Communication Services 20,000                         19,688                    20,000                    20,600                    40,600                       600                            3%
52140 Legal Services 50,000                         60,500                    75,000                    75,000                    150,000                     25,000                       50%
52310 Consulting Services 3,057,863                    1,500,000               6,242,000               893,000                  7,135,000                  509,637                     17%
52325 Waste Disposal Services -                              3,300                      3,500                      3,700                      7,200                         3,700                         0%
52335 Security Services 12,000                         6,233                      12,000                    12,000                    24,000                       -                            0%
52340 Landscaping Services 4,000                           8,250                      5,000                      5,200                      10,200                       1,200                         30%
52360 Construction Services 65,000                         65,000                    -                          -                          -                            (65,000)                      -100%
52500 Maintenance-Equipment 10,000                         25,000                    25,000                    25,000                    50,000                       15,000                       150%
52505 Maintenance-Buildings/Improvem 339,000                       275,000                  70,000                    75,000                    145,000                     (264,000)                    -78%
52515 Maintenance-Software 72,000                         50,000                    50,000                    50,000                    100,000                     (22,000)                      -31%
52520 Maintenance-Vehicles 2,000                           -                          2,000                      2,000                      4,000                         -                            0%
52600 Rents and Leases - Equipment 8,000                           7,400                      7,000                      7,000                      14,000                       (1,000)                        -13%
52705 Insurance - Premiums 65,000                         45,000                    60,000                    60,000                    120,000                     (5,000)                        -8%
52800 Communications/Telephone 10,000                         6,700                      7,500                      7,500                      15,000                       (2,500)                        -25%
52810 Advertising/Marketing 40,000                         50,000                    55,000                    55,000                    110,000                     15,000                       38%
52820 Printing & Binding 20,000                         15,000                    15,000                    15,000                    30,000                       (5,000)                        -25%
52825 Bank Charges 12,000                         2,000                      10,000                    10,000                    20,000                       (2,000)                        -17%
52830 Publications & Legal Notices 10,000                         15,000                    15,000                    15,000                    30,000                       5,000                         50%
52900 Training/Conference Expenses 50,000                         25,000                    40,000                    40,000                    80,000                       (10,000)                      -20%
52905 Business Travel/Mileage 20,000                         13,000                    15,000                    15,000                    30,000                       (5,000)                        -25%
53100 Office Supplies 20,000                         30,000                    35,000                    35,000                    70,000                       15,000                       75%
53110 Freight/Postage 3,000                           2,000                      3,000                      3,000                      6,000                         -                            0%
53115 Books/Media/Periodicals/Subscr 7,000                           4,000                      6,000                      6,000                      12,000                       (1,000)                        -14%
53120 Memberships/Certifications 36,000                         33,000                    35,000                    35,000                    70,000                       (1,000)                        -3%
53205 Utilities - Electric 12,000                         22,000                    25,000                    25,000                    50,000                       13,000                       108%
53220 Utilities - Water 10,000                         10,000                    12,000                    12,000                    24,000                       2,000                         20%
53250 Fuel 1,000                           900                         1,000                      1,000                      2,000                         -                            0%

Operations Contingency 52,000                         -                          140,000                  33,200                    173,200                     (18,800)                      -36%

52*  53* Total for: Services and Supplies 4,166,863                2,435,971            7,140,190            1,692,500            8,832,690              200,137                 5%

5* Total Expenditures 6,099,563                4,395,121            9,251,790            3,901,400            13,153,190            476,337                 8%

Net Change in Operations (2,690,863)               (1,467,921)           -                       -                       -                         

54600 Depreciation Expense -                          -                          -                            -                            0%

Revenues

Expenses

243



Professional Fees/ Consultant Details  Proposed Budget  Proposed Budget

No. Elective Regulatory CMA/Transit Special Projects/Studies Funding Secured 2018-2019 2019-2020 Status

1  V Commute (vanpool/call center) JARC/TDA 8  20,000                   20,000                   Carryover, Increase Funding

2  Annual Report- NVTA TDA 8  10,000                   10,000                   Continued Funding

3  BAAQMD- TFCA TFCA  500,000                 500,000                 Continued Funding

4  Mileage Reimbursement Program* FTA 5310  20,000                   20,000                   Continued Funding

5  Mobility Management Programs FTA 5310/TDA  100,000                 100,000                 Continued Funding

6  Safe Routes To Schools (Caltrans) SR2S - OBAG 2/ATP  664,000                 Carryover

7  State Advocacy Services- Lobbying Services TDA 8  35,000                   35,000                   Continued Funding

8  Countywide Transportation Plan (including elements - technology, resiliency) CMA Planning  350,000                 New

9  Community Based Transportation Plan (Transit) Lifeline  75,000                   New

10  Travel Behavior Study (Incl. SR 37) CMA Planning  257,000                 -                         New

11  Travel Demand Model Upgrade CMA Planning  75,000                   Carryover

12  Travel Demand Model Operations and Maintenance (O&M) CMA Planning  32,000                   8,000                     New 

13  Website Enhancements Major Uprgrade TDA 8  50,000                   Carryover, Increase Funding

14  Federal Advocacy Program (Shared) TDA 8  20,000                   Continued Funding

15  Vine Transit Comprehensive Operational Analysis TDA 8  75,000                   New

16  Napa Valley Vine Trail Calistoga to St. Helena Pre-construction Vine Trail Coalition 527,000                 New

17  Bike Plan Updates and Revisions CMA Planning  125,000                 Carryover

18  Bike and Ped Counts CMA Planning  20,000                   -                         New

19  Bike/Ped Wayfinding Signage Plan CMA Planning  50,000                   -                         New

20  American Canyon Signal Priority TPI  92,000                   Carryover

21  Passenger Rail Coordination CMA Planning  50,000                   New

22  Maintenance Yard NEPA/CEQA - mitigation monitoring TDA 8  50,000                   -                         New

23  Maintenance Yard Design & Engineering TDA 8  1,000,000              -                         Carryover

24  Maintenance Yard Solar Consulting TDA 8  45,000                   -                         Carryover

25  SR 29 Comprehensive Corridor Plan CMA Planning/developer  350,000                 -                         New

26  Imola Park and Ride Environmental & Design Engineering STP  500,000                 -                         New

27  Imola Ave. Complete Streets Plan ATP/CMA Planning  250,000                 New

28  Carneros Intersection Environmental/Engineering TDA 8/CMA  200,000                 New

29  Capital Projects - Project Management/Coordination TDA 8  300,000                 200,000                 New 

30  Center for Technology and Environment - ZEB Project Implementation FTA 5339  400,000                 New, Approved W/ FTA 5339 Grant 

TOTAL CMA SPECIAL PROJECTS 6,242,000            893,000               

Public Transit Special Projects Funding Secured 2016-2017 2016-2017

$0 $0

TOTAL PROFESSIONAL FEES/ CONSULTING SERVICES 6,242,000              893,000                 

244



Budget Inputs - Capital Projects
A B C D E F G

(C-A)
Draft - Adjusted   

 FY 2017 - 2018 
Approved 

Budget 
 FY 2017 - 2018 

Projections 
 FY 2018 - 2019 
Draft Budget 

 FY 2019 - 
2020 Draft 

Budget 

 Total 
Biennial 
Budget  $ Difference  % Difference 

 FY 2017 - 2018 
Adjusted Budget 

41410 Sales and Use Tax - Captial 4,803,919               -                         2,695,657              -                      2,695,657         (2,108,262)         -44%
43890 Federal-Other Funding 300,000                  -                         1,963,789              -                      1,963,789         1,663,789           555%
43950 Other-Governmental Agencies -                          -                         923,742                 -                      923,742            923,742              -                    
4* Total Revenues 5,103,919           -                      5,583,188           -                   5,583,188      479,269           9%

55200 Construction in Progress 425,000                  -                         1,075,000              -                      1,075,000         650,000              153%
55400 Equipment 4,678,919               -                         4,508,188              -                      4,508,188         (170,731)            -4%
55900 Capital Outlay Offset (5,103,919)              -                         (5,583,188)             -                      (5,583,188)        (479,269)            9%
57900 Intrafund Transfers Out 5,103,919               -                         5,583,188              -                      5,583,188         479,269              9%
>='54 Total for: Other Expenses 5,103,919           -                      5,583,188           -                   5,583,188      479,269           9%

5* Total Expenditures 5,103,919           -                      5,583,188           -                   5,583,188      479,269           9%

Net Surplus (Deficit) -                      -                      -                      -                   -                 -                  

Revenues

Expenses

245



Updated 5/04/16 at 4:45pm

V1. V2. V3. F1. F2. F6. E1. E3. E4.

TOTALS Bus Enhancements
Rolling Stock
 4 Paratransit 

Buses

Rolling Stock
5 Battery Electric 

Buses

Redwood PNR Lot 
Monument Sign Bus Stop Upgrades Imola PNR 

Upgrades
Asset Management 

Database POS System Bus Stop Signage

Secured Secured Secured Secured Secured Secured Secured Secured Secured

Funding Source:
FTA 1,963,789        280,000            1,056,789         120,000 507,000            
TDA (LTF) 2,695,657        100,000            520,000            1,442,657         15,000              140,000            293,000            50,000              70,000              65,000              
STATE: LCTOP 418,742           418,742            
STATE: HVIP 505,000           505,000            
Other Funds -                   
TOTAL FOR YEAR $5,583,188 $100,000 $800,000 $3,423,188 $15,000 $260,000 $800,000 $50,000 $70,000 $65,000

TOTAL PROJECT COSTS $5,583,188 $100,000 $800,000 $3,423,188 $15,000 $260,000 $800,000 $50,000 $70,000 $65,000
Approved FY15/16 Approved FY15/16 Approved FY13/14 Approved FY14/15 Approved FY15/16

Carryover, Previously approved $460,000 8%
New Projects $5,123,188 92%

$5,583,188 100%

FUNDING STATUS

CAPITAL INVESTMENTS FY 2018-2019 & FY 2019 -2020

VEHICLES FACILITIES EQUIPMENT

PROJECT

246



Budget Inputs - Vine Transit Services

Public Transit Service Projections

 FY 2017 - 2018 
Actuals Through 

Jan 2018 

 FY 2017 - 2018 
Projections 

 FY 2018 - 2019 
Draft Budget 

 FY 2019 - 2020 
Draft Budget 

 Total Biennial 
Budget 

Service Hours 77,660                         134,615                   137,500                  137,200                  274,700                     
Revenue Hours 63,226                         109,366                   114,950                  115,650                  230,600                     
Service Miles 1,062,886                    1,849,352                1,879,400               1,882,400               3,761,800                  
Revenue Miles 984,499                       1,713,419                1,739,000               1,746,000               3,485,000                  
Ridership 638,391                       1,099,149                1,136,700               1,152,200               2,288,900                  

 Total Hourly Cost per Contract 
(FY18-19 $46.36; FY19-20 $48.00) 6,374,500               6,585,600               12,960,100                
Fixed Cost Allocation 2,845,429               2,940,650               5,786,079                  

A B C D E F G
(D-A)

Draft - Adjusted   
 FY 2017 - 2018 

Adjusted Budget 
 FY 2017 - 2018 

Projections 
 FY 2018 - 2019 
Draft Budget 

 FY 2019 - 2020 
Draft Budget 

 Total Biennial 
Budget  $ Difference  % Difference 

41400 Transportation Development Act 6,246,792                    5,808,944                5,960,608               6,594,595               12,555,203                347,803                     6%
43790 State Transit Assistance 1,070,000                    810,000                   1,737,413               1,437,600               3,175,013                  367,600                     34%
43890 Federal Funds-  FTA/FHWA 2,021,830                    1,760,991                2,085,424               2,056,600               4,142,024                  34,770                       2%
43950 Other-Governmental Agencies 390,000                       426,400                   426,400                  426,400                  852,800                     36,400                       9%
45100 Interest 21,300                         31,050                     26,400                    27,000                    53,400                       5,700                         27%
46800 Farebox 1,372,200                    1,147,750                1,187,100               1,271,700               2,458,800                  (100,500)                    -7%
46810 Charges for Services-Amcan 33,119                         26,969                     35,700                    37,700                    73,400                       4,581                         14%
46820 Charges for Service-Yountville 34,489                         34,167                     38,600                    40,000                    78,600                       5,511                         16%
46825 Charges for Services-St Helena 24,519                         27,692                     31,655                    32,455                    64,110                       7,936                         32%
46830 Charges for Services-Calistoga 65,093                         65,093                     65,100                    65,100                    130,200                     7                               0%

4* Total Revenues 11,279,342              10,139,056           11,594,400          11,989,150          23,583,550             709,808                 6%

52125 Accounting/Auditing Services 27,100                         4,500                       19,700                    19,700                    39,400                       (7,400)                        -27%
52130 Information Technology Service 37,542                         30,615                     29,200                    31,000                    60,200                       (6,542)                        -17%
52140 Legal Services 10,500                         -                          10,700                    10,700                    21,400                       200                            2%
52150 Temporary/Contract Help 10,000                         -                          7,500                      7,500                      15,000                       (2,500)                        -25%
52325 Waste Disposal Services 15,000                         14,395                     15,000                    15,000                    30,000                       -                            0%
52335 Security Services 36,000                         20,000                     30,000                    30,000                    60,000                       (6,000)                        -17%
52490 Purchased Transportation 8,901,000                    8,983,192                9,286,000               9,592,300               18,878,300                691,300                     8%
52500 Maintenance-Equipment 82,000                         105,188                   105,000                  110,000                  215,000                     28,000                       34%
52505 Maintenance-Buildings/Improvem 5,000                           17,000                     15,000                    15,000                    30,000                       10,000                       200%
52515 Maintenance-Software 41,000                         57,750                     65,500                    65,500                    131,000                     24,500                       60%
52520 Maintenance-Vehicles 30,000                         7,200                       60,000                    60,000                    120,000                     30,000                       100%
52605 Rents and Leases - Bldg/Land 41,000                         6,000                       6,000                      6,000                      12,000                       (35,000)                      -85%
52705 Insurance - Premiums 12,000                         13,800                     15,000                    15,000                    30,000                       3,000                         25%
52800 Communications/Telephone 6,000                           11,925                     14,000                    14,000                    28,000                       8,000                         133%
52810 Advertising/Marketing 162,000                       52,500                     117,500                  117,500                  235,000                     (44,500)                      -27%
52820 Printing & Binding 45,500                         27,500                     45,000                    45,000                    90,000                       (500)                          -1%
52825 Bank Charges 4,000                           3,200                       4,000                      4,000                      8,000                         -                            0%
52830 Publications & Legal Notices 2,000                           1,120                       2,500                      2,500                      5,000                         500                            25%
53100 Office Supplies 10,200                         -                          -                          -                          -                             (10,200)                      -100%
53110 Freight/Postage 1,000                           -                          1,000                      1,000                      2,000                         -                            0%
53205 Utilities - Electric 8,000                           5,500                       6,000                      6,000                      12,000                       (2,000)                        -25%
53220 Utilities - Water 8,000                           12,250                     13,000                    13,000                    26,000                       5,000                         63%
53250 Fuel 1,233,000                    1,076,000                1,113,900               1,170,550               2,284,450                  (62,450)                      -5%

Operations Contingency 193,500                       -                          201,500                  208,000                  409,500                     14,500                       7%
Fuel Contingency 185,000                       -                          167,900                  176,400                  344,300                     (8,600)                        -5%

52*  53* Total for: Services and Supplies 11,106,342              10,449,635           11,350,900          11,735,650          23,086,550             629,308                 6%

57900 Intrafund Transfers Out (Allocated Labor) 204,000                       221,000                   243,500                  253,500                  497,000                     49,500                       24%
>='54 Total for: Other Expenses 204,000                   221,000                243,500               253,500               497,000                  49,500                   24%

5* Total Expenditures 11,310,342              10,670,635           11,594,400          11,989,150          23,583,550             678,808                 6%

Net Change in Operations (31,000)                    (531,579)              -                       -                       -                         

54600 Depreciation Expense 2,750,000                    2,750,000                2,852,000               2,887,000               5,739,000                  137,000                     5%

Revenues

Expenses

247



Budget Inputs - Vine Go

Public Transit Service Projections

 FY 2017 - 2018 
Actuals Through 

Jan 2018 

 FY 2017 - 2018 
Projections 

 FY 2018 - 2019 
Draft Budget 

 FY 2019 - 2020 
Draft Budget 

 Total Biennial 
Budget 

Service Hours 8,829                            15,135                     14,500                     14,000                     28,500                        
Revenue Hours 6,936                            11,890                     12,000                     11,500                     23,500                        
Service Miles 98,373                          168,639                   185,000                   180,000                   365,000                      
Revenue Miles 76,400                          130,971                   145,000                   140,000                   285,000                      
Ridership 13,540                          23,211                     25,000                     23,000                     48,000                        

 Total Hourly Cost per Contract 
(FY18-19 $46.36; FY19-20 $48.00) 672,220                   672,000                   1,344,220                   
Fixed Cost Allocation 300,063                   300,066                   600,130                      

A B C D E F G
(D-A)

Draft - Adjusted   
 FY 2017 - 2018 

Adjusted Budget 
 FY 2017 - 2018 

Projections 
 FY 2018 - 2019 
Draft Budget 

 FY 2019 - 2020 
Draft Budget 

 Total Biennial 
Budget  $ Difference  % Difference 

41400 Transportation Development Act 537,100                        638,792                   1,006,642                1,146,250                2,152,892                   609,150                      113%
43790 State Transit Assistance 250,000                        100,000                   59,834                     -                           59,834                        (250,000)                     -100%
43890 Federal Funds-  FTA/FHWA 340,000                        200,000                   65,824                     -                           65,824                        (340,000)                     -100%
45100 Interest 500                               3,200                       1,000                       1,000                       2,000                          500                             100%
46800 Farebox 64,800                          70,000                     75,000                     69,500                     144,500                      4,700                          7%
4* Total Revenues 1,192,400                1,011,992            1,208,300            1,216,750            2,425,050               24,350                    2%

52125 Accounting/Auditing Services 5,000                            300                          4,000                       4,000                       8,000                          (1,000)                         -20%
52130 Information Technology Service 3,900                            3,000                       3,000                       3,100                       6,100                          (800)                            -21%
52140 Legal Services 2,000                            -                           2,000                       2,000                       4,000                          -                              0%
52490 Purchased Transportation 960,000                        1,005,192                973,000                   973,000                   1,946,000                   13,000                        1%
52520 Maintenance-Vehicles 10,000                          1,200                       15,000                     15,000                     30,000                        5,000                          50%
52605 Rents and Leases - Bldg/Land 4,000                            -                           -                           -                           -                              (4,000)                         -100%
52810 Advertising/Marketing 1,000                            500                          1,500                       1,500                       3,000                          500                             50%
52820 Printing & Binding 2,000                            1,500                       2,000                       2,000                       4,000                          -                              0%
52830 Publications & Legal Notices -                                120                          500                          500                          1,000                          500                             0%
53100 Office Supplies 1,200                            -                           -                           -                           -                              (1,200)                         -100%
53250 Fuel 140,000                        140,000                   145,000                   152,250                   297,250                      12,250                        9%

Operations Contingency 21,300                          -                           20,500                     20,500                     41,000                        (800)                            -4%
Fuel Contingency 21,000                          -                           21,800                     22,900                     44,700                        1,900                          9%

52*  53* Total for: Services and Supplies 1,171,400                1,151,812            1,188,300            1,196,750            2,385,050               25,350                    2%

57900 Intrafund Transfers Out (Allocated Labor) 21,000                          11,000                     20,000                     20,000                     40,000                        (1,000)                         -5%
>='54 Total for: Other Expenses 21,000                     11,000                 20,000                 20,000                 40,000                    (1,000)                    -5%

5* Total Expenditures 1,192,400                1,162,812            1,208,300            1,216,750            2,425,050               24,350                    2%

Net Change in Operations -                           (150,820)              -                       -                       -                         

54600 Depreciation Expense 290,000                        290,000                   290,000                   290,000                   580,000                      -                              0%

Revenues

Expenses

248



Budget Inputs - Vine
 FY 2017 - 2018 

Actuals Through 
Jan 2018 

 FY 2017 - 2018 
Projections 

 FY 2018 - 2019 
Draft Budget 

 FY 2019 - 2020 
Draft Budget 

 Total Biennial 
Budget 

Total Service Hours 58,795                         102,275                  103,800                  103,800                  207,600                     
Total Revenue Hours 47,261                         81,998                    86,200                    87,200                    173,400                     
Total Service Miles 888,206                       1,549,899               1,560,900               1,565,900               3,126,800                  
Total Revenue Miles 846,250                       1,476,421               1,479,500               1,488,500               2,968,000                  
Total Ridership 581,281                       1,001,246               1,029,200               1,041,200               2,070,400                  

 Total Hourly Cost per Contract 
(FY18-19 $46.36; FY19-20 $48.00) 4,812,168               4,982,400               9,794,568                  
Fixed Cost Allocation 2,148,040               2,224,777               4,372,818                  

A B C D E F G
(D-A)

Draft - Adjusted   
 FY 2017 - 2018 

Adjusted Budget 
 FY 2017 - 2018 

Projections 
 FY 2018 - 2019 
Draft Budget 

 FY 2019 - 2020 
Draft Budget 

 Total Biennial 
Budget  $ Difference  % Difference 

41400 Transportation Development Act 4,866,861                    4,363,292               3,946,500             4,097,600             8,044,100                  (769,261)                   -16%
43790 State Transit Assistance 500,000                       400,000                  1,395,700             1,437,600             2,833,300                  937,600                     188%
43890 Federal Funds-  FTA/FHWA 1,420,839                    1,300,000               1,809,600             1,842,400             3,652,000                  421,561                     30%
43950 Other-Governmental Agencies (RM2) 390,000                       426,400                  426,400                426,400                852,800                     36,400                       9%
45100 Interest 15,000                         24,000                    20,500                  21,100                  41,600                       6,100                         41%
46800 Farebox 1,210,000                    980,000                  1,007,600             1,095,000             2,102,600                  (115,000)                   -10%
4* Total Revenues 8,402,700                 7,493,692             8,606,300             8,920,100             17,526,400             517,400                  6%

52125 Accounting/Auditing Services 15,000                         2,000                      10,000                    10,000                    20,000                       (5,000)                       -33%
52130 Information Technology Service 22,700                         18,615                    21,300                    22,500                    43,800                       (200)                          -1%
52140 Legal Services 5,000                           -                          5,000                      5,000                      10,000                       -                            0%
52150 Temporary/Contract Help 10,000                         -                          7,500                      7,500                      15,000                       (2,500)                       -25%
52335 Security Services 36,000                         20,000                    30,000                    30,000                    60,000                       (6,000)                       -17%
52490 Purchased Transportation 6,600,000                    6,700,000               6,960,300             7,207,200             14,167,500                607,200                     9%
52500 Maintenance-Equipment -                               5,172                      10,000                    10,000                    20,000                       10,000                       0%
52515 Maintenance-Software 41,000                         57,750                    60,000                    60,000                    120,000                     19,000                       46%
52520 Maintenance-Vehicles 20,000                         6,000                      20,000                    20,000                    40,000                       -                            0%
52605 Rents and Leases - Bldg/Land 20,000                         -                          -                          -                          -                             (20,000)                     -100%
52810 Advertising/Marketing 140,000                       50,000                    100,000                  100,000                  200,000                     (40,000)                     -29%
52820 Printing & Binding 30,000                         20,000                    30,000                    30,000                    60,000                       -                            0%
52825 Bank Charges 4,000                           3,200                      4,000                      4,000                      8,000                         -                            0%
52830 Publications & Legal Notices 2,000                           1,000                      2,000                      2,000                      4,000                         -                            0%
53100 Office Supplies 6,000                           -                          -                          -                          -                             (6,000)                       -100%
53110 Freight/Postage 1,000                           -                          1,000                      1,000                      2,000                         -                            0%
53250 Fuel 1,000,000                    850,000                  864,900                909,100                1,774,000                  (90,900)                     -9%

Operations Contingency 144,000                       149,800                154,900                304,700                     10,900                       8%
Fuel Contingency 150,000                       130,500                136,900                267,400                     (13,100)                     -9%

52*  53* Total for: Services and Supplies 8,246,700                 7,733,737             8,406,300             8,710,100             17,116,400             463,400                  6%

57900 Intrafund Transfers Out (Allocated Labor) 156,000                       200,000                  200,000                  210,000                  410,000                     54,000                       35%
>='54 Total for: Other Expenses 156,000                    200,000                200,000                210,000                410,000                  54,000                    35%

5* Total Expenditures 8,402,700                 7,933,737             8,606,300             8,920,100             17,526,400             517,400                  6%

Net Change in Operations -                            (440,045)              -                       -                       -                          

54600 Depreciation Expense 2,343,000                    2,343,000               2,500,000               2,500,000               5,000,000                  157,000                     7%

Revenues

Expenses

Public Transit Service Projections

249



Budget Inputs - Taxi Scrip
A B C D E F G

(D-A)
Draft - Adjusted   

 FY 2017 - 2018 
Adjusted Budget 

 FY 2017 - 2018 
Projections 

 FY 2018 - 2019 
Draft Budget 

 FY 2019 - 2020 
Draft Budget 

 Total Biennial 
Budget  $ Difference  % Difference 

41400 Transportation Development Act 54,252                         54,860                    42,600                    42,600                    85,200                       (11,652)                      -21%
45100 Interest 400                              250                         400                         400                         800                            -                             0%
46800 Farebox 37,000                         40,000                    40,000                    40,000                    80,000                       3,000                         8%

4* Total Revenues 91,652                     95,110                 83,000                 83,000                 166,000                 (8,652)                    -9%

52125 Accounting/Auditing Services 1,500                           600                         1,000                      1,000                      2,000                         (500)                           -33%
52130 Information Technology Service 1,252                           1,000                      1,000                      1,000                      2,000                         (252)                           -20%
52140 Legal Services 500                              -                          500                         500                         1,000                         -                             0%
52490 Purchased Transportation 67,000                         61,000                    65,000                    65,000                    130,000                     (2,000)                        -3%
52605 Rents and Leases - Bldg/Land 2,000                           -                          -                          -                          -                             (2,000)                        -100%
52820 Printing & Binding 8,000                           4,000                      8,000                      8,000                      16,000                       -                             0%
53100 Office Supplies 1,000                           -                          -                          -                          -                             (1,000)                        -100%
52*  53* Total for: Services and Supplies 81,252                     66,600                 75,500                 75,500                 151,000                 (5,752)                    -7%

57900 Intrafund Transfers Out (Allocated Labor) 10,400                         2,500                      7,500                      7,500                      15,000                       (2,900)                        -28%
>='54 Total for: Other Expenses 10,400                     2,500                   7,500                   7,500                   15,000                   (2,900)                    -28%

5* Total Expenditures 91,652                     69,100                 83,000                 83,000                 166,000                 (8,652)                    -9%

Net Change in Operations -                           26,010                 -                      -                      -                         -                         

54600 Depreciation Expense -                             -                             0%

Revenues

Expenses

250



Budget Inputs - American Canyon

Public Transit Service Projections

 FY 2017 - 2018 
Actuals Through 

Jan 2018 

 FY 2017 - 2018 
Projections 

 FY 2018 - 2019 
Draft Budget 

 FY 2019 - 2020 
Draft Budget 

 Total Biennial 
Budget 

Service Hours 2,034                           3,487                      3,800                      3,900                      7,700                         
Revenue Hours 1,820                           3,120                      2,850                      2,950                      5,800                         
Service Miles 21,283                         36,486                    35,000                    36,000                    71,000                       
Revenue Miles 14,750                         25,285                    25,000                    26,000                    51,000                       
Ridership 11,770                         20,177                    20,000                    21,000                    41,000                       

 Total Hourly Cost per Contract 
(FY18-19 $46.36; FY19-20 $48.00) 176,168                  187,200                  363,368                     
Fixed Cost Allocation 78,637                    83,590                    162,227                     

A B C D E F G
(D-A)

Draft - Adjusted   
 FY 2017 - 2018 

Adjusted Budget 
 FY 2017 - 2018 

Projections 
 FY 2018 - 2019 

Draft Budget 
 FY 2019 - 2020 

Draft Budget 
 Total Biennial 

Budget  $ Difference  % Difference 

41400 Transportation Development Act 144,271                       150,000                  209,900                  295,300                  505,200                     151,029                     105%
43790 State Transit Assistance 80,000                         80,000                    70,000                    -                          70,000                       (80,000)                      -100%
43890 Federal Funds-  FTA/FHWA 60,000                         60,000                    -                          -                          -                             (60,000)                      -100%
45100 Interest 2,000                           1,200                      1,500                      1,500                      3,000                         (500)                           -25%
46800 Farebox 15,600                         14,000                    14,000                    14,700                    28,700                       (900)                           -6%
46810 Charges for Services-Amcan 33,119                         26,969                    35,700                    37,700                    73,400                       4,581                         14%
4* Total Revenues 334,990                   332,169               331,100               349,200               680,300                 14,210                   4%

52125 Accounting/Auditing Services 1,200                           200                         1,000                      1,000                      2,000                         (200)                           -17%
52130 Information Technology Service 2,790                           2,000                      800                         900                         1,700                         (1,890)                        -68%
52140 Legal Services 800                              -                          1,000                      1,000                      2,000                         200                            25%
52490 Purchased Transportation 268,000                       225,000                  254,900                  270,800                  525,700                     2,800                         1%
52500 Maintenance-Equipment 15,500                         16,124                    15,000                    15,000                    30,000                       (500)                           -3%
52520 Maintenance-Vehicles -                               -                          5,000                      5,000                      10,000                       5,000                         0%
52605 Rents and Leases - Bldg/Land 4,000.00                      -                          -                          -                          -                             (4,000)                        -100%
52800 Communications/Telephone -                               900                         1,000                      1,000                      2,000                         1,000                         0%
52810 Advertising/Marketing 10,000                         400                         5,000                      5,000                      10,000                       (5,000)                        -50%
52820 Printing & Binding 3,500                           2,000                      3,000                      3,000                      6,000                         (500)                           -14%
53100 Office Supplies 500.00                         -                          -                          -                          -                             (500)                           -100%
53250 Fuel 30,000                         25,000                    30,000                    31,500                    61,500                       1,500                         5%

Operations Contingency 5,800                           5,900                      6,200                      12,100                       400                            7%
Fuel Contingency 4,400                           4,500                      4,800                      9,300                         400                            9%

52*  53* Total for: Services and Supplies 346,490                   271,624               327,100               345,200               672,300                 (1,290)                    0%

57900 Intrafund Transfers Out (Allocated Labor) 4,000                           1,500                      4,000                      4,000                      8,000                         -                             0%
>='54 Total for: Other Expenses 4,000                       1,500                  4,000                  4,000                  8,000                     -                         -                         

5* Total Expenditures 350,490                   273,124               331,100               349,200               680,300                 (1,290)                    0%

Net Change in Operations (15,500)                   59,045                -                      -                      -                         

54600 Depreciation Expense 24,000                         24,000                    25,000                    25,000                    50,000                       1,000                         4%

Revenues

Expenses

251



Budget Inputs - Yountville

Public Transit Service Projections

 FY 2017 - 2018 
Actuals Through 

Jan 2018 

 FY 2017 - 2018 
Projections 

 FY 2018 - 2019 
Draft Budget 

 FY 2019 - 2020 
Draft Budget 

 Total Biennial 
Budget 

Service Hours 2,424                            4,156                       4,800                       4,800                       9,600                          
Revenue Hours 2,306                            3,953                       4,600                       4,600                       9,200                          
Service Miles 14,638                          25,094                     29,500                     29,500                     59,000                        
Revenue Miles 13,785                          23,631                     28,000                     28,000                     56,000                        
Ridership 11,590                          19,869                     25,000                     26,000                     51,000                        

 Total Hourly Cost per Contract 
(FY18-19 $46.36; FY19-20 $48.00) 222,528                   230,400                   452,928                      
Fixed Cost Allocation 99,331                     102,880                   202,211                      

A B C D E F G
(D-A)

Draft - Adjusted   
 FY 2017 - 2018 

Adjusted Budget 
 FY 2017 - 2018 

Projections 
 FY 2018 - 2019 
Draft Budget 

 FY 2019 - 2020 
Draft Budget 

 Total Biennial 
Budget  $ Difference  % Difference 

41400 Transportation Development Act 172,111                        172,000                   210,071                   291,350                   501,421                      119,239                      69%
43790 State Transit Assistance 80,000                          80,000                     70,879                     -                           70,879                        (80,000)                       -100%
43890 Federal Funds-  FTA/FHWA 67,000                          67,000                     65,500                     66,800                     132,300                      (200)                            0%
45100 Interest 1,000                            700                          1,000                       1,000                       2,000                          -                              0%
46820 Charges for Service-Yountville 34,489                          34,167                     38,600                     40,000                     78,600                        5,511                          16%
4* Total Revenues 354,600                   353,867               386,050               399,150               785,200                  44,550                    13%

52125 Accounting/Auditing Services 1,500                            200                          1,000                       1,000                       2,000                          (500)                            -33%
52130 Information Technology Service 2,300                            2,000                       1,000                       1,100                       2,100                          (1,200)                         -52%
52140 Legal Services 600                               -                           750                          750                          1,500                          150                             25%
52490 Purchased Transportation 308,000                        302,000                   321,900                   333,300                   655,200                      25,300                        8%
52500 Maintenance-Equipment 15,500                          16,568                     15,000                     15,000                     30,000                        (500)                            -3%
52520 Maintenance-Vehicles -                                -                           5,000                       5,000                       10,000                        5,000                          0%
52605 Rents and Leases - Bldg/Land 2,000.00                       -                           -                           -                           -                              (2,000)                         -100%
52800 Communications/Telephone -                                1,200                       1,000                       1,000                       2,000                          1,000                          0%
52810 Advertising/Marketing 4,000                            700                          4,000                       4,000                       8,000                          -                              0%
53100 Office Supplies 500.00                          -                           -                           -                           -                              (500)                            -100%
53250 Fuel 22,000                          16,000                     22,000                     23,100                     45,100                        1,100                          5%

Operations Contingency 6,500                            7,100                       7,400                       14,500                        900                             14%
Fuel Contingency 3,200                            3,300                       3,500                       6,800                          300                             9%

52*  53* Total for: Services and Supplies 366,100                   338,668               382,050               395,150               777,200                  29,050                    8%

57900 Intrafund Transfers Out (Allocated Labor) 4,000                            3,000                       4,000                       4,000                       8,000                          -                              0%
>='54 Total for: Other Expenses 4,000                       3,000                   4,000                   4,000                   8,000                      -                         0%

5* Total Expenditures 370,100                   341,668               386,050               399,150               785,200                  29,050                    8%

Net Change in Operations (15,500)                    12,199                 -                       -                       -                         

54600 Depreciation Expense 24,000                          24,000                     17,000                     17,000                     34,000                        (7,000)                         -29%

Revenues

Expenses

252



Budget Inputs - St. Helena

Public Transit Service Projections

 FY 2017 - 2018 
Actuals Through 

Jan 2018 

 FY 2017 - 2018 
Projections 

 FY 2018 - 2019 
Draft Budget 

 FY 2019 - 2020 
Draft Budget 

 Total Biennial 
Budget 

Service Hours 2,336 4,005 4,600 4,600 9,200 
Revenue Hours 1,999 3,427 3,900 3,900 7,800 
Service Miles 13,510 23,160 21,000 21,000 42,000 
Revenue Miles 10,096 17,307 18,500 18,500 37,000 
Ridership 8,086 13,862 15,500 17,000 32,500 

 Total Hourly Cost per Contract 
(FY18-19 $46.36; FY19-20 $48.00) 213,256 220,800 434,056 
Fixed Cost Allocation 95,193 98,593 193,786 

A B C D E F G
(D-A)

Draft - Adjusted   
 FY 2017 - 2018 

Adjusted Budget 
 FY 2017 - 2018 

Projections 
 FY 2018 - 2019 

Draft Budget 
 FY 2019 - 2020 

Draft Budget 
 Total Biennial 

Budget  $ Difference  % Difference 

41400 Transportation Development Act 169,781 154,000 209,895 290,295 500,190 120,514 71%
43790 State Transit Assistance 80,000 80,000 70,000 - 70,000 (80,000) -100%
43890 Federal Funds-  FTA/FHWA 67,000 67,000 62,700 64,000 126,700 (3,000) -4%
45100 Interest 700 650 800 800 1,600 100 14%
46800 Farebox 8,000 6,000 6,500 7,000 13,500 (1,000) -13%
46825 Charges for Services-St Helena 24,519 27,692 31,655 32,455 64,110 7,936 32%
4* Total Revenues 350,000 335,342 381,550 394,550 776,100 44,550 13%

52125 Accounting/Auditing Services 1,200 - 1,000 1,000 2,000 (200) -17%
52130 Information Technology Service 2,300 2,000 900 1,000 1,900 (1,300) -57%
52140 Legal Services 800 - 750 750 1,500 (50) -6%
52490 Purchased Transportation 290,000 290,000 308,500 319,400 627,900 29,400 10%
52500 Maintenance-Equipment 15,500 16,124 15,000 15,000 30,000 (500) -3%
52520 Maintenance-Vehicles - - 5,000 5,000 10,000 5,000 0%
52605 Rents and Leases - Bldg/Land 2,000 - - - - (2,000) -100%
52800 Communications/Telephone - 900 1,000 1,000 2,000 1,000 0%
52810 Advertising/Marketing 3,000 400 3,000 3,000 6,000 - 0%
52820 Printing & Binding 1,000 - 1,000 1,000 2,000 - 0%
53100 Office Supplies 500 - - - - (500) -100%
53250 Fuel 20,000 26,000 30,000 31,500 61,500 11,500 58%

Operations Contingency 6,100 6,900 7,100 14,000 1,000 16%
Fuel Contingency 3,200 4,500 4,800 9,300 1,600 50%

52*  53* Total for: Services and Supplies 345,600 335,424 377,550 390,550 768,100 44,950 13%

57900 Intrafund Transfers Out (Allocated Labor) 4,400 1,500 4,000 4,000 8,000 (400) -9%
>='54 Total for: Other Expenses 4,400 1,500 4,000 4,000 8,000 (400) -9%

5* Total Expenditures 350,000 336,924 381,550 394,550 776,100 44,550 13%

Net Change in Operations - (1,582) - - - 

54600 Depreciation Expense 24,000 24,000 10,000 5,000 15,000 (19,000) -79%

Revenues

Expenses

253



Budget Inputs - Calistoga

Public Transit Service Projections

 FY 2017 - 2018 
Actuals Through 

Jan 2018 

 FY 2017 - 2018 
Projections 

 FY 2018 - 2019 
Draft Budget 

 FY 2019 - 2020 
Draft Budget 

 Total Biennial 
Budget 

Service Hours 3,241                            5,557                       6,000                       6,100                       12,100                        
Revenue Hours 2,904                            4,978                       5,400                       5,500                       10,900                        
Service Miles 26,876                          46,073                     48,000                     50,000                     98,000                        
Revenue Miles 23,218                          39,802                     43,000                     45,000                     88,000                        
Ridership 12,124                          20,784                     22,000                     24,000                     46,000                        

 Total Hourly Cost per Contract 
(FY18-19 $46.36; FY19-20 $48.00) 278,160                   292,800                   570,960                      
Fixed Cost Allocation 124,164                   130,743                   254,907                      

A B C D E F G
(D-A)

Draft - Adjusted   
 FY 2017 - 2018 

Adjusted Budget 
 FY 2017 - 2018 

Projections 
 FY 2018 - 2019 

Draft Budget 
 FY 2019 - 2020 

Draft Budget 
 Total Biennial 

Budget  $ Difference  % Difference 

41400 Transportation Development Act 241,816                        226,000                   239,000                   330,100                   569,100                      88,284                       37%
43790 State Transit Assistance 80,000                          70,000                     71,000                     -                          71,000                        (80,000)                      -100%
43890 Federal Funds-  FTA/FHWA 66,991                          66,991                     81,800                     83,400                     165,200                      16,409                       24%
45100 Interest 1,500                            800                          1,000                       1,000                       2,000                          (500)                           -33%
46800 Farebox 16,800                          15,750                     16,000                     17,500                     33,500                        700                            4%
46830 Charges for Services-Calistoga 65,093                          65,093                     65,100                     65,100                     130,200                      7                                0%
4* Total Revenues 472,200                   444,634               473,900               497,100               971,000                 24,900                   5%

52125 Accounting/Auditing Services 1,200                            -                          500                          500                          1,000                          (700)                           -58%
52130 Information Technology Service 2,300                            2,000                       1,200                       1,400                       2,600                          (900)                           -39%
52140 Legal Services 800                               -                          700                          700                          1,400                          (100)                           -13%
52490 Purchased Transportation 408,000                        400,000                   402,400                   423,600                   826,000                      15,600                       4%
52500 Maintenance-Equipment 15,500                          16,200                     15,000                     15,000                     30,000                        (500)                           -3%
52520 Maintenance-Vehicles -                               -                          10,000                     10,000                     20,000                        10,000                       0%
52605 Rents and Leases - Bldg/Land 2,000                            -                          -                          -                          -                             (2,000)                        -100%
52800 Communications/Telephone -                               925                          1,000                       1,000                       2,000                          1,000                         0%
52810 Advertising/Marketing 4,000                            500                          4,000                       4,000                       8,000                          -                             0%
52820 Printing & Binding 1,000                            -                          1,000                       1,000                       2,000                          -                             0%
53100 Office Supplies 500                               -                          -                          -                          -                             (500)                           -100%
53250 Fuel 21,000                          19,000                     22,000                     23,100                     45,100                        2,100                         10%

Operations Contingency 8,500                            -                          8,800                       9,300                       18,100                        800                            9%
Fuel Contingency 3,200                            -                          3,300                       3,500                       6,800                          300                            9%

52*  53* Total for: Services and Supplies 468,000                   438,625               469,900               493,100               963,000                 25,100                   5%

57900 Intrafund Transfers Out (Allocated Labor) 4,200                            1,500                       4,000                       4,000                       8,000                          (200)                           -5%
>='54 Total for: Other Expenses 4,200                       1,500                   4,000                   4,000                   8,000                     (200)                       -5%

5* Total Expenditures 472,200                   440,125               473,900               497,100               971,000                 24,900                   5%

Net Change in Operations -                           4,509                   -                      -                      -                         

54600 Depreciation Expense 45,000                          45,000                     10,000                     50,000                     60,000                        5,000                         11%

Revenues

Expenses

254



Budget Inputs - Vine Facilities (Park & Rides/Transit Yard)
A B C D E F G

(D-A)
Draft - Adjusted   

 FY 2017 - 2018 
Adjusted Budget 

 FY 2017 - 2018 
Projections 

 FY 2018 - 2019 
Draft Budget 

 FY 2019 - 2020 
Draft Budget 

 Total Biennial 
Budget  $ Difference  % Difference 

41400 Transportation Development Act 60,600 50,000 96,000 101,100 197,100 40,500 67%
45100 Interest 200 250 200 200 400 - 0%
46800 Farebox 20,000 22,000 28,000 28,000 56,000 8,000 40%

4* Total Revenues 80,800 72,250 124,200 129,300 253,500 48,500 60%

52125 Accounting/Auditing Services 500 1,200 1,200 1,200 2,400 700 140%
52325 Waste Disposal Services 15,000 14,395 15,000 15,000 30,000 - 0%
52500 Maintenance-Equipment 20,000 35,000 35,000 40,000 75,000 20,000 100%
52505 Maintenance-Buildings/Improvem 5,000 17,000 15,000 15,000 30,000 10,000 200%
52515 Maintenance-Software - - 5,500 5,500 11,000 5,500 0%
52605 Rents and Leases - Bldg/Land 5,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 12,000 1,000 20%
52705 Insurance - Premiums 12,000 13,800 15,000 15,000 30,000 3,000 25%
52800 Communications/Telephone 6,000 8,000 10,000 10,000 20,000 4,000 67%
53205 Utilities - Electric 8,000 5,500 6,000 6,000 12,000 (2,000) -25%
53220 Utilities - Water 8,000 12,250 13,000 13,000 26,000 5,000 63%

Operations Contingency 1,300 - 2,500 2,600 5,100 1,300 100%
52*  53* Total for: Services and Supplies 80,800 113,145 124,200 129,300 253,500 48,500 60%

5* Total Expenditures 80,800 113,145 124,200 129,300 253,500 48,500 60%

Net Change in Operations - (40,895) - - - 

54600 Depreciation Expense - - - - 0%

Revenues

Expenses

255



April 18, 2018 
NVTA Agenda Item 11.1 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Matthew Wilcox, Program Manager-Transit 

(707) 259-8635 mwilcox@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Comprehensive Operational Analysis Identified Needs 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board adopt the list of identified 
needs as described in Attachment 1 and their corresponding solutions which are also 
identified in Attachment 1.  

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

None 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Through findings in a Market Assessment, Technical Analysis, and two rider/resident 
surveys, NVTA staff have been able compile a list of the most critical needs that must be 
addressed to make the Vine an efficient transit system that is more desirable for the 
community.  NVTA staff is asking the Board of Directors to adopt these needs and their 
corresponding solutions as the primary focus of the service planning portion of the 
Comprehensive Operational Analysis (COA).  Adopting these documents creates a solid 
platform for a logical Vine service planning process to facilitate a cohesive line by line 
approach to improving the Vine transit system.  

PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 

1. Staff Report
2. Public Comment
3. Motion, Second, Discussion and Vote

256

mailto:mwilcox@nvta.ca.gov


NVTA Agenda Letter                    Wednesday April 18, 2018 
Agenda Item 11.1 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a Fiscal Impact? No, not at this time. 
 
CEQA REQUIREMENTS 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: The proposed action is not a project as defined 
by 14 California Code of Regulations 15378 (California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines) and therefore CEQA is not applicable. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
Since the beginning of its operation the Vine has experienced several service redesigns. 
The most recent occurred in December 2012.  Despite the changes to service levels and 
route alignments the overall structure of the transit network has remained unchanged. 
The planning principles applied to the Vine network in the past have been generic and do 
not always meet the unique needs of the City of Napa or the County as a whole.  
 
Completing a comprehensive operational analysis (COA) has allowed NVTA to take a 
fresh look at the operations of the Vine as well as the market it serves.  It has become 
obvious that the manner in which the Vine serves the Napa Valley is not aligned with the 
requirements of its residents.  Armed with more granular data as well as new innovations 
in technologies, NVTA can be more strategic with its deployment of resources.   
 
NVTA planning staff have been able to create a list of identified needs by analyzing the 
responses from the COA survey and Express Bus Survey and using the findings in the 
Market Assessment and the Technical Analysis.  The consolidated information reflects 
what the general public would like from the transit system, as well as sets the stage for 
NVTA staff to improve operational efficiencies.  The ultimate goal is to evaluate and 
address each need that will result in a system design that renders the Vine a high-quality, 
efficient transit system that serves the community’s needs. 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachment: (1) Comprehensive Operational Analysis Identified Needs Summary  

257



Vine Vision 

Summary 

Since the beginning of its operation the Vine has experienced several service redesigns. The most recent 
occurred in December of 2012. Despite the changes to service levels and route alignments the overall 
structure of the transit network has remained unchanged. The planning principles applied to the Vine 
network in the past have been generic and do not always meet the unique needs of the City of Napa or 
the County as a whole. This comprehensive operational analysis (COA), provides an opportunity to 
reevaluate the way that the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) prioritizes service based on the 
perceived needs and wants of the Napa Valley.   

The Current State of Transit in Napa Valley 

The service operated by the Vine is applied as a one size fits all approach using generic transit planning 
techniques. Many of the riders using the local service in Napa are using it because they do not have 
another option. The propensity analysis completed in the Market Assessment provided a snap shot of a 
“typical” Vine rider. Two of the most prominent attributes were low income and “did not own a car”. Even 
taken separately these two attributes implicate a reliance on transit as a primary form of mobility. 

It is not surprising the Vine has experienced a decline in ridership on local service year-over-year for the 
past three years. For local trips in the City of Napa the Vine cannot compete with a car in directness and 
flexibility. The healthy job market and the proliferation of easy access car loans have increased the number 
of vehicles purchased by low income individuals. This has directly affected transit ridership.  

A recent study completed by the UCLA Institute of Transportation Studies (ITS) researched the ridership 
decline in the LA Metro area. They found that the largest contributing factor to transit ridership decline 
has been the growth in vehicle access, especially among the subsets of the population that are among the 
heaviest transit users. While the study was applied directly to Southern California, exact parallels can be 
drawn between the findings of that study and those in the Market Assessment portion of this COA. The 
propensity analysis found that a typical Vine rider, in addition to being low income and car-less, is a person 
of color, does not speak English at home, and lives with three or more workers in the same home. The 
authors of the UCLA study contend the primary determinants of transit use are income, race, age, nativity, 
and car ownership; with car ownership being the largest contributing factor per the study’s results. The 
desire to use one’s car over transit in Napa County can be summed up by one of the respondents to the 
COA rider/resident survey, “My car is more luxurious than my home, why would I want to ride a bus…” 

What is the Vine’s Role in Napa County? 

Ask multiple people in Napa County what they think of the Vine and you will get responses that range 
from “It’s a waste of tax dollars, no one ever rides it” on the negative end of the spectrum to “I use it every 
day, I don’t know what I would do without it” on the most positive end, and everything in between. You 
may even get the response of, “I have never even heard of it.” From an agency perspective the role of the 
Vine in Napa County is to provide high-quality transit services in the most efficient manner possible. The 

ATTACHMENT 1 
NVTA Agenda Item 11.1 

April 18, 2018 

258



service the Vine provides should be safe, comfortable, and reliable; all the while meeting the needs of an 
evolving and diverse community. The aforementioned role is taken directly from the goals section in the 
NVTA’s most recent short range transit plan (SRTP). Despite each goal having an objective with 
measurable standards attached to it; what “high quality”, “safe”, “comfortable”, “reliable”, and “efficient” 
mean in the public’s eye is highly subjective.  

It is very rare that a transit system can meet the exact needs of each resident it serves. The current local 
service in the City of Napa only appeals to a single market, a market that is in most cases dependent on it 
for one reason or another. Per the ITS study this is also a market that happens to be declining in number 
with each year. As more and more individuals purchase automobiles the less likely they are to use transit 
for any of their trips. The solution to the ridership decline, as suggested by the ITS study, is not to win back 
old riders but focus on creating transit services that attract new riders.   

Surveys of riders and residents completed for both the Express Bus Study and this COA asked what 
residents priorities were when it came to improving transit, ways that would make them ride or ride more. 
The top two improvements for both surveys were greater frequency and more direct service (shorter trip 
times).  

Unfortunately the current Vine system is not setup in a way that facilitates direct and frequent service. 
The local service in the City of Napa is a coverage based network, meaning routes are laid out in a way 
that covers the most geographic area of the City. This network design affords residents with a bus route 
in close proximity to where they live or work but rarely provides a direct or frequent trip. Many suburban 
transit operations are designed this way in an attempt to serve the greatest number of people with the 
least number of resources. Providing transit in this manner leads to minimal service everywhere instead 
of quality service in strategic locations. The current state of transit operations in the City of Napa has 
created the situations listed below: 

• In order to achieve the fastest trip, one way routes require passengers to make multiple transfers 
causing the use of transit to be a confusing and stressful endeavor. 

• Circuitous routes consisting of long one way loops result in long travel times in at least one 
direction of travel.  

• Routes are more often than not indirect in an attempt to cover the most geographic area.  
• Reliance on timed transfers leads to uncertainty for passengers, especially with increased 

congestion in Napa. 
• Service focused during traditional work hours does not match the work schedule of the service 

industry, a major sector of Napa’s economy.  
• Given the low densities or inherent lack of demand in portions of the Vine service area, the Vine 

currently over serves some areas. 

These situations are obviously detrimental to operationally efficient and desirable transit service.  

 

 

259



What Should the Vine’s Role be in Napa County? 

Similar to asking “what is…” the question “what should…” results in a myriad of answers. Taking the 
responses to the COA survey and Express Bus Survey, using the findings in the Market Assessment and 
the Technical Analysis, NVTA planning staff have been able to create a list of identified needs. These needs 
reflect what the general public would like from the transit system, as well as NVTA staffs’ proposals to 
improve operational efficiency. The ultimate goal is to address each need resulting in a system design that 
makes the public agree the Vine is a high-quality (safe, comfortable, and reliable) transit service operating 
in the most efficient manner possible. 

Table 2 shows a list of seven identified needs and the solutions that apply to each need. This list is 
composed of the highest ranked needs as established in the Express Bus Study survey, the COA survey, 
and the findings in the in the Market Assessment and Technical Analysis. Each solution has a quantitative 
threshold/marker. Taking a quantitative approach when entering the service planning portion of the COA 
allows staff to be more objective rather than subjective when allocating service. The list of solutions and 
their quantitative thresholds/markers can be found in Table 1. 

Solution Threshold/Marker 

Consolidate Routes Local routes should be at a minimum of a quarter mile from 
each other and not overlap, except on major corridors 

Routes should not form a "loop" A route should have a different and distinguishable start and 
end point. 

Create bi-direction service Trip lengths taken on a single route should be equitable in 
both directions. 

Eliminate unproductive service 
Services not meeting standards in total passengers, 
passengers per revenue hour, and subsidy per passenger 
shall be considered for elimination.  

Use on-demand service to facilitate 
connectivity between services. 

Only apply in locations as a first, last mile solution or to fill 
service gap caused by a route being eliminated. 

Align schedule span and frequency with 
peak commute times and work hours. 

Align service frequency and span with patterns shown in the 
travel behavior study.  

Create schedules that reflect seasonal 
changes in traffic patterns. 

Schedules shall be released during peak tourism season, the 
start of the school year, and the summer months 

Routes begin and end at locations 
frequented by the public 

Shopping centers, medical facilities, or central business 
districts 

Routes begin and end where timed 
transfers can occur between services Park and rides or dedicated transit facilities 

260



Table 2: Identified Needs and Solutions 

Need Solutions 

More direct service 

Consolidate routes.       
Routes should not form a “loop”.                                                                                                                          
Create bi-directional service.                                                                                                        
Eliminate unproductive services.                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

More frequent 
service 

Consolidate routes.                                                                                                                                              
Create bi-directional service.                                                                                                         
Eliminate unproductive services.                                                                                                                                                             
Use on-demand service to facilitate connectivity between services. 

Later service 
Consolidate routes.                                                                                                                              
Eliminate unproductive services.                                                                                                                                                                 
Align schedule span and frequency with peak commute times and work hours. 

Transit in closer 
proximity 

Eliminate unproductive services.                                                                                                                              
Use on-demand service to facilitate connectivity between services.                                                                                                                                        
Align schedules with known travel patterns not traditional work hours.                                               
Use on-demand service to facilitate connectivity between services. 

Strong anchor points 
Routes begin and end at locations frequented by the public     
Create bi-directional service                                                                                 
Routes begin and end where timed transfers can occur between services 

Improved 
connections between 

services 

Consolidate routes.                                                                                                                                
Eliminate unproductive services.                                                                                                                                                                          
Align schedule span and frequency with peak commute times and work hours.                                           
Routes begin and/or end at locations frequented by the public                                                                                       
Routes begin and/or end where timed transfers can occur between services                                       
Use on-demand service to facilitate connectivity between services. 

More reliable service 

Consolidate routes.                                                                                                                                                      
Eliminate unproductive services.                                                                                                                                                                                           
Align schedule span and frequency with peak commute times and work hours.                           
Create consistent [MK1][WM2]spacing between stops.                                                                                                                                                     
Where feasible establish timepoints at stops with high number of boardings.                                    
Use on-demand service to facilitate connectivity between services.            
Create schedules that reflect seasonal changes in traffic patterns. 

 

Next Steps 

NVTA staff will review each route and how it does or does not satisfy the identified needs. Solutions will 
then be applied to each route. A line by line recommendation will be created for each route. Once the line 
by line recommendations are completed a holistic review of the routes will take place to ensure the newly 
designed system is able to operate cohesively. During this process routes could go through a range of 
changes. Changes could include: complete rerouting, elimination, frequency increase, replacement with 
on-demand service, or consolidation with another route.  

Recommendations will be brought forth to the public, the Board, the Consumer Advocacy Committee 
(CAC), and the Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC). Each group will have the opportunity to review the 

261



redesign and provide comments. NVTA staff will take those comments and apply them where feasible. 
This “second draft” will result in a two phase service delivery plan. Phase One will provide short-term 
recommendations for service delivery. The focus of the short-term phase will be on meeting the plans 
recommendations with NVTA’s existing capital and financial resources. Minimal capital resources could 
be used in cases were bus stops need to be relocated or installed. The changes to the system associated 
with Phase One will be implemented within a year of its adoption by the NVTA Board.  

Phase Two will provide a long-term recommendations for service delivery. Long-term recommendations 
will consists of changes could create the most ideal transit system in Napa but are currently infeasible due 
to financial or capital constraints. These recommendations should become feasible in the future as 
vehicles are added to the Vine fleet and new revenue streams are realized. Changes that will be 
considered as part of Phase Two could include changes such as: expanded weekend service, late night 
service, and even service boundary expansions. These more extensive changes will also be paired with the 
organic growth of the Vine. Ensuring the Vine continues to support and enhance the economic and social 
growth of Napa will be paramount over the next ten years and beyond.  

Appendix: COA Survey Results 

262



April 18, 2018 
NVTA Agenda Item 11.2 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Rebecca Schenck, Transportation Program Planner 

(707) 259-8636 / Email: rschenck@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: (1) Adoption of Resolution No. 18-11 Amending the Environmental
Impact Report for the Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility; (2)
Approve the Modified Project for the Vine Transit Maintenance Bus
Facility; and (3) Adoption of Resolution No. 18-12 Approving the
Modified Project for the Vine Transit Maintenance Bus Facility

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board 
1. Adopt Resolution No. 18-11 (Attachment 1) Amending the Environmental Impact

Report (EIR) for the Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility; and
2. Approve the conceptual plan for the Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility project

included in Attachment 2; and
3. Adopt Resolution No. 18-12 (Attachment 4) approving the Modified Project Vine

Transit Bus Maintenance Facility.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

None 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

NVTA is required to comply with California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) for the new 
bus maintenance facility.  The EIR for the original project was certified on January 17, 
2018.  NVTA proposed minor modifications to the original project.  An Addendum has 
been prepared to the certified Final EIR evaluating the potential environmental impacts 
of the proposed modifications to the project.   

263

mailto:rschenck@nvta.ca.gov


NVTA Agenda Letter                       Wednesday, April 18, 2018 
Agenda Item 11.2 

Page 2 of 5 
 

 
 
PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
1. Staff Report 
2. Public Comments 
3. Motion, Second, Discussion and Vote 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a Fiscal Impact? Adopting Resolution 18- 11 has no fiscal impact.  The cost of 
the Addendum was $11,276.  
 
Is it currently budgeted?  Yes 
 
Where is it budgeted? Professional Fees, Congestion Management Agency 
 
Future fiscal impact: No  
 
Consequences if not approved:  Not adopting the resolution will result in suspending the 
Vine Transit Maintenance Bus Facility project. 
 
CEQA REQUIREMENTS 
 
Environmental Determination: Rincon Consultants Inc., in accordance with the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and its implementing regulations, has prepared an 
Addendum to the Final Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the Project.   
 
Environmental Determination: The proposed action is subject to California Code of 
Regulation 14 CCR 15164 (CEQA Guidelines) which sets forth: 
 
(a) The lead agency or a responsible agency shall prepare an addendum to a previously 
certified EIR if some changes or additions are necessary but none of the conditions 
described in Section 15162 calling for preparation of a subsequent EIR have occurred. 
 
The minor modifications to the original project, as outlined in this report, are compatible 
with this section of the CEQA guidelines and therefore an Addendum has been prepared. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
As NVTA completed schematic design of the Maintenance Facility, it became clear that 
the conceptual design in the certified EIR did not adhere to the constraints of the project 
site and would not meet the agencies needs for a new maintenance facility.  Site 
constraints such as the depth of the pipeline owned by the Napa Sanitation District and 
the water pipeline for the City of Napa required changes in what could be built along the 
edges of the site.  NVTA also learned from working with the design team through the 

264



NVTA Agenda Letter                       Wednesday, April 18, 2018 
Agenda Item 11.2 

Page 3 of 5 
 

 
schematic design process that a bus wash facility within a building can cause water 
damage and a bus wash is best as a stand-alone building.  Other important lessons 
learned in schematic design was that  the site was not large enough to service articulated 
buses given the additional size of maintenance bays, bus wash and parking required for 
these long buses.  Because of these lessons and others, NVTA amended the Rincon 
Consulting contract to include an Addendum to the EIR.  
 
Based on the modifications to the project, Rincon Consultants, Inc. evaluated the potential 
environmental conditions and determined that an Addendum to the previously certified 
EIR met the CEQA requirements.  The Addendum to the EIR was prepared for this Project 
pursuant to provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), Public 
Resources Code Section 21000 et seq., and its implementing regulations.  The document, 
prepared by Rincon Consultants evaluated revisions and additions to the Original Project.  
The table below compares the Original Project to the Modified Project.  
 
  Table 1:  Building Modifications 

Building Area Original Project Modified Project Relative Change 
Administration 
and Operations 
Office Building 

3,917 square feet 
(building footprint) 

8,946 square feet 
(building footprint) 

Increase of 5,029 
square feet 

Bus Maintenance 
Building 

23,164 square feet 
(building footprint) 

18,385 square feet 
(building footprint) 

Decrease of 
4,779 square feet 

Bus Wash 
Building 

Included in Bus 
Maintenance 
Building 

2,921 square feet 
stand-alone 
structure 

Increase of 2,921 
square feet 

Total 27,081 square feet 30,252 square feet Increase of 3,171 
square feet 

  

265



NVTA Agenda Letter                       Wednesday, April 18, 2018 
Agenda Item 11.2 

Page 4 of 5 
 

 
 
 Table 2:  Parking Modifications 

Parking Spaces 
Vine fleet spaces 50 individual spaces 

(12’ x40’) 
15 individual spaces 
(12’ x60’) 
28 individual spaces 
(12’ x27’) 

44 individual spaces 
(12’ x45’) 
28 individual spaces 
(12’ x32’) 
7 individual spaces 
(10’ x20’) 

Decrease of 14 
spaces 

Employee and 
visitor parking 

75 individual spaces 93 individual spaces Increase of 18 
spaces 

American’s with 
Disabilities Act 
Accessible 
Handicap  

3 designated 
accessible spaces, 
2 unlabeled 
adjacent front row 
spaces (included in 
the 75 
employee/visitor 
spaces) 

4 designated 
accessible spaces 
(included in the 93 
employee/visitor 
spaces) 

Increase of 1 
space (included 
in the increase of 
18 spaces) 

Total 168 total spaces 172 total spaces Net Increase of 4 
spaces 

 
The following changes are also proposed, in addition to the building configuration and 
parking changes shown Tables 1 and 2: 
 

• As describe above, the Modified Project would not include construction of a 
permanent wall along the portion of the eastern property line shared with the 
property at 81-91 Sheehy Court, which was included in the Original Project.  This 
alteration to the Original Project is necessary to avoid placement of a permanent 
wall structure within an existing sanitary sewer easement for a pipeline owned by 
Napa Sanitation District.  

• The Modified Project includes the installation of a photovoltaic system and 
canopies over parking areas and on the rooftops of the maintenance facility and 
administration buildings.  Installation of these facilities results in a reduction of the 
energy-source operational emissions compared to the Original Project.  
 

The Modified Project shown would develop 4.86 acres of the project site, compared to 
the 4.88 acres developed as part of the Original Project.  Furthermore, the Modified 
Project would not encroach on the 35-foot buffer from the top of the bank of Sheehy Creek 
on the south side of the site.  All that occurs with the Modified Project is that the building 
square footage is allocated differently with a net increase of only 3,171 square feet of 
building area and four parking spaces neither of which will result in any new substantial 

266



NVTA Agenda Letter                       Wednesday, April 18, 2018 
Agenda Item 11.2 

Page 5 of 5 
 

 
impacts, does not increase any of the previously studied environmental impacts, and in 
some cases, reduces the potential environmental impacts.   
 
One advantage to the Modified Project for the neighboring properties is the new location 
of the maintenance building.  The maintenance building will now be on the southeast 
portion of the site, adjacent to a vacant piece of land, much farther away from the 
proposed development to the north as well as the existing neighbors to the east.  The 
operations building will be in the old maintenance building location and the operation 
building will look and function much like a traditional office building.  Another positive 
aspect of the Modified Project is that the bus parking on the northern portion of the site 
will be pull-through parking only, therefore, no buses will operate in reverse, eliminating 
the associated beeping, at the north end of the property near neighbors.   
 
Staff recommends approval of the Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report since 
the proposed modifications do not meet the conditions of Section 15162(a) that require 
preparation of a Subsequent EIR (see Attachment (3) Section 15162).  In the absence of 
meeting any criteria that requires a Subsequent EIR, preparation of the Addendum, 
therefore, meets the CEQA requirements. 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachments:  (1) Resolution No. 18-11 

(2) Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report of the Vine Transit 
  Bus Maintenance Facility 
(3) CEQA Guidelines Section 15162 
(4) Resolution No. 18-12 

267



RESOLUTION No. 18-11 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE 
NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (NVTA) 

APPROVING THE ADDENDUM TO THE CERTIFIED ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 
REPORT (SCH #2017052029) FOR THE 

VINE TRANSIT BUS MAINTENANCE FACILITY 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) is designated the 
countywide transportation planning agency responsible for Highway, Street and Road,  
transit, bicycle, and pedestrian planning and programming within Napa County; and 
 

WHEREAS, the NVTA Board of Directors (Board) certified the Environmental 
Impact Report (SCH #2017052029) ("EIR") for the Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility 
Project (“Project”) as being in compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act 
("CEQA") and the State CEQA Guidelines on January 17, 2018; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Original Project site layout was modified as the design process  
Progressed.   The revised project (“Modified Project”) was analyzed for potential 
environmental impacts.    
 

WHEREAS, Rincon Consultants, Inc., on behalf of NVTA, analyzed the project 
revisions (“Modified Project”) and determined that the Modified Project would not result in 
new or more severe direct, indirect, or cumulative impacts beyond those identified in the 
previously certified Final EIR for the Original Project. Therefore, the Modified Project 
would also not result in new or more severe significant and unavoidable impacts, growth-
inducing effects, irreversible environmental effects, or energy effects beyond those 
previously discussed in the certified EIR. However, the Modified Project could result in 
reduced energy effects compared to the Original Project because the Modified Project 
would include installation of solar panel arrays as a renewable energy source. None of 
the conditions of CEQA Guidelines Section 15162 that requires preparation of a 
Subsequent EIR exist and therefore, pursuant to CEQA Guidelines 15164, the Addendum 
to the EIR was prepared.  
 

WHEREAS, the EIR, together with public comments and the response to 
comments, and the Addendum were read and considered by the NVTA Board of Directors 
(Board), and are, by this reference, incorporated into this Resolution and adopted by this 
Board as Exhibits A and B as if fully set forth herein; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that in accordance with the provisions of 
the California Environmental Quality Act, the Board of the Napa Valley Transportation 
Authority makes the following findings and takes the following actions: 
 

1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct. 
 

2. The Final Environmental Impact Report (Final EIR) for the Project, attached as 
Exhibit “A” and the Addendum to the Final EIR, attached as Exhibit “B”  have 

ATTACHMENT 1 
NVTA Agenda Item 11.2 

April 18, 2018 

268



Resolution No. 18-11 
Page 2 of 5 

 

been completed in accordance with the requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act, Public Resources Code sections 21000 et seq. 
(“CEQA”) and California Code of Regulations, Title 14, sections 15000 et seq. 
(“CEQA Guidelines”).  

 
3. The Board certifies that the Final EIR and Addendum were prepared, 

published, circulated, and reviewed in accordance with the requirements of 
CEQA including the CEQA Guidelines, that the Final EIR is adequate, accurate, 
objective, and complete; and has been independently analyzed by the Board, 
and the final reports, the comments and the response to comments, and the 
Addendum reflects the Board’s own independent judgment (Pub. Res. Code 
21082.1). 
 

4. Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15091(e), the custodian of the 
documents and other materials that constitute the record of proceedings upon 
which the Napa Valley Transportation Authority has based its decision is the 
NVTA Executive Director; and the documents and materials are located in and 
may be obtained from offices of the Napa Valley Transportation Authority, 625 
Burnell Street, Napa CA 94559. 

 
THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED by 

the Board of Directors of the Napa Valley Transportation Authority, at a regular meeting 
held on April 18, 2018, by the following vote: 
 
 
______________________        Ayes: 
Peter G White, NVTA Chair 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                  Nays: 
 
 
                  Absent: 
 
 
ATTEST:  
 
____________________________________ 
Karalyn E. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary 
 
APPROVED:  
 
_________________________________ 
Vicki A. Clayton, NVTA General Counsel  

269



Resolution No. 18-11 
Page 3 of 5 

 

 
 
CERTIFICATIONS 
 
I hereby certify that I am the Secretary of the Napa Valley Transportation Authority and 
custodian of the records for that Authority and that this Resolution is a true and correct 
copy of the original on file in the Authority office. 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Karalyn E. Sanderlin, NVTA Authority Secretary 
 
 
  

270



Resolution No. 18-11 
Page 4 of 5 

 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

 
 
Due to file size constraints the Final Environmental Impact Report (EIR) is available for 
review at the NVTA Offices, 625 Burnell Street, Napa CA or by clicking on the following 
link:  
 
http://www.nvta.ca.gov/vine-transit-maintenance-facility 
  

271

http://www.nvta.ca.gov/vine-transit-maintenance-facility


Resolution No. 18-11 
Page 5 of 5 

 

EXHIBIT “B” 
 

Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 

272



Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility 

Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 
SCH#2017052029 

prepared by 

Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
625 Burnell Street 

Napa, California 94559‐3420 
Contact: Rebecca Schenck, Project Manager 

prepared with the assistance of 

Rincon Consultants 
449 15th Street, Suite 303 
Oakland, California 94612 

April 2018  

ATTACHMENT 2
NVTA Agenda Item 11.2

April 18, 2018   

273



This page left intentionally blank. 

274



Table of Contents 

 
Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility i 

Table of Contents 

1  Introduction .......................................................................................................................................... 1 
1.1  Background and Purpose of the EIR Addendum ....................................................................... 1 
1.2  Basis for the Addendum ............................................................................................................ 2 

2  Project Description ................................................................................................................................ 4 

3  Impact Analysis ................................................................................................................................... 12 
3.1  Aesthetics ................................................................................................................................ 13 
3.2  Agriculture and Forestry Resources ........................................................................................ 16 
3.3  Air Quality ................................................................................................................................ 18 
3.4  Biological Resources ................................................................................................................ 21 
3.5  Cultural Resources ................................................................................................................... 26 
3.6  Geology and Soils .................................................................................................................... 28 
3.7  Greenhouse Gas Emissions ..................................................................................................... 32 
3.8  Hazards and Hazardous Materials ........................................................................................... 34 
3.9  Hydrology and Water Quality .................................................................................................. 38 
3.10  Land Use and Planning ............................................................................................................ 43 
3.11  Mineral Resources ................................................................................................................... 45 
3.12  Noise ........................................................................................................................................ 46 
3.13  Population and Housing .......................................................................................................... 50 
3.14  Public Services ......................................................................................................................... 51 
3.15  Recreation ............................................................................................................................... 54 
3.16  Transportation/Traffic ............................................................................................................. 55 
3.17  Utilities and Service Systems ................................................................................................... 59 
3.18  Cumulative Impacts ................................................................................................................. 62 

4  Other CEQA Required Discussions ...................................................................................................... 64 

5  Comparison of Alternatives ................................................................................................................ 66 

6  Conclusion  .......................................................................................................................................... 68 

7  References  .......................................................................................................................................... 70 

Tables 
Table 1 Project Component Comparison ...................................................................................................... 4 

Table 2 Operational Noise Comparison ...................................................................................................... 48 

Figures 
Figure 1  Project Vicinity Map .................................................................................................................. 5 

Figure 2  Project Site Boundary Map........................................................................................................ 6 

Figure 3  Modified Project: Preliminary Site Plan .................................................................................... 7 

Figure 4  Original Project: Approved Conceptual Site Plan ...................................................................... 8 

Figure 5  Modified Project: Conceptual Rendering ................................................................................ 10 

275



Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 

 
ii Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

 

This page left intentionally blank. 

276



Acronyms and Abbreviations 

 
Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility iii 

Acronyms and Abbreviations 

BAAQMD  Bay Area Air Quality Management District 

BMPs  Best Management Practices 

Caltrans  California Department of Transportation 

CBC  California Building Code 

CDFW  California Department of Fish and Wildlife 

CEQA  California Environmental Quality Act 

CERCLIS  Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Information 
System 

DTSC  Department of Toxic Substances Control 

EIR  Environmental Report  

GHG  Greenhouse Gas 

LOS  Level of Service 

MMRP  Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

NPDES  National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 

NSD  Napa Sanitation District 

NVTA  Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

SCH  State Clearinghouse 

SCRF  Soscol Water Recycling Facility 

SEMS  Superfund Enterprise Management System 

SWPPP  Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan 

RTC  Response to Comments 

RWQCB  Regional Water Quality Control Board 

USACE  U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 

USEPA  U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

277



Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 

 
iv Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

 

This page left intentionally blank. 

 

 

278



Introduction  

 
Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility 1 

1 Introduction 
This Addendum was prepared in accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and the 
State CEQA Guidelines. This document has been prepared to serve as an Addendum to the previously 
certified Final Environmental Impact Report (EIR) (State Clearinghouse [SCH] # 2017052029) for the Vine 
Transit Bus Maintenance Facility Project (Original Project). The Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) 
is the lead agency for the environmental review of the proposed project modifications. 

This Addendum addresses the proposed modifications in relation to the previous environmental review 
document prepared for the Original Project. Section 15164 of the State CEQA Guidelines defines an 
Addendum as: 

The lead agency or responsible agency shall prepare an addendum to a previously certified EIR if 
some changes or additions are necessary but none of the conditions described in Section 15162 
calling for preparation of a subsequent EIR have occurred. 

….A brief explanation of the decision not to prepare a subsequent EIR pursuant to Section 15162 
should be included in an addendum to an EIR, the lead agency's findings on the project, or elsewhere 
in the record. 

1.1 Background and Purpose of the EIR Addendum 
The Final EIR for the Original Project (SCH # 2017052029) was certified on January 17, 2018, by the NVTA 
Board of Directors. The certified Final EIR consists of the Draft EIR prepared for the Original Project and a 
Response to Comments (RTC) Document, which provides a response to public and agency comments received 
by NVTA on the Draft EIR and makes revisions to the Draft EIR, as necessary, in response to those comments 
or to make clarifications to material in the Draft EIR. Information and technical analyses from the certified 
Final EIR are utilized or referenced throughout this Addendum. Relevant passages from the certified Final EIR 
are cited and available for review at the NVTA offices located at, 625 Burnell Street, Napa, California 94559‐
3420. 

In conjunction with certification of the Final EIR, the NVTA Board of Directors also adopted a Mitigation 
Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) and approved the Original Project. As approved, the Original 
Project consisted of the development and operation of a new bus maintenance facility and administration 
and operations office building on an approximately eight‐acre site at the terminus of Sheehy Court within the 
Napa Valley Gateway Business Park, in unincorporated Napa County. The bus maintenance facility consisted 
of a one‐ or two‐story (approximately 24 to 28 feet in height) building that included a bus wash, seven spaces 
for bus repair work, one space for minor paint and body work, and parts and tire storage. The administration 
and operations office building consisted of a one‐ or two‐story building up to 28 feet in height with an 
outdoor landscaped courtyard. The building footprint of the bus maintenance facility would be approximately 
23,000 square feet, and the footprint of the office building would be approximately 3,917 square feet. The 
bus maintenance facility would be located in the northeast area of the site and the office building in the 
southeastern area. 

The Original Project also included the construction of two parking lots on the site to accommodate 
approximately 93 public transit vehicles as well as 75 employee and visitor vehicles, respectively. As 
approved, these components of the Original Project would occupy approximately 4.88 acres of the 
approximately eight‐acre project site, including approximately 3.73 acres of parking and circulation areas, 
27,082 square feet of building footprints, and 23,140 square feet of landscaping. The Original Project also 

279



Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 

 
2 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

included construction of a wall up to eight feet in height along a portion of the eastern property line shared 
with the property at 81‐91 Sheehy Court. 

NVTA now proposes minor modifications to the Original Project, herein referred to the “Modified Project.” 
This document is an Addendum to the previously certified Final EIR and has been prepared by NVTA to 
evaluate the potential environmental impacts of the proposed Modified Project. This Addendum has been 
prepared in accordance with the relevant provisions of CEQA and Section 15164 of the State CEQA 
Guidelines. A detailed description of the Modified Project is provided in Section 2, Project Description, of this 
Addendum. 

1.2 Basis for the Addendum 
When an EIR has been certified and a project is modified or otherwise changed after certification, additional 
CEQA review may be necessary. The key considerations in determining the need for the appropriate type of 
additional CEQA review are outlined in Section 21166 of the Public Resources Code (CEQA) and Sections 
15162, 15163 and 15164 of the State CEQA Guidelines. 

Section 15162(a) of the State CEQA Guidelines provides that a Subsequent EIR is not required unless the 
following occurs: 

(1) Substantial changes are proposed in the project which will require major revisions of the previous 
EIR or negative declaration due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a 
substantial increase in the severity of previously identified significant effects; 

(2) Substantial changes occur with respect to the circumstances under which the project is 
undertaken which will require major revisions of the previous EIR or Negative Declaration due to the 
involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of 
previously identified significant effects; or 

(3) New information of substantial importance, which was not known and could not have been 
known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the previous EIR was certified as 
complete or the Negative Declaration was adopted, shows any of the following: 

(A) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the previous EIR or 
negative declaration; 

(B) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than shown in 
the previous EIR; 

(C) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in fact be 
feasible, and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the project, but 
the project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative; or 

(D) Mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably different from those analyzed 
in the previous EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the 
environment, but the project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or 
alternative. 

Pursuant to Section 15164(a) of the State CEQA Guidelines, an Addendum to an EIR may be prepared by the 
Lead Agency that prepared the original EIR if some changes or additions are necessary, but none of the 
conditions have occurred that require preparation of a Subsequent EIR. An Addendum must include a brief 
explanation of the agency’s decision not to prepare a Subsequent EIR and be supported by substantial 
evidence in the record as a whole (Section 15164(e)). The Addendum to the EIR need not be circulated for 
public review but it may be included in or attached to the Final EIR (Section 15164(c)). The decision‐making 
body must consider the Addendum to the EIR prior to making a decision on the project (Section 15164(d)). 

280



Introduction  

 
Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility 3 

An Addendum to the certified Final EIR for the Original Project is appropriate to address the proposed 
Modified Project because the proposed modifications to the approved Original Project do not meet the 
conditions of Section 15162(a) for preparation of a Subsequent EIR. The proposed Modified Project would 
not result in new or more severe impacts related to: 1) substantial changes to the Original Project which 
requires major revisions to the certified Final EIR; 2) substantial changes to the circumstances under which 
the Original Project are being undertaken which will require major revisions to the certified Final EIR; or 3) 
new information of substantial importance showing significant effects not previously examined. 

The certified Final EIR and this Addendum to the certified Final EIR serve as informational documents to 
inform decision‐makers and the public of the potential environmental consequences of approving the 
proposed Modified Project. This Addendum neither controls nor determines the ultimate decision for 
approval of the proposed Modified Project, described herein in Section 2, Project Description. The 
information presented in this Addendum to the certified Final EIR will be considered by the NVTA Board of 
Directors alongside the certified Final EIR prior to making a decision on the Modified Project. 

 

 

281



Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 

 
4 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

2 Project Description 
The Modified Project would be located on the same project site as described and analyzed in the certified 
Final EIR for the Original Project. As described in the EIR, the project site is approximately eight acres, consists 
of two assessor’s parcels, and is located at the terminus of Sheehy Court within the Napa Valley Gateway 
Business Park, in unincorporated Napa County. Figure 1 illustrates the location of the site within the region 
and Figure 2 shows the project site within the neighborhood context. 

As described in Section 1, Introduction, the Modified Project consists of minor modifications to Original 
Project that was analyzed in the certified Final EIR and approved by the NVTA Board of Directors on January 
17, 2018. These minor modifications, relative to the approved Original Project, would increase the size of the 
administration office and operations building; decrease the size of the bus maintenance facility; construct a 
separate bus wash building rather than integrating that function into the maintenance building; switch the 
approximate locations of the proposed office and maintenance buildings on the site; eliminate the planned 
wall along the eastern property boundary; change the number and configuration of proposed parking spaces; 
and change the configuration of driveway access from Sheehy Court. Table 1 provides a comparison of the 
components of the Original Project and proposed Modified Project. The proposed site plan for the Modified 
Project, including the location of the separate bus wash building is shown on Figure 3. For comparison 
purposes, the site plan for the Original Project, as approved by the NVTA Board of Directors and analyzed in 
the certified Final EIR, is shown on Figure 4. 

Table 1 Building Square Footage and Parking Comparison 
Building Area  Original Project  Modified Project  Relative Change 

Administration and Operations 
Office Building 

3,917 square feet (building 
footprint) 

8,946 square feet 
(building footprint) 

Increase of 5,029 square 
feet 

Bus Maintenance Building  23,164 square feet 
(building footprint) 

18,385 square feet 
(building footprint) 

Decrease of 4,779 
square feet 

Bus Wash Building  Included in Bus 
Maintenance Building 

2,921 square feet 
(building footprint) 

Increase of 2,921 square 
feet 

Total  27,081 square feet  30,252 square feet  Increase of 3,171 square 
feet 

Parking Spaces       

Vine fleet spaces  50 individual spaces (12’ 
x40’) 

15 individual spaces (12’ 
x60’) 

28 individual spaces (12’ 
x27’) 

44 individual spaces (12’ 
x45’) 

28 individual spaces (12’ 
x32’) 

7 individual spaces (10’ 
x20’) 

Decrease of 14 spaces 

Employee and visitor parking  75 individual spaces  93 individual spaces  Increase of 18 spaces 

American’s with Disabilities Act 
Accessible Handicap  

3 designated accessible 
spaces, 2 unlabeled 
adjacent front row spaces 
(included in the 75 
employee/visitor spaces) 

4 designated accessible 
spaces (included in the 
93 employee/visitor 
spaces) 

Increase of 1 space 
(included in the increase 
of 18 spaces) 

Total  168 total spaces  172 total spaces  Increase of 4 spaces 
 

282



Project Description  

 
Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility 5 

Figure 1 Project Vicinity Map 

 

  

283



Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 

 
6 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

Figure 2 Project Site Boundary Map 

  

 

284



Project Description  

 
Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility 7 

Figure 3 Modified Project: Preliminary Site Plan 

 
Source: NVTA 2018 

285



Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 

 
8 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

Figure 4 Original Project: Approved Conceptual Site Plan 

 

 

286



Project Description  

 
Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility 9 

As shown in Table 1, the Modified Project would provide 14 fewer parking spaces for Vine Transit bus and 
vehicle fleet compared to the Original Project because NVTA has decided to eliminate articulated buses from 
its fleet since certification of the Final EIR in January 2018. The articulated buses are the largest vehicle in the 
Vine Transit fleet, measuring approximately 60 feet in length. NVTA determined that servicing these large 
buses would require too much space in the service bays of the maintenance facility, as well as the bus wash 
building. Eliminating articulated buses from the fleet would allow for more space for maneuverability and 
other maintenance and operational activities required for the Vine Transit fleet on the project site. 

The following changes are also proposed, in addition to the building configuration and parking changes 
discussed above and shown in Table 1: 

 As describe above, the proposed Modified Project would not include construction of a permanent 
wall along the portion of the eastern property line shared with the property at 81‐91 Sheehy Court, 
which was included in the Original Project. This modification to the Original Project is necessary to 
avoid placement of a permanent wall structure within an existing sanitary sewer easement for a 
pipeline owned by Napa Sanitation District. However, a temporary wall or barricade would be 
installed along this property line to reduce temporary noise from project construction. 

 The Modified Project would include the installation of solar panel arrays as canopies over parking 
areas and on the rooftops of the bus maintenance facility and administration and operations office 
building. The solar panel arrays would be constructed of or coated with non‐glare and non‐reflective 
materials. Solar panel arrays installed over parking areas would not exceed heights of 20 feet above 
ground surface, and where installed on structure rooftops, the heights of the structure, including the 
solar panel arrays would not exceed heights of 35 feet above ground surface. Installation of the solar 
panel arrays would occur either concurrent with project construction or at a later date, following 
project construction. Please note that the conceptual site plan shown on Figure 3 does not show the 
proposed solar panel arrays. However, a conceptual rendering of the Modified Project, including 
solar panel arrays, is provided in Figure 5. Solar panel arrays were not a component of the Original 
Project. 

The Modified Project would occur within the same approximate footprint as the Original Project that was 
analyzed in the certified Final EIR, with overall project disturbance remaining below five acres. Specifically, 
the Modified Project would develop approximately 4.86 acres of the project site, compared to the Original 
Project, which develops 4.88 acres of the project site. Similar to the Original Project, the Modified Project 
would not encroach on the conservation easement and 35‐foot buffer from the top of the bank of Sheehy 
Creek that borders the site to the south. No trees are located within the area proposed for 
disturbance/development, and no trees would be removed as part of the Modified Project. The Modified 
Project would involve landscaping developed areas of the site with trees and shrubs, similar to the Original 
Project. 

 

287



Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 

 
10 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

Figure 5 Modified Project: Conceptual Rendering 

 

 
Source: NVTA 2018 

288



Project Description  

 
Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility 11 

 

This page left intentionally blank. 

 

289



Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 

 
12 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

3 Impact Analysis 
A comparative analysis of the potential impacts associated with the proposed Modified Project and those of 
the approved Original Project analyzed in the certified Final EIR has been undertaken using a checklist 
approach. The checklist, consistent with the format and environmental topics and questions of the checklist 
used in the certified EIR, including the Draft EIR and Initial Study provided as an appendix to the Draft EIR, is 
the checklist provided in Appendix G of the State CEQA Guidelines, with some additional questions specific to 
Napa County. The checklist considers the full range of environmental issues subject to analysis under CEQA 
(in rows), and then poses a series of questions (in columns) aimed at identifying the degree to which the issue 
was analyzed in the EIR. The checklist also includes a column identifying whether the proposed Modified 
Project constitutes new information of substantial importance relative to each environmental issue. The 
questions posed in each column are described below. 

Where was impact analyzed?  

This column provides a cross‐reference to the portions of the certified Final EIR where information and 
analyses may be found relative to the environmental issue listed under each topic. As described in Section 
1.1, Background and Purpose of the EIR Addendum, the certified Final EIR consists of the Draft EIR prepared 
for the Original Project and a RTC Document. Thus, cross‐references identified in this column correspond with 
page numbers and section numbers of the Draft EIR or the Initial Study, which is an appendix to the Draft EIR.  

Do proposed changes require major revisions to the certified EIR?  

In accordance with Section 15162(a)(1) of the State CEQA Guidelines, this column indicates whether the 
proposed Modified Project would involve new significant environmental impacts or a substantial increase in 
the severity of previously identified significant impacts that, in turn, would require major revisions of the 
certified EIR.  

Do new circumstances require major revisions to the certified EIR?  

In accordance with Section 15162(a)(2) of the State CEQA Guidelines, this column indicates whether changes 
to the circumstances under which the Modified Project is undertaken or implemented have occurred that 
would involve new significant environmental impacts or a substantial increase in the severity of previously 
identified significant impacts that, in turn, would require major revisions of the certified EIR. 

Is there any new information resulting in new or substantially more severe significant impacts?  

In accordance with Sections 15162(a)(3)(A) and 15162(a)(3)(B) of the State CEQA Guidelines, this column 
indicates whether new information of substantial importance, which was not known and could not have been 
known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the Final EIR was certified, shows additional or 
substantially more severe significant impacts not discussed in the certified EIR. 

Do mitigation measures included in the certified EIR address and/or resolve impacts?  

In accordance with Sections 15162(a)(3)(C) and 15162(a)(3)(D) of the State CEQA Guidelines, this column 
indicates whether new information of substantial importance, which was not known and could not have been 
known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the Final EIR was certified, shows that mitigation 
measures or alternatives in the certified EIR would now be feasible, or identifies new mitigation measures or 
alternatives not in the certified EIR that would reduce significant impacts, but which the applicant declines to 
adopt.   

290



Impact Analysis  

 
Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility 13 

3.1 Aesthetics 

Aesthetics 

 

Where was 
Impact 

Analyzed in 
the EIR? 

Do Proposed 
Changes 

Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Do New 
Circumstances 
Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Any New 
Information 
Resulting in 
New or 

Substantially 
More Severe 
Significant 
Impacts? 

Do EIR 
Mitigation 
Measures 
Address 
and/or 
Resolve 
Impacts? 

Would the project: 

a. Have a substantial adverse 
effect on a scenic vista? 

Initial Study 
Page 15 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

b. Substantially damage scenic 
resources, including but not 
limited to, trees, rock 
outcroppings, and historic 
buildings within a state scenic 
highway? 

Initial Study 
Page 16 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

c. Substantially degrade the 
existing visual character or 
quality of the site and its 
surroundings? 

Initial Study 
Page 16 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

d. Create a new source of 
substantial light or glare that 
would adversely affect daytime 
or nighttime views in the area? 

Initial Study 
Pages 16‐17 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  Yes 

a.  Would the project have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista? 

b.  Would  the project substantially damage scenic  resources,  including but not  limited  to,  trees,  rock 
outcroppings, and historic buildings within a state scenic highway? 

The Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts to scenic vistas or designated State 
Scenic Highways beyond those identified in the previously certified Final EIR. The Modified Project would be 
located at the same project site as the Original Project; the project location would be unchanged. As 
described in the certified EIR, the project site is not within a scenic vista and not on, adjacent to, or within 
view of a designated State Scenic Highway. The California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) has not 
designated new or revised existing designated State Scenic Highways in Napa County since certification of the 
Final EIR in January 2017 (Caltrans, 2017).  

291



Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 

 
14 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

c.  Would the project substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of the site and  its 
surroundings? 

The project site has retained the same general appearance as was analyzed in the certified Final EIR for the 
Original Project. Existing development and land uses on surrounding property has also remained essentially 
unchanged since certification of the EIR. Therefore, the existing visual character and quality of the site and 
surroundings is the same as was analyzed for the Original Project in the certified Final EIR. 

Similar to the Original Project, brief glimpses of the Modified Project may be available from a short stretch of 
State Route 29 north of the site, but it would be against a backdrop of industrial development to the south. 
The Modified Project would include structures of the same height as the Original Project, and views of the 
Modified Project structures against industrial backdrops would be similar to the Original Project. Additionally, 
a 35‐foot buffer from Sheehy Creek and its associated riparian vegetation would be maintained to preserve 
the aesthetics and topography of the creek corridor, consistent with the Original Project.  

As described in Section 2, Project Description, the Modified Project would not include construction of a 
permanent wall along the portion of the eastern property line shared with the property at 81‐91 Sheehy 
Court, which was included in the Original Project. This wall was included in the Original Project to provide 
visual screening between the bus maintenance facility and the existing land use on the property adjacent to 
the east of the project site. However, as shown on Figure 3, the Modified Project would switch the location of 
the bus maintenance facility and administration and operations office building relative to one another, which 
would place the office building next to the adjacent land use rather than the maintenance facility. The office 
building would have an appearance typical of a professional office and include outdoor landscaping, which 
would make it visually compatible with the existing adjacent land use. Additionally, standard passenger 
vehicles would be parked outside of the office building, typical of the types of vehicles that would be present 
at the adjacent use. Therefore, a wall would not be necessary for visual screening. 

As described in Section 2, Project Description, the Modified Project would also include the installation of solar 
panel arrays as canopies over parking areas and on the rooftops of the bus maintenance facility and 
administration and operations office building. The solar panel arrays would be constructed of or coated with 
non‐glare and non‐reflective materials to reduce glare that could otherwise degrade visual character.  

For the reasons described above, the Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts to the 
existing visual character beyond those identified in the previously certified Final EIR for the Original Project. 

d.  Create a new source of substantial  light or glare that would adversely affect daytime or nighttime 
views in the area? 

The Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts related to light and glare beyond those 
identified in the previously certified Final EIR for the Original Project. The Modified Project would change the 
size of proposed buildings and their location relative to one another onsite. Additionally, the bus wash facility 
would be a separate structure that could also have exterior and interior lights. Therefore, the location of 
lights on the project site would shift as compared to the Original Project. However, the number and types of 
lights onsite would be approximately the same as was analyzed in the certified EIR for the Original Project. 
Consistent with the certified EIR and Original Project, implementation of Mitigation Measure AES‐1, Night 
Lighting, would also be required for the Modified Project to reduce light impacts. With implementation of 
mitigation in the certified EIR, potential light impacts of the Modified Project would be less than significant 
and not substantially more severe than identified in the certified EIR for the Original Project. 

As described in Section 2, Project Description, the Modified Project would also include the installation of solar 
panel arrays as canopies over parking areas and on the rooftops of the bus maintenance facility and 
administration and operations office building. The solar panel arrays would be constructed of or coated with 

292



Impact Analysis  

 
Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility 15 

non‐glare and non‐reflective materials. Therefore, the solar panel arrays would not create a substantial 
source of glare on the project site.    

293



Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 

 
16 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

3.2 Agriculture and Forestry Resources 

Agriculture and Forestry Resources 

 

Where was 
Impact 

Analyzed in 
the EIR? 

Do Proposed 
Changes 

Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Do New 
Circumstances 
Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Any New 
Information 
Resulting in 
New or 

Substantially 
More Severe 
Significant 
Impacts? 

Do EIR 
Mitigation 
Measures 
Address 
and/or 
Resolve 
Impacts? 

Would the project: 

a. Convert Prime Farmland, Unique 
Farmland, Farmland of Statewide 
Importance (Farmland), as 
shown on maps prepared 
pursuant to the Farmland 
Mapping and Monitoring 
Program of the California 
Resources Agency, to non‐
agricultural use? 

Initial Study 
Page 20 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

b. Conflict with existing zoning for 
agricultural use or a Williamson 
Act contract? 

Initial Study 
Page 20 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

c. Conflict with existing zoning for, 
or cause rezoning of, forest land 
(as defined in Public Resources 
Code Section 12220(g)); 
timberland (as defined by Public 
Resources Code Section 4526); or 
timberland zoned Timberland 
Production (as defined by 
Government Code Section 
51104(g))? 

Initial Study 
Page 20 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

d. Result in the loss of forest land 
or conversion of forest land to 
non‐forest use? 

Initial Study 
Page 20 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

e. Involve other changes in the 
existing environment which, due 
to their location or nature, could 
result in conversion of Farmland 
to non‐agricultural use or 
conversion of forest land to non‐
forest use? 

Initial Study 
Page 20 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

294



Impact Analysis  

 
Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility 17 

a.  Would  the project convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, Farmland of Statewide  Importance 
(Farmland),  as  shown  on  maps  prepared  pursuant  to  the  Farmland  Mapping  and  Monitoring 
Program of the California Resources Agency, to non‐agricultural use? 

b.  Would the project conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use or a Williamson Act contract? 

c.  Would the project conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest  land (as defined  in 
Public Resources Code Section 12220(g)); timberland (as defined by Public Resources Code Section 
4526);  or  timberland  zoned  Timberland  Production  (as  defined  by  Government  Code  Section 
51104(g))? 

d.  Would the project result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest land to non‐forest use? 

e.  Would the project involve other changes in the existing environment which, due to their location or 
nature, could result in conversion of Farmland to non‐agricultural use or conversion of forest land to 
non‐forest use? 

The Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts to agriculture and forestry resources 
relative to the Original Project. As described in the certified EIR, the project site boundary overlaps Farmland, 
but Farmland does not occur within the project site. Additionally, as described in the certified EIR, the project 
site is not zoned for agricultural uses, nor is it under Williamson Act contract. The certified EIR also describes 
that the project site is not zoned as forest land or timberland zoned for Timberland Production; nor is it used 
for forest uses. Therefore, the findings of the certified EIR were that the Original Project would have no 
impact on these resources. The Modified Project would occur at the same project site as the Original Project 
and within the same area of the project site. New areas of Farmland have not been mapped on or within 
proximity to the project site since certification of the Final EIR in January 2018 (California Department of 
Conservation, 2016). Therefore, the Modified Project would also have no impact on Farmland or agricultural 
uses or forest land, consistent with the Original Project.  

  

295



Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 

 
18 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

3.3 Air Quality 

Air Quality 

 

Where was 
Impact 

Analyzed in 
the EIR? 

Do Proposed 
Changes 

Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Do New 
Circumstances 
Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Any New 
Information 
Resulting in 
New or 

Substantially 
More Severe 
Significant 
Impacts? 

Do EIR 
Mitigation 
Measures 
Address 
and/or 
Resolve 
Impacts? 

Would the project: 

a. Conflict with or obstruct 
implementation of the applicable 
air quality plan? 

Initial Study 
Page 24 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

b. Violate any air quality standard 
or contribute substantially to an 
existing or projected air quality 
violation? 

Draft EIR 
Pages 56‐59 

No  No  No  N/A 

c. Result in a cumulatively 
considerable net increase of any 
criteria pollutant for which the 
project region is non‐attainment 
under an applicable federal or 
state ambient air quality 
standard (including releasing 
emissions which exceed 
quantitative thresholds for ozone 
precursors)? 

Draft EIR 
Pages 56‐59 

No  No  No  N/A 

d. Expose sensitive receptors to 
substantial pollutant 
concentrations? 

Draft EIR 
Pages 59‐60 

No  No  No  N/A 

e. Create objectionable odors 
affecting a substantial number of 
people? 

Initial Study 
Page 25 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

a.  Would the project conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan? 

The Modified Project would not conflict with or obstruct the implementation of any Bay Area Air Quality 
Management District (BAAQMD) plans. In fact, implementation of the Modified Project would be consistent 
with BAAQMD’s goals to reduce ground level ozone and PM2.5 pollution because it would support continued 
public transportation in Napa County, which could potentially reduce emission of these pollutants from 
personal vehicles. This would be the same beneficial impact as was determined for the Original Project in the 

296



Impact Analysis  

 
Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility 19 

certified EIR. No new housing or population is proposed or would result indirectly from the Modified Project. 
Therefore, the Modified Project would be consistent with growth and population forecasts used in the plan.  

As the Modified Project would not conflict with or obstruct the implementation of applicable air quality 
plans, impacts would be less than significant and the same as the Original Project. The Modified Project 
would result in no new or more severe impacts related to conflicts with applicable air quality plans beyond 
those identified in the previously certified Final EIR for the Original Project. 

b.  Would  the  project  violate  any  air  quality  standard  or  contribute  substantially  to  an  existing  or 
projected air quality violation?  

c.  Would  the project  result  in a  cumulatively  considerable net  increase of any  criteria pollutant  for 
which the project region is non‐attainment under an applicable federal or state ambient air quality 
standard (including releasing emissions which exceed quantitative thresholds for ozone precursors)? 

Therefore, the Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts related to conflicts with 
applicable air quality plans beyond those identified in the previously certified Final EIR for the Original 
Project. As shown in Table 8 of the certified EIR (Draft EIR page 57), construction of the Original Project would 
generate emissions of criteria pollutants that are substantially below the BAAQMD thresholds. The Modified 
Project would include construction of approximately 3,171 square feet more of structural building space than 
the proposed project, as shown in Table 1. The area of the project site that would be developed would be 
effectively the same, with the Modified Project developing 0.02 acre less. The additional 3,171 square feet of 
building construction would be a negligible increase in construction duration, and would require the same 
types of equipment that would be required for construction of the Original Project. Additionally, building 
construction would require fewer pieces of equipment compared to the other construction activities, such as 
site grading. Therefore, the additional emissions of criteria pollutants from construction of the 3,171 square 
feet of building space would be a negligible increase in the construction emissions estimated for the Original 
Project in the certified EIR. Because the emissions of the Original Project are well below the BAAQMD 
thresholds, a negligible increase would not exceed the thresholds. Therefore, the maximum daily 
construction emissions of the Modified Project would be below the BAAQMD thresholds and would comply 
with the air quality standards set by the BAAQMD. Construction of the Modified Project would not 
substantially increase emissions of criteria pollutants, relative to the Original Project.  

As described in the certified EIR, operational emissions of the Original Project would result from vehicle and 
bus trips to and from the project site, energy use at the maintenance facility and office, and area sources, 
such as landscape maintenance and architectural coatings. Operational emissions of the Original Project were 
found to be well below BAAQMD thresholds in the certified EIR, and impacts were found to be less than 
significant. The Modified Project would include solar panel arrays as a source of renewable energy for the 
maintenance facility and office building, which would reduce energy‐source operational emissions compared 
to the Original Project. The Modified Project and Original Project would both provide comparable amounts of 
landscape, architectural coatings and other area sources of operational GHG emissions. The Modified Project 
would not increase the operational workforce compared to the Original Project. Therefore, passenger vehicle 
trips to and from the project site under the operation of the Modified Project would be the same as analyzed 
in the certified EIR for the Original Project. The certified Final EIR analyzed bus trips assuming that a total of 
93 buses would be operated daily from the maintenance facility. However, since certification of the Final EIR 
in January 2018, NVTA has decided to eliminate articulated buses from its Vine fleet, and only 79 buses would 
be stored and operated from the facility. Therefore, slightly fewer bus trips would occur under the Modified 
Project than was modeled in the certified EIR for the Original Project, which would result in slightly less 
mobile source emissions of criteria pollutants compared to the Original Project. Operational emissions from 
the Modified Project would be below BAAQMD thresholds.  

297



Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 

 
20 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

d.  Would the project expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations? 

Therefore, the Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts related to exposure of 
sensitive receptors to air pollution beyond those identified in the previously certified Final EIR for the Original 
Project. The Modified Project would be located at same project site as the Original Project. No new sensitive 
receptors have been constructed in proximity to the project site since certification of the Final EIR in January 
2018. As described above, operational emissions of the Modified Project would be below BAAQMD 
thresholds, and similar or slightly reduced compared to emissions of the Original Project.  

e.  Create objectionable odors affecting a substantial number of people? 

The Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts related to odors beyond those identified 
in the previously certified Final EIR for the Original Project. The Modified Project would not involve 
construction or operational activities that were not accounted for in the Original Project and analyzed in the 
Draft EIR, other than the proposed addition of solar panel arrays. Solar panels arrays would not produce 
odors. Therefore, no new odors or groups of people beyond those analyzed in the certified EIR for the 
Original Project would result from the Modified Project.  

  

298



Impact Analysis  

 
Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility 21 

3.4 Biological Resources 

Biological Resources 

 

Where was 
Impact 

Analyzed in 
the EIR? 

Do Proposed 
Changes 

Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Do New 
Circumstances 
Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Any New 
Information 
Resulting in 
New or 

Substantially 
More Severe 
Significant 
Impacts? 

Do EIR 
Mitigation 
Measures 
Address 
and/or 
Resolve 
Impacts? 

Would the project: 

a. Have a substantial adverse 
effect, either directly or through 
habitat modifications, on any 
species identified as a candidate, 
sensitive, or special status 
species in local or regional plans, 
policies, or regulations, or by the 
California Department of Fish 
and Wildlife or U.S. Fish and 
Wildlife Service? 

Draft EIR 
Pages 73‐80 

No  No  No  Yes 

b. Have a substantial adverse effect 
on any riparian habitat or other 
sensitive natural community 
identified in local or regional 
plans, policies, or regulations, or 
by the California Department of 
Fish and Wildlife or U.S. Fish and 
Wildlife Service? 

Draft EIR 
Pages 80‐82 

No  No  No  Yes 

c. Have a substantial adverse effect 
on federally protected wetlands 
as defined by Section 404 of the 
Clean Water Act (including, but 
not limited to, marsh, vernal 
pool, coastal, etc.) through direct 
removal, filling, hydrological 
interruption, or other means? 

Initial Study 
Page 38 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

d. Interfere substantially with the 
movement of any native resident 
or migratory fish or wildlife 
species or with established 
native resident or migratory 
wildlife corridors, or impede the 
use of native wildlife nursery 
sites? 

Initial Study 
Page 38 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

299



Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 

 
22 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

Biological Resources 

 

Where was 
Impact 

Analyzed in 
the EIR? 

Do Proposed 
Changes 

Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Do New 
Circumstances 
Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Any New 
Information 
Resulting in 
New or 

Substantially 
More Severe 
Significant 
Impacts? 

Do EIR 
Mitigation 
Measures 
Address 
and/or 
Resolve 
Impacts? 

e. Conflict with any local policies or 
ordinances protecting biological 
resources, such as a tree 
preservation policy or 
ordinance? 

Initial Study 
Pages 38‐39 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

f. Conflict with the provisions of an 
adopted Habitat Conservation 
Plan, Natural Community 
Conservation Plan, or other 
approved local, regional, or state 
habitat conservation plan? 

Initial Study 
Page 39 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

a.  Would  the  project  have  a  substantial  adverse  effect,  either  directly  or  through  habitat 
modifications, on any species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in local or 
regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or U.S. 
Fish and Wildlife Service? 

The California Department of Fish and Wildlife’s (CDFW) California Natural Diversity Database was queried on 
March 8, 2018, to determine if records of special‐status species have been recorded in proximity to the 
project site since the certification of the Final EIR in January 2018. Similarly, the U.S. Fish and Wildlife 
Service’s Information for Planning and Consultation system was queried on March 14, 2018, to identify any 
species listed, proposed for listing, or candidates for listing as threatened or endangered under the Federal 
Endangered Species Act within proximity to the project site that were otherwise not previously analyzed in 
the certified EIR for the Original Project. According to the California Natural Diversity Database (CDFW, 2018) 
and the Information for Planning and Consultation system (U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, 2018), no special‐
status species have been recorded in proximity to the project site that were not previously analyzed in the 
certified EIR.  

As described in the certified EIR, habitat for special‐status plant species on the project site is limited to the 
riparian corridor of Sheehy Creek. Consistent with the Original Project, construction and operation of the 
Modified Project would not encroach on the conservation easement and 35‐foot buffer from the top of the 
bank of Sheehy Creek. This buffer fully encompasses the riparian corridor of Sheehy Creek. Thus, the 
Modified Project would not directly or indirectly impact special‐status plant species previously analyzed in 
the certified EIR for the Original Project. 

The minor changes and modifications included in the proposed Modified Project would occur within the 
same approximate footprint as the Original Project that was analyzed in the certified EIR, with overall project 
disturbance remaining below five acres. Specifically, the proposed Modified Project would develop 
approximately 4.86 acres of the project site, compared to the Original Project, which develops 4.88 acres of 
the project site. Therefore, the Modified Project would impact approximately the same area of upland grass 
vegetation as the Original Project. As described in the certified EIR for the Original Project, upland grass on 

300



Impact Analysis  

 
Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility 23 

the project site is suitable nesting habitat for some species of migratory birds, and may also be foraging 
habitat for raptors, including special‐status species. Therefore, the Modified Project would have the same 
potential impacts to special‐status wildlife species as the Original Project analyzed in the certified EIR. All of 
the mitigation measures identified for the Original Project related to special‐status species would also be 
required for the Modified Project. These mitigation measures include: 

 BIO‐1 California Red‐Legged Frog Avoidance and Minimization 

 BIO‐2 Burrowing Owl Pre‐Construction Surveys 

 BIO‐3 Burrowing Owl Avoidance and Minimization 

 BIO‐4 Nesting Birds 

With implementation of the required mitigation measures listed above, impacts of the Modified Project 
would be less than significant, consistent with impacts of the Original Project as identified in the certified EIR. 
The Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts on special‐status species beyond those 
identified in the previously certified Final EIR for the Original Project. 

b.  Would  the  project  have  a  substantial  adverse  effect  on  any  riparian  habitat  or  other  sensitive 
natural community identified in local or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by the California 
Department of Fish and Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service? 

As described above, the Modified Project would occur within the same approximate footprint as the Original 
Project that was analyzed in the certified EIR. The Modified Project would not encroach on the 35‐foot buffer 
from the top of the bank of Sheehy Creek, and therefore, would avoid direct impacts to riparian habitat, as 
well as aquatic habitat of Sheehy Creek.  

Indirect impacts of the Original Project, as described in the certified EIR, would include spread of invasive 
species during construction and stormwater runoff from the project affecting water quality in Sheehy Creek. 
These impacts would also occur under the Modified Project because it would develop approximately the 
same amount of the project site with impervious surface and would include the same types of operational 
uses as the Original Project. Therefore, mitigation measures BIO‐5 Setback Requirements and BIO‐6 Removal 
of Invasive Species, as identified in the certified EIR for the Original Project, would also be required for the 
Modified Project.  

The Modified Project would locate the bus wash facility within closer proximity to Sheehy Creek. However, as 
discussed in the certified EIR, the potential indirect impacts of the runoff from the bus wash facility assumed 
the facility would be at least 35 feet from Sheehy Creek under the Original Project. The bus facility would 
remain at least 35 feet from Sheehy Creek under the Modified Project because the project would not 
encroach on the 35‐foot buffer from the top of the bank of Sheehy Creek. Additionally, as described in 
Section 3.9, Hydrology and Water Quality, of this Addendum, all of the mitigation measures identified in the 
certified EIR for the Original Project related to water quality and wastewater discharge requirements would 
also be required for the Modified Project. These mitigation measures include HWQ‐1 Bus Maintenance 
Facility Runoff Prevention. As described in the certified EIR, implementation of mitigation measure HWQ‐1 
would mandate that all water used for bus washing and sewage during operations be recaptured and 
conveyed to the sanitary sewer system for treatment in accordance with the requirements of the 
Wastewater Discharge Permit. 

Locating the bus wash facility within closer proximity to Sheehy Creek would also place more exterior lights 
within proximity to riparian habitat associated with the creek, which could indirectly impact wildlife. 
However, Mitigation Measure AES‐1, as described above in Section 3.1, Aesthetics, would require exterior 
lights to be shielded and designed or located in a manner as to contain the direct rays and minimize light cast 
into the riparian habitat adjacent to Sheehy Creek. 

301



Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 

 
24 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

Therefore, with implementation of the mitigation measures listed in the certified EIR, as described above, the 
Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts on riparian habitat or other sensitive natural 
communities beyond those identified in the previously certified Final EIR for the Original Project. 

c.  Would the project have a substantial adverse effect on federally protected wetlands as defined by 
Section 404 of the Clean Water Act (including, but not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) 
through direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or other means? 

d.  Would  the project  interfere  substantially with  the movement of any native  resident or migratory 
fish or wildlife species or with established native resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or impede 
the use of native wildlife nursery sites? 

The Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts on jurisdictional wetlands or wildlife 
and fish migratory corridors beyond those identified in the previously certified Final EIR for the Original 
Project. As described in the certified EIR, wetlands and other Waters of the U.S. and Waters of the State 
under the jurisdiction of the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), CDFW and Regional Water Quality 
Control Board (RWQCB) are restricted to Sheehy Creek and its riparian corridor. The remaining area of the 
project site is upland area that has been previously disturbed. As described in the certified EIR, the upland 
area is dominated by non‐native annual grassland and is not a wildlife migratory corridor.  

As described above, the Modified Project would occur within the same approximate footprint as the Original 
Project that was analyzed in the certified EIR. The Modified Project would not encroach on the 35‐foot buffer 
from the top of the bank of Sheehy Creek. The riparian corridor is contained fully within this buffer.  

e.  Would the project conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, such 
as a tree preservation policy or ordinance? 

The Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts related to policies and ordinances 
protecting biological resources beyond those identified in the previously certified Final EIR for the Original 
Project. As described in the certified EIR, the following Napa County ordinances and policies would apply to 
the Original Project:  

 Ordinance 1307 § 1 (part), 2008): This ordinance restricts activities in riparian zones. The proposed 
project would comply with all of the restrictions given the proposed minimum buffer zone of 35 feet 
between the edge of Sheehy Creek and the paved portion of the project.  

 Napa County Municipal Code Title 18, Chapter 18.40.170‐Watercourse Protection: A 35‐foot buffer 
from the top of the bank of Sheehy Creek would be maintained pursuant to setback distance 
requirements. This buffer area is also governed by a conservation easement deeded to the County of 
Napa in 2006. 

 Conservation Regulation, Erosion Control Plan (ECP): Pursuant to Chapter 18.108 of the Napa 
County Code, ECPs are required for projects involving grading or other earth moving activities on 
slopes greater than five percent. The proposed site has been previously graded to accommodate 
development; all the portions of the site involving slopes greater than five percent are located within 
the buffered riparian corridor and would not be disturbed as a result of construction or operational 
activities.  

These ordinances and policies would also be applicable to the Modified Project. No riparian habitat would be 
removed, and disturbance is not proposed within 35 feet of the top‐of‐bank of Sheehy Creek under the 
Modified Project. Therefore, the Modified Project would not conflict with these policies or ordinances. 
Construction of the Modified Project would not require the removal of trees.  

302



Impact Analysis  

 
Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility 25 

f.  Would  the project  conflict with  the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural 
Community  Conservation  Plan,  or  other  approved  local,  regional,  or  state  habitat  conservation 
plan? 

The project site is not within a Habitat Conservation Plan or Natural Community Conservation Plan area. 
There would be no impact in this regard as a result of the Modified Project. As described in the certified EIR, 
the Original Project would also have no impact related to conflicts with an adopted plan. 

   

303



Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 

 
26 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

3.5 Cultural Resources 

Cultural Resources 

 

Where was 
Impact 

Analyzed in 
the EIR? 

Do Proposed 
Changes 

Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Do New 
Circumstances 
Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Any New 
Information 
Resulting in 
New or 

Substantially 
More Severe 
Significant 
Impacts? 

Do EIR 
Mitigation 
Measures 
Address 
and/or 
Resolve 
Impacts? 

Would the project: 

a. Cause a substantial adverse 
change in the significance of a 
historical resource as defined in 
§15064.5? 

Initial Study 
Page 41 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

b. Cause a substantial adverse 
change in the significance of an 
archaeological resource as 
defined in §15064.5? 

Initial Study 
Pages 41‐43 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  Yes 

c. Directly or indirectly destroy a 
unique paleontological 
resource or site or unique 
geological feature? 

Initial Study 
Pages 43‐44 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  Yes 

d. Disturb any human remains, 
including those interred outside 
of formal cemeteries? 

Initial Study 
Pages 44‐45 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  Yes 

a.  Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource as 
defined in §15064.5? 

As described in the certified EIR, there are no structures or historic resources on the project site. Therefore, 
no impact to historical resources would occur as a result of the Modified Project. As described in the certified 
EIR, the Original Project would also have no impact on historic resources. 

304



Impact Analysis  

 
Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility 27 

b.  Would  the  project  cause  a  substantial  adverse  change  in  the  significance  of  an  archaeological 
resource as defined in §15064.5? 

c.  Would the project directly or  indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or unique 
geological feature? 

d.  Would  the  project  disturb  any  human  remains,  including  those  interred  outside  of  formal 
cemeteries? 

Construction of the Modified Project would require grading and excavation below ground surface. These 
construction activities would have the potential to uncover or disturb previously unknown archaeological 
resources, paleontological resources, or human remains. However, because the Modified Project would occur 
within the same approximate footprint on the same project site as the Original Project, and involve 
excavation to the same depth below ground surface as the Original Project, no new or more severe impacts 
beyond those identified in the previously certified Final EIR for the Original Project would result. 

The cultural resources mitigation measures included in the certified EIR for the Original Project would also be 
required for the Modified Project. These mitigation measures include: 

 CR‐1  Archaeological and Native American Monitoring 

 CR‐2  Unanticipated Discovery of Cultural Resources 

 CR‐3  Paleontological Resources 

 CR‐4  Discovery of Unanticipated Human Remains 

With implementation or the required mitigation, listed above, impacts of the Modified Project would be less 
than significant, consistent with impacts of the Original Project, as identified in the certified EIR. 

  

305



Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 

 
28 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

3.6 Geology and Soils 

Geology and Soils 

 

Where was 
Impact 

Analyzed in 
the EIR? 

Do Proposed 
Changes 

Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Do New 
Circumstances 
Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Any New 
Information 
Resulting in 
New or 

Substantially 
More Severe 
Significant 
Impacts? 

Do EIR 
Mitigation 
Measures 
Address 
and/or 
Resolve 
Impacts? 

Would the project: 

a. Expose people or structures to 
potentially substantial adverse 
effects, including the risk of 
loss, injury, or death involving: 

         

1.  Rupture of a known 
earthquake fault, as 
delineated on the most 
recent Alquist‐Priolo 
Earthquake Fault Zoning 
Map issued by the State 
Geologist for the area or 
based on other substantial 
evidence of a known fault? 

Initial Study 
Page 48 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

2.  Strong seismic ground 
shaking? 

Initial Study 
Page 48 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

3.  Seismic‐related ground 
failure, including 
liquefaction? 

Initial Study 
Page 49 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  Yes 

4.  Landslides? 

Initial Study 
Pages 49‐50 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

b. Result in substantial soil erosion 
or the loss of topsoil? 

Initial Study 
Page 50 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

306



Impact Analysis  

 
Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility 29 

Geology and Soils 

 

Where was 
Impact 

Analyzed in 
the EIR? 

Do Proposed 
Changes 

Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Do New 
Circumstances 
Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Any New 
Information 
Resulting in 
New or 

Substantially 
More Severe 
Significant 
Impacts? 

Do EIR 
Mitigation 
Measures 
Address 
and/or 
Resolve 
Impacts? 

c. Be located on a geologic unit or 
soil that is made unstable as a 
result of the project, and 
potentially result in on or offsite 
landslide, lateral spreading, 
subsidence, liquefaction, or 
collapse? 

Initial Study 
Page 50 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  Yes 

d. Be located on expansive soil, as 
defined in Table 1‐B of the 
Uniform Building Code (1994), 
creating substantial risks to life 
or property? 

Initial Study 
Pages 50‐51 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  Yes 

e. Have soils incapable of 
adequately supporting the use of 
septic tanks or alternative 
wastewater disposal systems 
where sewers are not available 
for the disposal of wastewater? 

Initial Study 
Page 51 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

a.1  Would the project expose people or structures to potential substantial adverse effects, including the 
risk of  loss,  injury, or death  involving  rupture of a known earthquake  fault, as delineated on  the 
most recent Alquist‐Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State Geologist for the area 
or based on other substantial evidence of a known fault? 

a.2  Would the project expose people or structures to potential substantial adverse effects, including the 
risk of loss, injury, or death involving strong seismic ground shaking? 

a.3  Would the project expose people or structures to potential substantial adverse effects, including the 
risk of loss, injury, or death involving seismic‐related ground failure, including liquefaction? 

a.4  Would the project expose people or structures to potential substantial adverse effects, including the 
risk of loss, injury, or death involving landslides? 

The Modified Project would be located on the same project site as the Original Project analyzed in the 
certified EIR. Therefore, the proximity to known earthquake faults and the potential for fault rupture, seismic 
ground shaking, liquefaction, and landslides at the project site described for the Original Project in the 
certified EIR would also be applicable to the Modified Project.  

307



Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 

 
30 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

Operation of the Modified Project would require a workforce that is effectively the same size as would be 
required under the Original Project. Therefore, the Modified Project would not increase the number of 
people potentially exposed to seismic risks compared to the Original Project.  

The Modified Project would include an additional structure onsite because the bus wash facility would be a 
separate building from the bus maintenance facility. However, bus wash facility would be constructed 
pursuant to California Building Code (CBC) Chapter 16, consistent with the maintenance facility and 
administration and operations office building. Chapter 16 of the CBC provides engineering design and 
construction protocol to minimize structural damage from seismicity. Compliance with the CBC would reduce 
the potential impacts associated with the bus wash facility. Additionally, Mitigation Measure GEO‐1 Conduct 
Geotechnical Investigation and Soil Remediation, as described in the certified EIR for the Original Project, 
would also be required for the Modified Project. This mitigation measure would reduce impacts related to 
ground failure during a seismic event. With implementation of mitigation, the Modified Project would result 
in no new or more severe impacts beyond those identified in the previously certified Final EIR for the Original 
Project. 

b.  Would the project result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil? 

Therefore, the Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts related to soil erosion or loss 
of topsoil beyond those identified in the previously certified Final EIR for the Original Project. Construction of 
the Modified Project would disturb the same approximate footprint of the project site as construction of the 
Original Project. Similar to the Original Project, a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) would also 
be required for construction of the Modified Project. The SWPPP would include best management practices 
(BMPs) to prevent soil erosion and the loss of topsoil during construction.  

During operation of the Modified Project, the majority of the project site disturbed during construction 
would be paved or occupied by structures. Very little soil would be exposed to erosion by wind or water. For 
the unpaved portions of the project footprint, the proposed landscape concept includes a variety of trees and 
other plants. The plant roots would encourage water infiltration and their root systems would add strength 
and bind the soil together to prevent erosion. Finally, consistent with the Original Project, the proposed 
Modified Project would use biofiltration areas to capture post‐development runoff and ensure that both on‐ 
and off‐site erosion is minimized.  

c.  Would  the project be  located on a geologic unit or  soil  that  is made unstable as a  result of  the 
project, and potentially result  in on or offsite  landslide,  lateral spreading, subsidence,  liquefaction, 
or collapse? 

d.  Would the project be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 1‐B of the Uniform Building Code 
(1994), creating substantial risks to life or property? 

The Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts related to unstable or expansive soils 
beyond those identified in the previously certified Final EIR for the Original Project. As described in the 
certified EIR, the project site has loamy soils that may be susceptible to liquefaction and is located near the 
West Napa Fault zone. This right lateral strike –slip fault could cause very strong earth shaking in the event of 
an earthquake. As described in the certified EIR, there is also potential for expansive soils to occur on the 
project site. Therefore, the potential for the Modified Project to result in unstable soils or to be damaged 
from expansive soils would be the same as the Original Project analyzed in the certified EIR. Mitigation 
measure GEO‐1 Conduct Geotechnical Investigation and Soil Remediation, as described in the certified EIR for 
the Original Project, would also be required for the Modified Project. With implementation of mitigation, 
impacts would be less than significant.  

308



Impact Analysis  

 
Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility 31 

e.  Would  the  project  have  soils  incapable  of  adequately  supporting  the  use  of  septic  tanks  or 
alternative  wastewater  disposal  systems  where  sewers  are  not  available  for  the  disposal  of 
wastewater? 

Septic tanks or alternative wastewater disposal systems would not be utilized for the Modified Project. 
Therefore, no geological impact due to wastewater disposal systems would occur. As described in the 
certified EIR, the Original Project would also have no impacts related to septic tanks or alternative 
wastewater disposal systems. 

  

309



Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 

 
32 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

3.7 Greenhouse Gas Emissions 

Greenhouse Gas Emissions 

 

Where was 
Impact 

Analyzed in 
the EIR? 

Do Proposed 
Changes 

Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Do New 
Circumstances 
Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Any New 
Information 
Resulting in 
New or 

Substantially 
More Severe 
Significant 
Impacts? 

Do EIR 
Mitigation 
Measures 
Address 
and/or 
Resolve 
Impacts? 

Would the project: 

a. Generate greenhouse gas 
emissions, either directly or 
indirectly, that may have a 
significant impact on the 
environment? 

Draft EIR 
Pages 95‐99 

No  No  No  N/A 

b. Conflict with any applicable plan, 
policy, or regulation adopted for 
the purposes of reducing the 
emissions of greenhouse gases? 

Draft EIR 
Pages 95‐99 

No  No  No  N/A 

a.  Would the project generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a 
significant impact on the environment? 

b.  Conflict with any applicable plan, policy, or  regulation adopted  for  the purposes of  reducing  the 
emissions of greenhouse gases? 

As described in the certified EIR, construction of the Original Project would generate greenhouse gas (GHG) 
emissions. As shown in Table 1, the Modified Project would require the construction of an additional 
approximately 3,171 square feet of building space compared to the Original Project. As described above in 
Section 3.3, Air Quality, the additional 3,171 square feet of building construction would result in a negligible 
increase in construction duration, and would require the same types of equipment that would be required for 
construction of the Original Project. Additionally, construction GHG emissions would be temporary for the 
duration of construction. Therefore, construction of the Modified Project would not substantially increase 
GHG emissions relative to the Original Project. 

Compared to the Original Project, operation of the Modified Project would generate fewer bus trips because 
the analysis of operational GHG emissions for the Original Project assumed that the Vine fleet would consist 
of 93 buses. However, since certification of the Final EIR in January 2018, NVTA has decided to eliminate 
articulated buses from its Vine fleet, and a total of 79 buses would be stored and operated at the 
maintenance facility. Therefore, approximately 14 fewer buses would be operated under the Modified 
Project as compared to the Original Project. The Modified Project would not increase the size of the 
operational workforce compared to the Original Project, and therefore no substantial increase in passenger 
vehicle trips to and from the project site would occur or result under the Modified Project. Therefore, 
transportation source operational GHG emissions would be slightly reduced compared to the Original Project 
due to fewer bus trips. Energy use operational emissions of the Modified Project would be reduced 
compared to the Original Project because the Modified Project would generate renewable energy with 

310



Impact Analysis  

 
Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility 33 

proposed solar panel arrays. Landscape and area‐source GHG emissions would be similar to the Original 
Project. Because construction would have only a temporary and incremental increase of GHG emissions and 
operational emissions would likely be less than the Original Project, the Modified Project would result in no 
new or more severe impacts related to GHG emissions beyond those identified in the previously certified 
Final EIR for the Original Project. 

  

311



Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 

 
34 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

3.8 Hazards and Hazardous Materials 

Hazards and Hazardous Materials 

 

Where was 
Impact 

Analyzed in 
the EIR? 

Do Proposed 
Changes 

Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Do New 
Circumstances 
Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Any New 
Information 
Resulting in 
New or 

Substantially 
More Severe 
Significant 
Impacts? 

Do EIR 
Mitigation 
Measures 
Address 
and/or 
Resolve 
Impacts? 

Would the project: 

a. Create a significant hazard to the 
public or the environment 
through the routine transport, 
use, or disposal of hazardous 
materials? 

Initial Study 
Pages 58‐59 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

b. Create a significant hazard to the 
public or the environment 
through reasonably foreseeable 
upset and accident conditions 
involving the release of 
hazardous materials into the 
environment? 

Initial Study 
Page 59 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

c. Emit hazardous emissions or 
handle hazardous or acutely 
hazardous materials, substances, 
or waste within 0.25 mile of an 
existing or proposed school? 

Initial Study 
Page 59 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

d. Be located on a site that is 
included on a list of hazardous 
material sites compiled pursuant 
to Government Code Section 
65962.5 and, as a result, would it 
create a significant hazard to the 
public or the environment? 

Initial Study 
Pages 59‐60 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

e. For a project located in an 
airport land use plan or, where 
such a plan has not been 
adopted, within two miles of a 
public airport or public use 
airport, would the project result 
in a safety hazard for people 
residing or working in the project 
area? 

Initial Study 
Page 60 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

312



Impact Analysis  

 
Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility 35 

Hazards and Hazardous Materials 

 

Where was 
Impact 

Analyzed in 
the EIR? 

Do Proposed 
Changes 

Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Do New 
Circumstances 
Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Any New 
Information 
Resulting in 
New or 

Substantially 
More Severe 
Significant 
Impacts? 

Do EIR 
Mitigation 
Measures 
Address 
and/or 
Resolve 
Impacts? 

f. For a project within the vicinity 
of a private airstrip, would the 
project result in a safety hazard 
for people residing or working in 
the project area? 

Initial Study 
Page 60 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

g. Impair implementation of or 
physically interfere with an 
adopted emergency response 
plan or emergency evacuation 
plan? 

Initial Study 
Page 60 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

h. Expose people or structures to a 
significant risk of loss, injury, or 
death involving wildland fires, 
including where wildlands are 
adjacent to urbanized areas or 
where residences are intermixed 
with wildlands? 

Initial Study 
Page 61 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

a.  Would the project create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine 
transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials? 

b.  Would the project create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably 
foreseeable  upset  and  accident  conditions  involving  the  release  of  hazardous materials  into  the 
environment? 

The Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts beyond those identified in the 
previously certified Final EIR for the Original Project. The Modified Project would include the construction 
and operation of a proposed bus maintenance facility, bus wash, and administration and operations office 
building. These are the same types of uses and activities included in the Original Project and analyzed in the 
certified EIR. Therefore, the Modified Project would not require the transport, use, disposal of additional 
amounts or other types of hazardous materials and wastes beyond those analyzed for the Original Project in 
the certified EIR. Compliance with regulations pertaining to the transport, handling, and disposal of 
hazardous materials would be mandatory and minimize impacts of upset or hazards, regardless of the 
potential implementation of the Modified Project or Original Project.  

313



Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 

 
36 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

c.  Would the project emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, 
substances, or waste within 0.25 mile of an existing or proposed school? 

The Modified Project would occur on the same project site as the Original Project. As described in the 
certified EIR, there are no schools within 0.25 mile of the project site. New schools have not been 
constructed within 0.25 mile of the project site since certification of the Final EIR in January 2018. Therefore, 
consistent with the Original Project, the Modified Project would have no impacts related to hazardous 
emissions or materials within 0.25 mile of schools. 

d.  Would the project be located on a site that is included on a list of hazardous material sites compiled 
pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a result, would it create a significant hazard 
to the public or the environment? 

The Modified Project would occur on the same project site as the Original Project, within the same 
approximate footprint as the Original Project. As described in the certified EIR, there were no known 
hazardous material sites of lists compiled pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5 when the Final EIR 
was prepared. In order to determine if known hazardous materials contamination at the project site has been 
identified since certification of the Final EIR in January 2018, the following databases and listings compiled 
pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5 were queried on March 7, 2018: 

 United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) 

o Superfund Enterprise Management System (SEMS) database (2018a) 

o Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Information System 
(CERCLIS) database (2018b) 

 State Water Resources Control Board  

o GeoTracker database (2015) search for leaking underground storage tanks and other 
cleanup sites 

 Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) 

o Envirostor database (2018a) for hazardous waste facilities or known contamination sites  

o Hazardous Waste and Substances Site List (Cortese) (2018b) 

According to these databases, no hazardous material sites have been identified on or within proximity to the 
project site since certification of the Final EIR in January 2018. Therefore, consistent with findings of the 
certified EIR for the Original Project, the Modified Project would also have no impacts related to hazardous 
waste sites. 

e.  For a project located in an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within 
two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would  the project  result  in a safety hazard  for 
people residing or working in the project area? 

The Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts related to safety hazards within an 
airport land use plan area beyond those identified in the previously certified Final EIR for the Original Project. 
As designated on the Compatibility Plan map in the Napa County Airport Land Use Commission’s 1999 Airport 
Land Use Compatibility Plan, the project site is within Area D, an area of “moderate risk.” Residential 
development is discouraged in Area D, and the allowed commercial and industrial land uses are suggested to 
limit density to 150 or fewer persons per acre. Structures should not exceed heights of 35 feet above ground 
surface in Area D. 

314



Impact Analysis  

 
Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility 37 

As described in the certified EIR, the Original Project would not result in a safety hazard for people working at 
the project site. The Modified Project would not change the height of buildings or size of the operational 
workforce present at the project site compared to the Original Project. As described in Section 2, Project 
Description, the Modified Project would include the installation of solar panel arrays as canopies over parking 
areas and on the rooftops of the bus maintenance facility and administration and operations office building. 
The solar panel arrays would be constructed of or coated with non‐glare and non‐reflective materials to avoid 
potential light or glare interference with aviation. Additionally, solar panel arrays installed over parking areas 
would not exceed heights of 20 feet above ground surface. Where solar panel arrays are installed on the 
rooftops of structures, the total height of the structure, including the rooftop solar panel arrays, would not 
exceed heights of 35 feet above ground surface. Thus, the Modified Project would be consistent with the 
allowable uses in Area D and would not create hazards associated with airport safety and flight.  

f.  For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip, would the project result in a safety hazard for 
people residing or working in the project area? 

Private airstrips in the region are located more than 8 miles from the project site. Therefore, consistent with 
the Original Project and findings of the certified EIR, the Modified Project would also have no impacts related 
to safety hazards pertaining to private airstrips. 

g.  Would  the  project  impair  implementation  of  or  physically  interfere with  an  adopted  emergency 
response plan or emergency evacuation plan? 

The Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts related to impairment or interference 
with emergency plans beyond those identified in the previously certified Final EIR for the Original Project. As 
described in the certified EIR, the Original Project would not involve changes to or closures of streets 
included in emergency response or emergency evacuation plans. The Modified Project would be located at 
the same project site as the Original Project, and would not involve changes to or closures of different or 
additional streets relative to the Original Project. As discussed below in Section 3.16, Transportation/Traffic, 
traffic generated from the Modified Project would be similar to or slightly less than the Original Project. 
Therefore traffic impacts of the Modified Project would result in similar impacts to emergency evacuation as 
the Original Project, which were found less than significant in the certified EIR.  

h.  Would the project expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury, or death involving 
wildland fires,  including where wildlands are adjacent to urbanized areas or where residences are 
intermixed with wildlands? 

The Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts related to exposure to wildlife fire 
hazards beyond those identified in the previously certified Final EIR for the Original Project.The Modified 
Project would be located at the same project site as the Original Project analyzed in the certified EIR. The 
Modified Project would not change the number of people present at the project site.  

  

315



Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 

 
38 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

3.9 Hydrology and Water Quality 

Hydrology and Water Quality 

 

Where was 
Impact 

Analyzed in 
the EIR? 

Do Proposed 
Changes 

Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Do New 
Circumstances 
Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Any New 
Information 
Resulting in 
New or 

Substantially 
More Severe 
Significant 
Impacts? 

Do EIR 
Mitigation 
Measures 
Address 
and/or 
Resolve 
Impacts? 

Would the project: 

a. Violate any water quality 
standards or waste discharge 
requirements? 

Draft EIR 
Pages 109‐

113 
No  No  No  Yes 

b. Substantially deplete 
groundwater supplies or 
interfere substantially with 
groundwater recharge such that 
there would be a net deficit in 
aquifer volume or a lowering or 
the local groundwater table level 
(e.g., the production rate of pre‐
existing nearby wells would drop 
to a level that would not support 
existing land uses or planned 
uses for which permits have 
been granted)? 

Initial Study 
Page 65 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

c. Substantially alter the existing 
drainage pattern of the site or 
area, including through the 
alteration of the course of a 
stream or river, in a manner that 
would result in substantial 
erosion or siltation on‐ or off‐
site? 

Initial Study 
Pages 65‐66 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

d. Substantially alter the existing 
drainage pattern of the site or 
area, including the course of a 
stream or river, or substantially 
increase the rate or amount of 
surface runoff in a manner that 
would result in flooding on‐ or 
off‐site? 

Initial Study 
Page 66 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

316



Impact Analysis  

 
Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility 39 

Hydrology and Water Quality 

 

Where was 
Impact 

Analyzed in 
the EIR? 

Do Proposed 
Changes 

Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Do New 
Circumstances 
Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Any New 
Information 
Resulting in 
New or 

Substantially 
More Severe 
Significant 
Impacts? 

Do EIR 
Mitigation 
Measures 
Address 
and/or 
Resolve 
Impacts? 

e. Create or contribute runoff 
water that would exceed the 
capacity of existing or planned 
stormwater drainage systems or 
provide substantial additional 
sources of polluted runoff? 

Draft EIR 
Pages 110‐

113 
No  No  No  Yes 

f. Otherwise substantially degrade 
water quality? 

Draft EIR 
Pages 109‐

113 
No  No  No  Yes 

g. Place housing in a 100‐year flood 
hazard area as mapped on a 
federal Flood Hazard Boundary, 
Flood Insurance Rate Map, or 
other flood hazard delineation 
map? 

Initial Study 
Pages 66‐67 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

h. Place structures in a 100‐year 
flood hazard area that would 
impede or redirect flood flows? 

Initial Study 
Pages 66‐67 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

i. Expose people or structures to a 
significant risk of loss, injury, or 
death involving flooding, 
including that occurring as a 
result of the failure of a levee or 
dam? 

Initial Study 
Pages 66‐67 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

j. Result in inundation by seiche, 
tsunami, or mudflow? 

Initial Study 
Page 67 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

a.  Would the project violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements? 

f.  Would the project otherwise substantially degrade water quality? 

The Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts related to water quality and wastewater 
discharge requirements beyond those identified in the previously certified Final EIR for the Original Project. 
Construction of the Modified Project would disturb the same approximate footprint of the project site as 

317



Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 

 
40 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

construction of the Original Project. Therefore, the area of vegetation and soil that would be disturbed during 
construction would also be the same, as would the erosion potential resulting from construction disturbance. 
Similar to the Original Project, a SWPPP would also be required for construction of the Modified Project. The 
SWPPP would include BMPs to prevent soil erosion and resultant sedimentation of streams and surface 
waters during construction. The SWPPP would also contain BMPs to prevent leaking of pollutants such as oil, 
grease, and chemicals from construction equipment from discharging to surface waters or groundwater. With 
mandatory implementation of the SWPPP and associated BMPs, construction of the Modified Project would 
not violate water quality standards or waste discharge requirements, or otherwise substantially degrade 
water quality. 

Operation of the Modified Project would include the parking and storage of buses and transit vehicles onsite, 
maintenance and repair of buses and transit vehicles, bus washing, storage of bus parts and tires, and an 
administration and operations office building. These are the same types of uses and activities included in the 
Original Project and analyzed in the certified EIR. Therefore, operation of the Modified Project would not 
result in new or additional sources of potential pollutants that could discharge to surface water or 
groundwater. However, the Modified Project would locate the bus wash facility within closer proximity to 
Sheehy Creek as compared to Original Project analyzed in the certified EIR, but still outside of the required 
setback from the creek. This could increase the potential for inadvertent discharge of bus wash wastewater 
to Sheehy Creek. As described in the certified EIR, if bus wash water were to flow out of the maintenance 
facility instead of remaining contained indoors and diverted to the sewer system, it would have the potential 
to create runoff that contains washing chemicals and pollutants. The discharge of these chemicals and 
pollutants to Sheehy Creek, or to groundwater through infiltration, would be a potential violation of water 
quality standards. 

All of the mitigation measures identified for the Original Project related to water quality and wastewater 
discharge requirements would also be required for the Modified Project. These mitigation measures include: 

 HWQ‐1 Bus Maintenance Facility Runoff Prevention 

 HWQ‐2 Design‐Level Drainage Analysis and Minimization of Runoff 

As described in the certified EIR, implementation of mitigation measure HWQ‐1 would mandate that all 
water used for bus washing and sewage during operations be recaptured and conveyed to the sanitary sewer 
system for treatment in accordance with the requirements of the Wastewater Discharge Permit. Wastewater 
would not be permitted to come into contact with stormwater runoff or areas where stormwater runoff 
could be generated during precipitation events. Implementation of mitigation measure HWQ‐2 would reduce 
the rate and amount of post‐development runoff on‐ and offsite to the maximum extent feasible and would 
minimize the potential for stormwater to come in contact with onsite pollutants or to transport pollutants 
offsite. 

With implementation or the required mitigation listed above, impacts of the Modified Project would be less 
than significant, consistent with impacts of the Original Project, as identified in the certified EIR.  

b.  Would  the  project  substantially  deplete  groundwater  supplies  or  interfere  substantially  with 
groundwater recharge such that there would be a net deficit in aquifer volume or a lowering or the 
local groundwater table level (e.g., the production rate of pre‐existing nearby wells would drop to a 
level  that  would  not  support  existing  land  uses  or  planned  uses  for  which  permits  have  been 
granted)? 

The Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts related to groundwater supplies and 
recharge beyond those identified in the previously certified Final EIR for the Original Project. The Modified 
Project would involve development of approximately 4.86 acres of the project site with impervious structures 
and parking lots, with dispersed pervious landscaping. These impervious areas would reduce the infiltration 

318



Impact Analysis  

 
Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility 41 

capacity of the project site, which could adversely affect groundwater recharge. However, the area of the 
project site that would be developed with impervious surface under the Modified Project is essentially the 
same as the 4.88‐acre area that was proposed to be developed under the Original Project. Therefore, the 
Modified Project would not increase the amount of impervious surface or resultant reduction of infiltration 
capacity of the project site compared to the Original Project. 

Similar to the Original Project analyzed in the certified EIR, the Modified Project does not include new 
groundwater wells or the use of groundwater from existing wells. The Modified Project would not use 
groundwater for its water supply, consistent with the Original Project. Thus, consistent with the findings of 
the certified EIR for the Original Project, the Modified Project would not substantially deplete groundwater 
supplies.  

c.  Would  the  project  substantially  alter  the  existing  drainage  pattern  of  the  site  or  area,  including 
through  the  alteration  of  the  course  of  a  stream  or  river,  in  a  manner  that  would  result  in 
substantial erosion or siltation on‐ or off‐site? 

d.  Would the project substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including the 
course  of  a  stream  or  river,  or  substantially  increase  the  rate  or  amount  of  surface  runoff  in  a 
manner that would result in flooding on‐ or off‐site? 

The Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts related to erosion and runoff from 
altered drainage patterns beyond those identified in the previously certified Final EIR for the Original Project. 
Similar to the Original Project, the Modified Project, which would be located in the same footprint and 
maintain the same setback from Sheehy Creek, would not alter the course of a stream or river. Construction 
of the Modified Project would require grading that removes vegetation cover and disturbs soils. Exposed and 
disturbed soils would have potential to mobilize during precipitation events and cause sedimentation in 
surface waters, specifically Sheehy Creek. Similar to the Original Project, a SWPPP would also be required for 
construction of the Modified Project. The SWPPP would include BMPs to prevent soil erosion and resultant 
sedimentation of streams and surface waters during construction. As described above, construction of the 
Modified Project would disturb the same approximate footprint on the project site as construction of the 
Original Project analyzed in the certified EIR. Therefore, construction of the Modified Project would not 
increase potential for substantial erosion compared to the Original Project.  

Consistent with the Original Project analyzed in the certified EIR, storm water runoff from impervious 
surfaces of the Modified Project, including rooftops and the parking lots, would be directed into bioretention 
systems where water would infiltrate the soil and become available for absorption by tree and plant roots. 
Eroded soils and sediment in runoff would be anticipated to settle in bioretention systems and not enter 
surface waters or cause siltation. As described above, the amount of impervious surface on and runoff from 
the project site would be effectively the same under the Modified Project and Original Project. Thus, 
operation of the Modified Project would also not increase the amount or rate runoff from the project site 
compared to the Original Project.  

e.  Would the project create or contribute runoff water that would exceed the capacity of existing or 
planned stormwater drainage systems or provide substantial additional sources of polluted runoff? 

The Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts related to substantial additional sources 
of polluted runoff beyond those identified in the previously certified Final EIR for the Original Project. As 
described above, the Modified Project would involve development within the same footprint of the project 
site with impervious surface as the Original Project analyzed in the certified EIR. The Modified Project would 
not increase the sources of polluted runoff on site compared to the Original Project because it includes the 
same uses as analyzed for the Original Project, with the exception of solar panel arrays. The solar panel arrays 
would be installed over the impervious parking lots and structures, and would not create additional 

319



Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 

 
42 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

impervious surface. Additionally, consistent with the Original Project, the Modified Project would not be 
connected to or serviced by an existing or planned stormwater drainage system, but instead would utilize 
onsite biofiltration systems. As described above, Mitigation Measure HWQ‐2 would be required for the 
Modified Project and would reduce the rate and amount of post‐development runoff on‐ and offsite to the 
maximum extent feasible and would minimize the potential for stormwater to come in contact with onsite 
pollutants or to transport pollutants offsite.  

g.  Would  the project place housing  in a 100‐year  flood hazard area as mapped on a  federal  Flood 
Hazard Boundary, Flood Insurance Rate Map, or other flood hazard delineation map? 

h.  Would the project place structures  in a 100‐year flood hazard area that would  impede or redirect 
flood flows? 

i.  Would the project expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury, or death involving 
flooding, including that occurring as a result of the failure of a levee or dam? 

j.  Would the project result in inundation by seiche, tsunami, or mudflow? 

As described in the certified EIR, the project site is not mapped as a 100‐year flood hazard zone on the 
applicable federal Flood Insurance Rate Map or other flood hazard mapping. The findings of the certified EIR 
also indicate that the project site is not subject to inundation by failure of a levee or dam, seiche, tsunami, or 
mudflow. Because the Modified Project would occur on the same project site analyzed in the certified EIR for 
the Original Project, no new or more severe impacts related to flood hazard areas or inundation would result 
beyond those identified in the previously certified Final EIR for the Original Project. 

  

320



Impact Analysis  

 
Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility 43 

3.10 Land Use and Planning 

Land Use and Planning 

 

Where was 
Impact 

Analyzed in 
the EIR? 

Do Proposed 
Changes 

Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Do New 
Circumstances 
Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Any New 
Information 
Resulting in 
New or 

Substantially 
More Severe 
Significant 
Impacts? 

Do EIR 
Mitigation 
Measures 
Address 
and/or 
Resolve 
Impacts? 

Would the project: 

a. Physically divide an established 
community? 

Initial Study 
Page 69 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

b. Conflict with any applicable land 
use plan, policy, or regulation of 
an agency with jurisdiction over 
the project (including but not 
limited to the general plan, 
specific plan, local coastal 
program, or zoning ordinance) 
adopted for the purpose of 
avoiding or mitigating an 
environmental effect? 

Draft EIR 
Pages 121‐

122 
No  No  No  N/A 

c. Conflict with an applicable 
habitat conservation plan or 
natural community conservation 
plan? 

Initial Study 
Page 70 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

a.  Would the project physically divide an established community? 

The Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts related to dividing established 
communities beyond those identified in the previously certified Final EIR. The Modified Project would be 
located at the same project site as the Original Project; the project location would be unchanged from 
analyzed in the certified EIR. As described in the certified EIR, the project site is located on existing parcels in 
an industrial subdivision. There are no established communities adjacent to the project site. The Modified 
Project does not include construction of new roads, linear infrastructure or other development features that 
would divide an established community or limit movement, travel or social interaction between established 
land uses.  

321



Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 

 
44 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

b.  Would the project conflict with any applicable land use plan, policy, or regulation of an agency with 
jurisdiction over the project (including but not limited to the general plan, specific plan, local coastal 
program, or zoning ordinance) adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental 
effect? 

The Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts related to consistency with applicable 
land uses plans, ordinances, and policies beyond those identified in the previously certified Final EIR for the 
Original Project. The findings of the certified EIR indicate that Original Project would be consistent with 
County’s land use plans and zoning code. The Modified Project would involve the same uses and activities 
included in the Original Project and analyzed in the certified EIR. Therefore, the Modified Project would also 
be consistent with the County’s land use plans and zoning code. 

As described in the certified EIR, the project site lies within Compatibility Zone D of the Napa County Airport 
Land Use Commission’s 1999 Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. Policies of the Airport Land Use 
Compatibility Plan discourage residential development in Zone D, and the allowed commercial and industrial 
land uses are suggested to limit density to 150 or fewer persons per acre. Structures should not exceed 
heights of 35 feet above ground surface in Zone D. Within Zone D, land uses which may produce hazards to 
aircraft in flight are not permitted. Specific characteristics to be avoided include: 1) glare or distracting lights 
which could be mistaken for airport lights, 2) sources of dust, steam, or smoke, which may impair pilot 
visibility, 3) sources of electrical interference with aircraft communications or navigation; and 4) any use 
which may attract large flocks of birds, especially landfills and certain agricultural uses. 

As described in the certified EIR, the Original Project would be generally consistent with the Airport Land Use 
Compatibility Plan. The Modified Project would not change the height of buildings or number of people 
present at the project site compared to the Original Project. However, as described in Section 2, Project 
Description, the Modified Project would include the installation of solar panel arrays as canopies over parking 
areas and on the rooftops of the bus maintenance facility and administration and operations office building. 
The solar panel arrays would be constructed of or coated with non‐glare and non‐reflective materials, and 
would not exceed heights of 35 feet above ground surface. Thus, the Modified Project would be consistent 
with the allowable uses in Zone D and would not create hazards associated with airport safety and flight.  

c.  Would  the  project  conflict  with  an  applicable  habitat  conservation  plan  or  natural  community 
conservation plan? 

The project site is not within a Habitat Conservation Plan or Natural Community Conservation Plan area. 
There would be no impact in this regard as a result of the Modified Project. As described in the certified EIR, 
the Original Project would also have no impact related to conflicts with an adopted plan. 

  

322



Impact Analysis  

 
Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility 45 

3.11 Mineral Resources 

Mineral Resources 

 

Where was 
Impact 

Analyzed in 
the EIR? 

Do Proposed 
Changes 

Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Do New 
Circumstances 
Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Any New 
Information 
Resulting in 
New or 

Substantially 
More Severe 
Significant 
Impacts? 

Do EIR 
Mitigation 
Measures 
Address 
and/or 
Resolve 
Impacts? 

Would the project: 

a. Result in the loss of availability of 
a known mineral resource that 
would be of value to the region 
and the residents of the state? 

Initial Study 
Page 71 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

b. Result in the loss of availability of 
a locally important mineral 
resource recovery site delineated 
on a local general plan, specific 
plan, or other land use plan? 

Initial Study 
Page 71 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

a.  Would  the project  result  in  the  loss of availability of a known mineral  resource  that would be of 
value to the region and the residents of the state? 

b.  Would the project result  in the  loss of availability of a  locally  important mineral resource recovery 
site delineated on a local general plan, specific plan, or other land use plan? 

As described in the certified EIR, the project site does not contain or lie immediately adjacent to a known 
mineral resource that would be of value to the region or the State. Therefore, consistent with the findings of 
the certified EIR for the Original Project, the Modified Project would have no impact on mineral resources of 
value or important mineral resource recovery sites.  

 

  

323



Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 

 
46 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

3.12 Noise 

Noise 

 

Where was 
Impact 

Analyzed in 
the EIR? 

Do Proposed 
Changes 

Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Do New 
Circumstances 
Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Any New 
Information 
Resulting in 
New or 

Substantially 
More Severe 
Significant 
Impacts? 

Do EIR 
Mitigation 
Measures 
Address 
and/or 
Resolve 
Impacts? 

Would the project: 

a. Exposure of persons to or 
generation of noise levels in 
excess of standards established 
in the local general plan or noise 
ordinance, or applicable 
standards of other agencies? 

Draft EIR 
Pages 135‐

140 
No  No  No  Yes 

b. Exposure of persons to or 
generation of excessive 
groundborne vibration or 
groundborne noise levels? 

Initial Study 
Pages 83‐85 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

c. A substantial permanent 
increase in ambient noise levels 
above those existing prior to 
implementation of the project? 

Draft EIR 
Pages 138‐

140 
No  No  No  N/A 

d. A substantial temporary or 
periodic increase in ambient 
noise levels in the project vicinity 
above levels existing without the 
project? 

Draft EIR 
Pages 135‐

137 
No  No  No  Yes 

e. For a project located in an 
airport land use plan or, where 
such a plan has not been 
adopted, within two miles of a 
public airport or public use 
airport, would the project 
expose people residing or 
working in the project area to 
excessive noise levels? 

Initial Study 
Page 85 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

f. For a project near a private 
airstrip, would it expose people 
residing or working in the project 
area to excessive noise? 

Initial Study 
Page 85 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

324



Impact Analysis  

 
Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility 47 

a.  Would  the  project  result  in  exposure  of  persons  to  or  generation  of  noise  levels  in  excess  of 
standards established in the local general plan or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other 
agencies? 

c.  Would  the project  result  in a substantial permanent  increase  in ambient noise  levels above  those 
existing prior to implementation of the project? 

d.  Would the project result  in a substantial temporary or periodic  increase  in ambient noise  levels  in 
the project vicinity above levels existing without the project? 

The Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts related to conflict with applicable noise 
standards and increases in ambient noise levels beyond those identified in the previously certified Final EIR 
for the Original Project. The Modified Project would involve short‐term noise impacts due to the construction 
of the bus maintenance facility, bus wash, paved parking lot, and administration and operations office 
building similar to those analyzed in the Original Project. Construction of the Modified Project would require 
the same number and types of equipment as analyzed in the certified EIR for the Original Project. No new 
sensitive noise receptors have been identified within closer proximity to the project site than the receptors 
analyzed in the certified EIR. Therefore, temporary construction noise levels would be same at the nearest 
sensitive receptors as analyzed in the certified EIR for the Original Project.  

As described in the certified EIR, construction noise levels would not exceed noise limits specified in the Napa 
County Municipal Code for the nearest residential sensitive receptors or the nearest commercial use. At the 
nearest industrial use, which is adjacent to the east of the project site, maximum construction noise from 
typical equipment would not exceed the acceptable noise limit, except for the use of a paver, which would 
exceed the noise limit when the paver is immediately adjacent to the eastern project site boundary. The 
certified EIR contains Mitigation Measure N‐1 Noise Barrier, which requires installation of either a temporary 
or permanent noise barrier on the eastern boundary of the project site, adjacent to the nearest industrial 
use. This barrier, as described in the certified EIR, would reduce construction noise to levels consistent with 
the Napa County Municipal Code. Mitigation Measure N‐1 Noise Barrier would also be required for the 
Modified Project. With implementation of mitigation, construction of the Modified Project would not exceed 
applicable noise standards or result in substantial temporary increases in ambient noise levels. 

The Modified Project would generate operational noises from idling bus engines, buses backing up, buses 
getting washed and repaired, bus and employee vehicle traffic, conversations, and noise typical of parking 
lots, such as alarms, doors slamming, and tires squealing similar to those analyzed for the Original Project in 
the certified EIR. Onsite operations would be expected to also involve noise associated with rooftop 
ventilation, heating systems, and trash hauling, which are typical of adjacent land uses. Operation of the 
Original Project would generate these same noises, which were included in the noise analysis in the certified 
EIR. Therefore, the types of operation noise generated from the Modified Project would be the same as the 
operational noise types analyzed in the certified EIR for the Original Project. However, as described in Section 
2, Project Description, the location of the bus maintenance facility and the administration and operations 
office building on the project site would be switched compared to the Original Project. This modification 
would place the bus maintenance facility either closer or farther from sensitive noise receptors and adjacent 
land uses, depending on the specific receptor or land use. Thus, the operational noise levels of the Modified 
Project may slightly differ from the operational noise levels presented for the Original Project in the certified 
EIR at sensitive receptors and adjacent land uses. Table 2 presents the operational noise levels of the 
Modified Project, the operational noise levels of the Original Project based on the certified EIR, and 
applicable noise limits established in the Napa County Noise Ordinance. 

325



Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 

 
48 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

Table 2 Operational Noise Comparison 

Receptor/Land Use 
Modified Project 
Operational Noise 

Original Project 
Operational Noise 

Napa County Noise 
Ordinance Noise Limit* 

Nearest Sensitive Residential 
Receptor 

34 dBA Leq  34 dBA Leq  45 dBA 

Spring Hill Suites Napa Valley 
(hotel) 

39 dBA Leq  38 dBA Leq  60 dBA 

Adjacent Parcels‐ Industrial 
Zoning 

70 dBA Leq  70 dBA Leq  75 dBA 

Adjacent Parcel‐ Public Lands: 
Airport Compatibility 

68 dBA Leq  70 dBA Leq  No Limit Established 

* Levels not to be exceeded more than 30 minutes in any hour 
 

As shown in Table 2, operational noise levels of the Modified Project would be generally consistent with the 
operational noise levels analyzed in the certified EIR for the Original Project, and would not exceed applicable 
noise limits and standards of the Napa County Noise Ordinance. As the table shows, operational noise of the 
Modified Project would not result in increases of more than 1 dBA compared to the Original Project. As 
described in the certified EIR, changes of 1 to 2 dBA in ambient noise levels generally are not perceived. The 
Modified Project would not increase vehicle trips or bus trips to and from the project site compared to the 
Original Project. Therefore, no additional roadway noise beyond that analyzed in the certified EIR for the 
Original Project would result from the Modified Project. Accordingly, operation of the Modified Project would 
not exceed applicable noise standards or result in substantial permanent increases in ambient noise levels. 

b.  Would the project result in exposure of persons to or generation of excessive groundborne vibration 
or groundborne noise levels? 

The Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts related to vibration beyond those 
identified in the previously certified Final EIR for the Original Project. The Modified Project would involve 
standard construction activities that are anticipated to result in some vibration that could be felt on 
properties in the immediate vicinity of the project site. Construction of the Modified Project would require 
the same number and types of equipment as analyzed in the certified EIR for the Original Project. Based on a 
review of aerial photography, no new receptors or buildings sensitive to vibration have been constructed 
within closer proximity to the project site than the receptors analyzed in the certified EIR. The Modified 
Project would not involve an increase in the number of bus trips or operational activities compared to the 
Original Project analyzed in the certified EIR.  

e.  For a project located in an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within 
two miles  of  a  public  airport  or  public  use  airport, would  the  project  expose  people  residing  or 
working in the project area to excessive noise levels? 

The Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts beyond those identified in the 
previously certified Final EIR for the Original Project. As described in the certified EIR, according to the Napa 
County Airport Land Use Commission’s 1999 Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan, air traffic noise at the 
project site is at or below 55 dBA CNEL. As described in the certified EIR, CNEL and Ldn are generally within 1 
dBA of each other. Therefore, air traffic noise at the project site may be up to 56 dBA Ldn. Napa County’s 
noise compatibility guidelines for industrial land uses, such as the project site, specify a maximum noise level 
of 75 dBA Ldn. Therefore, the Modified Project would not expose people working at the project site to 
excessive noise levels.  

326



Impact Analysis  

 
Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility 49 

f.  For a project near a private airstrip, would it expose people residing or working in the project area 
to excessive noise? 

Private airstrips in the region are located more than 8 miles from the project site. Therefore, consistent with 
the Original Project and findings of the certified EIR, the Modified Project would also have no impacts related 
to safety hazards pertaining to private airstrips. 

  

327



Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 

 
50 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

3.13 Population and Housing 

Population and Housing 

 

Where was 
Impact 

Analyzed in 
the EIR? 

Do Proposed 
Changes 

Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Do New 
Circumstances 
Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Any New 
Information 
Resulting in 
New or 

Substantially 
More Severe 
Significant 
Impacts? 

Do EIR 
Mitigation 
Measures 
Address 
and/or 
Resolve 
Impacts? 

Would the project: 

a. Induce substantial population 
growth in an area, either directly 
(e.g., by proposing new homes 
and businesses) or indirectly 
(e.g., through extension of roads 
or other infrastructure)? 

Initial Study 
Page 87 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

b. Displace substantial amounts of 
existing housing, necessitating 
the construction of replacement 
housing elsewhere? 

Initial Study 
Page 87 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

c. Displace substantial numbers of 
people, necessitating the 
construction of replacement 
housing elsewhere? 

Initial Study 
Page 87 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

a.  Would  the  project  induce  substantial  population  growth  in  an  area,  either  directly  (e.g.,  by 
proposing  new  homes  and  businesses)  or  indirectly  (e.g.,  through  extension  of  roads  or  other 
infrastructure)? 

b.  Would the project displace substantial amounts of existing housing, necessitating the construction 
of replacement housing elsewhere? 

c.  Would  the  project  displace  substantial  numbers  of  people,  necessitating  the  construction  of 
replacement housing elsewhere? 

The Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts related to population and housing 
beyond those identified in the previously certified Final EIR. Similar to the Original Project, the Modified 
Project would not directly induce population growth in Napa County because no new housing or jobs are 
proposed. The existing NVTA employees would relocate from the existing bus maintenance facility to the new 
facility. There are no residences or people residing on the project site.  

  

328



Impact Analysis  

 
Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility 51 

3.14 Public Services 

Public Services 

 

Where was 
Impact 

Analyzed in 
the EIR? 

Do Proposed 
Changes 

Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Do New 
Circumstances 
Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Any New 
Information 
Resulting in 
New or 

Substantially 
More Severe 
Significant 
Impacts? 

Do EIR 
Mitigation 
Measures 
Address 
and/or 
Resolve 
Impacts? 

Would the project: 

a. Substantial adverse physical 
impacts associated with the 
provision of new or physically 
altered governmental facilities, 
need for new or physically 
altered governmental facilities, 
the construction of which could 
cause significant environmental 
impacts, in order to maintain 
acceptable service ratios, 
response times or other 
performance objectives for any 
of the public services: 

         

1  Fire protection? 

Initial Study 
Page 89 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

2  Police protection? 

Initial Study 
Page 90 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

3  Schools? 

Initial Study 
Page 90 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

4  Parks? 

Initial Study 
Page 90 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

5  Other public facilities? 

Initial Study 
Page 90 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

329



Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 

 
52 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

a.1  Would  the project  result  in  substantial adverse physical  impacts associated with  the provision of 
new  or  physically  altered  fire  facilities,  or  the  need  for  new  or  physically  altered  governmental 
facilities,  the  construction  of  which  could  cause  significant  environmental  impacts,  in  order  to 
maintain  acceptable  service  ratios,  response  times  or  other  performance  objectives  for  fire 
protection? 

a.2.  Would  the project  result  in  substantial adverse physical  impacts associated with  the provision of 
new or physically altered Police  facilities, or  the need  for new or physically altered governmental 
facilities,  the  construction  of  which  could  cause  significant  environmental  impacts,  in  order  to 
maintain  acceptable  service  ratios,  response  times  or  other  performance  objectives  for  police 
protection? 

The Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts beyond those identified in the 
previously certified Final EIR for the Original Project. Operation of the Modified Project would include the 
parking and storage of buses and transit vehicles onsite, maintenance and repair of buses and transit 
vehicles, bus washing, storage of bus parts and tires, and an administration and operations office building. 
These are the same uses and activities included in the Original Project and analyzed in the certified EIR. 
Therefore, the Modified Project, including the relocation of the buildings, would not result in new or 
additional demand for fire or police services compared to the Original Project analyzed in the certified EIR. 
Consistent with the findings of the certified EIR for the Original Project, the Modified Project would not 
require new or expanded fire or police facilities to service the project.  

a.3.  Would  the project  result  in  substantial adverse physical  impacts associated with  the provision of 
new or physically altered school  facilities, or  the need  for new or physically altered governmental 
facilities,  the  construction  of  which  could  cause  significant  environmental  impacts,  in  order  to 
maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other performance objectives for schools? 

The Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts related to the provision of new or 
altered school facilities beyond those identified in the previously certified Final EIR for the Original Project. 
Neither the Original Project nor the Modified Project would facilitate population growth and increase the 
demand for school services. The Modified Project would not impact existing schools or school facilities.  

a.4.  Would  the project  result  in  substantial adverse physical  impacts associated with  the provision of 
new or physically altered park or  recreational  facilities, or  the need  for new or physically altered 
governmental facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental impacts, in 
order  to maintain  acceptable  service  ratios,  response  times  or  other  performance  objectives  for 
parks? 

The Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts related to the provision of new or 
altered parks and recreational facilities beyond those identified in the previously certified Final EIR for the 
Original Project. Neither the Original Project nor the Modified Project would facilitate population growth and 
increase the demand for parks or recreational facilities. The Modified Project would not impact existing parks 
or recreation facilities, and recreational facilities do not occur on the project site.  

330



Impact Analysis  

 
Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility 53 

a.5.  Would  the project  result  in  substantial adverse physical  impacts associated with  the provision of 
new or physically altered [other] governmental facilities, or the need for new or physically altered 
governmental facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental impacts, in 
order  to maintain  acceptable  service  ratios,  response  times  or  other  performance  objectives  for 
other public facilities? 

The Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts related to the provision of new or 
altered public facilities beyond those identified in the previously certified Final EIR for the Original Project. 
Neither the Original Project nor the Modified Project would facilitate population growth and increase the 
demand for other governmental public facilities, such as libraries. The Modified Project would not impact 
existing public facilities, and public facilities do not occur on the project site.  

 

  

331



Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 

 
54 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

3.15 Recreation 

Recreation 

 

Where was 
Impact 

Analyzed in 
the EIR? 

Do Proposed 
Changes 

Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Do New 
Circumstances 
Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Any New 
Information 
Resulting in 
New or 

Substantially 
More Severe 
Significant 
Impacts? 

Do EIR 
Mitigation 
Measures 
Address 
and/or 
Resolve 
Impacts? 

Would the project: 

a. Increase the use of existing 
neighborhood and regional parks 
or other recreational facilities 
such that substantial physical 
deterioration of the facility 
would occur or be accelerated? 

Initial Study 
Page 91 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

b. Does the project include 
recreational facilities or require 
the construction or expansion of 
recreational facilities which 
might have an adverse physical 
effect on the environment? 

Initial Study 
Page 91 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

a.  Would  the  project  increase  the  use  of  existing  neighborhood  and  regional  parks  or  other 
recreational  facilities such  that substantial physical deterioration of  the  facility would occur or be 
accelerated? 

b.  Does  the  project  include  recreational  facilities  or  require  the  construction  or  expansion  of 
recreational facilities which might have an adverse physical effect on the environment? 

The Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts related to recreation beyond those 
identified in the previously certified Final EIR for the Original Project. Similar to the Original Project, the 
Modified Project does not include housing and would not induce substantial population growth in Napa 
County because no new housing or jobs are proposed. Therefore, the Modified Project would not increase 
the use of parks or recreational facilities. There are no parks or recreational facilities onsite that would be 
impacted by the Modified Project, and the Modified Project does not involve new recreational facilities.  

 

  

332



Impact Analysis  

 
Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility 55 

3.16 Transportation/Traffic 

Transportation/Traffic 

 

Where was 
Impact 

Analyzed in 
the EIR? 

Do Proposed 
Changes 

Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Do New 
Circumstances 
Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Any New 
Information 
Resulting in 
New or 

Substantially 
More Severe 
Significant 
Impacts? 

Do EIR 
Mitigation 
Measures 
Address 
and/or 
Resolve 
Impacts? 

Would the project: 

a. Cause an increase in traffic which 
is substantial in relation to the 
existing traffic load and capacity 
of the street system and/or 
conflict with General Plan Policy 
CIR‐16, which seeks to maintain 
an adequate Level of Service 
(LOS) at signalized and 
unsignalized intersections, or 
reduce the effectiveness of 
existing transit services or 
pedestrian/bicycle facilities? 

Draft EIR 
Pages 150‐

153 
No  No  No  N/A 

b. Conflict with an applicable 
congestion management 
program, including, but not 
limited to level of service 
standards and travel demand 
measures, or other standards 
established by the Napa County 
Transportation and Planning 
Agency for designated roads or 
highways? 

Draft EIR 
Pages 150‐

153 
No  No  No  N/A 

c. Result in a change in air traffic 
patterns, including either an 
increase in traffic levels or a 
change in location that results in 
substantial safety risks? 

Initial Study 
Page 94 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

d. Substantially increase hazards 
due to a design feature, (e.g., 
sharp curves or dangerous 
intersections) or incompatible 
uses (e.g., farm equipment)? 

Initial Study 
Page 94 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

333



Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 

 
56 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

Transportation/Traffic 

 

Where was 
Impact 

Analyzed in 
the EIR? 

Do Proposed 
Changes 

Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Do New 
Circumstances 
Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Any New 
Information 
Resulting in 
New or 

Substantially 
More Severe 
Significant 
Impacts? 

Do EIR 
Mitigation 
Measures 
Address 
and/or 
Resolve 
Impacts? 

e. Result in inadequate emergency 
access? 

Initial Study 
Pages 94‐95 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

f. Conflict with General Plan Policy 
CIR‐23, which requires new uses 
to meet their anticipated parking 
demand, but to avoid providing 
excess parking which could 
stimulate unnecessary vehicle 
trips or activity exceeding the 
site’s capacity? 

Initial Study 
Page 95 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

g. Conflict with adopted policies, 
plans, or programs regarding 
public transit, bicycle, or 
pedestrian facilities, or otherwise 
decrease the performance or 
safety of such facilities? 

Initial Study 
Page 95 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

a.  Would the project cause an increase in traffic which  is substantial in relation to the existing traffic 
load and capacity of the street system and/or conflict with General Plan Policy CIR‐16, which seeks 
to maintain  an  adequate  Level  of  Service  (LOS)  at  signalized  and  unsignalized  intersections,  or 
reduce the effectiveness of existing transit services or pedestrian/bicycle facilities? 

b.  Would the project conflict with an applicable congestion management program, including, but not 
limited to level of service standards and travel demand measures, or other standards established by 
the Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency for designated roads or highways? 

The certified EIR findings indicate that traffic generated from the Original Project would not conflict with 
applicable level of service (LOS) standards for intersections. The certified EIR findings also state that the 
Original Project would not substantially increase traffic in relation to the existing traffic load and capacity of 
the street system. The Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts related to conflicts 
with applicable LOS standards or street capacity beyond those identified in the previously certified Final EIR 
for the Original Project. 

The Modified Project would not increase operational workforce or change operational hours compared to 
the Original Project. The certified Final EIR evaluated trips from 93 buses, which is the total number of buses 
that would have been accommodated at the bus maintenance facility under the Original Project. However, 
since certification of the Final EIR in January 2018, NVTA has decided to eliminate articulated buses from its 

334



Impact Analysis  

 
Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility 57 

Vine fleet to allow more space for maneuverability and other maintenance and operational activities at the 
project site. The Modified Project would accommodate 79 buses, which is 14 fewer buses than was analyzed 
for the Original Project in the certified Final EIR. Because the workforce size would be the same as analyzed 
for the Original Project, but fewer bus trips would occur, the Modified Project would generate similar to 
slightly less vehicle trips than the Original Project analyzed in the certified EIR. Because operational hours 
would not change compared to the Original Project, no new additional trips during AM or PM peak hour 
would occur.  

c.  Would  the project  result  in a change  in air  traffic patterns,  including either an  increase  in  traffic 
levels or a change in location that results in substantial safety risks? 

The Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts related to safety risks pertaining to air 
traffic patterns beyond those identified in the previously certified Final EIR for the Original Project. The 
Modified Project would not result in a change in air traffic patterns. The Modified Project would include the 
installation of solar panel arrays. However, as described above, the solar panels would be constructed of or 
coated with non‐glare and non‐reflective materials to avoid potential light and glare impacts or interferences 
with airport and aircraft operations. Additionally, solar panels arrays installed over parking areas would not 
exceed heights of 20 feet above ground surface. Building heights, including rooftop solar panel arrays, would 
not exceed heights of 35 feet above ground surface to avoid interference with aircraft.  

d.  Would  the  project  substantially  increase  hazards  due  to  a  design  feature,  (e.g.,  sharp  curves  or 
dangerous intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g., farm equipment)? 

The Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts related to traffic hazards beyond those 
identified in the previously certified Final EIR for the Original Project. The Modified Project would modify the 
driveway entrances to the project site compared to the driveway entrances analyzed in the certified EIR for 
the Original Project. However, the driveway entrances would keep passenger vehicle cars separate from Vine 
fleet buses and vehicles, consistent with the analysis of the Original Project in the certified EIR. The Modified 
Project would not involve uses, such as farm equipment, that were not previously analyzed for the Original 
Project in the certified EIR.  

e.  Would the project result in inadequate emergency access? 

The Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts related to inadequate emergency access 
beyond those identified in the previously certified Final EIR for the Original Project. Similar to the Original 
Project analyzed in the certified EIR, the Modified Project would not change or alter access roads or 
otherwise obstruct access to the site or other properties. Proposed new driveways would be designed to 
accommodate large buses as well as emergency vehicles, consistent with the Original Project.  

f.  Would the project conflict with General Plan Policy CIR‐23, which requires new uses to meet their 
anticipated  parking  demand,  but  to  avoid  providing  excess  parking  which  could  stimulate 
unnecessary vehicle trips or activity exceeding the site’s capacity? 

The Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts beyond those identified in the 
previously certified Final EIR for the Original Project. As shown in Table 1 in Section 2, Project 
Description, the Modified Project would increase the number of parking spaces by four spaces compared 
to the Original Project analyzed in the certified EIR. The addition of four parking spaces would be a 
negligible increase.  

335



Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 

 
58 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

g.  Would  the  project  conflict  with  adopted  policies,  plans,  or  programs  regarding  public  transit, 
bicycle, or pedestrian facilities, or otherwise decrease the performance or safety of such facilities? 

The Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts beyond those identified in the 
previously certified Final EIR for the Original Project. The Modified Project would not include uses or 
activities that were not previously analyzed in the certified EIR for the Original Project, with the 
exception of solar panel arrays. The addition of solar panel arrays would not impact transit, bicycle, or 
pedestrian facilities.  

  

336



Impact Analysis  

 
Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility 59 

3.17 Utilities and Service Systems 

Utilities and Service Systems 

 

Where was 
Impact 

Analyzed in 
the EIR? 

Do Proposed 
Changes 

Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Do New 
Circumstances 
Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Any New 
Information 
Resulting in 
New or 

Substantially 
More Severe 
Significant 
Impacts? 

Do EIR 
Mitigation 
Measures 
Address 
and/or 
Resolve 
Impacts? 

Would the project: 

a. Exceed wastewater treatment 
requirements of the applicable 
Regional Water Quality Control 
Board? 

Initial Study 
Page 98 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

b. Require or result in the 
construction of a new water or 
wastewater treatment facilities 
or expansion of existing facilities, 
the construction of which could 
cause significant environmental 
effects? 

Initial Study 
Page 98 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

c. Require or result in the 
construction of a new storm 
water drainage facilities or 
expansion of existing facilities, 
the construction of which could 
cause significant environmental 
effects? 

Initial Study 
Page 98 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

d. Have sufficient water supplies 
available to serve the project 
from existing entitlements and 
resources, or are new or 
expanded entitlements needed? 

Initial Study 
Pages 99‐
100 (Draft 

EIR Appendix 
A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

e. Result in a determination by the 
wastewater treatment provider 
which serves or may serve the 
project that it has adequate 
capacity to serve the project’s 
projected demand in addition to 
the provider’s existing 
commitments? 

Initial Study 
Page 98 
(Draft EIR 

Appendix A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

337



Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 

 
60 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

Utilities and Service Systems 

 

Where was 
Impact 

Analyzed in 
the EIR? 

Do Proposed 
Changes 

Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Do New 
Circumstances 
Require Major 
Revisions to 
the EIR? 

Any New 
Information 
Resulting in 
New or 

Substantially 
More Severe 
Significant 
Impacts? 

Do EIR 
Mitigation 
Measures 
Address 
and/or 
Resolve 
Impacts? 

f. Be served by a landfill with 
sufficient permitted capacity to 
accommodate the project’s solid 
waste disposal needs? 

Initial Study 
Pages 100‐
101 (Draft 

EIR Appendix 
A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

g. Comply with federal, state, and 
local statutes and regulations 
related to solid waste? 

Initial Study 
Pages 100‐
101 (Draft 

EIR Appendix 
A) 

No  No  No  N/A 

a.  Would  the project  exceed wastewater  treatment  requirements of  the  applicable Regional Water 
Quality Control Board? 

The Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts beyond those identified in the 
previously certified Final EIR for the Original Project. The San Francisco Bay RWQCB in connection with the 
implementation of the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) program imposes 
requirements on the treatment of wastewater and its discharge into local water bodies. Similar to the 
Original Project analyzed in the certified EIR, wastewater generated by the Modified Project would be 
conveyed to the Soscol Water Recycling Facility (SCRF), which is owned and operated by the Napa Sanitation 
District (NSD). The SCRF is operated pursuant to the NPDES program and permits issued by the San Francisco 
Bay RWQCB. Therefore, because wastewater generated by the Modified Project would be treated at the 
SCRF, wastewater treatment requirements of the San Francisco Bay RWQCB would not be exceeded.  

b.  Would  the project  require or  result  in  the  construction of a new water or wastewater  treatment 
facilities  or  expansion  of  existing  facilities,  the  construction  of  which  could  cause  significant 
environmental effects? 

e.  Would the project result in a determination by the wastewater treatment provider which serves or 
may  serve  the  project  that  it  has  adequate  capacity  to  serve  the  project’s  projected  demand  in 
addition to the provider’s existing commitments? 

The Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts related to wastewater treatment 
capacity beyond those identified in the previously certified Final EIR for the Original Project. As 
described in the certified EIR for the Original Project, per personal correspondence with Andrew 
Damron, Technical Services Director with NSD, the sanitary sewer collection system and SCRF have 
adequate capacity to serve the Original Project. The Modified Project would generate similar volumes of 
wastewater as the Original Project analyzed in the certified EIR because no new or additional uses would 
occur on site, other than solar panel arrays. Solar panel arrays would not generate wastewater.  

338



Impact Analysis  

 
Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility 61 

c.  Would the project require or result  in the construction of a new storm water drainage facilities or 
expansion  of  existing  facilities,  the  construction  of which  could  cause  significant  environmental 
effects? 

The Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts related to storm water drainage 
facilities beyond those identified in the previously certified Final EIR for the Original Project. Consistent with 
the Original Project analyzed in the certified EIR, storm water runoff from impervious surfaces of the 
Modified Project, including rooftops and the parking lots, would be directed into onsite bioretention systems 
where water would infiltrate the soil and become available for absorption by tree and plant roots. As 
described in Section 3.9, Hydrology and Water Quality, the amount of impervious surface on and runoff from 
the project site would be effectively the same under the Modified Project and Original Project. Thus, 
operation of the Modified Project would not increase the amount or rate runoff from the project site 
compared to the Original Project.  

d.  Would  the  project  have  sufficient  water  supplies  available  to  serve  the  project  from  existing 
entitlements and resources, or are new or expanded entitlements needed? 

The Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts related to water supplies beyond those 
identified in the previously certified Final EIR for the Original Project. The Modified Project would require 
periodic washing for maintenance of the solar panel arrays. This water use was not evaluated in the certified 
EIR because the Original Project did not include installation of solar panel arrays. However, periodic washing 
would not be frequent enough, nor would there be enough panel arrays for there to be a substantial increase 
in water demand compared to the Original Project analyzed in the certified EIR.  

f.  Would  the project be  served by a  landfill with  sufficient permitted capacity  to accommodate  the 
project’s solid waste disposal needs? 

g.  Would  the project  comply with  federal,  state, and  local  statutes and  regulations  related  to  solid 
waste? 

The Modified Project would not generate additional solid waste compared to the Original Project analyzed in 
the certified EIR. Therefore, the Modified Project would result in no new or more severe impacts related to 
landfill capacity or regulations pertaining to solid waste beyond those identified in the previously certified 
Final EIR for the Original Project. 

  

339



Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 

 
62 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

3.18 Cumulative Impacts 
As described above in Sections 3.1 through 3.17, the Modified Project would result in no new or more severe 
direct or indirect impacts beyond those identified in the previously certified Final EIR for the Original Project. 
Therefore, the cumulative contribution of the Modified Project impacts would be the same as or less than 
analyzed in the certified EIR for the Original Project. No new reasonably foreseeable future projects have 
been identified within proximity to the project site that were not previously considered in the cumulative 
impacts analysis in the certified EIR. Therefore, no new or more severe cumulative impacts would result from 
the Modified Project beyond those identified in the certified EIR. 

 

340



Impact Analysis  

 
Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility 63 

 

This page left intentionally blank. 

 

 

341



Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 

 
64 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

4 Other CEQA Required Discussions 
The Modified Project would not substantially change the discussion and findings presented for the Original 
Project in Section 5, Other CEQA Required Discussions, of the certified EIR. These other required discussions 
include significant and unavoidable impacts, growth inducing effects, irreversible environmental effects, and 
energy effects. As described above in Sections 3.1 through 3.18, the Modified Project would result in no new 
or more severe direct, indirect, or cumulative impacts beyond those identified in the previously certified Final 
EIR for the Original Project. Therefore, the Modified Project would also result in no new or more severe 
significant and unavoidable impacts, growth inducing effects, irreversible environmental effects, or energy 
effects beyond those previously discussed in the certified EIR. However, the Modified Project could result in 
reduced energy effects compared to the Original Project because the Modified Project would include 
installation of solar panel arrays as a renewable energy source.  

 

342



Other CEQA Required Discussions  

 
Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility 65 

 

This page left intentionally blank. 

 

343



Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 

 
66 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

5 Comparison of Alternatives 
The Modified Project would not significantly change the alternatives analysis and comparison of alternatives 
in the certified Final EIR. As described in Section 3, Impact Analysis, of this Addendum, the Modified Project 
would result in no new or more severe impacts beyond those identified in the previously certified Final EIR 
for the Original Project. Therefore, the potential impacts of the Modified Project are within the scope of the 
impact comparison among the alternatives already considered in the certified Final EIR. As no new or more 
severe impacts have been identified as a result of the Modified Project, the Modified Project would not 
require comparison of any new alternatives or alternatives which are considerably different from or 
inconsistent with those already analyzed in the certified Final EIR. These alternatives include: Alternative 1‐ 
No Project Alternative; and Alternative 2‐ Reduced Development Alternative. Therefore, no additional 
alternatives or further comparison of alternatives is required. 

 

344



Comparison of Alternatives  

 
Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility 67 

 

This page left intentionally blank. 

 

345



Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 

 
68 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

6 Conclusion 
As established in the discussions above regarding the potential effects of the Modified Project, substantial 
changes are not proposed to the Original Project nor have substantial changes occurred that would require 
major revisions to the certified Final EIR prepared for the Original Project. Impacts beyond those identified 
and analyzed in the certified Final EIR would not be expected to occur as a result of the Modified Project. 
Overall, the proposed modifications to the Original Project that constitute the Modified Project would result 
in no new information of substantial importance that would have new, more severe impacts, new mitigation 
measures, or new or revised alternatives from what was identified for the Original Project in the certified 
Final EIR. Therefore, NVTA concludes that the analyses conducted and the conclusions reached in the Final 
EIR certified on January 17, 2018, remain valid. As such, the proposed project would not result in conditions 
identified in State CEQA Guidelines Section 15162, and supplemental environmental review or a Subsequent 
EIR is not required for the proposed project modifications. Again, it should be noted that the Modified 
Project would be subject to all previously required mitigation measures from the certified Final EIR for the 
Original Project. The MMRP adopted for the Original Project on January 17, 2018, would be applicable to the 
Modified Project. Based on the above analysis, this Addendum to the previously certified EIR for the project 
has been prepared in accordance with Section 15164 of the State CEQA Guidelines. 

 

346



Conclusion  

 
Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility 69 

 

This page left intentionally blank. 

 

 

347



Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 

 
70 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

7 References 
California Department of Conservation. 2016. California Important Farmland Finder. Retrieved on March 12, 

2018, from https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/dlrp/ciff/ 

California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW). 2018. California Natural Diversity Database. Retrieved on 
March 7, 2018, from http://www.dfg.ca.gov/biogeodata/cnddb/ 

California Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC). 2018a. EnviroStor Database [online database]. 
Retrieved on March 7, 2018, from 
http://envirostor.dtsc.ca.gov/public/map/?myaddress=Sheehy+Court%2C+Napa%2C+CA%2C+USA 

_____. 2018b. Hazardous Waste and Substances Site List (Cortese) [online database]. Retrieved on March 7, 
2018, from 
http://www.envirostor.dtsc.ca.gov/public/search?cmd=search&reporttype=CORTESE&site_type=CSITE
S,OPEN,FUDS,CLOSE&status=ACT,BKLG,COM,COLUR&reporttitle=HAZARDOUS+WASTE+AND+SUBSTAN
CES+SITE+LIST+(CORTESE) 

California Department of Transportation (Caltrans). 2011. California Scenic Highway Mapping System: El 
Dorado County. Retrieved on March 12, 2018, from 
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LandArch/16_livability/scenic_highways/index.htm 

Napa County Airport Land Use Commission. 1999. Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. Adopted 1991. Last 
revised December 15, 1999. 

State Water Resources Control Board. 2015. GeoTracker [online database]. Retrieved on March 7, 2018, from 
https://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/map/?CMD=runreport&myaddress=Sheehy+Court%2C+Napa%
2C+CA%2C+USA 

United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA). 2018a. Superfund: Search Superfund Site 
Information. Retrieved on March 7, 2018, from 
https://cumulis.epa.gov/supercpad/CurSites/srchrslt.cfm?start=1 

_____. 2018b. System Data Searches: SEMS. Retrieved on March 7, 2018, from 
https://iaspub.epa.gov/enviro/efsystemquery.sems?fac_search=primary_name&fac_value=&fac_searc
h_type=Beginning&postal_code=&location_address=Sheehy+Court&add_search_type=Beginning2&cit
y_name=&county_name=Napa&state_code=California&program_search=multi&report=basic&page_n
o=1&output_sql_switch=TRUE&database_type=SEMS 

United States Fish and Wildlife Service. 2018. Information for Planning and Consultation [online database]. 
Retrieved on March 14, 2018, from https://ecos.fws.gov/ipac/ 

348



Title 14. California Code of Regulations
Chapter 3. Guidelines for Implementation of the 

California Environmental Quality Act

Article 11. Types of EIRs

Sections 15160 to 15170

15160. General

This article describes a number of examples of variations in EIRs as the documents are tailored to 
different situations and intended uses. These variations are not exclusive. Lead Agencies may use 
other variations consistent with the Guidelines to meet the needs of other circumstances. All EIRs 
must meet the content requirements discussed in Article 9 beginning with Section 15120.

Note: Authority cited: Section 21083, Public Resources Code; Reference: Sections 21061, 21100, and 
21151, Public Resources Code.

15161. Project EIR

The most common type of EIR examines the environmental impacts of a specific development project. 
This type of EIR should focus primarily on the changes in the environment that would result from the 
development project. The EIR shall examine all phases of the project including planning, construction, 
and operation. 

Note: Authority cited: Section 21083, Public Resources Code; Reference: Sections 21061, 21100, and 
21151, Public Resources Code.

15162. Subsequent EIRs and Negative Declarations

(a) When an EIR has been certified or a negative declaration adopted for a project, no subsequent EIR
shall be prepared for that project unless the lead agency determines, on the basis of substantial
evidence in the light of the whole record, one or more of the following:

(1) Substantial changes are proposed in the project which will require major revisions of the previous
EIR or negative declaration due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a
substantial increase in the severity of previously identified significant effects;

(2) Substantial changes occur with respect to the circumstances under which the project is undertaken
which will require major revisions of the previous EIR or Negative Declaration due to the
involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of
previously identified significant effects; or

(3) New information of substantial importance, which was not known and could not have been known
with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the previous EIR was certified as complete or the
Negative Declaration was adopted, shows any of the following:

Page 1 of 8Title 14

4/3/2018http://resources.ca.gov/ceqa/guidelines/art11.html

ATTACHMENT 3
NVTA Agenda Item 11.2

April 18, 2018

349



(A) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the previous EIR or negative 
declaration;

(B) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than shown in the 
previous EIR;

(C) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in fact be feasible, 
and would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the project, but the project 
proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative; or

(D) Mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably different from those analyzed in the 
previous EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the environment, but the 
project proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative.

(b) If changes to a project or its circumstances occur or new information becomes available after 
adoption of a negative declaration, the lead agency shall prepare a subsequent EIR if required under 
subdivision (a). Otherwise the lead agency shall determine whether to prepare a subsequent negative 
declaration, an addendum, or no further documentation.

(c) Once a project has been approved, the lead agency's role in project approval is completed, unless 
further discretionary approval on that project is required. Information appearing after an approval does 
not require reopening of that approval. If after the project is approved, any of the conditions described 
in subdivision (a) occurs, a subsequent EIR or negative declaration shall only be prepared by the 
public agency which grants the next discretionary approval for the project, if any. In this situation no 
other responsible agency shall grant an approval for the project until the subsequent EIR has been 
certified or subsequent negative declaration adopted.

(d) A subsequent EIR or subsequent negative declaration shall be given the same notice and public 
review as required under Section 15087 or Section 15072. A subsequent EIR or negative declaration 
shall state where the previous document is available and can be reviewed. 

Note: Authority cited: Public Resources Code Section 21083; Reference: Section 21166, Public 
Resources Code; Bowman v. City of Petaluma (1986) 185 Cal.App.3d 1065; Benton v. Board of 
Supervisors (1991) 226 Cal.App.3d 1467; and Fort Mojave Indian Tribe v. California Department of 
Health Services et al. (1995) 38 Cal.App.4th 1574.

Discussion:This section implements the requirements in Section 21166 of CEQA which limit 
preparation of a subsequent EIR to certain situations. This section provides interpretation of the three 
situations in which the statute requires preparation of a subsequent EIR. These interpretations are 
necessary to add certainty to the process.

This section also clarifies that a subsequent EIR may be prepared where a negative declaration had 
previously been adopted. Further, a subsequent negative declaration may be adopted where none of 
the situations described in subsection (a) have occurred.

Subsections (b) and (c) explain which agency would have responsibility for preparing a subsequent 
EIR under different circumstances. A subsequent EIR must, of course, receive the same circulation 
and review as the previous EIR.

Fund for Environmental Defense v. Orange (1988) 204 Cal. App. 3d 1538, contains a discussion of 
the application of §15162 and §15163. The Court in Bowman v. Petaluma (1986) 185 Cal. App. 3d 
1065 distinguished requirements for a subsequent EIR from the threshold required for initial EIR 
preparation, saying "whereas §15064 (§21151 PRC) requires an EIR if the initial project may have a 
significant effect on the environment, §15162 (§21166 PRC) indicates a quite different intent, namely, 
to restrict the powers of agencies by prohibiting them from requiring a subsequent or supplemental 
EIR unless "substantial changes" in the project or its circumstances will require major revisions to the 
EIR. §15162 (§21166 PRC) comes into play precisely because in-depth review has already occurred, 
the time for challenging the sufficiency of the original EIR has long since expired, and the question is 
whether circumstances have changed enough to justify repeating a substantial portion of the process.

Page 2 of 8Title 14

4/3/2018http://resources.ca.gov/ceqa/guidelines/art11.html
350



15163. Supplement to an EIR

(a) The Lead or Responsible Agency may choose to prepare a supplement to an EIR rather than a 
subsequent EIR if:

(1) Any of the conditions described in Section 15162 would require the preparation of a subsequent 
EIR, and

(2) Only minor additions or changes would be necessary to make the previous EIR adequately apply to 
the project in the changed situation.

(b) The supplement to the EIR need contain only the information necessary to make the previous EIR 
adequate for the project as revised.

(c) A supplement to an EIR shall be given the same kind of notice and public review as is given to a 
draft EIR under Section 15087.

(d) A supplement to an EIR may be circulated by itself without recirculating the previous draft or final 
EIR.

(e) When the agency decides whether to approve the project, the decision-making body shall consider 
the previous EIR as revised by the supplemental EIR. A finding under Section 15091 shall be made 
for each significant effect shown in the previous EIR as revised.

Note: Authority cited: Section 21083, Public Resources Code; Reference: Section 21166, Public 
Resources Code.

Discussion: This section provides a short-form method where only minor additions or changes would 
be necessary in the previous EIR to make that EIR apply in the changed situation. The section also 
provides essential interpretations of how to handle public notice, public review, and circulation of the 
supplement.

A supplement to an EIR may be distinguished from a subsequent EIR by the following: a supplement 
augments a previously certified EIR to the extent necessary to address the conditions described in 
section 15162 and to examine mitigation and project alternatives accordingly. It is intended to revise 
the previous EIR through supplementation. A subsequent EIR, in contrast, is a complete EIR which 
focuses on the conditions described in section 15162. 

15164. Addendum to an EIR or Negative Declaration

(a) The lead agency or responsible agency shall prepare an addendum to a previously certified EIR if 
some changes or additions are necessary but none of the conditions described in Section 15162 calling 
for preparation of a subsequent EIR have occurred.

(b) An addendum to an adopted negative declaration may be prepared if only minor technical changes 
or additions are necessary or none of the conditions described in Section 15162 calling for the 
preparation of a subsequent EIR or negative declaration have occurred.

(c) An addendum need not be circulated for public review but can be included in or attached to the 
final EIR or adopted negative declaration.

(d) The decision making body shall consider the addendum with the final EIR or adopted negative 
declaration prior to making a decision on the project.

Page 3 of 8Title 14

4/3/2018http://resources.ca.gov/ceqa/guidelines/art11.html
351



RESOLUTION No. 18-12 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE 
NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (NVTA) 

APPROVING THE MODIFIED PROJECT FOR THE 
VINE TRANSIT BUS MAINTENANCE FACILITY 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) is designated the 
countywide transportation planning agency responsible for Highway, Street and Road,  
transit, bicycle, and pedestrian planning and programming within Napa County; and 

 
WHEREAS, the NVTA completed a Bus Maintenance Facility feasibility study 

which was received by the board on December 12, 2013 evaluating transit service 
demands and facility requirements over a 25 year time horizon; and 

 
WHEREAS, the NVTA Board of Directors (Board) certified the Environmental 

Impact Report (SCH #2017052029) ("EIR") for the Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility 
Project (“Project”) as being in compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act 
("CEQA") and the State CEQA Guidelines on January 17, 2018; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Original Project site layout was modified as the design process  
Progressed.  The revised project (“Modified Project”) was analyzed for potential 
environmental impacts; and 
 

WHEREAS, an Addendum to the certified EIR was prepared and approved by the 
Board on April 18, 2018. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that in accordance with the provisions of 

the California Environmental Quality Act and state law, the Board of the Napa Valley 
Transportation Authority makes the following findings and takes the following actions: 
 

1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct. 
 

2. The Final Environmental Impact Report (Final EIR) for the Project, attached as 
Exhibit “A” and the Addendum to the Final EIR, attached as Exhibit “B”  have 
been completed in accordance with the requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act, Public Resources Code sections 21000 et seq. 
(“CEQA”) and California Code of Regulations, Title 14, sections 15000 et seq. 
(“CEQA Guidelines”).  

 
3. The Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility is consistent with the Bus 

Maintenance feasibility study to meet the future needs of NVTA and the NVTA 
Board hereby approves the Modified Project. 

 
  

ATTACHMENT 4 
NVTA Agenda Item 11.2 

April 18, 2018  

352



 
Resolution No. 18-12 

Page 2 of 5 
 

 
 
THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED by 

the Board of Directors of the Napa Valley Transportation Authority, at a regular meeting 
held on April 18, 2018, by the following vote: 
 
 
_______________________       Ayes: 
Peter G. White, NVTA Chair 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                 Nays: 
 
 
 
                 Absent: 
 
 
 
ATTEST:  
 
____________________________________ 
Karalyn E. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary 
 
 
 
APPROVED:  
 
_________________________________ 
Vicki A. Clayton, NVTA General Counsel 
  

353



 
Resolution No. 18-12 

Page 3 of 5 
 

 
 
CERTIFICATIONS 
 
I hereby certify that I am the Secretary of the Napa Valley Transportation Authority and 
custodian of the records for that Authority and that this Resolution is a true and correct 
copy of the original on file in the Authority office. 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Karalyn E. Sanderlin, NVTA Authority Secretary 
 
 
  

354



 
Resolution No. 18-12 

Page 4 of 5 
 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

 
 
Due to file size constraints the Final Environmental Impact Report (EIR) is available for 
review at the NVTA Offices, 625 Burnell Street, Napa CA or by clicking on the following 
link:  
 
http://www.nvta.ca.gov/vine-transit-maintenance-facility 
  

355

http://www.nvta.ca.gov/vine-transit-maintenance-facility


Resolution No. 18-12 
Page 5 of 5 

EXHIBIT “B” 

Addendum to the Environmental Impact Report 

356



April 18, 2018 
NVTA Agenda Item 11.3 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Antonio Onorato, Director of Administration, Finance and Policy 

(707) 259-8779 / Email: aonorato@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Amendment No. 11 to the Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
(NVTA) Joint Powers Authority 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board: Receive the proposed 
revisions to the NVTA Joint Power Agreement (JPA) (Attachment 1) and Direct staff to 
circulate to its member jurisdictions for approval by their respective councils and board.  

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

None 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

NVTA is exploring the use of alternative financing mechanisms to fund large capital 
projects such as the Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility.  The agency’s Joint Powers 
Agreement allows NVTA “to incur debts, liabilities and obligations”, but is silent on 
financial solvency matters.  The recommended modifications in Attachment 1 are 
necessary to satisfy conditions of financing from financial institutions to underwrite debt 
obligations and receive proceeds.  

PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 

1. Staff Report
2. Public Comments
3. Motion, Second, Discussion and Vote

357

mailto:aonorato@nvta.ca.gov


NVTA Agenda Letter                           Wednesday, April 18, 2018 
Agenda Item 11.3 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a fiscal impact?  Not for this action.  The modified language will satisfy 
requirements from financial institutions to underwrite debt commitments. 
  
Consequences if not approved:  NVTA would need to defer, delay, or cancel large projects 
if financing options are restricted. 
 
CEQA REQUIREMENTS 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: The proposed action is not a project as defined 
by 14 California Code of Regulations 15378 (California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines) and therefore CEQA is not applicable.  
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
As NVTA administers and oversees the delivery of large capital projects, the need to 
assemble funds from sources other than grants has compelled the agency staff to seek 
alternatives from banking institutions.  The agency has been in consultation with the 
California State Infrastructure Bank (IBank) to borrow funds to construct the Vine Transit 
Bus Maintenance Facility.  A review of NVTA’s JPA by the IBank’s attorney’s raised 
several questions regarding the financial solvency and assumption of debt if a member 
withdrew from the JPA or if the agency disbanded altogether.   
 
Although “Section 5. Powers” of NVTA’s joint powers agreement provides a general 
framework of the agency’s approved powers which allows for the issuance of debt and 
other financial obligations, it does not address how financial obligations are assumed if 
the agency ceased to exist.  NVTA’s attorney has drafted language in the JPA that 
mandates all member agencies remain in the JPA throughout a project’s financing term.  
The language alleviates the IBank’s concerns about the membership termination 
provisions in the NVTA JPA.  Clarification language has been added to “Recitals” (page 
1); “Terms” (page 2); Section 11; and Section 12.  A few non-substantive changes to 
correct the JPA are also being proposed. 
 
It should be noted that other financial institutions have the same requirements for 
underwriting financing instruments such as loans, bond issuances, State Transportation 
Improvement Program (STIP) advances, or other types of indebtedness where the lead 
agency assumes the financial risk of the obligation. 
 
IBank underscored that the additional language does not create a financial burden upon 
a member agency, but merely ensures that the JPA would exist through the financing 
term of a project.  Further, Section 8.5.1 states “…the debts, liabilities, and obligations of 
NVTA shall be solely the obligation of NVTA and not the debts, liabilities, and obligations 
of the Member Jurisdictions…” 
 

358



NVTA Agenda Letter                           Wednesday, April 18, 2018 
Agenda Item 11.3 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 
NVTA staff vetted the draft agreement with the City Managers and the County Executive 
Officer and there were no proposed changes to the recommended language. 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachment: (1) Proposed Amendment 11 to Joint Powers Agreement for the Napa 
       Valley Transportation Authority 

359



JPA- Amendment No. 110  1 

AMENDMENT NO. 1011 
TO THE JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT 

FOR THE 
NAPA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AND PLANNING AGENCYVALLEY 

TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
 

(ALSO KNOWN AS NAPA COUNTY AGREEMENT NO. 3061; CITY OF NAPA 
AGREEMENT NO. 6147;  CITY OF AMERICAN CANYON RESOLUTION NO. 92-
33/AGREEMENT NO. 95-15;  TOWN OF YOUNTVILLE RESOLUTION. NO. 868; 

CITY OF ST. HELENA RESOLUTION NO. 91-32;  CITY OF CALISTOGA 
RESOLUTION NO. 91-19) 

 
 

 THIS AMENDMENT NO. 10 11 TO THE JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT OF THE 
NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITYCOUNTY TRANSPORTATION AND 
PLANNING AGENCY (the “Agreement”) is entered into as of the effective date 
determined under (4), below, by and between the COUNTY OF NAPA, CITY OF 
AMERICAN CANYON, CITY OF NAPA, TOWN OF YOUNTVILLE, CITY OF ST. 
HELENA, and CITY OF CALISTOGA (“Member Jurisdictions”); 
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, the Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency (the 
“NCTPA”)Valley Transportation Authority (“NVTA”) is a joint powers agency created by 
the Member Jurisdictions to provide coordinated transportation planning and 
transportation services, among other duties, within the County of Napa; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Member Jurisdictions desire to amend the Agreement to update 
its provisions, including but not limited to change changing the provisions regarding 
withdrawal of Member Jurisdictions and termination of the Joint Powers Agreement name 
of the agency in order to  (1) enhance NVTA’s ability to access capital through issuing[OA1] 
bonds and notes and/or through entering into financing transactions, including loans, 
installment sales agreements, and financing leases, and (2) better reflect the duties and 
purpose of the agency: 
reflect requirements for bonding and financing and better reflect the duties and purpose 
of the agency: 
 

TERMS 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE MEMBER JURISDICTIONS agree as follows: 
 
 1. The foregoing Recitals are true and correct. 
 
 2. The terms of the Agreement are hereby amended to read in full as set forth 
in Attachment “A”, attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein. 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 
NVTA Agenda Item 11.3 

April 18, 2018 

360



JPA- Amendment No. 110  2 

 3. By approving this Amendment No. 10 11 and authorizing execution thereof, 
each Member Jurisdiction hereby reconfirms its prior election to exempt Napa County 
from the congestion management requirements of Chapter 2.6 of Division 1 of Title 7 of 
the California Government Code as permitted by Government Code section 65088.3. 
 
 4. The name of NCTPA is hereby changed to the Napa Valley Transportation 
Authority, a Joint Powers Agency.The provisions of the Joint Powers Agreement related 
to withdrawal of a Member Jurisdiction or termination of the Joint Powers Agreement 
are hereby amended as reflected in Exhibit A attached hereto. 
 
Among other amendments reflected in Attachment “A,” the provisions of the Joint 
Powers Agreement related to withdrawal of a Member Jurisdiction or termination of the 
Joint Powers Agreement are hereby amended as reflected in Attachment A hereto.[OA2] 
  
 
 5. This Amendment No. 10 11 and the attached provisions of Attachment “A” 
shall become effective on the date the documents have been ratified by all of the Member 
Jurisdictions.  This Amendment may be signed in counterparts by the parties hereto and 
shall be valid and binding as if fully executed all on one copy. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment No. 10 11 to the Joint Powers 
Agreement creating the Napa County Transportation and Planning AgencyValley 
Transportation Authority was executed by the Member Jurisdictions through their duly-
authorized representatives as noted below: 
 
COUNTY OF NAPA 
 
 
By:  __________________________  Date:  ___________________________ 
ALFREDO PEDROZA, Chair 
Napa County Board of Supervisors 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
GLADYS I. COILJOSE LOUIE VALDEZ     MINH TRAN 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors   Napa County Counsel 
 
 
By:  __________________________  By:  ____________________________ 
 
 
 
CITY OF AMERICAN CANYON 
 
 
By:  ___________________________  Date: ___________________________ 
LEON GARCIA, Mayor 

361



JPA- Amendment No. 110  3 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
DANA SHIGLEY SUELLEN JOHNSTON WILLIAM ROSS 
American Canyon City Clerk   American Canyon City Attorney 
 
 
By:  _________________________  By:  _________________________ 

362



JPA- Amendment No. 110  4 

CITY OF NAPA 
 
 
By:  ___________________________  Date: _________________________ 
JILL TECHEL, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
DOROTHY ROBERTS    MICHAEL BARRETT 
Napa City Clerk     Napa City Attorney 
 
 
By:  ___________________________  By:  ____________________________ 
 
 
 
TOWN OF YOUNTVILLE 
 
 
By:  ___________________________  Date: ___________________________ 
JOHN F. DUNBAR, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
MICHELLE DAHME     MICHAEL COBDEN 
Town Administrator/Town Clerk   Yountville Town Attorney 
 
 
By: ___________________________  By:  ____________________________ 
 
 
 
CITY OF ST. HELENA 
 
 
By:  ___________________________  Date: ___________________________ 
ALAN GALBRAITH, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
CINDY BLACKTZAFOPOULOS     THOMAS B. BROWN 
St. Helena City Clerk    St. Helena City Attorney 
 
 
By:  __________________________  By:  ____________________________ 

363



JPA- Amendment No. 110  5 

CITY OF CALISTOGA 
 
 
 
By:  ___________________________  Date: _________________________ 
CHRIS CANNING, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
KATHY FLAMSON     MICHELLE KENYON 
Calistoga City ClerkK     Calistoga City Attorney 
 
 
By:  _________________________  By:  _________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 

364



JPA- as amended through Amendment No. 10   i 

ATTACHMENT “A” 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, A JOINT POWERS AGENCY 
JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
SECTION 1.  FORMATION 
 1.1 Creation and Name.  
 
SECTION 2.  PURPOSE 
 2.1 General.  
 2.2 Chapter 2.6 Compliance Not Included in Purpose. 
 2.3 Abandoned Vehicle Abatement Authority. 
 2.4 Preparation of County Transportation Plan. 
 2.5 Exercise of Common and Additional Powers.  
  
 
SECTION 3.  ASSUMPTION OF CMA CONTRACTS 
 3.1 Assumption of CMA and NCTPA Contracts. 
 3.2 Delegation of Contract Responsibilities of CMA Manager and NCTPA 

Manager. 
 
SECTION 4.  ORGANIZATION 
 4.1 Composition. 
 4.2 Principal Office. 
 4.3 Governing Board. 
  4.3.1 Appointment, Replacement and Voting Power of NVTA Board 

 Members (“Members”).  
   (a) Voting Members. 
   (b) Non-Voting Member Representing the PCC. 
   (c) Vacancies. 
   (d) Composition of Members. 
   (e) Voting Power of Members. 
   (f) Alternate Members. 
  4.3.2 Compensation. 
 4.4 Advisory Committees. 
  4.4.1 Technical Advisory Committee (TAC). 
  4.4.2 Bicycle Advisory Committee (BAC). 
 4.4.3 Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC). 
  4.4.4 Other Advisory Committees. 
 4.4.5 Compliance with Maddy Act. 
 4.4.6 Compliance with Brown Act. 

365



JPA- as amended through Amendment No. 10   ii 

SECTION 5.  POWERS 
 5.1 General.  

5.2 Approved Powers. 
 
SECTION 6. PERSONNEL AND ADMINISTRATION 
 6.1   Employees. 
 6.2 Executive Director.   
  6.2.1 General. 
 6.2.2 Filings with Secretary of State. 
 6.3 Treasurer.  
 6.3.1 General. 
 6.3.2 Bond. 
 6.3.3 Compensation. 
 6.4 Auditor-Controller.  
 6.4.1 General. 
 6.4.2 Custodian of Property; Bond. 
 6.4.3 Compensation. 
 
SECTION 7.  DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 7.1 Limitations. 
 7.2 Coordination of Transportation Systems.  
 7.3 Coordination of Transportation and Land Use Management.  
 7.4 Countywide Transportation Plans.  
 7.5 Submission of Funding Applications and Claims.  
 7.6 Intermodal Policies and Programs. 
 7.7 Transportation Development Act (TDA) Claims for Transit and 
Paratransit Services.  
 7.8 Consolidated Transit Services Agency. 
 7.9 Overall Program Manager (AB 434).  
 7.10 Deliberative Body.   
 7.11 Other Duties and Responsibilities. 
 
SECTION 8.  FINANCE 
 8.1 Fiscal Year.  
 8.2 Budget. 
 8.3 Revenues.  
  8.3.1 General. 
  8.3.2 Approval Required for Member Jurisdiction Contributions. 
  8.3.3 Transportation Funds.  
  8.3.4 Standards for Use of TDA Funds. 
 8.4 Accountability.  
  8.4.1 Accountable to Member Jurisdictions. 
 8.4.2 Limitation on Expenditures. 
  8.4.3 Annual Audit.  
 8.5 Debts, Liabilities and Obligations.   
 8.5.1 General. 

366



JPA- as amended through Amendment No. 10   iii 

 8.5.2 Liability.  
   (a) Primary Liability.  

(b) Insurance. 
   (c) Contribution by Member Jurisdictions. 
 
SECTION 9.  RULES OF CONDUCT 
 9.1 Bylaws. 
 9.2 Quorum. 
 9.3 Adjournment of Meetings 
 9.4 Brown Act.  
 
SECTION 10.  NOTICES 
 10.1 Method. 
 10.2 Addresses for Notice. 
 
SECTION 11.  ASSIGNMENT, WITHDRAWAL AND TERMINATION 
 11.1 Assignment. 
 11.2 Withdrawal. 
 11.3 Termination. 
 11.4 Disposition of Assets. 
 
SECTION 12.  AMENDMENTS 
 12.1 Method of Amendment.  
 
SECTION 13.  WAIVER 
 13.1 Limitation. 
 
SECTION 14.  SEVERABILITY 
 14.1 General. 
 
SECTION 15.  SECTION HEADINGS 
 15.1 Effect.  
 
SECTION 16.  APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE 
 16.1 Applicable Law. 
 16.2 Venue for Disputes. 
 
SECTION 17.  NO RIGHTS CREATED IN THIRD PARTIES 
 
SECTION 18.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

367



JPA-as amended through Amendment No. 110 1 

 
NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, A JOINT POWERS AGENCY 

JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT 
 

SECTION 1.  FORMATION 
 
1.1 Creation and Name.  The County of Napa, the Cities of Napa, St. Helena, 

Calistoga, American Canyon, and the Town of Yountville (hereinafter referred to 
as “Member Jurisdictions”), pursuant to Article 2 of Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 
1 (commencing with section 6500) of the California Government Code, do hereby 
form, establish and create a joint powers agency to be known as ”Napa Valley 
Transportation Authority,” hereinafter referred to as “NVTA” which shall constitute 
a public entity separate and distinct from the Member Jurisdictions, and the new 
name of which shall supersede and replace the prior name of the agency, the Napa 
County Transportation and Planning Agency (“NCTPA”) and any other prior name 
by which the agency was known in the past, including Congestion Management 
Agency (“CMA”). 

 
SECTION 2.  PURPOSE 
 
2.1 General.  NVTA is formed to serve as the countywide transportation planning body 

for the incorporated and unincorporated areas within Napa County, and as an 
advisory body for countywide deliberations on land-use, demographics, economic 
development, community development, and environmental issues, which 
purposes shall include conducting in a coordinated and more simplified way 
countywide: 

 
(a) Transportation policy development and planning activities, including those 
relating to transit on both a short-term and long-term basis and within an intermodal 
policy framework; improving transit services; providing coordinated and more 
competitive input to the region’s transportation planning and funding programs; 
and performing such other transportation related duties and responsibilities as the 
Member Jurisdictions may delegate to NVTA by this Agreement or amendment 
thereto; and 

 
(b) Advisory deliberations on land-use, demographics, economic development, 
community development, and environmental issues. Any such deliberations may 
result in advisory recommendations only, and such recommendations shall not be 
binding on any Member Jurisdiction. 

 
2.2 Chapter 2.6 Compliance Not Included in Purpose.  It is the intention of the 

Member Jurisdictions in executing the Agreement to exempt Napa County and the 
Member Jurisdictions from the requirements of Chapter 2.6 of Division 1 of Title 7 
(commencing with Government Code section 65088) pertaining to congestion 
management planning, as permitted by Government Code section 65088.3.  For 

368



JPA-as amended through Amendment No. 110 2 

this reason, compliance with Chapter 2.6 shall not be deemed to be a purpose of 
NVTA. 

 
2.3 Abandoned Vehicle Abatement Authority.  The name of NVTA shall supersede 

and replace CMA and NCTPA as the service authority for the abatement of 
abandoned vehicles (AVAA) for Napa County and the Member Jurisdictions 
pursuant to Vehicle Code section 9250 et seq. and 22710 seq.  All resolutions, 
authorizations, funds, imposition of service fees, and responsibilities of the CMA 
or NCTPA in its capacity as the service authority shall be deemed to be ratified 
and assumed by and remain thereafter as the resolutions, authorizations, funds, 
imposition of service fees, and responsibilities of NVTA as AVAA on and after the 
effective date of Amendment No. 4 of the Agreement until such time as modified 
or terminated by the NVTA Board. 

 
2.4 Preparation of County Transportation Plan.  The purposes of NVTA shall 

include delegation by the County of Napa to NVTA of the County’s authority under 
Government Code section 66531 to prepare and submit to the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission (MTC) a county transportation plan for the 
incorporated and unincorporated territory of Napa County which shall include 
consideration of the planning factors included in Section 134 of the federal 
Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act of 1991, as such may be 
amended from time to time. 

 
2.5 Exercise of Common and Additional Powers.  The purposes of NVTA shall 

include establishment of NVTA as an independent joint powers entity to enable the 
Member Jurisdictions not only to exercise jointly the common powers of the 
Member Jurisdictions set forth in Section 2.1 but also to exercise such additional 
powers as are conferred by Section 5 of this Agreement or by the Government 
Code upon all joint powers agencies. 

 
SECTION 3.  ASSUMPTION OF CMA AND NCTPA CONTRACTS 
 
3.1 Assumption of CMA and NCTPA Contracts.  All contracts entered into by the 

agency in the name of CMA or in the name of NCTPA, which are in effect as of the 
effective date of Amendment No. 10 of this Agreement, shall be assigned to and 
assumed in the name of NVTA on and after that date and all references therein to 
“CMA,” “Congestion Management Agency,” “Napa County Congestion 
Management Agency,” “NCTPA,” or “Napa County Transportation and Planning 
Authority” shall be deemed to refer to NVTA. 

 
3.2 Delegation of Contract Responsibilities of CMA Manager or NCTPA Manager.  

All references in any CMA or NCTPA contracts assumed by NVTA under Section 
3.1 delegating contract responsibilities to the CMA Manager or to the NCTPA 
Manager shall be deemed to refer, on and after the effective dates respectively of 
Amendment No. 4 of the Agreement and Amendment No. 10 of the Agreement, to 
the Executive Director of NVTA. 

369



JPA-as amended through Amendment No. 110 3 

 
SECTION 4.  ORGANIZATION 
 
4.1 Composition.  NVTA shall be composed of the Member Jurisdictions, to-wit: the 

County of Napa, the Cities of American Canyon, Napa, St. Helena, and Calistoga, 
and the Town of Yountville. 

 
4.2 Principal Office.  The principal office of NVTA shall be established by resolution 

of the NVTA Board. 
 
4.3 Governing Board.  The powers of NVTA shall be vested in its governing board 

(hereinafter referred to as “NVTA Board”). 
 

4.3.1 Appointment, Replacement and Voting Power of NVTA Board 
Members (“Members”).  

 
(a) Voting Members.  Each voting Member of the NVTA Board shall be 
an elected official of the governing board of the appointing Member 
Jurisdiction. One voting Member from each appointing Member Jurisdiction 
which is a city or town shall be that Member Jurisdiction’s mayor.  Any 
elected official serving as the Napa County representative to the 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission shall be one of the voting 
Member’s appointed by that Member Jurisdiction.  Members shall continue 
to serve as such until they cease to hold their elected positions, are 
removed in the sole discretion of their respective Member Jurisdiction, 
resign or are otherwise removed from or disqualified from holding their 
elected positions as a matter of law or by judgment of a court of competent 
jurisdiction. 

 
(b) Non-Voting Member Representing the PCC.  The non-voting 
Member appointed by NVTA Board upon nomination by the Paratransit 
Coordinating Council (PCC) shall also be a member or alternate member of 
the PCC, selected by and serving at the pleasure of the PCC. 

 
(c) Vacancies.  Except for a vacancy in the non-voting position 
appointed by the NVTA Board under subsection (c), vacancies on the NVTA 
Board shall be filled, to the extent practicable, by the respective Member 
Jurisdictions within sixty (60) days of the occurrence thereof.  NVTA and the 
NVTA Board shall be entitled to rely upon written notice from the clerk of 
the governing board of the Member Jurisdiction as conclusive evidence of 
the appointment and removal of all Members and their alternates. 

 

370



JPA-as amended through Amendment No. 110 4 

(d) Composition of Members.  The composition of the Members of 
the NVTA Board shall be as follows: 

 
Appointing Entity   Number of Members 
 
City of American Canyon   2 
 
City of Calistoga    2 
 
City of Napa     2 
 
City of St. Helena    2 
 
Town of Yountville    2 
 
County of Napa    2 
 
NVTA Board (nominated by   1 
Paratransit Coordinating Council) 
 

 
(e) Voting Power of Members.  The voting power of the Members of 
the NVTA Board shall be as follows: 
 

(1) On all matters concerning powers under Section 5.2 
subsections (a) through (q), inclusive: 

 
Appointing Entity   Voting Power 

 
City of American Canyon  4 (each Member has two votes) 
 
City of Calistoga   2 (each Member has one vote) 
 
City of Napa 10 (each Member has five votes) 
 
City of St. Helena   2 (each Member has one vote) 
 
Town of Yountville   2 (each Member has one vote) 
 
County of Napa 4 (each Member has 2 votes) 

 
NVTA Board (nominated by  0 (non-voting) 
Paratransit Coordinating Council) 

 
(2) On all matters concerning powers under Section 5.2 
subsection (r), each voting Member shall have one vote. 

371



JPA-as amended through Amendment No. 110 5 

 
(f) Alternate Members.  Each Member Jurisdiction may, in its 
discretion, appoint alternate(s) for its Members of the NVTA Board.  An 
alternate shall be an elected official of the governing board of the appointing 
Member Jurisdiction.  Any appointed alternate Members may attend in 
place of that jurisdiction’s Member and participate in discussions of the 
NVTA Board in the same manner as the Members, but an alternate of a 
voting Member shall vote only when the Member for whom he or she is an 
alternate is physically absent or cannot vote due to a conflict of interest. 

 
4.3.2 Compensation.  No compensation shall be received by any Member of the 

NVTA Board unless expressly authorized by unanimous resolution of all of 
the voting Members of the NVTA Board.  

 
4.4 Advisory Committees. 
 

4.4.1 Technical Advisory Committee (TAC).  A single Technical Advisory 
Committee (TAC) shall be appointed by the NVTA Board to advise the 
NVTA Board regarding transit and roadway issues, including planning, 
project, and policy aspects.  The TAC members shall include the Executive 
Director of NVTA, serving ex-officio; a member nominated by the PCC and 
appointed by the NVTA Board; and two members and two alternate 
members from the technical staffs of each of the Member Jurisdictions, 
serving ex- officio as designated by the chief administrative officers of the 
respective Member Jurisdictions. 

 
4.4.2 Active Transportation Advisory Committee.  The Active Transportation 

Advisory Committee (ATAC) shall be appointed by and serve in an advisory 
capacity to the NVTA Board on matters of bicycling and pedestrian issues. 
By-laws and amendments thereto for the ATACBAC shall be approved by 
the NVTA Board.     

 
4.4.3 Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC).  The Paratransit Coordinating 

Council (PCC) shall be an advisory committee to the NVTA Board  and  
serve as the social services transportation advisory council for Napa County 
provided for under Public Utilities Code section 99238.  The PCC shall serve 
as the primary means of advice to the NVTA Board regarding, and 
representation of, the special transportation interests of the disabled and 
elderly, in order to carry out the intent of the State Legislature expressed in 
Public Utilities Code section 99238(d) to avoid duplicative transit advisory 
councils whenever possible. By-laws and amendments thereto for the PCC 
shall be approved by the NVTA Board. 

 
4.4.4 Other Advisory Committees.  The NVTA Board may create such other 

advisory committees, both ad- hoc and standing, as it sees fit. from time to 
time. 

372



JPA-as amended through Amendment No. 110 6 

 
4.4.5 Compliance with Maddy Act.  When appointing members to the 

committees the NVTA Board shall comply with the provisions of the Maddy 
Local Appointive List Act of 1975, Government Code section 54970 et seq., 
as such has been and may be amended from time to time.   

 
4.4.6 Compliance with Brown Act.  Except for ad hoc committees, all advisory 

committees created pursuant to this Section 4.4 shall be subject to the 
requirements of the Ralph M. Brown Act, Government Code section 54950 
et seq. 

 
SECTION 5.  POWERS 
 
5.1 General.  NVTA shall have all powers necessary to carry out the purpose of this 

Agreement.  Such powers shall be subject only to the limitations set forth in this 
Agreement, applicable laws and regulations, and such restrictions upon the 
manner of exercising such powers as are imposed by law upon the County of Napa 
in the exercise of similar powers except where specifically authorized otherwise by 
the Joint Exercise of Powers Act, Government Code section 6500 et seq. 

 
5.2 Approved Powers.  The powers of NVTA specifically include but are not limited 

to the following: 
 

(a) To sue and be sued in its own name; 
 

(b) To incur debts, liabilities and obligations; 
 

(c) To employ agents, employees and to contract with third parties for goods 
and services, including but not limited to the services of engineers, planners, 
attorneys, accountants, fiscal agents (including auditors, controllers, and 
treasurers), and providers of transit services; 
 
(d) To acquire, improve, hold, lease and dispose of real and personal property 
of all types; 
 
(e) To undertake the acquisition of real property through the exercise of 
eminent domain in furtherance of transportation and transit related projects in 
accordance with State and Federal laws; 
 
(f) To enact an ordinance for the purpose of adopting the California Uniform 
Construction Cost Accounting Act procedures and establishing an alternative 
method of procuring small construction contracts pursuant to California Public 
Contracts Code sections 22000, et seq, as amended from time to time. 

 
(g) To make and enter into any contracts with any of the Member Jurisdictions 
for goods, services, equipment, or real property; 

373



JPA-as amended through Amendment No. 110 7 

 
(h) To assume contracts made by any Member Jurisdiction or made pursuant 
to joint powers agreement between any of the Member Jurisdictions; 

 
(i) To apply for and accept grants, donations[OA3], advances and contributions; 

 
(j) To make plans and conduct studies; 

 
(k) To coordinate efforts with local, regional, state and federal agencies having 
jurisdiction over matters pertaining to transportation (including roads) and transit; 

 
(l) To engage in all activities necessary for NVTA to act as the Abandoned 
Vehicle Abatement Authority for Napa County; 

 
(m) To operate, directly or by contract with any person or entity including any 
Member Jurisdiction, any transit and paratransit services within Napa County in 
whole or in part and, if so, to submit any corresponding claims for funds or 
reimbursement under the Transportation Development Act (TDA), Section 29530 
et seq. of the Government Code, as such may be amended from time to time; 

 
(n) To act as the overall program manager within Napa County for the purpose 
of receiving and reallocating the county’s proportionate share of vehicle 
registration fees collected by the Bay Area Air Quality Management District 
(BAAQMD) under AB 434 (Chapter 807, Statutes of 1991, set forth in Health and 
Safety Code  section 44241 et seq.); 

 
(o) To act as, exercise the powers conferred upon, and fulfill the responsibilities 
of the Consolidated Transportation Service Agency (CTSA) for Napa County as 
that term is defined in Public Utilities Code section 99204.5 as amended from time 
to time, if and when appointed as CTSA by the MTC, such appointment being 
deemed to supersede the appointment of the County of Napa as CTSA; 

 
(p) To invest any funds in the treasury of NVTA that are not required for the 
immediate necessities of NVTA in such manner as the NVTA Board deems 
advisable, in the same manner and upon the same conditions as local agencies 
pursuant to Section 53601, except where otherwise restricted for particular funds 
by conditions imposed by the person or agency which is the source of those funds; 

 
(q) To apply for, expend and allocate all funds related to Transportation 
Development Act Article Three purposes, as set forth in Public Utilities Code 
section 99234, et seq., as amended from time to time. 

 
(r) To act as a countywide advisory deliberative body on issues of land-use, 
demographics, economic development, community development, and 
environmental issues.  Any such deliberations may result in advisory 

374



JPA-as amended through Amendment No. 110 8 

recommendations only, and such recommendations shall not be binding on any 
Member Jurisdiction. 

 
SECTION 6.  PERSONNEL AND ADMINISTRATION 
 
6.1 Employees.  NVTA may appoint, retain and compensate as a charge against the 

funds of NVTA employees, whether temporary, probationary, limited term or 
permanent and/or may contract with any person or entity, including a Member 
Jurisdiction, for the furnishing of any services, including but not limited to legal, 
financial, accounting, data processing, secretarial, purchasing, and personnel 
services, which are necessary to fulfill the powers, duties and responsibilities of 
NVTA under this Agreement or as necessary to comply with the laws applicable to 
joint powers agencies within the State of California, including but not  limited to the 
services described in Sections 6.2 through 6.4, below.  Where such services are 
provided by employees of a Member Jurisdiction by contract between such 
Member Jurisdiction and NVTA or pursuant to Section 6.3 or 6.4 of this Agreement, 
NVTA and the employing Member Jurisdiction hereby expressly waive any conflict 
of interest or incompatibility of employment created thereby. 

 
6.2 Executive Director.   
 

6.2.1 General.  NVTA shall hire or contract for the provision of the services of an 
Executive Director to serve as the chief administrative officer of NVTA, 
performing management and other duties which shall be described in a job 
description/scope of services approved by resolution of the NVTA Board.  

 
6.2.2 Filings with Secretary of State.  In addition to any other duties assigned 

to the Executive Director or otherwise required by law, the Executive 
Director is hereby authorized to and shall be responsible for filing on behalf 
of NVTA and the NVTA Board all notices required by Government Code 
sections 6503.5 and 53051.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, unless and until 
an Executive Director is appointed, such filings are authorized to and shall 
be made by the Napa County Director of Public Works[SK4]. 

 
6.3 Treasurer.  
 

6.3.1 General.  The Napa County Treasurer-Tax Collector shall serve as the 
NVTA Treasurer and in that capacity shall be the depository and have 
custody of all of [OA5][VC6]the funds of NVTA, from whatever source, and 
shall perform the functions described in Government Code section 6505.5 
(a) through (e). Notwithstanding the foregoing, the NVTA Board may retain 
a certified public accountant to serve as NVTA Treasurer in lieu of the Napa 
County Treasurer-Tax Collector. 

 
6.3.2 Bond.  The NVTA Treasurer shall post an official bond in an amount to be 

fixed by the NVTA Board.  The cost of such bond shall be a charge against 

375



JPA-as amended through Amendment No. 110 9 

NVTA funds, except that if the NVTA Treasurer is the Napa County 
Treasurer-Tax Collector, the cost of the bond to be borne by NVTA shall be 
that amount which is in excess of the cost of the official bond posted by the 
Napa County Treasurer-Tax Collector for functions unrelated to NVTA. 

 
6.3.3 Compensation.  Pursuant to Section Government Code section 6505.5, 

the Napa County Board of Supervisors shall determine the charges to be 
made against NVTA for the services performed by the Napa County 
Treasurer-Tax Collector for NVTA which shall be a charge against NVTA 
funds.  If the NVTA Board retains a certified public accountant to be NVTA 
Treasurer, the compensation of the NVTA Treasurer shall be determined by 
the NVTA Board and shall be a charge against NVTA funds. 

 
6.4 Auditor-Controller.  
 

6.4.1 General.  The Napa County Auditor-Controller shall serve as the auditor-
controller of NVTA and shall be responsible for drawing warrants to pay 
demands against NVTA when the demands have been approved by the 
NVTA Board or, upon delegation by the NVTA Board, by the Executive 
Director, or the Deputy Executive Director  designee when[OA7] acting as 
purchasing agent for NVTA.   

 
6.4.2 Custodian of Property; Bond.  With the exception of NVTA funds which 

shall be in the custody of the NVTA Treasurer, the Napa County Auditor-
Controller shall, acting as NVTA Auditor-Controller, be the public officer 
designated pursuant to Government Code section 6505.1 to have charge 
of, handle, have access to, and maintain inventory any property of NVTA 
and shall post an official bond in an amount to be fixed by the NVTA Board.  
The cost of such bond, to the extent in excess of the cost of the official bond 
posted by the Napa County Auditor-Controller in connection with functions 
unrelated to NVTA, shall be a charge against NVTA funds. 

 
6.4.3 Compensation.  Pursuant to Government Code section 6505.5, the Napa 

County Board of Supervisors shall determine the charges to be made 
against the NVTA for the services performed by the Napa County Auditor-
Controller for NVTA, which shall constitute a charge against the funds of 
NVTA. 

 
SECTION 7.  DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
7.1 Limitations.  The authority of NVTA shall be limited to those powers enumerated 

in Section 5 or as otherwise provided for herein. 
 
7.2 Coordination of Transportation Systems.  NVTA shall facilitate the coordination 

of transportation systems operated by or on behalf of the Member Jurisdictions 
with Napa County and adjacent counties. 

376



JPA-as amended through Amendment No. 110 10 

 
7.3 Coordination of Transportation and Land Use Management.  NVTA shall 

develop and implement programs and policies for the coordination of 
transportation and related land use management by the Member Jurisdictions.  
Such programs may include, but shall not be limited to, providing analysis of the 
impacts of land use decisions by the Member Jurisdictions on regional 
transportation systems and the costs associated with mitigating those impacts.  In 
carrying out this responsibility, NVTA shall review and comment on all 
discretionary projects related to transportation under consideration by any of the 
Member Jurisdictions and may review and comment on such discretionary projects 
under consideration by any other public entity which are submitted to NVTA for 
review and comment. 

 
7.4 Countywide Transportation Plans.  NVTA shall develop, adopt, implement, 

update as necessary, and submit to MTC a county transportation plan under 
Government Code section 66531 for the incorporated and unincorporated territory 
of Napa County which shall include consideration of the planning factors included 
in Section 134 of the federal Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act of 
1991, as such may be amended from time to time. 

 
7.5 Submission of Funding Applications and Claims.  NVTA may submit 

applications and funding claims for transportation related purposes to local 
government, MTC, the State of California, the Federal Government and other 
entities supporting transportation. 

 
7.6 Intermodal Policies and Programs.  NVTA may consider and adopt policies and 

programs for all modes of transportation including but not limited to, transit, 
paratransit, streets and roads, bicycle and pedestrian facilities, airports, marinas, 
harbors, and railroads. 

 
7.7 Transportation Development Act (TDA) Claims for Transit and Paratransit 

Services.  If NVTA operates directly or by contract with any person or entity 
including any Member Jurisdiction the operation of any transit and paratransit 
services within Napa County in whole or in part, NVTA shall be deemed authorized 
by this Agreement to submit any corresponding claims for funds or reimbursement 
under the Transportation Development Act (TDA), Section 29530 et seq. of the 
Government Code, as such may be amended from time to time.   

 
7.8 Consolidated Transit Services Agency.  If, in the future and with the consent of 

all of the Member Jurisdictions and MTC, NVTA is appointed in place of the Napa 
County Board of Supervisors as the consolidated transportation service agency 
(CTSA) for Napa County as that term is defined in Public Utilities Code section 
99204.5, as such may be amended from time to time, then and only then may 
NVTA make claims pursuant to the procedure set forth in Article 7 of Chapter 3 of 
Title 21 of the California Code of Regulations, commencing with 6680. 

 

377



JPA-as amended through Amendment No. 110 11 

7.9 Overall Program Manager (AB 434).  NVTA shall act as the overall program 
manager within Napa County for the purpose of receiving and reallocating the 
county’s proportionate share of vehicle registration fees collected by the Bay Area 
Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD) under AB 434 (Chapter 807, Statutes 
of 1991, set forth in Health and Safety Code section 44241 et seq.). 

 
7.10 Deliberative Body.  NVTA shall act as the countywide deliberative body for 

discussions of inter-jurisdictional issues relating to land use, infrastructure, the 
economy and economic development, community development, and 
environmental issues.  No subject may be deliberated unless a majority of votes, 
as determined by Section 4.3.1 (f) (2) of this Agreement, of the Board has approved 
such deliberations.  The NVTA may adopt decisions on such matters, but its 
decisions shall constitute recommendations to the Member Jurisdictions only, and 
shall have no binding effect.  Final decision making on all matters affecting Member 
Jurisdictions shall remain with the governing body of each Member, except as 
provided by Sections 5.2 (a) through (p) inclusive, of this Joint Powers Agreement, 
state or federal law, and applicable regulations. 

 
7.11 Other Duties and Responsibilities.  NVTA shall carry out such other  duties and 

responsibilities as the Member Jurisdictions, by unanimous approval expressed 
through amendment of this Agreement or resolutions of their respective governing 
boards, may delegate to NVTA. 

 
SECTION 8.  FINANCE 
 
8.1 Fiscal Year.  The fiscal year for NVTA shall begin on July 1 and end on June 30. 
 
8.2 Budget.  A budget for NVTA shall be adopted by the NVTA Board for each fiscal 

year prior to June 30 of the preceding fiscal year.  The budget shall include 
sufficient detail to constitute an operating guideline.  It shall also include the 
anticipated sources of funds and the anticipated expenditures to be made for the 
operations of NVTA.  Approval of the budget by the NVTA Board shall constitute 
authority for the Executive Director to expend funds for the purposes outlined in 
the approved budget, subject to the availability of funds on hand as determined by 
the NVTA Auditor-Controller and subject to the constraints imposed upon general 
law counties pertaining to execution of contracts by purchasing agents.  Nothing 
in this Section 8.2 shall be construed to limit the power of the NVTA Board to 
modify the budget in whatever manner it deems appropriate and to instruct the 
Executive Director accordingly. 

 
8.3 Revenues.  
 

8.3.1 General.  Unless otherwise agreed by the Member Jurisdictions by 
amendment of this Agreement, the total expenditures in the annual planning 
budget shall be paid for with revenues derived from funds paid directly to 
NVTA by persons or entities, public or private, other than the Member 

378



JPA-as amended through Amendment No. 110 12 

Jurisdictions and from contributions from the Member Jurisdictions (in 
money or, upon approval by the NVTA Board, in kind) based on the relative 
populations of the Member Jurisdictions.  In determining said population 
ratios the latest population statistics by the State Department of Finance 
shall be used.   

 
8.3.2 Approval Required for Member Jurisdiction Contributions.  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Member Jurisdiction shall be required to 
expend any of its general fund monies to support the operations of NVTA in 
any fiscal year unless such expenditure has been first approved by the 
legislative body of the Member Jurisdiction. 

 
8.3.3 Transportation Funds.  In order to carry out the transportation duties and 

responsibilities of this Agreement, NVTA shall be empowered to claim all 
TDA funds under Articles 4, 4.5 and/or 8 of Chapter 4 of the Public Utilities 
Code apportioned within Napa County by the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission (MTC). All TDA funds will be used for purposes allowed under 
TDA regulations with the exception of those funds for streets and roads, 
Section 99400(a) of the Public Utilities Code.  All TDA funds claimed by 
NVTA shall be used at the sole discretion of the NVTA Board of Directors 
only for transportation[OA8], transit, and paratransit services and capital 
improvements.  TDA funds apportioned or allocated under Section 99233.3 
are not subject to this agreement.  Member Jurisdictions endorse a single 
apportionment by MTC under Sections 99233.8 and 99233.9 of the Public 
Utilities Code to the NVTA on behalf of the jurisdictions of Napa County.  If 
apportionment under Sections 99233.8 and 99233.9 of the Public Utilities 
Code are made to any Member Jurisdiction the NVTA is authorized to claim 
all such apportionments for transit purposes without further action by the 
Member Jurisdiction.  Funds available pursuant to Section 99313.6, 
excluding funds apportioned or allocated under Section 99314.3, shall be 
claimed solely by the NVTA for transit purposes.  No Member Jurisdiction 
shall claim funds apportioned or allocated under Section 99313.6, excluding 
funds apportioned or allocated under Section 99314.3. 

 
8.3.4 Standards For Use of TDA Funds.  Every two years, the NVTA will 

prepare and adopt a Short Range Transit Plan (“Plan”).  As warranted, at 
the discretion of the NVTA Board, the Plan may be updated annually.  The 
NVTA Board will adopt the Plan and any updated Plan.  The Plan shall 
provide the basis for evaluating what services are necessary and where 
services will be provided.   

 
8.4 Accountability.  
 

8.4.1 Accountable to Member Jurisdictions.  NVTA shall be strictly 
accountable to the Member Jurisdictions for all receipts and disbursements 
of NVTA. 

379



JPA-as amended through Amendment No. 110 13 

 
8.4.2 Limitation on Expenditures.  NVTA may not obligate itself beyond the 

monies due to NVTA under this Agreement plus any monies on hand or 
irrevocably pledged to its support from other sources. 

 
8.4.3 Annual Audit.  The NVTA Board shall cause an annual audit to be prepared 

and filed to the extent required by Government Code section 6505. 
 
8.5 Debts, Liabilities and Obligations. 
 

8.5.1 General.  Except as provided in Section 8.4.2, the debts, liabilities, and 
obligations of NVTA shall be solely the obligation of NVTA and not the 
debts, liabilities, and obligations of the Member Jurisdictions or their 
respective officers or employees. However, nothing in this Agreement shall 
prevent any Member Jurisdiction from separately contracting for, or 
assuming responsibility for, specific debts, liabilities, or obligations of NVTA, 
provided that both the NVTA Board and that Member Jurisdiction give prior 
approval of such contract or assumption. 

 
8.5.2 Liability. 

 
(a) Primary Liability.  If liability is imposed upon NVTA by a court of 
competent jurisdiction by reason of negligent or willful acts or omissions of 
NVTA or any of its officers, employees, agents, volunteers, or contractors, 
any resulting monetary judgment against NVTA shall be paid first from the 
discretionary funds of NVTA or, if the liability arose from the actions of a 
contractor, contribution shall be sought from the contractor. 

 
(b) Insurance.  To comply with subsection (a), above, NVTA shall obtain 
and maintain in force during the life of this Agreement insurance for errors 
and omissions, general liability, and vehicle liability in amounts deemed by 
the NVTA Board to be sufficient to fully cover NVTA, its officers, employees, 
board members, and agents, and the Member Jurisdictions for any 
reasonably foreseeable losses. Where services are provided by contract to 
NVTA, the contract shall require the contractor to obtain insurance sufficient 
to hold NVTA and the Member Jurisdictions harmless and indemnify them 
against any claims for liability arising from the provision of the services. The 
cost of such coverage, whether obtained directly by NVTA or as any 
increased in the contract price for services obtained under contract, shall 
be a charge against NVTA funds. 

 
(c) Contribution by Member Jurisdictions.  If NVTA funds or 
insurance coverage are insufficient, or if any Member Jurisdiction is sued 
and found liable for a negligent or willful act or omission of NVTA or any of 
its officers, employees, agents, volunteers, or contractors and NVTA funds 
or contractor contribution are insufficient to pay the judgment or to 

380



JPA-as amended through Amendment No. 110 14 

reimburse the sued Member Jurisdiction for paying the judgment, the 
Member Jurisdictions shall be responsible for the liability for purposes of 
contribution under Government Code section 895.4 in proportion to the 
voting power of each Member Jurisdiction on the NVTA Board. 

 
SECTION 9.  RULES OF CONDUCT 
 
9.1 Bylaws.  The NVTA Board may from time to time adopt bylaws for the conduct of 

the affairs of NVTA and the NVTA Board, provided such Rules of Conduct are not 
inconsistent with this Agreement. 

 
9.2 Quorum.  A majority of the voting power and seven (7) of the twelve (12) voting 

members (or their alternates) of the NVTA Board shall constitute a quorum for the 
transaction of business at any meeting of the NVTA Board.  Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, if a quorum is present at the commencement of the meeting, the 
affirmative vote of a majority of the voting power of the NVTA Board  shall 
constitute the act of the NVTA Board even if, at the time of such vote, less than 
seven voting members (or their alternates) are present. 

 
9.3 Adjournment of Meetings.  Any meeting of the NVTA Board, whether or not a 

quorum is present, may be adjourned from time- to- time by a vote of the majority 
of the voting members (or their alternates) present or, if no voting members or their 
alternates are present, may be adjourned by the person appointed to serve as 
Clerk or Secretary of the NVTA Board. 

 
9.4 Brown Act.  All meetings of the NVTA Board shall comply with the requirements 

of the Ralph M. Brown Act (Government Code section 54950 et seq.). 
 
SECTION 10.  NOTICES 
 
10.1 Method.  All notices which any Member Jurisdiction or NVTA may wish to give in 

connection with this Agreement shall be in writing and served by personal delivery 
during business hours at the principal office of the Member Jurisdiction or NVTA 
to an officer or person apparently in charge of that office, or by deposit in the United 
States mail, postage prepaid, and addressed to the Member Jurisdiction or NVTA 
at its principal office or to such other address as the Member Jurisdiction or NVTA 
may designate from time to time by written notice to NVTA and each of the parties.  
Service of notice shall be deemed complete on the day of personal delivery (or 24 
hours after such delivery for notice of special meetings) or three (3) days after 
mailing if deposited in the United States mail. 

 
10.2 Addresses for Notice.  Until changed by written notice to NVTA and the Member 

Jurisdictions, notices under this Agreement shall be delivered to the following 
addresses: 

 
 NVTA:     Executive Director 

381



JPA-as amended through Amendment No. 110 15 

       Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
       625 Burnell Street 
       Napa, California  94559-3420 
 
 COUNTY OF NAPA:   Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
       County Administration Building 
       1195 Third Street, Room 310 
       Napa, California 94559 
 
 CITY OF AMERICAN CANYON:  American Canyon City Clerk 
       4381 Broadway Street, Suite 201 
       American Canyon, California 94503 
 
 CITY OF NAPA:    Napa City Clerk 
       955 School Street 
       Napa, California 94559 
 
 TOWN OF YOUNTVILLE:   Yountville Town Clerk 
       6550 Yount Street 
       Yountville, California 94599 
 
 CITY OF ST. HELENA:   St. Helena City Clerk 
       1480 Main Street 
       St. Helena, California  94574 
 
 CITY OF CALISTOGA:   Calistoga City Clerk 
       1232 Washington Street 
       Calistoga, California 94515 
 
SECTION 11.  ASSIGNMENT, WITHDRAWAL AND TERMINATION 
 
11.1 Assignment.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of 

the permitted successors and assigns of the Member Jurisdictions, except that no 
Member Jurisdiction shall assign any of its rights under this Agreement except to 
a duly-formed public entity organized and existing under the laws of the State of 
California and then only when approved by amendment of this Agreement. 

 
11.2 Withdrawal.  A Member Jurisdiction may withdraw from NVTA without the 
consent of the other Member Jurisdictions by giving no less than ninety (90) days prior 
written notice to the NVTA Board.  A Member Jurisdiction may withdraw from NVTA at 
any time with the written consent of all of the other Member Jurisdictions contained in 
an amendment of this Agreement.  A Member Jurisdiction electing to withdraw prior to 
termination of the Agreement pursuant to Section 11.3 shall not be entitled to share in 
the distribution of assets provided for in Section 11.3.  This provision shall not be 
effective and no Member Jurisdiction may withdraw from NVTA (1) all bonds, notes, 
loans, financings, capital leases, installment sales agreements, or any other instrument 

382



JPA-as amended through Amendment No. 110 16 

evidencing indebtedness issued or entered into by NVTA (collectively, “Debt 
Instruments”), if any, have been paid in full, or (2) to the extent any Debt Instruments 
remain outstanding, adequate funds are set aside for the payment or redemption 
thereof in a manner sufficient to cause the release and discharge of any such Debt 
Instrument in accordance with the terms thereof and the documentation relating 
thereto.[OA9] 
 
 
11.3 Termination.  The Agreement shall continue in effect until terminated.  The 

Agreement may be terminated at any time and NVTA dissolved with the written 
consent of the majority of the then-existing Member Jurisdictions representing a 
majority of the votes on the NVTA Board.  Such consent shall be expressed in 
duly-authorized resolutions of the Member Jurisdictions.  This provision shall not 
be effective, this Agreement shall not be terminated, and NVTA shall not be 
dissolved, unless (1) no Debt Instruments are outstanding and unpaid, or (2) to the 
extent any Debt Instruments remain outstanding, adequate funds are set aside for 
the full payment or redemption thereof in a manner sufficient to cause the release 
and discharge of any such Debt Instrument in accordance with the terms thereof 
and the documentation relating thereto.[OA10] 

  
   
 
11.4 Disposition of Assets.  In the event of termination of the Agreement and 

dissolution of NVTA, any remaining assets of NVTA shall be sold or, if sale is 
prohibited under the terms of original acquisition, returned to or otherwise disposed 
of at the direction of the party or persons from whom they were obtained.  After all 
liabilities, encumbrances and liens have been paid, the proceeds of such sales 
shall be allocated proportionately to the Member Jurisdictions based upon their 
respective populations as determined by the latest California State Department of 
Finance population figures.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, in accordance with 
Government Code section 6512, any funds remaining at the time of termination 
which were contributed by the Member Jurisdictions shall be returned to the 
Member Jurisdictions in proportion to the contributions made. 

 
SECTION 12.  AMENDMENTS 
 
12.1 Method of Amendment.  Amendments to this Agreement shall be made only with 

the written consent of all then-existing Member Jurisdictions without regard to 
voting power on the NVTA Board.  Unless (1) no Debt Instruments are outstanding 
and unpaid, or, (2) to the extent any Debt Instruments remain outstanding, 
adequate funds are set aside for the full payment or redemption thereof in a 
manner sufficient to cause the release and discharge of any such Debt Instrument 
in accordance with the terms thereof and the documentation relating thereto, this 
Joint Powers Agreement shall not be amended, modified or otherwise revised, 
changed or rescinded, unless the holders of any such Debt Instruments consent 
in writing to such amendment, modification, revision, change, or rescission.[OA11] 

383



JPA-as amended through Amendment No. 110 17 

 
SECTION 13.  WAIVER 
 
13.1 Limitation.  Waiver by any Member Jurisdiction of breach of any provision of this 

Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any other breach of such provision or 
of any other provision of this Agreement, nor shall failure to enforce any provision 
hereof operate as a waiver of such provision or of any other provision. 

 
SECTION 14.  SEVERABILITY 
 
14.1 General.  Should any part, term or provision of this Agreement be decided by a 

final judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any 
State or federal law or regulation or any applicable local ordinance or otherwise be 
unenforceable or ineffectual, the validity of the remaining parts, terms and 
provisions shall not be affected. 

 
SECTION 15.  SECTION HEADINGS 
 
15.1 Effect.  All section numbers and headings contained in this Agreement are for 

convenience and reference only and are not intended to define or limit the scope 
of any provision of this Agreement. 

 
SECTION 16.  APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE 
 
16.1 Applicable Law.  The rights, obligations, duties and liabilities of NVTA and of the 

Member Jurisdictions under this Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with 
and governed by the law of the State of California. 

 
16.2 Venue for Disputes.  Venue for any action filed by any Member Jurisdiction under 

state law to enforce this Agreement or any provision thereof shall be in the courts 
of Napa County.  Venue for any action filed by any Member Jurisdiction under 
federal law or as a federal action shall be in the federal courts for the Northern 
District of California. 

 
SECTION 17.  NO RIGHTS CREATED IN THIRD PARTIES 
 
17.1 No Rights for Third Parties.  The parties to this Agreement hereby expressly 

agree that it is not the intent of the parties to create, and this Agreement shall not 
be deemed or construed to create any third party beneficiaries or otherwise inure 
to the benefit of any third parties. 

 
SECTION 18.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 
18.1 Integrated Agreement.  The terms and provisions of this Agreement constitute 

the full and entire agreement between the Member Jurisdictions with respect to the 
matters covered herein.  This Agreement supersedes any and all other 

384



JPA-as amended through Amendment No. 110 18 

communications, representations, proposals, understandings or agreements, 
either written or oral, between the Member Jurisdictions with respect to such 
subject matter, including any prior agreement or amendment thereto relating to the 
CMA. 

385



April 18, 2018 
NVTA Agenda Item 11.4 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Shaveta Sharma, Transportation Program Planner and Policy Analyst 

(707) 259-8782 / Email: ssharma@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Amendment #1 to Project Work Order No. 5 Napa Valley 
Transportation Authority (NVTA) Agreement No. 15-22 with Fehr & 
Peers 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority approve Amendment No. 1 to Project Work 
Order No. 5 Agreement 15-22 (Attachment 1) for Additional Scope of Work by $47,060, 
and authorize the Executive Director to execute contract documents for the completion of 
the work. 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

None 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The proposed Amendment No. 1 to Agreement 15-22 incorporates origin and destination 
data, modes of travels, and transit feasibility along the State Route 37 (SR 37) corridor 
as part of the already approved Travel Behavior Study in an amount not to exceed 
$47,060.  The cost will be shared with the three other North Bay Congestion Management 
Agencies (CMAs), the Transit Authority of Marin, Sonoma County Transportation 
Authority, and Solano Transportation Authority.  NVTA’s share of the total amount is 
$11,765.  

PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 

1. Staff Report
2. Public Comments
3. Motion, Second, Discussion and Vote

386

mailto:ssharma@nvta.ca.gov


NVTA Agenda Letter                   Wednesday, April 18, 2018 
Agenda Item 11.4 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a Fiscal Impact? Yes, in the amount of $11,765 
 
Is it currently budgeted?  Yes 
 
Where is it budgeted? Professional Services  
 
Future fiscal impact? No. 
 
Consequences if not approved? The study would not move forward at this time. 
 
CEQA REQUIREMENTS 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: The proposed action is not a project as defined 
by 14 California Code of Regulations 15378 (California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
Guidelines) and therefore CEQA is not applicable. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
In 2015, Marin, Sonoma, Napa, and Solano congestion management agencies approved 
a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) that committed them to cooperatively guide the 
intentions and strategies for the overall framework and funding strategy for the entire SR 
37 Corridor.  Oversight and policy direction is provided by a 12-person 4-County Policy 
Committee, comprised of 3 representatives from each county.  A need identified by the 
SR 37 Policy Committee and by the public, through public comment process on the SR 
37 Transportation and Seal Level Rise Corridor Improvement Plan, is analysis of transit 
feasibility on the SR 37 corridor.  Understanding travel behavior patterns will be critical to 
this analysis.  Since NVTA is already using Fehr & Peers for the Napa Travel Behavior 
Study update, it is recommended by staff to add the additional SR 37 tasks to the existing 
Fehr & Peers contract in order to reduce overall costs of the study. 
 
In addition to evaluating travel behavior along the corridor, the scope of work tasks Fehr 
and Peers to evaluate transit hubs along the corridors and intersecting corridors and include 
a proposal for transit capital improvements along the corridor that would facilitate bus and 
carpool modes.  The added scope of work will cost $47,060.  This cost will be split between 
the four North Bay CMAs.  The additional SR 37 work is scheduled to be completed by 
the end of the year to coincide with the Project Initiation Document (PID) process that is 
currently underway for Segment B of the SR 37 corridor.  
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachment: (1) Draft Work Authorization No. 1 to Project Work Order No. 5 NVTA 

 Agreement No. 15-22 

387



15-22 FEHR & PEERS/05/A1/040218/rk

  PROJECT WORK ORDER NO. 05  AMENDMENT #1 
PROJECT NAME:  Napa Valley Travel Behavior Study Update 

NVTA PROJECT MANAGER:  Shaveta Sharma, Transportation Program Planner 

CONSULTANT DESIGNATED TEAM MEMBERS: 
 Fehr & Peers - see EXHIBIT A
 Subconsultants -  Witec - EXHIBIT A

INRIX – EXHIBIT A 
StreetLight Sata – EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICE:  Scope of Services/Proposal for Services is to include the 
additional task of obtaining transit travel data on the SR 37 corridor and to be 
incorporated under the current work authorization as described in EXHIBIT A, and 
Fee Schedule attached as per EXHIBIT B.  ALL OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
AS SET FORTH IN THE AGREEMENT REMAIN UNCHANGED.       

START DATE:  JANUARY 18, 2018 COMPLETION DATE:  MAY 1, 2019 

NOT-TO-EXCEED AMOUNT FOR THIS PROJECT:  $190,000 NEW NTE AMOUNT: $237,060 
PROJECT AMOUNT IS HEREWITH AMENDED TO REFLECT THE COST INCREASE 
ASSOCIATED WITH THE ADDITIONAL TASK SERVICE TO BE PERFORMED BY THE 
CONTRACTOR.  

CHARGE NUMBER FOR PAYMENT:  CMA/TDA 8300 8301001 52310 
CMA_PLAN_PRGMS 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS: This Project Work Order is issued and entered into as of 
the last date written below in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the 
“Master Agreement with (CONTRACTOR) dated DECEMBER 31, 2015, which terms are 
hereby incorporated and made part of this Project Work Order.   

NVTA 

By:_______________________________  Date: _______________ 
    KATE MILLER, Executive Director 

CONTRACTOR 

By:________________________________ Date:  _______________ 
     Signature (Print Name and Title of Authorized Person) 

ATTACHMENT 1
NVTA Agenda Item 11.4

April 18, 2018

388

RKULICK
Draft



 

15-22 FEHR & PEERS/05/A1/040218/rk 

Tax ID:  56-088-5615 

389



SR 37 Travel Behavior Bus Transit/Van Pool Feasibility Study  
March 20, 2018 

| 1 | 

Scope of Work 
Data Collection and Analysis 

Fehr & Peers proposes to collect relevant baseline data from a 
variety of sources to gain a robust understanding of how the SR 37 
corridor is currently being utilized by auto traffic.  The project area 
will be divided into the three study segments described in the 
scope of work provided by NVTA.  Data from the various sources 
will be combined and analyzed to identify and quantify auto travel 
demands and the origin-destination and demographic 
characteristics of auto travelers along each study section and the 
corridor as a whole.   

Travel Market Assessment 

Fehr & Peers proposes to include a “Big Data” analysis of the 
existing transit-serve-able auto travel market of the SR 37 corridor. 
This analysis will provide the four North Bay Congestion 
Management Agencies and the stakeholders with a new 
understanding of travel behavior in the SR 37 corridor based on 
analysis of data on the movements of mobile devices.   

This analysis will establish the size of the potential transit market in 
the SR 37 travel-shed, and will describe the travel time and 
reliability characteristics of the three segments and how they may 
effect travel patterns and the potential for transit usage.  By 
identifying the existing characteristics of the auto travel experience, 
this analysis will estimate potential transit market share and 
characterize necessary improvements to support transit usage. 

Key existing auto travel markets will be identified to help determine 
if there are markets that can feasibly and cost-effectively be served 
by transit.  The study will focus on identify groupings of origin-
destination patterns with demographic characteristics consistent 
with other transit users in the Bay Area.  The study will also identify 
the percentage of the origin-destination patterns that are small 
with dispersed origins and destination which will be difficult to 
serve by transit. 

390

RKULICK
Typewritten Text
                                 EXHIBIT A



 

| 2 |  

This market analysis will help communicate to the public and to 
stakeholders the relative benefits and cost-effectiveness of 
providing transit investments in the corridor, and it will create a 
useful framework for considering SR 37 transit plans over the longer 
term. 

While we have worked with many different data providers, our 
approach is designed under the assumption we would use 
StreetLight Data for this study given their demonstrated experience 
supporting similar studies.     

Speed/Travel Time and Volume Data Collection 

The following provides the data sources from which speed and 
average daily traffic (ADT) data will be obtained: 

• INRIX. The INRIX database will be the primary data used to inform 
travel speeds along the SR 37 corridor. The INRIX database has 
predefined segment limits which will determine the way by which 
the speed data is summarized. 

• Traffic counts. Fehr & Peers assumes traffic count data is readily 
available and already summarized by day and time period for the 
SR 37 corridor. 

Origin-Destination Data Collection 

Origin-destination data purchased from StreetLight Data will be 
tagged to a geographic layer of zones.  The zone system will be 
designed to understand trips originating in the corridor that could 
be served by transit if transit services were provided.  The zone 
system will be coordinated with the TAZ system from the MTC 
travel demand model for comparison and future/alternative 
forecasting purposes.  

As part of the broader zone system, SR 37 will be broken down into 
three segments to understand how and why existing auto usage 
varies along the corridor.  Each of these zones will be identified as a 
“middle-filter” location for which the origin and destination of trips 
travelling through each location will be captured.  Traffic count data 
will be used to factor the relative sample of person trips provided 

391



SR 37 Travel Behavior Bus Transit/Van Pool Feasibility Study  
March 20, 2018 

| 3 | 

by StreetLight Data to understand absolute as well as relative 
magnitudes of trips. 

The final geographic layer of zones and three “middle-filter” 
locations will be provided to StreetLight Data.  StreetLight Data will 
tag “origin-destination points” to the geographic layer and provide 
origin-destination trip tables based on mobile devices that provide 
the number of person trips for each zone to zone origin-destination 
pair for all trip purposes that occur within the study corridor, 
including visitor and pass-through trips.  Trip tables will be 
provided that index the number of trips between each zone that 
travel through each “middle-filter” location along SR 37.  A separate 
trip table is provided for each “middle-filter” location, effectively 
providing three points of travel for each origin-destination zone 
pair (the origin location, the roadway location the person trip 
traveled through, and the destination location). Traffic counts 
available at “middle-filter” locations can be used to factor indexed 
or “relative” trips to “absolute” trips.  The data will be provided in a 
format nearly identical to that produced by a travel demand model 
which will allow for comparison and refinement with the MTC 
model. 

Data will be purchased for one time period when school was in 
session.  This will also ensure the data is consistent with the MTC 
model outputs as travel demand models are typically developed to 
forecast an average day when school is in session from a specified 
year. 

Travel Market Assessment Methodology 

Fehr & Peers will conduct a travel market assessment to establish 
the size of the auto travel markets in the SR 37 travel-shed and to 
describe the travel time and reliability characteristics of the three 
segments. Travel markets served by auto will be identified to 
determine if there is a market for transit in the form of bus routes, a 
bus-rapid transit line, or improved van/car pool service connecting 
the market areas.   

This travel market analysis will help communicate to the public and 
to stakeholders the relative benefits and cost effectiveness of 

392



 

| 4 |  

making near-term transit investments in the corridor, and it will 
create a useful framework for considering SR 37 transit plans over 
the longer term. 

The data will be used to answer key questions regarding the travel 
market of trips that travel along each of the three “middle-filters.”  

Scope of Work 

Task 1:  Kick-Off Meeting 

Fehr & Peers will meet with the Committee to finalize the scope of 
work and solidify a schedule for completing the project.  The 
recommended data collection plan may be refined or changed 
depending on input received. 

Deliverable:  Draft Scope and Schedule   

Task 2:  Meet with the Committee and the Public 

Fehr & Peers will meet with the Committee and the public to gain 
feedback on the draft scope of work and schedule, as well as their 
desired outcomes from the study.  This task will include the 
development of a PowerPoint presentation to provide the 
committee with an overview of the scope of work, types of 
questions that will be answered by the study, and examples of 
visual communication methods used on previous studies. 

Deliverable:  Final Scope and Schedule 

Task 3:  Gather Existing Travel Behavior Data 

Fehr & Peers will gather existing, available information about 
employment, schools, and tourism, and review with the Committee.     

Deliverable:  Memo summarizing existing travel behavior data 

Task 4: Vehicle Count Data Analysis 

Vehicle counts play a pivotal role in any travel behavior study as 
they provide the total directional traffic volume by desired time 
period at the survey data locations that can be used as a control 
total to refine travel behavior data collected via other methods.   

393



SR 37 Travel Behavior Bus Transit/Van Pool Feasibility Study  
March 20, 2018 

| 5 | 

Fehr & Peers will summarize available traffic count data for the 
following three time periods, which coincide with the proposed 
mobile device data collection time periods, to supplement the 
mobile device data collection. 

• Tuesday to Thursday, representing a single average commute day 

• Friday 

• Saturday to Sunday, representing a single average weekend day.   

Task 5:  INRIX Data Analysis 

In addition to origin-destination data, existing INRIX link-speed 
data will be obtained for the SR 37 corridor.  INRIX collects roadway 
travel speeds from in-vehicle GPS devices or smart phone 
applications that can be separated for passenger and commercial 
vehicles. In addition to travel speeds, data can be viewed and 
summarized to help understand the location of bottlenecks, the 
extent and duration of queueing, and how they vary over time. 

The data will be used to understand existing corridor reliability by 
segment which will help inform transit recommendations. 

Task 6:  Mobile Device Data Analysis 

Fehr & Peers has carefully reviewed the Scope of Work and 
conclusions the Committee wishes to draw and proposes to 
purchase from StreetLight Data the following three data products.  

• Cuebiq-based origin and destination data 

• Cuebiq-based home and work place distribution  

• Cuebiq-based origin and destination “middle-filter” data for each 
of the three study segments 

Fehr & Peers will coordinate with Agency staff to develop a 
geographic layer for the nine Bay Area counties based on the MTC 
Model zone system.  

394



 

| 6 |  

Fehr & Peers will provide StreetLight Data with the geographic layer 
that the “origin-destination points” will be tagged to.  StreetLight 
Data will then provide Fehr & Peers with origin-destination, “middle 
filter”, and home-work data in a tabular format.   

The data will be stratified as described below but can be adjusted. 

• Day Type – average weekday (Tuesday to Thursday), Friday, 
average weekend day (Saturday to Sunday)  

• Day Part - Early AM, AM Peak Period, Mid-Day, PM peak period, 
Late-Night, and Daily 

• Vehicle type - data for personal automobiles and commercial 
vehicles will be provided and analyzed separately   

Premium traveler metrics will also be provided for the Cuebiq-
based data, providing trip purpose, home/work place distribution, 
and demographic data based on 2010 American Community Survey 
(ACS) data.  

Due to privacy concerns and sample rates, the indexed trip values in 
the trip tables described above represent “relative” rather than 
“absolute” trips.  Using the relative relationship of trips from each 
zone to every other zone, percentage distributions from the data 
can be analyzed and compared to the model percentages or other 
data sources.   

Fehr & Peers will analyze the mobile device data and utilize vehicle 
counts to “relative” data to “absolute” data.   

Fehr & Peers has prepared a budget assuming the purchase of one 
time period of data for the geographic layer. 

Task 7:  Transit/Van Pool Inventory and Service/Infrastructure 
Recommendations 

Fehr & Peers will develop a list and geocode existing transit hubs 
and park and ride facilities in the vicinity of the corridor.  Using the 
travel behavior and associated demographic data Fehr & Peers will 
recommend other locations for facilities and infrastructure that 
could enhance and encourage transit and van pool use.  

395



SR 37 Travel Behavior Bus Transit/Van Pool Feasibility Study  
March 20, 2018 

| 7 | 

Fehr & Peers will suggest a logical approach to deploying transit in 
the corridor considering the five systems that currently operate 
within the vicinity of SR 37.  Headway and hours of operation data 
will be recommended based on the day type and day part analysis. 

Van pool/car pool/or microtransit proposals that could reduce 
congestion and improve mobility will also be suggested. 

Task 8:  Deliverables 

The final, compiled data along with proposed conclusions will be 
presented to the Committee for review.  The data and key findings 
will then be summarized into a final report describing the process 
and analysis results. 

Task 9: Presentation to Committee 

Fehr & Peers will attend one in-person meeting to present key 
findings to the Committee.  Fehr & Peers has budgeted for the 
development of a PowerPoint presentation.  Fehr & Peers will work 
closely with staff to prepare a PowerPoint presentation that will 
include an appropriate amount of process description, technical 
analysis detail, and key findings for their respective audiences. 

 

396



 

 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
SCOPE OF WORK 

 
SR 37 Travel Behavior Bus Transit/Van Pool Feasibility Study 

 
 

I. INTRODUCTION 
 
State Route 37 is the most traveled east-west corridor in the North Bay.  The corridor has 
significant traveler delays and is frequently inundated due to storm-related flooding.  
Traffic congestion in the a.m. peak westbound is experienced for 6 hours daily during the 
weekday with the average delay of about 30 minutes and delays are experienced for 
about 7 hours of the weekday in the p.m. peak heading eastbound with delays on average 
of 80 minutes.  The corridor is also frequently congested on weekends.   
 
The four North Bay Congestion Management Agencies (CMAs), Napa Valley 
Transportation Authority (NVTA), Solano Transportation Authority (STA), Sonoma County 
Transportation Authority (SCTA), and Transportation Authority of Marin (TAM), formed  a 
policy board to address congestion and sea level rise in the corridor.  The SR 37 working 
group is evaluating near and long term improvements. Based on earlier work completed 
by UC Davis and Caltrans, the corridor has been broken into 3 segments.  These 
segments have been maintained as part of the SR 37 Policy Corridor Study and Design 
Alternative Analysis.  They include: 
 
Segment A – From US 101 to the signalized SR 121 Intersection at Sears Point, SR 37 
is a four-lane express way with 3.4 miles in Marin County and 3.9 miles in Sonoma 
County.   
 
Segment B- East of Sears Point, SR 37 becomes a two-lane conventional highway with 
a median barrier as it crosses the Napa-Sonoma marshlands from SR 121 to Mare Island 
with 2.3 miles in Sonoma County and 7 miles in Solano County. 
 
Segment C – is a four lane freeway starting at Mare Island and continuing eastward, 
mostly on elevated roadway and structures, 4.4 miles to its termination at I-80 in Solano 
County. 
 
A key component to addressing congestion is the proposed widening of Segment B.  This 
could be a two-phase project with an initial reversible lane, largely within the existing 
ROW addressing the immediate need for traffic congestion relief, with an ultimate project 
of adding 2 additional traffic lanes and raising segment B.  Both phase 1 and phase 2 
would most likely be funded with through tolling the roadway.   
 

397



 

 

In addition to evaluating highway infrastructure improvements, the CMAs are also 
evaluating other modes in the corridor to both relieve congestion and to address equity 
questions that have arisen as part of the tolling proposal including studying Bus Transit 
and improved Van/Car Pool service along the corridor. 
 
The purpose of this study is to understand the demand and propensity to use bus transit 
or van/car pools on SR 37.  Currently there is no east-west transit service.  The CMAs 
are also studying Ferry and Rail service as part of a separate effort.  This study will build 
on existing origin and destination studies and surveys to analyze trip purpose.  The study 
will identify the types of work that people do to understand how or if, and when personal 
vehicles are necessary.   
 
The project team will be the SR 37 Bus Transit/Van Pool Steering Committee 
(“Committee”) which will includes staff members from the following agencies led by NVTA 
(Vine): 

• Solano Transportation Authority (STA) 
• Sonoma County Transportation Authority (SCTA) 
• Transportation Authority of Marin 

 
In coordination with affected Transit Agencies: 

• Golden Gate Transit 
• Marin Transit 
• Soltrans 
• Sonoma County Transit 
• Water Emergency Transportation Authority 
• SMART 

 
II. SCOPE OF WORK 
 
 

A. Kick-off meeting. Meet with Committee to finalize scope and solidify a 
schedule for completing the project.  Elements of the project must be completed 
on a timely basis and data must be captured on specific intervals in order to 
understand seasonal travel and school travel.  Failure to meet critical deadlines 
associated with public funding could result in reduced scope of work. 
 
B. Work with Committee staff and members of the public (as part of the SR 37 
public meetings)  to gain feedback on project elements and desired outcomes of 
the Travel Behavior Study update. 
 
C. Gather existing, available information about employment, schools and 
tourism destinations of users in the corridor, and review with the committee to 
identify data gaps and research questions.   
 

398



 

 

D. With input from Committee, design a data approach for obtaining desired 
outcomes for the SR 37 Travel Behavior Bus Transit/Van Pool Feasibility Study; 
data sources may include but are not limited to the following:  

• Vehicle counts  
• License plate scanning  
• Mobile source data  
• Online Surveys of Employers and Schools 
• Video detection  
• Census data (ACS, Household Survey, etc.) 
• Existing studies on the corridor listed under Section H 
 

 
E. Collect and analyze data, reaching conclusions about:  

 
• The number of trips per day, origins, and destinations and trip 

purpose. 
• The number of trips per day, origins, and destinations that are 

associated with major employers. 
• Commuter profile - Where do residents commute to and what 

counties are workers commuting from?  
• Develop user profile of corridor user including pertinent 

demographics/indicators for transit and vanpool propensity, including 
but not limited to income, age, gender, and auto ownership. 

• The predominant modes of travel, vehicle occupancies, and peak 
times of day/week with seasonal variations. 

• Vehicle classification counts should be done Tuesday-Thursday 
rather than a Monday or Friday, as Monday and Friday vehicle 
counts may not be representative of typical weekday demand.  

• Obtain information on typical shift times for employees. 
• Existing employer-based programs that reduce traffic congestion 

and or travel during peak periods, such as flexible work schedules, 
subsidizing van pools or transit, etc. and employer interest in 
expanded programs. 

• If surveys are used, surveys should include basic questions about 
willingness to use alternative modes for work and non-work trips 
(transit, vanpool, private excursion services such as limousine, etc.). 

• Survey should include follow up of why drivers have not shifted to 
alternate modes, and what would incentivize them to use transit, 
vanpool/carpool, biking, or other options.   

• Survey should include work and live locations, commuters that live 
outside the corridor area, and query the reasons for living elsewhere 
(housing cost, housing affordability, housing availability, housing 
stock type, other costs, community, commuter options, or other, etc.). 

399



• The consultant should present new technologies and data methods
that are cost effective in obtaining the desired travel data, such as
travel data generated from cell phones, blue tooth, GPS, etc.

• Review the collected data and proposed conclusions with Agency
staff and committees.

• Build off data already collected as part of the TAM, Sonoma and
NVTA Travel Behavior Studies
• Prepare and provide edits for an administrative draft report for review

and comment, a public draft, and a final report for approval
• Present findings of report to The SR 37 Project Leadership Team,

the Executive Committee and the SR 37 Policy Committee.

G. Transit/Van Pool Inventory and Service/Infrastructure Recommendations
• Develop a list of existing transit hubs and/or park and ride facilities

throughout the corridor.
• Based on existing locations and understanding of transit/van pool

demand, recommend other locations for facilities and infrastructure
that could enhance and encourage transit and van pool use.

• Suggest a logical approach to deploying transit in the corridor
considering the five systems that currently operate within the vicinity
of SR 37 including Golden Gate Transit, Marin Transit, Napa Vine,
Soltrans, and Sonoma County Transit.

o Recommend transit route structure (including location,
headway and hours of operation)

• Suggest van pool/car pool/or microtransit proposals that could
reduce congestion and improve mobility

H. Additional Data and Studies that can be used as reference include but are
not limited to:

• TAM SR 37 Origin and Destination Study
• SR 37 Corridor Survey
• NVTA Travel Behavior Studies (2014 and 2018)
• Sonoma County Transportation Authority - Highway 37 Origin and

Destination Analysis

I. Meetings:
• Meet with SR 37 ESC to present findings and refine presentation

materials.
• Present findings at the SR 37 Policy Steering Committee.

400



Principal-In-Charge Project Manager Technical Advisor
Local Knowledge 

Expert Engineer/Planner
Graphics / 

Administrative Total

Julie Morgan Kevin Johnson Mike Wallace Bob Grandy TBD TBD

$300 $190 $265 $325 $140 $130

4 4 0 0 0 2 10

4 4 0 0 0 6 14

1 4 2 2 8 4 21

1 2 0 0 4 2 9
Use Available 

Counts

0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Use Available 

Data

4 24 6 2 60 24 120
Included in 

Subscription

4 8 4 4 4 16 40

4 16 2 2 4 4 32

4 8 0 0 0 2 14

26 70 14 10 80 60 260

$7,800 $13,300 $3,710 $3,250 $11,200 $7,800 $47,060 $0 $0 $0

Fehr & Peers Total $47,060
Wiltec Total $0
INRIX Total $0

StreetLight Data Total $0
PROJECT TOTAL $47,060

Total Hours

Task 4: Vehicle Count Data Analysis

Task 6: Mobile Device Data Analysis

Task 7: Transit/Van Pool and ServiceRecommendations

INRIX StreetLight Data

SUB

Direct Cost

Total Cost

Task 1: Kick-Off Meeting

Task 3: Gather Existing Travel Behavior Data

Hourly Rates

Task 8: Deliverables

Task 9: Presentation to Committee

Task 2: Meet with Committee and the Public

Wiltec

FEHR & PEERS

Hours

Task 5: INRIX Link-Speed Data along SR 37

Task

Not-to-Exceed Cost Proposal: 
SR 37 Travel Behavior Study

Total Hourly Rate

401

RKULICK
Typewritten Text
          EXHIBIT B



April 18, 2018 
NVTA Agenda Item 11.5 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Kate Miller, Executive Director 

(707) 259-8634 / Email: kmiller@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Federal and State Legislative Updates and State Bill Matrix 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board receive the monthly 
Federal and State Legislative updates, and act on new bills on the State Bill Matrix. 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

None 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Board will receive the Federal Transportation Legislative update (Attachment 1) 
provided by Van Scoyoc Associates, the State Legislative update (Attachment 2), and 
act on new bills included on the State Bill Matrix (Attachment 3). 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Is there a Fiscal Impact? No 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

Attachments:  (1) April 2, 2018 Federal Legislative Update (Van Scoyoc 
 Associates) 

(2) March 22, 2018 FY Omnibus Summary Transit and Highway
(Van Scoyoc)

(3) April 2, 2018 State Legislative Update (Platinum Advisors)
(4) April 2, 2018 State Bill Matrix (Platinum Advisors)

402

mailto:kmiller@nvta.ca.gov


1 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 
NVTA Agenda Item 11.5 

April 18, 2018  

 

 

 
 
TO:  Kate Miller, NVTA 
FROM: Steve Palmer, Channon Hanna, and David Haines 
DATE:  April 2, 2018  
SUBJECT: Federal Legislative Update  
 
The following is a summary of federal legislative activities related to transportation, 
housing, and environmental issues over the last month.   
 
Legislative Action 
 
DHS Authorization.  On March 7, the Senate and Governmental Affairs Committee held 
a markup of H.R. 2825, the Department of Homeland Security Authorization Act. 
 
Surface Transportation Security.  On March 7, the House Homeland Security 
Committee approved on voice voted multiple bills aimed at mitigating terrorist threats to 
transit, highways, and rail.  The bills are: 

• H.R. 5089 – The Strengthening Local Transportation Security Capabilities Act of 
2018, legislation to improve threat information sharing, integrated operations, and 
law enforcement training for transportation security. 

• H.R. 4227 – The Vehicular Terrorism Prevention Act of 2017 would require the 
Secretary of Homeland Security to examine what actions the Department of 
Homeland Security is undertaking to combat the threat of vehicular terrorism. 

• H.R. 5131 – The Surface Transportation Security Improvement Act of 2018, 
intended to improve the effectiveness of federal efforts to address security risks to 
surface transportation, secure against vehicle-based attacks, and conduct a 
feasibility assessment of introducing new security technologies and measures.  

• H.R. 5081 – The Surface Transportation Security and Technology Accountability 
Act of 2018 would establish within the Transportation Security Administration 
(TSA) the Surface Transportation Security Advisory Committee.  

 
SENSE Act.  On March 8, the House passed H.R. 1119, the Satisfying Energy Needs 
and Saving the Environment Act (SENSE Act).  The bill would ease emission limits for 
hazardous air pollutants from electric power plants that convert coal refuse into energy.  
The legislation has moved to the Senate for further consideration and has been referred 
to the Committee on Environment and Public Works. 
 
FY 2018 Omnibus.  On March 22, the House passed a $1.3 trillion spending package to 
avert a government shutdown and provide federal funding for FY 2018.  On March 23, 
the Senate passed the FY 2018 Omnibus shortly after midnight. 

403



2 
 

 
Congressional Hearings 
 
Trump Infrastructure Proposal.  On March 1, the Senate Environmental and Public 
Works Committee held a hearing on President Trump’s infrastructure proposal.  
Department of Transportation (DOT) Secretary Elaine Chao and Assistant Secretary of 
the Army for Civil Works R.D. James testified at the hearing.  Secretary Chao argued that 
investment incentives for infrastructure, elimination of burdensome regulations, rural 
America support, and streamlining the permitting process are the major ways on how the 
federal government should address the nation’s infrastructure needs.  
 
Trump Infrastructure Proposal.  On March 6, the House Transportation and 
Infrastructure Committee held a hearing to review the Trump administration’s 
infrastructure proposal.  DOT Secretary Elaine Chao was the sole witness. 
 
Funding for Highway and Transit Programs.  On March 7, the House Transportation 
and Infrastructure Committee’s Subcommittee on Highway and Transit held a hearing on 
long-term funding issues for future public transit and highway projects.  Witnesses 
included representatives from American Association of State Highway and Transportation 
Officials (AASHTO), Wester Road Use Change Consortium, American Trucking 
Associations, U.S. Chamber of Commerce, and Economic Policy Institute. 
 
Future of Transportation Fuels and Vehicles.  On March 7, the House Energy and 
Commerce Committee’s Subcommittee on the Environment held a hearing examining the 
future of transportation vehicles and fuels. Witnesses included representatives from U.S. 
Energy Information Administration, Fuels Institute, National Renewable Energy 
Laboratory, Resources for the Future, and Union of Concerned Scientists. 
 
State and Local Needs for Rebuilding Infrastructure.  On March 13, the Senate 
Commerce Committee’s Subcommittee on Surface Transportation and Merchant Marine 
Infrastructure, Safety, and Security held a hearing to examine opportunities to improve 
the national transportation network.  Witnesses included representatives from National 
League of Cities, Nebraska DOT, C.H. Robinson, and American Short Line and Regional 
Railroad Association. 
 
Views from the Administration on Rebuilding Infrastructure.  On March 14, the 
Senate Commerce, Science and Transportation Committee held a hearing to review the 
administration’s infrastructure proposal.  DOT Secretary Elaine Chao, Commerce 
Secretary Wilbur Ross, Energy Secretary Rick Perry, Labor Secretary Alexander Acosta, 
and Agriculture Secretary Sonny Perdue all testified at the hearing. 
 
Oversight of HUD.  On March 22, the Senate Banking, Housing, and Urban Affairs 
Committee held a hearing to provide oversight of Housing and Urban Development 
(HUD).  HUD Secretary Ben Carson was the sole witness at the hearing. 
 
 

404



3 
 

Executive Branch 
 
EPA Year One Accomplishments.  On March 5, EPA released a report of 
accomplishments spearheaded by Administrator Pruitt during his first year in office, 
including 22 deregulatory actions among other EPA actions. 
 
National Environmental Justice Advisory Committee Member Appointments.  On 
March 7, EPA Administrator Scott Pruitt announced the appointment of eight new 
members to the National Environmental Justice Advisory Committee.  The Committee 
provides advice and recommendations about broad, cross-cutting issues related to 
environmental justice to the EPA Administrator.  The following entities are represented 
through the new appointments:  Continental Maritime of San Diego; Jacobs Engineering; 
J5 GBL; South Carolina Department of Health and Environmental Control; National 
Environmental Health Association; Michigan State Conference NAACP; West Atlanta 
Watershed Alliance and Procter Creek Stewardship Council; and JASTECH 
Development Services. 
 
DOT TIGER Announcement.  On March 9, DOT announced $500 million in discretionary 
grant funding for 41 road, transit, maritime, and rail projects through the Transportation 
Investment Generating Economy Recovery (TIGER) grants program.  More than 64 
percent of funding was awarded to rural projects. 
 
Partial FY 2018 Apportionment Tables.  On March 19, the Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA) released the partial FY 2018 apportionment tables making available 
more than $4.5 billion to FTA grantees. 
 
FY 2018 Omnibus.  On March 23, the President signed into law the FY 2018 omnibus 
appropriations bill which provides funding to the federal government through FY 2018. 
 

### 

405



 
FY 2018 OMNIBUS SUMMARY – TRANSIT AND HIGHWAY 

March 22, 2018 
 
Steven O. Palmer, Vice President 
Channon Hanna, Director 
David Haines, Director 
 
 
Background 
 
Yesterday, House and Senate leaders released the FY 2018 Omnibus Appropriations bill, which is needed 
to fund the government through September 30. The bill includes an additional $63 billion for non-
defense spending, including $10 billion in new infrastructure spending.  Earlier this afternoon, the House 
of Representatives passed the bill on a 253-173 vote.  It now heads to the Senate, where debate will 
start today.  The bill has the support of the President. 
 
For the Department of Transportation, the bill provides a total of $86.2 billion in total budgetary 
resources. This is an increase of $8.7 billion above FY 2017 funding levels.   
 
The following are highlights of the surface transportation programs in the bill.  
 
Transit 

• Provides $13.5 billion in total budgetary resources for the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), 
which is $1 billion above FY 2017 funding levels and $2.3 billion above the President’s FY 2018 
budget request 

• $9.7 billion is provided for all formula grant programs consistent with the FAST Act 
• $2.64 billion for Capital Investment Grants, compared to $2.4 billion in FY 2017 

o $1.5 billion to fund new starts projects 
o $715.7 million to fund core capacity projects 
o $400.9 million to fund small starts projects  
o Includes bill language requiring the Secretary to propose funding allocations in the annual 

report to Congress on New Starts 
o Includes bill language requiring the Secretary to administer the CIG program in accordance 

with the law 
o Restricts the federal share for a new starts project to be 51% or less 
o Includes non-binding report language which requires the Secretary to obligate $2.25 billion 

of the amounts provided for CIG by December 31, 2019 
o Includes report language which directs the Secretary to provide updated project rankings 

expeditiously at the request of the project sponsor. 
 

ATTACHMENT 2 
NVTA Agenda Item 11.5 

April 18, 2018 

406



• Bus and Bus Facilities program was increased by $400 million 
o $654.6 million for the formula programs 
o $407.95 million for the competitive grant program 
o $84.5 million for the LoNo Emissions grant program 

• $150 million for Washington Metro 
 

Rail 
• $3.1 billion for rail infrastructure and safety programs 

o $1.9 billion for Amtrak, of which $650 is for the Northeast Corridor 
o $863 million for positive train control (PTC) grants 
o $25 million for Railroad Rehabilitation and Innovative Financing (RRIF) loan program 
o $287 million to support rail safety and research programs 
o $250 million for the Federal-State Partnership for State of Good Repair grants 

 
TIGER Grant Program 

• Provides $1.5 billion for the TIGER grant program, which is $1 billion more than in FY 2017 
o $15 million available for planning, preparation, and design work 
o $300 million for credit assistance 
o Urban area grants are to be between $5 million and $25 million 
o No more than $150 million to any individual state (10%) 
o At least $450 million for rural areas and rural grants should be at least $1 million 

 
Highways 

• Provides $47.5 billion as authorized by the FAST Act, a $1 billion increase over FY 2017 levels, 
and includes an additional $2.5 billion from the general fund, to be allocated through the 
Surface Transportation Block (STB) grant program, using the same FAST Act formulas 

o $1.98 billion from general funds are for road and bridge projects eligible under STB 
o $4.2 million is for the territorial highway program 
o $300 million is for the national significant federal lands and tribal projects program 
o $225 million is for a competitive bridge program 

• Continues a provision to allow old, unused earmarks to be repurposed for current 
transportation projects 

• Includes bill language which requires the Secretary to make an informal public notice and 
comment opportunity at least 15 days before issuing a Buy America Waiver 

• Includes bill language that requires the Secretary to provide an annual report to Congress on any 
Buy America waivers granted 

• Includes bill language that requires DOT to notify Congress at least 60 days before awarding 
INFRA grants 

• Includes report language which directs the Secretary to submit the report required by the House 
on bridge corrosion control best practices 
 

National Surface Transportation and Innovative Finance Bureau 
• Provides $3 million for the Bureau which consolidates the TIFIA, RRIF, PAB, and INFRA grants 

 

407



1 
 

 
 
 
 
April 2, 2018 
 
TO: Kate Miller, Executive Director 
 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
 
FR: Steve Wallauch 
 Platinum Advisors 
 
RE: Legislative Update          
 
Spring Break:  The Legislature returns from spring break today to begin the dash 
toward the first hearing deadline on April 27th, as well as the jumble of budget 
subcommittee hearings.  

However, prior to leaving town, the Senate unanimously elected Senator Toni Atkins to 
be the President Pro Tempore of the Senate.  She was sworn in as the new Senate 
leader on March 21st. There are a lot of firsts with this selection.  Pro Tem Atkins is the 
first woman Pro Tem, the first LGBT Pro Tem, and the first former Assembly Speaker to 
be elected Pro Tem in 146 years.  While there is a lot of excitement about this change, 
don’t expect significant changes right away.  There will be changes to committee chairs 
and membership, but word is these changes will likely not occur until after the house of 
origin deadline which is June 1st.   
 
Zero Emission Buses:  In December the California Air Resources Board (CARB) staff 
released a “discussion” draft rule for transitioning public transit buses to zero emission 
by 2040.  This proposal mainly centered on imposing a purchase mandate that phases 
in the number of zero emission buses a transit operator must purchase.  This document 
has sparked considerable debate amongst transit operators, bus suppliers, and 
environmental groups on whether the proposed goals are achievable.   

CARB staff recently released an update based on the comments received on the 
Innovative Clean Transit (ICT) discussion document.  The release of this document 
precedes an anticipated workshop that will be scheduled sometime in April to discuss 
changes to the ICT language.  CARB staff is encouraging all interested parties to submit 
comments.  The expectation is CARB will begin the formal rule making process shortly 
after the April workshop in order to present the ICT rule to the Board at its July meeting 
for adoption. 

 

ATTACHMENT 3 
NVTA Agenda Item 11.5 

April 18, 2018 

408



2 
 

The update contains following areas where changes are being considered: 

• The ICT discussion draft would require large transit operators in 2020 to have 
zero emission buses account for 25% of the buses purchased that year.  CARB 
staff appears to be willing to delay the start date, but staff is seeking comments 
on the best strategy to provide additional time while also encouraging near-term 
action. 

• As proposed in the ICT draft, an operator would be ineligible for CARB funding 
programs if the operator fails to meet the purchase mandate deadlines.  CARB 
staff is seeking comments on finding the right balance of incentivizing early 
action with the need to provide operators with adequate access to funding. 

• The current ICT draft would apply to all transit buses with a weight greater than 
14,000 pounds.  However, CARB staff recognizes that there is not a 
commercially available zero emission bus known as a “cutaway.”  These smaller 
buses comprise of 25% of the statewide transit bus fleet.  CARB staff will 
propose to eliminate these vehicles from the ICT rule, but will revisit this issue 
once a fully tested and commercially available zero emission cutaway becomes 
available. 

• CARB staff is also seeking comments on the best approach to periodically revisit 
the regulations.  They are interested in how to include “on-ramps” for when the 
regulation should be expanded, such as when to add cutaways, and the inclusion 
of “off-ramps” for when specific exemptions should be granted, or where 
requirements need to be decreased or delayed. 

CARB staff would like any comments to be submitted as soon as possible in order to 
incorporate them into the April workshop.  The entire document can be found here: 
https://arb.ca.gov/msprog/ict/meeting/mt180327/180327ictconcept.pdf 
 
Supermajority Approval:  The California Business Roundtable is one of the main 
proponents of the “Tax Fairness, Transparency and Accountability Act of 2018,” which 
expands the requirement for a 2/3 vote on taxes and fees.  There are two proposals 
circulating; one applies to both state and local taxes and fees, and another applies only 
to local taxes and fees.   

The objective of these initiatives is to reverse Supreme Court decisions.  The court 
decisions include the City of Upland case that found Prop 218 does not apply to citizen 
initiatives that impose taxes or fees; the Cal Chamber v. CARB decision that found that 
the cap & trade program is not a tax or a fee; and the Schmeer v. Los Angeles County 
case that found that requiring retailers to collect 10 cents for providing paper bags was 
not an illegal fee.  The changes go beyond these court cases, and would require any 
local tax and most fees to be approved by a 2/3 vote regardless of whether it is a 
special or general purpose tax.  This initiative if approved in November might also 
reverse Regional Measure 3 if it is approved with a majority vote in June. 

409

https://arb.ca.gov/msprog/ict/meeting/mt180327/180327ictconcept.pdf


3 
 

The initiative that applies to both state and local fees and taxes has already gathered 
25% of the signatures needed to qualify.  Both of the initiatives in circulation must 
submit 585,407 valid signatures by July 25, 2018, to qualify for the November ballot. 

The initiative includes the following changes, and the full text can be found here:  
https://www.oag.ca.gov/system/files/initiatives/pdfs/17-0050%20%28Two-
Thirds%20Vote%20Requirement%20V1%29.pdf 

• The Constitution requires both houses of the legislature to approve any tax by a 
2/3 vote.  The initiative expands the definition of a tax that requires a 2/3 vote to 
include any levy, charge or exaction of any kind that is not specifically defined as 
an “exempt charge.”  An exempt charge includes, among others, fees for service, 
state park entrance fees, and judicial fine or penalty.  In addition, state laws 
enacting new taxes must specify how revenues can be spent.  

• The initiative would require regulations that contain a new, increased, or 
extended revenue-generating measure shall not be given any force or effect 
unless two-thirds of each legislative chamber approves the regulation.   

• The initiative heightens legal threshold for state and local governments to prove 
that fees passed without two-thirds approval are not taxes. 

• The initiative invalidates local taxes imposed in 2018, unless taxes meet criteria 
adopted by this measure. 

• The initiative defines any levy, charge, or exaction of any kind that is imposed, 
adopted, created, or established by local law is either a tax or exempt charge.  
The initiative requires either a special tax or general tax to be approved by 2/3 of 
the governing board and 2/3 of the electorate.  The tax measure must contain a 
binding statement on how the revenue can be spent, and state if the revenue is 
for unrestricted general revenue purposes.  

• The initiative would require a two-thirds vote of the electorate for all taxes, 
including those put on the ballot through an initiative.  

 
Legislation: 

CARB Funds:  The California Transit Association (CTA) is sponsoring AB 3201 in an 
effort to secure a funding stream to transition to zero emission transit buses.  The draft 
rule to transition to zero emission buses would limit transit operators’ access to cap & 
trade funds to only those vehicle purchases that exceed the current purchase mandate.  
CARB views this restriction as an incentive for operators to purchase zero emission 
buses before the purchase mandate takes effect.  However, there remains significant 
uncertainty regarding the availability of funds.   

AB 3201 as currently drafted would amend the California Clean Truck, Bus, and Off-
Road Vehicle and Equipment Technology Program (Program) to require CARB to 
establish a funding program for large-scale deployments that meet current and future 
regulatory obligations.  The bill would also clarify that infrastructure needs are also an 

410

https://www.oag.ca.gov/system/files/initiatives/pdfs/17-0050%20%28Two-Thirds%20Vote%20Requirement%20V1%29.pdf
https://www.oag.ca.gov/system/files/initiatives/pdfs/17-0050%20%28Two-Thirds%20Vote%20Requirement%20V1%29.pdf


4 

eligible expense.  While the content of AB 3201 will evolve, the intent of this bill is to 
create dedicated funding stream to assist transit operators in transitioning to zero 
emission fleets. 

Electricity Rates:  The CTA is also sponsoring SB 1434 (Leyva).  This bill aims to 
address the volatility with electricity rates when charging battery electric buses. 
Specifically, SB 1434 directs the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) to 
initiate a new rate making proceeding for the cost of electricity that is used as a fuel. 
The fluctuation of electricity rates is a key obstacle in scaling up the use battery electric 
buses.  While legislature is not necessary for the CPUC to act on this issue, broad 
support and legislative direction will assist in moving this issues forward. 

411



1 
 

 
April 2, 2018 

 

New Positions 
Bills Subject Status Client - Position 

AB 3201 
(Daly D)  
California 
Clean Truck, 
Bus, and Off-
Road Vehicle 
and 
Equipment 
Technology 
Program. 

The California Transit Association (CTA) 
is sponsoring AB 3201 in an effort to 
secure a funding stream to transition to 
zero emission transit buses.   
 
AB 3201 as currently drafted would 
amend the California Clean Truck, Bus, 
and Off-Road Vehicle and Equipment 
Technology Program (Program) to require 
CARB to establish a funding program for 
large-scale deployments that meet current 
and future regulatory obligations.  The bill 
would also clarify that infrastructure needs 
are also an eligible expense.  While the 
content of AB 3201 will evolve, the intent 
of this bill is to create a dedicated funding 
stream to assist transit operators in 
transitioning to zero emission fleets. 
 

ASSEMBLY   TRANS. Recommended 
Position: 
SUPPORT 

SB 1434 
(Leyva D)  
Transportation 
electrification: 
electricity rate 
design. 

The CTA is also sponsoring SB 1434 
(Leyva).  This bill aims to address the 
volatility with electricity rates when 
charging battery electric buses.  
Specifically, SB 1434 directs the California 
Public Utilities Commission to initiate a 
new rate making proceeding for the cost 
of electricity that is used as a fuel.  The 
fluctuation of electricity rates is a key 
obstacle in scaling up the use battery 
electric buses.   
 

SENATE   RLS. Recommended 
Position: 
SUPPORT 

 
 
 

  

ATTACHMENT 4 
NVTA Agenda Item 11.5 

April 18, 2018 

412

javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%203201');
https://a69.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('SB%201434');
http://sd20.senate.ca.gov/


2 
 

Existing Positions 

Bills Subject Status Client - 
Position 

AB 1 
(Frazier D)  
Transportation 
funding. 

AB 1 was Assemblyman Frazier’s renewed 
effort to address the funding shortfall facing 
our transportation infrastructure.  With that 
passage of SB1, this bill be will likely be 
used for another issue if it is moved 
forward.   
       

ASSEMBLY  
TRANS 
 
DEAD 

SUPPORT 

AB 399 
(Grayson D)  
Autonomous 
vehicles: 
Contra Costa 
Transportation 
Authority: pilot 
project. 

Last year, legislation was enacted to 
authorize the Contra Costa Transportation 
Authority to conduct a pilot project testing 
the use of autonomous vehicles on streets 
that are open to the public, but located 
within a private business park. 
       
AB 399 extends the sunset date on the 
authority for the pilot project to operate 
according to existing law, prior to the 
requirement to then comply with 
regulations being developed by the DMV.  
Currently, this pilot program must comply 
with the DMV regulations within 180 days 
of the operative date of the regulations.  
AB 399 extends this “phase-in” period to 
12 months. 
      
AB 399 has not been set by the Assembly 
Transportation Committee for hearing at 
the January 8th meeting, so it appears that 
this bill is not moving forward.  
       

ASSEMBLY   2 
YEAR 
 
DEAD 

SUPPORT 

AB 1454 
(Bloom D)  
Transportation 
projects: lease 
agreements. 

AB 1454 is now a two-year bill that will not 
be acted on until the legislature returns in 
January. 
      
This bill was amended to remove the 
language that deletes the sunset date on 
the authority for Caltrans and regional 
transportation agencies to enter into public 
private partnerships.  As amended, the bill 
merely states that it is the intent of the 
Legislature to reestablish the public-private 
partnership process.   
     
AB 1454 has also not been set for hearing, 
and will not be moving forward. 
      

ASSEMBLY RULES 
COMMITTEE 

SUPPORT 

413

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180AB1
http://asmdc.org/members/a11/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%20399');
https://a14.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%201454');
https://a50.asmdc.org/


3 
 

AB 1759 
(McCarty D)  
General plans: 
housing 
element: 
production 
report: 
withholding of 
transportation 
funds 

This bill would require the Department 
Housing & Community Development to 
annually review and certify a local 
government’s progress toward meeting its 
share of regional housing needs.  If a city 
or county fails to be certified, the Controller 
is directed to withhold a city’s or county’s 
share of local street and road maintenance 
funds.  Once the city or county becomes 
certified, the Controller would release the 
funds. 
 

ASSEMBLY   PRIN
T 

WATCH 

AB 1866 
(Fong R)  
Transportation 
funding. 

This new measure makes numerous 
changes to transportation funding 
programs.  These changes largely reflect 
the transportation funding proposal pushed 
by the Assembly Republican Caucus last 
year.   
 

ASSEMBLY   TRAN
S 

WATCH 

AB 1901 
(Obernolte R)  
California 
Environmental 
Quality Act: 
exemption: 
roadway 
projects. 

This bill would extend indefinitely an 
existing CEQA exemption for counties or 
cities with a population of less than 
100,000.  The existing program provides a 
limited exemption from CEQA for 
maintenance projects within the existing 
right-of-way if specified conditions are met. 
 

ASSEMBLY   PRIN
T 

SUPPORT 

AB 3124 
(Bloom D)  
Vehicles: length 
limitations: 
buses: bicycle 
transportation 
devices. 

AB 3124 makes a small change with a big 
impact.  This measure amends existing law 
to add 4 inches to the length of a bicycle 
rack mounted on a transit bus.  This 
increase the length a rack may extend from 
the front body of a bus from 36 inches to 
40 inches.  Since this measurement is 
taken from the body of the bus, but the 
rack is mounted on the bumper, this added 
length is needed to comply with the law. 
 

ASSEMBLY   PRIN
T 

SUPPORT 

ACA 4 
(Aguiar-
Curry D)  
Local 
government  
financing: 
ACA 4 
(Aguiar-

ACA 4 would generally lower the voter 
threshold to 55% for imposing the following 
taxes or issuing debt:    
 

• Creates an additional exception to 
the 1% limit that would authorize a 
city or county, to levy an ad valorem 
tax to service bonded indebtedness 

ASSEMBLY L. GOV SUPPORT 

414

javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%201759');
https://a07.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%201866');
https://ad34.asmrc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%201901');
https://ad33.asmrc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%203124');
https://a50.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('ACA%204');
https://a04.asmdc.org/
https://a04.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('ACA%204');
https://a04.asmdc.org/


4 

Curry D) 
Local 
government 
financing: 
affordable 
housing and 
public 
infrastructure: 
voter approval. 
(Cont.) 

incurred to fund the construction, 
reconstruction, rehabilitation, or 
replacement of public infrastructure 
or affordable housing. 

• Authorizes a local government to
impose, extend, or increase a
special tax for the purposes of
funding the construction,
rehabilitation or replacement of
public infrastructure or affordable
housing.

Regional 
Measure 
3/Senate Bill 
595 (Beall) 

SB 595 authored by Senator Jim Beall was 
passed by the Legislature and signed into 
law by Governor brown in the fall of 2017.  
The bill authorizes the Bay Area Toll 
Authority to place Regional Measure 3 on 
the ballot.  At its February 27th meeting, the 
County Board of Supervisors approved 
adding Regional Measure 3 to the June 5, 
2018 ballot.  If approved Regional Measure 
3 will allow the Bay Area Toll Authority to 
increase tolls on the seven (7) state owned 
bridges, as follows:  $1 January 1, 2019, 
$1 January 1, 2022, and $1 January 1, 
2025.  Revenues raised will fund 
transportation projects on the expenditure 
plan to relieve congestion in the bridge 
corridors. 

June 5, 2018 
Statewide Primary 
Election 

SUPPORT 

SB 760 
(Wiener D)  
Bikeways: 
design guides. 

As approved by the Senate, SB 760 was 
scaled back.  As currently drafted, SB 760 
would simply allow Caltrans and local 
entities responsible for the development or 
operation of bikeways or roadways where 
bicycles are permitted, to consider 
additional street design guides such as the 
National Association of City Transportation 
Officials’ (NACTO) Urban Street Design 
Guide. 

Prior versions of this bill would have placed 
new restrictions on Caltrans when 
programming funds in the State Highway 
Operation and Protection Program 
(SHOPP). 

ASSEMBLY   DESK WATCH 

415

https://a04.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('SB%20760');
http://sd11.senate.ca.gov/


5 

SB 827 
(Wiener D)  
Planning and 
zoning: transit-
rich housing 
bonus 

SB 827 would authorize a “transit-rich 
housing project” to be eligible for a “transit-
rich housing bonus.”  A transit-rich housing 
project is a housing project that is located 
within ½ mile of a “major transit stop” or ¼ 
mile from a “high-quality transit corridor.”  If 
the housing project meets these 
requirements then it would be exempt from 
local controls on residential density or floor 
area ratio, parking restrictions, and some 
height restrictions. 

SENATE   T. & H. WATCH 

SCA 2 
(Newman D)  
Motor vehicle 
fees and taxes: 
restriction on 
expenditures. 

With the passage of ACA 5, SCA 2 was 
placed on the Inactive File.  SCA 2 and 
ACA 5 are identical and would 
prospectively prohibit the use of truck 
weight fees to pay for transportation bonds 
approved after January 1, 2017.  The bill 
would also expand the protections for 
Public Transportation Account revenues to 
also include the 1.75% increase to the 
diesel fuel sales tax that was enacted as 
part of the gas tax swap.  The ban on 
borrowing fees and taxes would also apply 
to any vehicle fees or taxes dedicated to 
transportation accounts. 

SENATE INACTIVE 
FILE 

SUPPORT 

SCA 6 
(Wiener D)  
Local 
transportation 
measures: 
special taxes: 
voter approval. 

SCA 6 would allow a local government to 
impose any special tax with a 55% 
approval of the voters if the special tax 
dedicates 100% of the revenues, not 
including collection and administrative 
expenses, to transportation programs and 
projects. 

SENATE APPR – 
SUSPENSE FILE 

SUPPORT 

416

javascript:OpenBillInfo('SB%20827');
http://sd11.senate.ca.gov/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('SCA%202');
http://sd29.senate.ca.gov/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('SCA%206');
http://sd11.senate.ca.gov/

	0000_Agenda
	0.0_Glossary of Acronyms Updated 11-2017
	0001_1_Draft Minutes
	0002_1_Staff Report
	9.2_Revised NVTA Personnel Policies REVISED 04 2018_kes-KM Changes and Questions
	Action Requested: APPROVE
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	9.2_Revised NVTA Personnel Policies Attch 1 REVISED 04 2018_kes-KM Changes Redline (1)
	CHAPTER 1 INTRODUCTION
	Section 1.1. Overview of Personnel Policies
	1.1.1 Statement of Policy
	1.1.2 Construction and Limitations
	1.1.3 Implementation of the Policies


	CHAPTER 2 EMPLOYMENT STATUS
	Section 2.1. Definitions
	Section 2.2. Hiring Process
	2.2.1 Statement of Policy
	2.2.2 Personnel Request
	A. Initiation

	2.2.3 Employee Selection
	A. Job Vacancy Posted
	B. Advertising
	C. Employment Application
	D. Screening Applicants
	E. Interviewing
	F. Documenting the Interview
	G. Selection
	H. Notification.

	2.2.4 Placing Employee on the Payroll
	A. Duties of the Executive Director or Designee:
	1. The prospective employee will be given a conditional offer of employment conditioned upon the successful completion of a background check.
	2. A background check may be conducted.  If the prospective employee passes this part of the screening process, he or she may be required to take a a medical exam
	3. Upon successful completion of the background check and medical exam, the following steps will be taken:
	(a) The ED will send an offer letter to the prospective employee, which must be signed and returned.
	(b) A start date is coordinated with the Human Resources department.
	(c) The prospective employee will be given an orientation interview covering the information identified in Section 2.3.2 of these Policies and Procedures.




	Section 2.3. New Employee Orientation
	2.3.1 Statement of Policy
	2.3.2 Content of Orientation
	A. Information to Be Covered By Administration
	B. Information to Be Covered Regarding Benefits:
	C. Information to Be Covered By Human Resources


	Section 2.4. Probationary Period
	2.4.1 Statement of Policy
	2.4.2 Duration of Probationary Period
	2.4.3 Termination of Probationary Period
	2.4.4 Rejection of Probationer Following Promotion
	2.4.5 Effect of Leaves of Absence on Probationary Period

	Section 2.5. Job Classification
	Section 2.6. Job Descriptions
	Section 2.7. Assignment and Transfer
	2.7.1 Statement of Policy
	2.7.2 Temporary Assignments

	Section 2.8. Promotion
	2.8.1 Statement of Policy
	2.8.2 Application Procedure
	2.8.3 Criteria for Selection
	A. Minimum Qualifications
	B. Other Qualifications

	2.8.4 Probationary Period
	2.8.5 Procedure When Employee Does Not Pass Probation
	A. If a Vacancy Exists
	B. If a Vacancy Does Not Exist in the Former Position
	1. The employee will be afforded the opportunity to compete in a vacancy for another position for which the Agency determines he or she is qualified.
	2. If no other vacancy exists, or if the employee is unsuccessful in the bidding process for a vacant position, the employee may be laid off.  Layoff; however, for a period of one year following layoff, the employee will be eligible to be rehired in t...



	Section 2.9. Anti-Nepotism Policy and Non-Fraternization Policy
	2.9.1 Statement of Policy
	2.9.2 Relatives, Spouses or Domestic Partners in Same Department, Work Area or Facility
	1. Such employment does not adversely affect safety, morale, security, internal financial control, or supervision and the individuals involved do not work in direct supervision of each other.
	2. An employee neither initiates nor participates in making institutional recommendations or decisions which would directly affect employment status of his/her spouse, registered domestic partner or relative(s).  These recommendations/ decisions inclu...

	2.9.3 Application of the Policy
	1. "Relatives” refer to persons related by blood or marriage, or any relative residing in the immediate household of the employee (including, but not limited to: wife, husband, parent, child, grandparent, brother, sister, in-laws, aunt, uncle, step re...
	2. This policy also applies to persons who are registered domestic partners as defined under state law.
	2.9.4 Marriage or Registered Domestic Partnership Arising Between Employees While Employed.
	1. Should two employees marry or form a registered domestic partnership while both are employed by the Agency, they may continue their employment in the same jobs provided that the criteria set forth in Section 2.9.2 are met.
	2. If the criteria are not met, one of the employees in the marriage, or registered domestic partnership, must change jobs, work locations or leave the Agency.  The couple will make a decision within thirty (30) days of the marriage  or partnership, a...



	Section 2.10. Performance Evaluation
	1. A discretionary leave of absence will be granted only to an employee whose last evaluation was at least satisfactory.
	2. The general record of service as well as   specific and immediate disciplinary charges will be taken into account when disciplinary action against an employee is proposed and the discipline, if any, is assessed.
	3. Merit salary increases will be determined by the Executive Director and can be awarded only to those employees whose current overall evaluation is at least “Fully Exhibits” or above for management positions, and at least a “Meets Standards” or abov...

	Section 2.11. Resignation
	Section 2.12. Layoff
	2.12.1 Statement of Policy
	1. Employees who have temporary status.
	2. Employees who are probationary.
	3. Part-time regular employees.
	4. Full-time regular employees.

	2.12.2 Layoff Order
	2.12.3 Notice
	2.12.4 Reinstatement from Layoff
	2.12.5 Benefits

	Section 2.13. Personnel Files
	2.13.1 Statement of Policy
	2.13.2 Employee Responsibility to Ensure Accuracy of Personnel Records
	1. Address
	2. Telephone Number (Note: As a condition of employment, it is necessary that the employee present a telephone number where he/she can be reached by his/her Supervisor directly without having to go through other parties.)
	3. Person to notify in the event of an emergency.
	4. Name, through marriage or otherwise.
	5. Marital status
	6. Number of dependents
	7. Insurance beneficiary
	8. Military Status
	9. Driver’s license number and date of expiration when a condition of employment.

	2.13.3 Duty to Provide Accurate Information
	2.13.4 Access to Personnel Files


	CHAPTER 3 HOURS OF WORK AND COMPENSATION
	Section 3.1. Work Schedules
	3.1.1 Work Schedules
	3.1.2 Standard Work Schedule
	3.1.3 Standard Work Week
	3.1.4 Flex Time

	Section 3.2. Meal and Rest Breaks
	3.2.1 Meal Breaks
	3.2.2 Rest Periods
	3.2.3 Meal and Rest Breaks May Not Be Combined or Postponed

	Section 3.3. Compensation
	3.3.1 Statement of Policy
	1. The impact of compensation on the cost of services, financial position of the Agency, and overall operational cost.
	2. Compensation paid for similar work in other public and private organizations.
	3. The relative value of individual employee’s services to the success of the Agency.
	4. The general and specific performance of employees.
	5. Status of the labor force, economic conditions, recruitment and retention experience, and other factors influencing the maintenance of a stable and efficient work force.

	3.3.2 Wage Rates
	3.3.3 Pay Schedule
	3.3.4 Payroll Deductions
	A. Mandatory Deductions
	1. Federal Income Tax (Withhold Tax)
	2. State Income Tax
	3. State Disability Insurance (S.D.I.)
	4. Garnishments/Wage Attachments

	B. Employee Authorized Deductions
	1. Employee deferred compensation contributions
	2. Medical and dental insurance contributions
	3. Jury duty payments to an employee who was provided paid time off for jury service
	4. Other Deductions Agreed Upon in Writing by the Employee and permitted by law.


	3.3.5 Updating Payroll Information

	Section 3.4. Timekeeping
	3.4.1 Employees
	A. Time Sheet
	1. Work locations such as lateral name or improvement Agency number.
	2. Job or task number.

	B. Submission of Time Sheets

	3.4.2 Consequences of Falsifying Time Records

	Section 3.5. Overtime
	3.5.1 Statement of Policy
	3.5.2 Exclusion from Policy


	CHAPTER 4 STANDARDS OF CONDUCTS
	Section 4.1. Equal Employment Opportunity
	4.1.1 Statement of Policy
	4.1.2 Employee, Supervisor and Management Responsibilities

	Section 4.2. Anti-Harassment/Discrimination Policy
	4.2.1 Statement of Policy
	4.2.2 Definitions
	A. “Discrimination”
	1. Treating members of a protected class less favorably because of their membership in that class.  The protected groups are based upon race, age, religion, color, national origin, ancestry, physical or mental disability, medical condition, marital st...
	2. Having a policy or practice that has a disproportionately adverse impact on protect class members.

	B. “Harassment”
	1. Making or using derogatory comments, slurs, jokes or epithets which are related to an individual’s race, religion, gender, self-identified gender, sex, or is of a sexual nature, or are based on any other identified protected category, as set forth ...
	1. For purpose of this policy, sexual harassment is any behavior that includes unwelcome sexual advances and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature when:



	4.2.3 Zero Tolerance
	4.2.4 Complaint and Investigation Procedure
	4.2.5 Prohibition on Retaliation
	4.2.6 Prevention

	Section 4.3. Mutual Respect and Courtesy Rule
	Section 4.4. Reasonable Accommodation
	4.4.1 Statement of Policy
	4.4.2 Conditions Covered By This Policy
	A. Disability
	1. A physical or mental disorder or condition that limits one or more of the major life activities of such individual; or
	2. A record of disorder or condition; or
	3. Being regarded as having such a disorder or condition.

	B. Conditions Excluded

	4.4.3 Examples of Reasonable Accommodation
	4.4.4 Requests for Reasonable Accommodation
	1. Any special methods, skills or procedures which would enable him or her to perform tasks or functions that he or she otherwise might not be able to perform because of his or her disability;
	2. The potential accommodations the Agency might make that would enable him or her to perform the essential functions of the job, properly and safely, including special equipment, changes in the physical layout of the job or other accommodation; and
	3. Any equipment aids or services that the applicant or employee is willing to provide and utilize that the Agency is not required to provide.

	4.4.5 Medical Information
	1. To inform the supervisors and managers of the disabled employee regarding any restrictions on the work or duties of the employee or accommodations necessary;
	2. To inform first aid and safety personnel, when appropriate, if the disability may require emergency treatment;
	3. To respond to requests from governmental officials investigating compliance with the disability laws; and
	4. To workers’ compensation offices and second injury funds as required by law or for insurance purposes under certain conditions for those who establish, sponsor or administer health or life insurance benefit plans.

	4.4.6 The Interactive Process
	4.4.7 Miscellaneous Guidelines
	1. Reasonable accommodation does not negate requirements for good job performance, successful completion of assigned training, adherence to generally accepted standards of behavior and adherence to supervisory instructions.
	2. An employee with a disability who is reassigned to a vacant, lower classified position as an accommodation will receive the lower salary of that position.
	3. If the essential job functions and/or duties of a position occupied by an employee with a disability are expanded, revised or modified, the conditions and procedures stated shall apply to any evaluation of the employee’s ability to perform the esse...
	4. An employee who has a question regarding the application of the policy and procedure should contact the Executive Director.


	Section 4.5. Appearance, Conduct and Hygiene
	4.5.1 Statement of Policy
	4.5.2 Guidelines on Appearance, Conduct and Hygiene
	1. All employees are expected to exercise good hygiene and be well groomed.
	2. All employees having long hair or wearing a moustache or beard must keep them clean, trimmed, combed, and otherwise groomed so as not to interfere with worker safety.  Those employees who normally do not wear a beard or moustache and who normally s...
	3. Employees must dress in a manner that is professional, functional, and affords them safety from unnecessary risk of injury.  Office employees should not wear shorts, sweat pants, tank tops, shabby denims, or suggestive or inappropriate clothing.
	4. When, on occasion, employees have to deal with discourteous persons, it is especially important for them to maintain their friendly attitude.  Continuing courtesy on the part of employees will do much to promote an excellent relationship between th...


	Section 4.6. Attendance and Punctuality
	4.6.1 Statement of Policy
	4.6.2 Reporting Requirements
	1. Employees are expected to report to work  on time  and ready for duty  at the time prescribed.
	2. Employees may not leave work without prior supervisory approval during working hours or prior to the end of a scheduled work time.
	3. Employees who foresee the need to be absent, tardy or leave early from work should notify their supervisor/Department Head, Human Resources, the Administrative Assistant or Human Resources Managerand the Executive Director of the anticipated absenc...
	4. An employee who will be absent or late to work must notify their supervisor/Department Head, Human Resources, the Administrative Assistant or Human Resources Managerand Executive Director prior to the start of the employee’s shift.  This process mu...
	5. An employee who is physically unable to provide notice of an absence prior to the start of the employee’s work day must provide notice as soon as practicably possible.
	6. Absences, including tardiness, must be accurately reported on time sheets in 15 minute increments.  Employees who are tardy will not be paid for the time they are absent.

	4.6.3 Discipline

	Section 4.7. Secondary Employment
	4.7.1 Statement of Policy
	1. Actual conflict in hours of employment;
	2. Being tired or unfit for duty because of outside employment;
	3. Where the secondary employment creates an actual or apparent conflict of interest in regard to Agency employment.

	4.7.2 Notification and Approval
	1. Receive the written permission of the Executive Director prior to accepting secondary employment.  In the case of the Executive Director, he/she must receive authorization from the Board of Directors;
	2. When requested by the Executive Director, obtain from the secondary employer a waiver of liability for the Agency;
	3. It is incumbent on the employee to make it clear to the secondary employer that he, the employee, is not performing any duties as a representative of NCTPANVTA;
	4. Once approval is granted by the Executive Director, immediately notify the ED if the secondary employment poses an actual or potential conflict with regards to the employee’s Agency employment.


	Section 4.8. Causes for Discipline
	4.8.1 Statement of Policy
	4.8.2 Standards of Conduct
	1. Poor performance; unsatisfactory work quality or quantity;
	2. Neglect of duty, including sleeping on the job;
	3. Insubordination;
	4. Excessive absenteeism or tardiness;
	5. Unexcused absences, failing to properly report absences, or leaving work early without permission;
	6. Failure to keep supervisor aware of employee’s whereabouts during duty time when availability may be required;
	7. Misuse of or damage to Agency tools, vehicles, equipment or other property;
	8. Moving violations or accidents in an Agency vehicle;
	9. Violation of safety rules or practices;
	10. Falsifying, altering or making a material omission on employment, medical, financial, payroll, timekeeping, or other Agency records;
	11. Performing non-Agency work during work hours;
	12. Dishonesty;
	13. Special treatment or favoritism of one customer over another;
	14. Use, possession, sale or being under the influence of alcoholic beverages or illegal drugs during work hours or on Agency premises (including vehicles) or other violation of the drug and alcohol policy;
	15. Violation of the anti-harassment or discrimination policies;
	16. Fighting, engaging in violent or threatening behavior or other conduct in violation of the Agency’s workplace violence policy;
	17. Discourteous treatment of the public or other employees, as defined by the Mutual Respect and Courtesy Rule (Section 4.3);
	18. Conviction of a crime that reflects unfitness for the employee’s position or unfitness to work around the Agency’s employees, property or the public;
	19. Other failure of good behavior during or outside of duty hours which is of such a nature that it causes discredit to the Agency and his or her employment; and
	20. Other violation of Agency policies or rules.


	Section 4.9. Discipline
	4.9.1 Statement of Policy
	4.9.2 Progressive Discipline
	A. Suspension without Pay
	B. Demotion
	C. Discharge

	4.9.3 Administrative Leave
	4.9.4 Procedures for Disciplinary Action of a Permanent Employee
	Where discipline of a permanent employee involves disciplinary actions that result in loss of salary or change in employment status (such as suspension without pay or demotion or discharge), the following provisions shall apply:
	A. Notice of Proposed Discipline
	The employee’s supervisor shall inform the employee in writing of the proposed disciplinary action, which shall not be effective until at least five days from the date the notice of proposed action is served on the employee.  This notice shall include...
	B. Skelly Meeting
	The employee may request a meeting to respond to the proposed disciplinary action.  The meeting shall be held with the appropriate manager.  Following the meeting or employee’s written response, the ED or manager shall determine whether to proceed, mo...
	C. Notice of Discipline
	The employee shall be informed in writing of the final disciplinary action.  A copy of the Notice of Discipline shall be placed in the employee’s personnel file.  This notice shall include a copy of the charges, the reasons for disciplinary action, an...
	D. Right to Appeal
	Within five days of service of the Notice of Disciplinary Action, a permanent employee may request to appeal the disciplinary action in writing to the ED.  An employee may only appeal a disciplinary action that results in loss of salary or change in e...



	CHAPTER 5 HEALTH AND SAFETY ON THE JOB
	Section 5.1. Job Safety
	5.1.1 Statement of Policy
	5.1.2 Employee Responsibility
	5.1.3 Injury Reporting
	Prompt Reporting


	Section 5.2. Workplace Violence Prevention
	5.2.1 Statement of Policy
	5.2.2 Employee Responsibilities
	5.2.3 Conduct Prohibited By This Policy
	5.2.4 Reporting Procedure
	A. Emergencies
	B. Non-Emergencies

	5.2.5 Corrective Actions

	Section 5.3. Alcohol and Drug Free Workplace
	5.3.1 Statement of Policy
	5.3.2 Definitions
	A. Legal Drug
	B. Illegal Drug
	C. Under the Influence
	D. Agency Property
	E. Reasonable Suspicion

	5.3.3 Pre-Employment Drug and Alcohol Screening
	The Agency may maintain a pre-employment drug and alcohol screening practice designed to prevent the hiring of persons who use illegal drugs, or who use legal drugs or alcohol to the extent that safe job performance would be impaired on safety sensiti...
	A. Notification to Prospective Employees
	B. Time of Test
	C. Consent to Test
	D. Disqualification from Employment
	1. Refusal to consent to a drug and alcohol screening test or refusal to authorize the release of the results to the Agency.
	2. A positive test for illegal drugs or alcohol.
	3. A positive test for legal drugs which, after medical consultation, the Agency determines will impair the candidate’s ability to safely perform the job in question or will jeopardize the well-being of others.


	5.3.4 Prohibition on Possession, Use, Sale or Transport of Alcohol or Drugs
	A. Illegal Drugs and Alcohol
	B. Notification of Criminal Drug Conviction
	C. Legal Drugs
	D. Notification

	5.3.5 Reasonable Suspicion Testing
	A. Conduct of Test
	B. Valid Prescriptions
	C. Refusal to Take Test

	5.3.6 Search or Inspection of Agency Property for Illegal Drugs or Alcohol
	5.3.7 Disciplinary Action
	5.3.8 Drug and Alcohol Assistance Programs
	A. Voluntary Assistance
	B. Seeking Assistance After Alcohol or Drug Related Misconduct


	Section 5.4. Fitness for Duty
	5.4.1 Statement of Policy
	5.4.2 Employee Responsibility
	5.4.3 Pre-Employment Medical Examinations
	A. Notice
	B. Consent
	C. Examination
	D. Examination Results

	5.4.4 Post-Employment Fitness for Duty Examinations
	A. Reasonable Cause
	B. Examination
	C. Examination Results

	5.4.5 Confidentiality of Examination Records

	Section 5.5. Driving
	5.5.1 Statement of Policy
	5.5.2 Driver’s License Requirements
	5.5.3 Good Driving Record
	5.5.4 Compliance with Traffic Laws
	5.5.5 Use of Seatbelts

	Section 5.6. Smoking

	CHAPTER 6 EQUIPMENT AND PROPERTY
	Section 6.1. Use and Care of Agency Property
	6.1.1 Statement of Policy
	6.1.2 Damage or Loss of Agency Equipment
	6.1.3 Key/Access Card Distribution
	6.1.4 Personal Use of Agency Property
	6.1.5 Personal Tools or Property
	6.1.6 Agency Access to Property
	6.1.7 Entry onto Private Property
	6.1.8 Purchasing

	Section 6.2. Phones, Computers, and Other Electronic Equipment
	6.2.1 Statement of Policy
	6.2.2 Phone Usage for Personal Reasons
	6.2.3 Internet Usage
	6.2.4 Decorum of Communications
	6.2.5 Installation or Duplication of Software
	6.2.6 Discipline

	Section 6.3. Agency Vehicles
	Section 6.4. Employee Purchase Program
	6.4.1 Mobile Device
	A. Purpose & Reimbursement
	B. Device Ownership/Program Limitations



	CHAPTER 7 TIME OFF AND LEAVES OF ABSENCE
	Section 7.1. Holidays
	7.1.1 Eligible Employees
	7.1.2 Recognized Holidays
	7.1.3 Personal Leave
	7.1.4 Board Ordered Holiday
	7.1.5 Holidays Occurring During Unpaid Leave
	7.1.6 Working on Holidays

	Section 7.2. Vacation
	7.2.1 Purpose
	7.2.2 Eligibility
	7.2.3 Accrual
	A. Accrual Rates
	B. Management Employees

	7.2.4 Scheduling
	A. Notice
	B. Intervening Holidays
	C. Intervening Illness or Injury

	7.2.5 Termination or Retirement from Agency
	A. Termination
	B. Retirement
	1. Continue to work until the date of retirement and be paid for accrued and unused vacation; or
	2. Discontinue working and take accrued and unused vacation time that would extend from last day worked up to the date of retirement.



	Section 7.3. Sick Leave
	7.3.1 Purpose
	7.3.2 Eligibility
	7.3.3 Accrual
	7.3.4 Conversion of Vacation to Sick Leave
	7.3.6 Employee Notice and Communication

	Section 7.4. Workers’ Compensation Leave
	7.4.1 Purpose
	7.4.2 Sick or Vacation Leave Supplementation
	7.4.3 Accrual of Benefits during Leave

	Section 7.5. Pregnancy Leave
	7.5.1 Purpose
	7.5.2 Covered Employees
	7.5.3 Leave Rights
	7.5.4 Pay and Benefits
	7.5.5 Employee Notice Obligations
	7.5.6 Medical Certification
	7.5.7 Other Forms of Pregnancy-Related Disability Accommodation

	Section 7.6. Family and Medical Care Leave Act
	7.6.1 Statement of Policy
	7.6.2 Definitions
	7.6.3 Family and/or Medical Care Leave
	7.6.4 Status of Prior Policies

	Section 7.7. Funeral and Bereavement Leave
	7.7.1 Purpose
	7.7.2 Conditions of Leave
	A. Amount
	B. Covered Family Members
	C. Deceased Employees


	Section 7.8. Jury Duty and Witness Leave
	7.8.1 Purpose
	7.8.2 Jury Duty Leave
	A. Full-time and Seasonal Employees
	B. Part-Time and Temporary Employees
	C. Notice Requirements
	D. Return to Work

	7.8.3 Witness Duty
	7.8.4 Overtime Exempt Employees

	Section 7.9. Military Leave
	7.9.1 Purpose
	7.9.2 Leave of Absence
	7.9.3 Employee Notice Requirements
	7.9.4 Pay and Benefits While On Leave
	A. Pay
	B. Health Care Coverage
	C. Seniority

	7.9.5 Reinstatement

	Section 7.10. Leaves of Absence without Pay–Accrual of Vacation and Sick Leave
	Section 7.11. Outside Employment

	CHAPTER 8 BENEFITS
	Section 8.1. Insurance
	8.1.1 Purpose
	8.1.2 Terms of Coverage
	8.1.3 Eligibility
	8.1.4 Medical, Dental and Vision Coverage
	A. Payment of Premiums
	B. Long Term Disability
	C. Continuation of Health Benefits - COBRA
	D. Temporary Employees

	8.1.5 Life Insurance Coverage

	Section 8.2. Retirement
	8.2.1 Purpose
	8.2.2 Plan Overview
	8.2.3 Contributions




	0003_1_Staff Report
	9.3_Revised Procurement & Contracting Policy Changes April 2018 hf_kes-KM changes
	Action Requested: APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	9.3_Revised Procurement & Contracting Policy Attch 1 Draft Policy vc 3-12-2018 hf-KM changes
	CHAPTER 1   INTRODUCTION
	A. Step-by-Step Guide
	B. Methods of Procurement and Delegation
	1. Goods and Services
	2. Professional and Architectural/Engineering Services (A/E)


	CHAPTER 3   POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
	C. Procurement Policies
	1. Procurement Responsibility
	a. Administrative Technician (AT) and Procurement
	b. Project Manager (PM) and Procurement
	i. The PM or his/her designee shall be the primary agency employee   to determine that contract prices are fair and reasonable.
	ii. The PM is responsible for soliciting bids and proposals directly or working with the AT on such solicitation; for serving as the chairperson of pre-bid and pre-proposal conferences, qualification hearings and proposal evaluation meetings; for cond...
	i. Attends pre-bid and pre-proposal conferences as the technical expert;
	ii. Conducts investigations of proposed contractor's technical past performance;
	iii. Questions prospective contractors during clarifications and discussions as to their technical capability to perform the contract;
	iv. Assists the ED with contract negotiations;
	v. Ascertains the availability of funds prior to asking the ED to initiate the negotiation and approval process for change orders;
	vi. Contract modifications and supplemental agreements; and
	vii. Issues directions to correct or replace defective items of work.
	viii. Coordinates and communicates with AT and includes AT in necessary meetings, conferences, and written communications.

	2. Standards of Conduct and Conflict of Interest Policies
	3. Purchasing Policies
	a. Equal Employment Opportunity/Affirmative Action
	b. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise
	c. Cooperative Procurement
	d. Open Competition Required.

	4. Public Records Act

	D. Procedures
	1. Independent Cost Estimate
	 Published competitive prices
	 Results of competitive procurements
	 Estimates by in-house estimators
	 Outside estimators

	The ICE will be included in the procurement records.  All construction bids will require an engineering estimate as part of the plans, specifications and engineering phase of the project.
	2. Excluded Parties List
	i. If a business reference returns a positive listing on the EPLS/SAM, a printout of the web page will be included in the procurement file, while a second copy will be forwarded to the bidding business with a notice that they have been removed from co...
	ii. If the EPSL/SAM search returns no listing on a specific business, a copy of the web page, showing the negative return, will be made and included in the procurement file.

	3. Business References
	a. CA Secretary of State Business Entity Search
	b. Business License Reference

	4. Reasonableness of Price – Price Analysis or Cost Analysis
	a. Price Analysis
	b. Cost Analysis

	5. Best Value
	6. Tag-ons
	7. Piggybacking
	9. Use of Brand Name
	10. Options
	a. Evaluation of Options
	b. Exercise of Options

	11. Advance Payments
	12. Progress Payments
	a. Progress payments are only made to the contractor for costs incurred in the performance of the contract.
	b. NCTPANVTA must obtain adequate security for progress payments. Adequate security may include taking title, letter of credit or equivalent means to protect NCTPANVTA’s interest in the progress payment.

	13. Procurement by Micro-Purchases
	14. Small Purchases
	15. Construction and Major Capital Purchases exceeding $4,000
	a. Major FTA-funded capital projects must further follow FTA’s Construction and Project Management Guidelines:  http://www.fta.dot.gov/FTA_Project_and_CM_Guidelines_-_July_2011_Update_12-01-26.pdf
	b. Major FHWA/State-funded projects must further follow Caltrans’ Local Assistance Guidelines: http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LocalPrograms/lam/prog_g/complete-2013-13-02.pdf


	E. Competitive Procurement Process
	1. Invitation for Bids (IFB)
	a. RFPs for goods and service;
	b. releaseRelease of professional service contracts; and
	c. capitalCapital projects.

	2. Recording of Bids
	3. Tabulation of Bids
	4. Analysis of Limited Bid Response
	5. Determination of Responsiveness
	a. Any bid which fails to conform to the essential requirements of the invitation for bids, such as specifications, delivery schedule, warranty, or the required bid documents, shall be rejected as non-responsive.
	b. The originals of all rejected bids, and any written findings with respect to such rejections, shall be preserved in the file relating to the procurement.

	6. Responsible Bidder Evaluation
	a. Have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required during performance of the contract.
	b. Is able to comply with the required or proposed delivery or performance schedule, taking into consideration all existing business commitments.
	c. Has a satisfactory record of performance.  Contractors who are, or have been seriously deficient in current or recent contract performance, when the number of contracts and the extent of deficiency of each are considered, may be considered to be no...
	d. Is otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award under applicable laws and regulations.
	e. Has the necessary organization, experience, operational controls, and technical skills, or the ability to obtain them.
	f. Has the necessary production, construction, and technical equipment and facilities, or the ability to obtain them.
	i. A list of debarred, suspended or ineligible firms or individuals.
	ii. From the prospective contractor's bids and proposals, replies to questionnaires, financial data such as balance sheets, profits and loss statements, cash forecasts, and financial histories of the contractor and affiliated concerns; current and pas...
	iii. Publications, including credit ratings, trade and financial journals, and business directories and registers may also be used.
	iv. References such as suppliers, subcontractors, customers of the prospective contractor, banks and financial institutions, commercial credit agencies, other government agencies, purchasing and trade associations, and better business bureaus and cham...
	v. Documented past performance on contracts with NCTPANVTA.

	7. Rejection of Individual Bids
	8. Award of the Contract
	9. Project Completion
	10. Request for QualificationsProposals (RFQP) / Request for ProposalsQualifications (RFPQ)
	a. Pre-qualified Contractor Lists
	b. Issuance of RFQP and RFPQ Packet
	i. Instructions To Proposers - General instructions concerning the proposal format, pre-contractual expenses, contract conditions, pre-proposal conferences, and other information.
	ii. Attachments - Required forms to be completed by the proposer and submitted with the proposal.
	iii. Exhibits - These can be documents which display key facts, specifications, maps, report formats, and other important information to clearly define the goods or services needed in order for the proposers to properly respond to the RFP/RFQRFQ/RFP.
	iv. Scope of Work - Each RFP/RFQRFQ/RFP will contain a statement or scope of work prepared by the PM which provides a clear and accurate description of the technical requirements for the materials, products, or services being produced.  A statement or...
	(i)  A detailed description of the work to be performed outlining various tasks or phases to be performed, and defining the limits of the proposed project;
	(ii) A requirement for periodic reporting or progress on the project  if the procurement involves consultant or professional services;
	(iii) A proposed delivery schedule; and,
	(iv) A proposed contract period.
	v. Evaluation Criteria – Each RFP/RFQRFQ/RFP will contain the criteria and method that will be used to select the successful proposer.  If the selection is to be made by lowest price, that will be stated in the solicitation documentation.  If the sele...
	c. Control Record
	A control record will be maintained by the AT in the procurement file as RFP packets are distributed to prospective bidders.  The control record profiles the following information:
	i. Date and time RFP/RFQRFQ/RFP packets are distributed.
	ii. Names and addresses of vendors receiving the RFP/RFQRFQ/RFP and if applicable vendors attending a pre-proposal conference.
	d. Pre-Proposal Conference
	e. Evaluation and Selection Process

	11. Architectural / Engineering Services Request for Qualifications
	a. Issuance of an “A/E” RFQ
	b. Pre-proposal Conference
	c. Evaluation and Contract Negotiation
	i. A qualified evaluation committee shall be established by the PM to review eligible firms and all responses to a RFQ.  The evaluation committee is briefed by the PM on NCTPANVTA procedures and   instructed to maintain confidentiality about the propo...
	ii. Evaluation Committee evaluates the firms based on:
	(A) Professional qualifications for performance of the required services;
	(B) Specialized experience and technical competence in the type work required;
	(C) Capacity to accomplish the work in the required time; and,
	(D) Past performance in terms of cost control, quality of work and  compliance with performance schedules.
	iii. Evaluation team ranks the proposers and if necessary holds discussions with the most highly qualified firms ("short list").
	iv. Evaluation team prepares a selection report listing in order of preference, those firms that are considered to be the most highly qualified to perform the required services.  The report should include a description of the discussions and evaluatio...
	v. The final selection shall be made by the PM or ED.

	12. Sole Source Procurements
	a. The item is available only from a single source;
	b. The public exigency or emergency (i.e., a threat to public health, welfare, safety, property or other substantial loss to NCTPANVTA, or a situation requiring immediate action by NCTPANVTA, as determined by NCTPANVTA) for the requirement will not pe...
	c. FTA authorizes noncompetitive negotiations;
	d. After solicitation of a number of sources, competition is determined inadequate; or
	e. The item is an associated capital maintenance item as defined in 49 U.S.C. § 5307(a)(1) that is procured directly from the original manufacturer or supplier of the item to be replaced.  The grantee must first certify in writing to FTA:
	i. That such manufacturer or supplier is the only source for such item; and
	ii. that the price of such item is not higher than the price for such item by like customers.

	13. Emergency Procurements
	14. Vendor Protest Procedures
	a. NCTPANVTA Protest Procedures
	b. FTA Appeals
	i. A protestor adversely affected by a decision of NCTPANVTA may submit a protest to the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) in accordance with the provisions of FTA Circular 4220.1(F) or its successors,
	ii. Under the provision of the FTA Circular, FTA will only review protests regarding:
	(i)  The alleged failure of NCTPANVTA to have written protest procedures or the alleged failure to have followed such protest procedures;
	(ii) The alleged failure to review a complaint or protest; or,
	(iii)  Alleged violations of federal law or regulation.
	iii. In accordance with the FTA Circular, such protest must be filed no later than five (5) days after the protestor knew or should have known of NCTPANVTA’s alleged failure listed above.
	iv. NCTPANVTA may proceed with procurement in spite of a pending protest to the FTA under the following conditions:
	(i)   The items to be procured are urgently required;
	(ii) Delivery or performance will be unduly delayed by failure to  make the award promptly; or,
	Failure to make prompt award will otherwise cause undue harm to NCTPANVTA or the Federal Government.
	CHAPTER 4   CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION


	F. Contract Administration Guidelines
	G. FTA Federal Procurement Requirements

	APPENDIX LIST
	A. FTA Required Model Clauses
	B. Determination of Price Reasonableness
	C. Procurement File Checklist
	D. Procurement Documentation Checklist
	E.

	APPENDIX A:  FTA & FHWA Required Clauses
	APPENDIX B:  DETERMINATION OF PRICE REASONABLENESS
	APPENDIX C:  PROCUREMENT FILE CHECKLIST
	APPENDIX D:  PROCUREMENT DOCUMENTATION CHECKLIST


	0004_1_Staff Report
	9.4_Revised Transit Policies April 2018_kes-KM changes
	Action Requested: APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	9.4_Revised Transit Policies Attch 1 Transit Policies_DRAFT 3-08-18-KM no changes
	CHAPTER 1  INTRODUCTION
	Section 1.1. Overview
	1.1.1 Service Standards
	1.1.2 Performance Measures and Performance Standards
	1.1.3 Operate Safe, Reliable, and Comfortable Service
	1.1.4 Efficiently Use of Resources
	1.1.5 Be a Forward Think Organization Meeting the Needs of an Evolving and Diverse Community


	CHAPTER 2 MAJOR SERVICE CHANGES
	Section 2.1. Overview
	2.1.1 Major Service Change
	C. Any aggregate change of 30 percent or more of the number of transit revenue hours of a route computed on a daily basis for the day of the week for which the change is proposed; or
	D. Routing changes that alter 40 percent or more of a route’s path.  Minor changes to an existing route shall not constitute a “major change in route.”
	E. EXCEPTIONS: Exceptions to the major adjustments of transit service include:
	1. Changes to a service on a route with productivity levels at 50 percent or below of NVTA’s Transit standards in a typical service day are not considered “major” unless service on that route is eliminated completely on any such day.  Productivity sta...
	2. Headway adjustments from existing headways of up to 20 minutes not made in conjunction with a change in revenue vehicle miles or hours provided in (c) and (d) above.
	3. Standard seasonal variations, unless the variation, as compared to operations during the previous season, fall within the definition of major adjustments listed above.
	4. The introduction or discontinuation of short- or limited-term service (e.g., promotional, demonstration, seasonal or emergency service, or service provided as mitigation or diversions for construction or other similar activities), as long as the se...
	5. The restoration of service previously eliminated due to budget constraints, provided the service runs on the same route as it had prior to its elimination, subject to minor deviations that do not exceed the requirements of (a), (b), (c), or (d) above.
	6. Changes to infrequent, seasonal, or supplemental routes, including supplemental school routes that meet the requirements of (a) or (b).




	CHAPTER 3 PASSENGER FARES, PASSES & TRANSFERS
	Section 3.1. Definitions
	Section 3.2. Fare Policies
	3.2.1 Revenue Collection Principles
	A. Farebox Recovery: Vine collects fares from passengers riding its transit services as one element of funding these services.  These fares are then used to offset the costs of providing the transit service, otherwise known as Farebox Recovery.  The F...
	B. Vine Fare Adjustments: Fare adjustments are defined as any permanent changes to Vine’s fare structure.  Decisions on fare adjustments are made by the NVTA’s Board of Directors.  Prior to making a decision on a fare adjustment, the Board shall consi...
	D. Vine-GO Paratransit Fares: Vine Go’s policy, in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Section 12143) and the implementing FTA Regulations (49 CFR Section 37.121) is that ADA complementary paratransit fares will equa...
	E. Vine Local Passes: Prepayment of fares on the fixed-route system shall be encouraged.  Monthly local Vine passes shall be discounted to provide some savings to commuters compared with the cash fare, but not less than 30 (See Attachment A) times the...
	F. Vine Express Fares and Passes
	1. Vine Route 29:  Vine Route 29 is a partially grant funded premium express service from Calistoga to the Vallejo Ferry and BART.  As such it is primarily intended to service commuters traveling to and from the City of San Francisco and the East Bay....
	2. Vine Route 21:  Vine Route 21 is a grant funded premium express route servicing a connection between the Soscol Gateway Transit Center and the Suisun City Train Depot.  As a grant funded route the Route 21 is not required by law to meet a specific ...
	1. Vine Route 25:  Vine Route 25 is a grant funded premium express route servicing the Soscol Gateway Transit Center and the Sonoma Plaza.  As a grant funded route the Route 25 is not required by law to meet a specific farebox recovery ratio but by NV...

	G. Local Shuttle Services:  Local shuttle service fares (St. Helena, Yountville, Calistoga and American Canyon) are defined by the individual Memorandum of Understanding (MOUAgreements) between the jurisdiction and NVTA.  These shuttle services are no...
	H. Promotions and Special Events:  Fare promotions, including special event fares, may be used to attract riders to Vine services.  Fare promotions can be a cost-effective method of attracting riders to new services (such as new bus routes) and existi...
	I. New Payment: Options Fare payment options that effectively attract a different market segment or encourage increased use of Vine services by current riders shall be developed; but must be within the realm of current or planned hardware, software an...
	J. Design: The design of fare payment instruments shall consider the ease of enforcement by bus operators, ease of understanding by customers and the ease of tracking with both the farebox technology and the back-office technology.
	K. Child and Youth Fares - Vine Local Route Services: Up to two children, 5 years of age or less, ride free with each adult over 18 paying fare.  Additional children must pay $.50 per child. No child under the age of seven may ride without an accompan...
	L. Half-Fare Program – Vine Local Fixed Route Services: The objective of the Half-Fare Program is to provide reduced fares for fixed route services for seniors, persons with disabilities and Medicare cardholders in compliance with the Federal Transit ...
	NOTES
	A. The local monthly pass multiplier is based on an analysis of other local transit services within the Bay Area and what is currently being used by the Vine.  See Attachment A.
	B. The discount for the punch pass is based on an analysis of other local transit services within the Bay Area and what the VINE is currently using.  See Attachment A.
	C. The Route 29 monthly pass multiplier is based on an analysis of other express route services within the Bay Area and what is currently being used by the Vine.  See Attachment B.
	D. As of June 1, 2014 the regulatory minimum farebox recovery ratio is 16% for urban transit services and 10% for rural and ADA paratransit services.
	E. Vine offers reduced fares to senior citizens and disabled persons.  The Vine honors the federal Medicare identification card, the California Department of Motor Vehicles disability ID card, the Regional Transit Connection Discount Card, or any othe...
	Children 7 and under must always be accompanied by an adult.



	CHAPTER 4 PASSENGER COMPLAINT & COMMENT POLICIES & PROCEDURES
	Section 4.1. Overview
	4.1.1 Complaints & Comments
	A. Complaints and comments from the public may be received electronically through email and the VINEVine/NVTA web site, prepaid comment cards available in English and Spanish on VINE Vine vehicles, standard written correspondence, testimony at public ...
	B. NVTA’s transit operations contractor may also receive complaints or comments in one or more of the formats noted above
	C. When complaints are received, NVTA staff and/or contractor will acknowledge receipt of the complaint within 24 business hours from the time it is received.
	D. All complaints should be investigated and resolved within 5 business days.
	E. Complaining party shall be notified of the agency’s resolution of the complaint within 5 business days.  NVTA’s contractor shall maintain documentation of all complaints received and their resolution and provide monthly written summaries to be incl...
	F. NVTA’s contractor shall maintain documentation of all complaints received and their resolution and provide monthly written summaries to be included in the contractor’s monthly invoice to NVTA.
	G. NVTA will maintain a log at on the shared office drive available (H:\NVTA\3000_Public Transit\03_Complaints & Suggestions\Comment log - revised 1-30-15.xlsx )so that all NVTA personnel can review and  record complaints
	H. Copies of relevant comment cards received shall be shared with the agency’s contract operator with the originals retained in hard copy or electronic form.
	I.

	4.1.2 Requests for Reasonable Modification
	Public Transit passengers with disabilities may request reasonable modifications be made to accommodate their use of public transit.
	A. Requests should be made in written form and submitted to the Manager of Public Transit.



	CHAPTER 5 ada paratransit policies
	Section 5.1. Service Overview
	Section 5.2. NVTA Eligibility Standards In compliance with the American’s with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990 the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) provides complementary paratransit service (Vine Go) to the Vine fixed route bus system.  Thi...
	Section 5.3. Eligibility Determination Process
	Section 5.4. Eligibility Categories
	Section 5.5. Appeals Process
	Section 5.6. Visitors
	Section 5.7. Reservation and Scheduling
	Section 5.8. Hours of Operation and Service Area
	Section 5.9. Fares
	Section 5.10. Mobility Devices
	Section 5.11. Passenger Accompaniment
	Section 5.12. Passenger Assistance
	Section 5.13. No-Shows
	Section 5.14. Pick-Ups
	Section 5.15. Denials and Missed Trips
	Section 5.16. Trip Length
	Section 5.17. Equivalent Service

	CHAPTER 6 charter & school bus
	Section 6.1. Statement of Policy

	CHAPTER 7 shared vehicle program
	Section 7.1. Statement of Policy
	7.1.1 Participation
	7.1.2 NVTA Responsibilities


	CHAPTER 8 taxi scrip
	Section 8.1. Statement of Policy
	8.1.1 Participation & Compliance
	8.1.1.1 Users
	8.1.1.2 Agencies


	CHAPTER 9 passenger policies
	Section 9.1. Statement of Policy
	Section 9.2. Passenger Code of Conduct

	CHAPTER 10 VEHICLE ACCUDEBT ACCident POLICIES & PROCEDURES
	Section 10.1. Statement of Policy

	CHAPTER 11 state of good repair
	Section 11.1. Statement of Policy

	CHAPTER 12 safety & security
	Section 12.1. Statement of Policy

	CHAPTER 13 bus stop placement
	Section 13.1. Statement of Policy
	A. Local Route
	Local stop spacing is broken down into two categories, urban and suburban. Urban is relegated to Downtown defined as First through Fifth Street and Main to Franklin Street and Suburban is the rest of the City of Napa. For the Urban service type, the a...
	B. Regional Route
	C. Express Routes

	Section 13.2. Process for Implementing Bus Stop Spacing Recommendations
	A. Evaluate the Current Distance Between Bus Stops Against Spacing Guidelines
	B. Stop Elimination Checklist
	C. Stop Consolidation Checklist

	Section 13.3. Adding a Shelter
	Section 13.4. Ongoing Monitoring and Corrective Action
	Existing services should be monitored annually to see if additional shelters are necessary.  All stops added to new service must adhere to the recommended Spacing Guidelines for local, regional and express bus service outlined in this document.

	CHAPTER 14 contractor relations & oversight
	Section 14.1. Overview

	CHAPTER 15 title vi
	Section 15.1. Statement of Policy


	9.4_Revised Transit Policies Attch 2 Bus Stop Optimization and Maintenance Policy 4-3-18-KM Moved to correct item
	Introduction and Purpose
	Why Optimize Bus Stops
	Peer Standards

	Bus Stop Spacing Guidelines for NVTA
	Existing Stop Distances

	Bus Stop Placement
	ULocal Route
	Local stop spacing is broken down into two categories, urban and suburban. Urban is relegated to Downtown defined as First through Fifth Street and Main to Franklin Street and Suburban is the rest of the City of Napa. For the Urban service type, the a...
	URegional Route
	UExpress Routes
	UProcess for Implementing Bus Stop Spacing Recommendations
	Evaluate the Current Distance Between Bus Stops Against Spacing Guidelines
	Stop Elimination Checklist
	Stop Consolidation Checklist


	Bus Stop Shelter Placement and Design
	Bus Stop Accessories
	Maintenance Objectives


	0005_1_Staff Report
	9.5_PCC Member Appointment_kes-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	9.5_PCC Member Appointment Attch 1

	0006_1_Staff Report
	9.6_CAC Appointment & Renewals-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	9.6_CAC Appointment & Renewals Attch 1 Patricia Lynch Application
	9.6_CAC Appointment & Renewals Attch 2 Renewals

	0007_1_Staff Report
	9.7_LCTOP FY 2017-18 Grant_ao-KM changes
	RECOMMENDATION

	9.7_LCTOP FY 2017-18 Grant Attch 1 Resolution vc redline 4-9-2018
	RESOLUTION No. 18-18-10


	0008_1_Staff Report
	9.8_TDA-3 Call for Projects FY 2018-19 -FY 2020-21 dm-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS

	9.8_TDA-3 Call for Projects Attch 1 TDA-3 Guide & Application_dm v2-KM changes
	Basic Eligibility for TDA-3 Funding
	TDA-3 Project Selection Criteria for Napa County
	For Bicycle Projects

	Application Instructions:
	Contact Information
	TDA & RM2 Operating Program Manager


	9.8_TDA-3 Call for Projects Attch 2 Napa County Fund Estimate_2-28-28

	0009_1_Staff Report
	10.1_Public Hearing NVTA Biennial Budget FY19 and FY20_ao_jp
	Action Requested: APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	A budget review steering committee review convened on April 13, 2018.
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	10.1_Public Hearing Budget Attch 1 FY18-19  19-20 NVTA Budget Final Draft
	Budget - Consolidated
	Budget - CMA
	CMA Planning Project List
	Budget - Capital
	Capital Project List
	Budget - Total Public Transit
	Budget - Vine Go
	Budget - Total Vine
	Budget - Taxi Scrip
	Budget -American Canyon Shuttle
	Budget - Yountville Trolley
	Budget - St. Helena Shuttle
	Budget - Calistoga Shuttle
	Budget - Transit Facilities


	0010_1_Staff Report
	11.1 COA Identified Needs_kes-KM changes
	Action Requested: APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	11.1 COA Identified Needs Attachment 1

	0011_1_Staff Report
	11.2_Vine Maintenance Facility 4-3-2018-KM changes
	Action Requested: APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	11.2_Vine Maintenance Facility Attch 1 Resolution 18-11 Addendum to EIR 4-3-2018KM no changes
	11.2_Vine Maintenance Facility Attch 2 Addendum
	Addendum Cover
	Table of Contents
	Acronyms and Abbreviations
	1 Introduction
	1.1 Background and Purpose of the EIR Addendum
	1.2 Basis for the Addendum

	2 Project Description
	Figure 1 Project Vicinity Map
	Figure 2 Project Site Boundary Map
	Figure 3 Modified Project: Preliminary Site Plan
	Figure 4 Original Project: Approved Conceptual Site Plan
	Figure 5 Modified Project: Conceptual Rendering

	3 Impact Analysis
	3.1 Aesthetics
	3.2 Agriculture and Forestry Resources
	3.3 Air Quality
	3.4 Biological Resources
	3.5 Cultural Resources
	3.6 Geology and Soils
	3.7 Greenhouse Gas Emissions
	3.8 Hazards and Hazardous Materials
	3.9 Hydrology and Water QualityHydrology and
	3.10 Land Use and Planning
	3.11 Mineral Resources
	3.12 Noise
	3.13 Population and Housing
	3.14 Public Services
	3.15 Recreation
	3.16 Transportation/Traffic
	3.17 Utilities and Service Sys
	3.18 Cumulative Impacts

	4 Other CEQA Required Discussions
	5 Comparison of Alternatives
	6 Conclusion
	7 References

	11.2_Vine Maintenance Facility Attch 3 CEQA Section 15162
	11.2_Vine Maintenance Facility Attch 4 Resolution 18-12 Modified Project 4-3-2018-KM no changes (rev jp 04_09_18)

	0012_1_Staff Report
	11.3_Amendment No. 11 JPA ao-KM changes
	Action Requested: APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	11.3_Amendment No. 11 JPA Attch 1 Draft 3 ao vc ao iBank ao KM redline USE THIS VESION 3-20-18

	0013_1_Staff Report
	11.4_First Amendment Agreement 18-01 Fehr and Peers-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	11.4_First Amendment Agreement 18-01 Fehr and Peers Attch 1 SR 37 TBS WO_05A1 (D)
	WO_052_A1
	SR_37_Travel_Behavior_Study_Scope_3-20-2018
	Bus and Van Pool Study-TAM (2)
	SR_37_Travel_Behavior_Study_COST_3-20-2018


	0014_1_Staff Report
	11.5_Legislative Update_kes_KM changes
	Action Requested: APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	11.5_Legislative Update Attch 1 Federal Legislative Report
	11.5_Legislative Update Attch 2 Omnibus
	11.5_Legislative Update Attch 3 State Legislative Report 4-2-KM
	11.5_Legislative Update Attch 4 State Matrix 4-2-KM changes




